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IN THE HIGH COURT OF SOUTH AFRICA
{(NORTH WEST DIVISION, MAHIKENG)
CASE NO.: 12021

in the application between:

SAKELIGA NPC Applicant

and

THE MEMBER OF THE EXECUTIVE COUNCIL:
NORTH WEST PROVINCE: COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE,
HUMAN SETTLEMENTS AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS 18! Respondent

THE MEMBER OF THE EXECUTIVE COUNCIL:
NORTH WEST PROVINCE: FINANCE 2"? Respondent

THE MINISTER: NATIONAL DEPARTMENT OF

COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL AFFAIRS 3 Respondent
THE MINISTER OF FINANCE 4" Respondent
DITSOBOTLA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY 5 Respondent
NALEDI LOCAL MUNICIPALITY 6™ Respondent
THE PREMIER: NORTH WEST PROVINCE 7™ Respondent
ESKOM SOC LTD 8" Respondent
MAGALIES WATER BOARD 9'" Respondent

FOUNDING AFFIDAVIT

1, the undersigned, ;/%
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PIETER JACOBUS LE ROUX
do hereby make ocath and state the following:
1. | am an adult male and | am the chief executive officer of Sakeliga NPC, with its

offices at Building A, 5" Floor, Loftus Park, 402 Kirkness Street, Arcadia, Pretoria,

Gauteng Province.

2. The applicant company has duly resolved to bring this application. | attach hereto
marked annexure X1 a resolution confirming the required authority to institute these

proceedings.

3. The facts set out in this affidavit fall within my personal knowledge, unless the

contrary appears from the context herecof, and are both true and correct.

4. To the extent that | make legal submissions in this affidavit, which | do, | do so being

advised by the applicant's legal team.

JURISDICTION

5. This Court has jurisdiction to adjudicate upon this application, because all the
affected municipalities are situated within this Court's area of jurisdiction and the

whole cause of action arose within this Court's area of jurisdiction.

6.  The relief sought pertains to matters that occur within this Court's area of jurisdiction.
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THE PARTIES

THE APPLICANT

7. The applicant is Sakeliga NPC, with registration number 2012/043725/08, a non-
profit company duly registered and incorporated in terms of the statutes of the
Republic of South Africa and has its principal place of business at Building A, 5™

Floor, Loftus Park, 402 Kirkness Street, Arcadia, Pretoria, Gauteng Province.

8. The applicant is a public interest organisation with a supporter and donor base of
more than 17 000 businesspeople, companies and business organisations and a

network of more than 40 000 subscribers in South Africa.

9. Within the municipal areas of the fifth and sixth respondents, the applicant has more

than 89 business owner members.

10.  The applicant was established in the year 2011 and was incorporated and registered
as a non-profit company in terms of the Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008, in the year
2012. The applicant's main objective is the protection of constitutional rights,
constitutional order, the rule of law, free market principles and a just and sustainabte

business environment within the Republic of South Africa.

11. To this extent, the applicant lobbies to promote a free market and economic
prosperity to create a favourable business environment in the interest of its

supporters as well as in the interest of the common good. In order to give effect to

O H
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its main object, it also provides support to its supporters and the public at large,

which support includes legal support.

12. Further, to achieve the applicant's objectives and to perform its functions and
mandate, as an ancillary object, is infer alia to act in the interest of its supporters

and members of the public to protect their business and other constitutional rights.

13. The aforesaid is also evident from an extract of the memorandum of incorporation
of the applicant which extract | attach hereto and mark annexure X2. | deem it
apposite to draw this Honourable Court's attention to clause 4 of the memorandum
of incorporation which sets out in more detail the objects, ancillary objects as well
as the powers of the applicant. | request this Court to incorporate the content thereof
herein as if specifically set out. | do not attach a full copy of the memorandum of
incorporation to these papers, because it will make these papers unnecessarily
prolix and voluminous. The applicant will, however, at the request of any of the
respondents, make the full memorandum of incorporation available to such

respondent requesting it.

THE RESPONDENTS

14. The first respondent is the Member of the Executive Council: North West Province:
Cooperative Governance, Human Settlements and Traditional Affairs. To my
knowledge, the present MEC is Ms Boitumelo Moiloa, who is the acting MEC, with
address at NWDC Building, situated at the corner of Provident House and University

Drive, Mmabatho, North West Province.
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15. The second respondent is the Member of the Executive Council: North West

16.

17,

18.

Province: Finance. To my knowledge, the present MEC is Ms Motlalepula Ziphora
Rosho, with address at Garona Building, Second Floor, East Wing, Corner James

Moroka and University Drive, Mmabatho, North West Province.

The third respondent is the Minister: Mational Department of Cooperative
Governance and Traditional Affairs (hereinafter referred to as "COGTA"), presently
Dr. Nkosazana Clarice Dlamini-Zuma, who is cited herein as the head of the
National Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs, with

address at 87 Hamilton Street, Arcadia, Pretoria, Gauteng Province.

The fourth respondent is the Minister of Finance, presently Mr Tito Titus Mboweni,
who is cited herein in his representative capacity as the head of the Department of
Finance and National Treasury, with address at 40 Church Square, Old Reserve

Bank Building, 2" Floor, Pretoria, Gauteng Province.

In respect of the first four respondents (as well as the seventh respondent stated

below}), this application shall also be served at:

18.1.  The State Attorney — Pretoria at 316 Thabo Sehume Street, Pretoria
Central, Pretoria, Gauteng Province, who represents the ministers joined in

this application.

18.2.  The State Afttorney - Mahikeng at 1% Floor, East Gallery, Mega City
Complex, Corner Sekame Road and Dr James Moroka Drive, Mmabatho,

North West Province, who represents the members of the executive council

S B
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in the North West Province and the Premier: North West Province, joined in

this application.

The fifth respondent is Ditsobotla Local Municipality, a municipality established in
terms of the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, No. 117 of 1998
(hereinafter referred to as “"the Structures Act"), read with Section 155 of the
Constitution, which has its address at Civic Centre, Corner Nelson Mandela and

Transvaal Streets, Lichtenburg, North West Province.

The sixth respondent is Naledi Local Municipality, a municipality established in
terms of Section 12 of the Structures Act, No. 117 of 1998, read with Section 155 of
the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa 1996, which has its address at 19A

Market Street, Vryburg, North West Province.

The seventh respondent is the Premier of the North West Province. To my
knowledge, the present Premier is Prof Job Mokgoro, with address at Garona
Building, Second Floor, East Wing, Comer James Moroka and University Drive,

Mmabatho, North West Province.

The eight respondent is Eskom Soc Ltd, a state owned company incorporated in
accordance with the company laws of the Republic of South Africa with registered
address at Megawatt Park, Maxwell Drive, Sunninghill, Sandton, Johannesburg,

Gauteng.

The ninth respondent is the Magalies Water Board, a state owned entity and water

board established in terms of section 29 of the Water Services Act 108 of 1997 with

primary address at 38 Heystek Street, Rustenburg, North West Province,

A
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The seventh to ninth respondents are joined because they might have a potential
interest in the outcome of the application. The seventh respondent is atso

specifically joined as the head of the provincial executive.

No cost order is sought against the seventh to ninth respondents. A cost order will

only be sought in the event of any of them electing to oppose this applicatio n.

PURPOSE OF APPLICATION

This is an application which has one goal in mind and that is to ensure effective and

functional governance within local government in the North West Province. The

~applicant brings this application as a structured interdict with the intention that this

Coun, for as long as it may be necessary, retains a constitutional oversight rofe to
ensure that the relevant role players in the three different spheres of government

(national, provincial and local government) comply with their constitutional duties.

I have in my possession an official report on the State of local government in the
North West Province. It is dated 24 August 2020 and is signed by the first
respondent. | attach a copy of that document hereto and mark it annexure X3. | shall

deal hereinafter in more detail with the content of that document.

On a mere peripheral perusal of the document, it is apparent that almost every single
municipality, and _particularly the respondent municipalities all experienced or
underwent a total collapse of governance over the last ten years. It seems as if every
constitutional duty that has been bestowed upon local government within the North

West Province has been neglected to such an extent that the communities involved

il
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cannot rely upon local government to provide them with the most basic municipal

services anymore.,

The respondent municipalities are debt-ridden. The municipalities are plagued by
corruption. All fiscal control has been lost. Most of the municipaiities are factually

insolvent (to the extent that a branch of government can be regarded as such).

Year on year, the municipalities' audit outcomes show disclaimers that in those audit

findings are deemed qualified and/or could not otherwise be finalised.

This state of affairs has a direct negative social and economic impact on every
citizen that resides within the jurisdictional area of each of these municipalities. it
also detrimentally infringes on the right of each of the applicant's members who

conduct business within those areas to:

32.1. be productive members of the community within which they reside;

32.2. conduct business freely;

32.3. to be economically sustainable and profitable;

32.4. to offer continued and sustainable employment to other members of their

community;

32.5. to participate effectively in the economic and social activities within their

communities; and

]

//j:/
=

£

£



0022

Page {-9-

32.6. to contribute to the growth and wellbeing of their communities as a whole, and to
maintain a stable income for their businesses, employees and affected families

in particular.

33. The Eskom debt-crisis plays a significant role in this application. Eskom has a
constitutional duty lo provide bulk electricity to the respondent municipalities. The
municipalities, in return, have a constitutiona! duty to supply and distribute electricity
to their communities (by implication also the businesses being represented by the
applicant). Due to the collapse of govemance, the respondent municipalitiés can no

longer effectively:
33.1.  maintain their electricity reticulation networks;
33.2.  collect, aliocate and account for monies for electricity so distributed;

33.3.  settie their Eskom liabilities as they become due and payable (mostly due
to collected electricity payments not being ringfenced and used to finance

other activities).

34. The failure to pay Eskom has a direct impact on the livelihood of the communities
affected. Since about 2018, Eskom has undertaken to disrupt or otherwise limit the
bulk supply of electricity to municipalities who are in arrears with their accounts. As
will be shown in this application, the decision by Eskom to terminate the supply of
bulk electricity in the affected municipalities has resulted in the communities residing

in the fifth and sixth respondents' jurisdictional areas having no other recourse but

7
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to seek the assistance of the courts to protect themselves from the dispute between

Eskom and the fifth and sixth respondents.

Similar to the Eskom debt-crisis, concerns exist about these municipalities’ ability
to provide proper water, sanitation, and other municipal services. The respondent
municipalities are no longer in a position, financially and administratively, to Mmanage

and maintain their municipal areas' services reticulation networks.

The applicant intends to show that even though the municipalities are to blame for
the gross mismanagement of their affairs, the dire nature of the current crisis results
from state failure at all levels of government. The Honourable Court is referred to
the recommendation made by the first respondent on the last page of the 24 August

2020 report {(annexure X3), which | quote:

"It is recommended that the Provincial Executive Council mandate the MEC of
COGTA working with MEC of PT to develop a municipal recovery programme
focusing on Kgetlengrivier; Moretele; Maquassi Hills; Ditsobotla [the fifth
respondent]; Mahikeng; Lekwa-Teemane; Ratiou; Mamusa; Naledi [the sixth

respondent); Dr. RSM and Bojanala DM.”

The applicant will, however, show that the recommendation of the first respondent:

37.1. fails to recognise the immediate statutory duties of the first respondent in

preventing further municipal collapse and mismanagement;
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37.2. fails to recognise that the municipalities involved have collapsed to such a n extent
that intervention at the provincial government level is in itself no longer a

constitutionally acceptable measure;

37.3. fails to address the financial crises facing the fifth and sixth respondents with

sufficient urgency;

37.4. fails to address the urgent need for considering whether to dissolve the respective

councits of the fifth and sixth respondents;

37.5. fails to address the urgent need for intervention by the fourth respondent's

municipal recovery unit as is required by legislation.

38. In the premises, the purpose of this application is to seek this Court's assistance in
compelling, so to say, all spheres of government to comply with their constitutional
duties. The applicant seeks a structured interdict which should inter alia include the

following relief:

38.1. that the first respondent be directed to intervene in terms of the legislation,
referred to hereinafter, in each of the respondent municipalities and take

over the basic service delivery obligations;

38.2. that the intervention be a mandatory intervention and that the first

respondent be directed to consider to dissotve each of the councils of the

7 &
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affected municipalities and appoint administrators fo take over the control of

the municipalities,;
38.3. that the third and fourth respandents be directed to:

38.3.1. determine the reasons for the crises in each of the affected

municipalities' financial affairs;
38.3.2. to assess the municipalities' financial status:
38.3.3.  to prepare an appropriate recovery plan for the municipatities:

38.3.4. to recommend appropriate changes to the municipalities'
budgets and revenue raising measures that will give effect to a

recovery plan developed;

38.3.5. to submit to the second respondent the determination and
assessment referred to in paragraphs 38.3.1 and 38.3.2 supra
and the recovery plan and recommendations referred to in

paragraphs 38.3.3 and 38.3.4 supra;

38.4.  thatthe first respondent be directed to prepare a report every 60 (sixty) days
[or 2 (two) calendar months] after the date of this court arder, setting out the
steps taken by the relevant parties in recovering the municipalities involved,
which reports shall provide updates on the implementation of the financial

recovery pian;

)
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that, pending the proper implementation of the financial recovery plan,

Advoca Auditors, Lynnwood, Pretoria be appointed as a so-called special

master in respect of each of the municipalities with the following duties:

38.5.1.

38.5.2.

overseeing the ringfencing in a separate municipal bank account

of municipal income generated from the sale of electricity and

water;

overseeing and effecting the distribution of municipal income

ringfenced in terms of 38.5.1 above to:

38.5.2.1.

38.5.2.2,

38.5.2.3.

Eskom and any supplier of bulk electricity to the
municipality on receiving a proper invoice from the

supplier;

Magalies Water and/or any supplier of bulk water
service to the municipality on receiving a proper

invoice from the supplier;

Paying contactors required to conduct emergency
maintenance to the electricity and water

reticulations network within the municipalities:
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38.56.2.4. Transferring the balance available for distribution
after the repayment of the suppliers mentioned in

paragraph 38.5.21 and 38.5.2.2 above t{o the

municipality in question;

38.5.2.5. Provide within 14 days after each month end a
proper account in respect of all money received or
collected in respect of electricity and/or water from
the community within the municipal areas of the
municipalities and all money paid out in accordance

with 33.5.2.1 up to 33.5.2.4 above;

compiling and providing a report to the Court, the applicants, the
first to fourth respondents and each municipality, on each
municipality's compliance and enforcement of section 32 of the
Local Government Municipal Finance Management Act for the
financial years ending 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021, which
report must:
38.5.3.1.  specify every incident of unauthorised, irregular or
fruitless and wasteful spending and the person/s

liable for that expenditure;

38.5.3.2.  specify every resolution passed and/or further action
taken by each of the municipalities as is required by
sections 32 (2), 32 (3), 32(4), 32 (5) and 32 (6) of

the MFMA, in relation to each incident of
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unauthorised, irregular or fruitless and wasteful

spending;

38.5.3.3. specify every incident of non-compliance with
sections 32 (2), 32 (3), 32(4), 32 (5) and 32 (B) of

the MFMA

38.5.4. compiling and providing a report to the Court, the applicants, the
first to fourth respondents and each municipality, on the
accounting systems, practices and failures of each municipality,
specifically in as far as they relate to the prevention, management
and recovery of unauthorised, irregular or fruittess and wasteful

spending.

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION

39. inthis affidavit, | will infer alfia refer to the following legisiation:

39.1.  the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa 1996 ("the Constitution");

39.2.  the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, No. 56 of 2003

(the "MFMA");

39.3. the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, No. 32 of 200 ("the Systems

Act"):
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39.4. the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, No. 6 of 2004 {"the

MPRA"):

39.5. the Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act, No. 13 of 2005 (the

IRFA").

Of particular relevance to this application, section 41 of the Constitution deals with
the principles of cooperative government and intergovernmental relations. It
stipulates infer alia that all spheres of government and all organs of State within

each sphere must inter alia:
40.1.  secure the wellbeing of the people of the Republic;

40.2. provide effective, transparent, accountable and coherent government for

the Republic as a whole,

Furthermore, section 152 of the Constitution sets out the objects of local government

which includes, but is not limited to:

41.1. the provision of democratic and accountable government for local

communities;
41.2. to ensure the provision of services to communities in a sustainable manner.

Section 154 provides that the national government and provincial governments, by

means of legislative and other measures, must support and strengthen the capacity

S



43.

44.

0030

Pap e }_-_ 17 -
of municipalities to manage their own affairs, to exercise their powers and to perform

their functions.

Section 156(1) stipulates that a municipality has executive authority in respect of
and has the right to administer the local government matters listed in Part B of

Schedule 4 and Part B of Schedule 5 of the Constitution.

The important section in the Constitution for purposes of this application is Section

139. | guote Section 139(1):

"(1) When a municipality cannot or does not fulfil an executive obligation in
terms of the Constitution or legislation, the relevant provincial executive may
intervene by ftaking any appropriate steps to ensure fulfilment of that

obligation, including—

(a)  issuing a directive to the Municipal Council, describing the extent of
the failure to fulfil its obligations and stating any steps required to

meet its obligations;

(b)  assuming responsibility for the relevant obligation in that municipality

fo the extent necessary to—

(i) maintain essential national standards or meet established

minimum standards for the rendering of a service;

By
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(i) prevent that Municipal Council from taking unreasonable
action that is prejudicial to the interests of another municipality

or to the province as a whole; or

(i)  maintain economic unity, or

(c)  dissolving the Municipal Council and appointing an administrator
until a newly elected Municipal Council has been declared elected, if

exceptional circumstances warrant such a step."

45. Section 139(5) stipulates the following:

"(5) If a municipalily, as a result of a crisis in its financial affairs, is in serious or
persistent material breach of its obligations io provide basic services or fo
meet its financial commiiments, or admits that it is unable to meet its
financial obligations or financial commilments, the relevant provincial

executive musi—
(@)  impose a recovery plan aimed at securing the municipality's ability to
meet its obligations to provide basic services or its financial

commitments, which—

{i) is to be prepared in accordance with national legislation: and
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() binds the municipality in the exercise of its legislative and
executive authority, but only to the extent necessary to solve

the crisis in its financial affairs; and

dissolve the Municipal Council, if the municipality cannot or does not
approve legislative measures, including a budget or any revenue-
raising measures, necessary fo give effect to the recovery plan,

and—

(i) appoint an adminisirator until a newly elected Municipal

Council has been declared elected; and

(ii} approve a temporary budget or revenue-rajsing measures or
any other measures giving effect to the recovery pian fo

provide for the continued functioning of the municipality; or

if the Municipal Council is not dissolved in terms of paragraph (b),
assume responsibility for the implementation of the recovery plan to
the extent that the municipality cannot or does not otherwise

implement the recovery plan..."

Subsection 7 then stipulates that if the provincial executive cannot or does not
adequately exercise its powers, then the national executive must intervene and
subsection 8 further stipulates that national legislation may regulate the

implementation of Section 139 of the Constitution.

ot
H
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This brings me to Section 139 of the MFMA. This is the legislation that was

envisaged in Section 139(8) of the Constitution. This section tells the respondents

when an intervention is mandatory. | guote this section:

"139.  Mandaiory provincial interventions arising from financial crises

(1)

If a municipality, as a result of a crisis in its financial affairs, is in

serious or persistent material breach of its obfigations fo provide

basic services or to meet its financial commitments, or admits that it

is unable to meet its financial obligations or financial commitments,

the provincial executive must promptly-

(a)

request the Municipal Financial Recovery Service-

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

fo determine the reasons for the crisis in its financial

affairs;

to assess the municipality’s financial State;

to prepare an appropriate recovery plan for the

municipality:

o recommend appropriate changes to the
municipality's budget and revenue-raising measures

that will give effect to the recovery plan: and
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(vi  to submit to the MEC for finance in the province-

aa) the determination and assessment referred to in
subparagraphs (i) and (i) as a matter of

urgency,; and

(bb) the recovery plan and recommendations
referred to in subparagraphs (i) and (iv) within
a period, not o exceed 90 days, determined by

the MEC for finance: and

(b) consult the mayor of the municipality to obtain the
municipality’s co-operation in implementing the recovery plan,
including the approval of a budget and fegislative measures

giving effect to the recovery plan.*
48. Sub-section 3 then stipulates:

"(3) An intervention referred to in subsection (1) supersedes any discrefionary
provincial intervention referred fo in section 137, provided that any financial
recovery plan prepared for the discretionary intervention must continue until

replaced by a recovery plan for the mandatory intervention.”

49. In terms of Section 1 of the MFMA "Municipal Financial Recovery Service" is the

municipal financial recovery service established by Section 157. Section 157 then
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establishes the recovery service and Section 157(2) stipulates that the m unicipal

financial recovery service forms part of, and functions within, the National Treasury.

If it is therefore established that such a financial crisis, as envisaged in Section 139
of the Constitution exists, then a recommendation, as made by the first respondent,
to develop a municipal recovery programme, without the intervention of National

Treasury, is plainly not good enough.

FIRST RESPONDENT'S REPORT, DATED 28 AUGUSTS 2020

51.

o2.

53.

The report of the first respondent, which is already attached hereto and marked
annexure X3, confirms that the respondent municipalities as a result of crisis in their
financial affairs are in serious and persistent material breach of their obligations to

provide basic services and to meet their financial commitments.

The report confirms this and effectively makes the concessions that ought to activate
a mandatory intervention. if this is accepted, which | submit the first four respondents
have to do, then mandatory interventions must follow. | shall demonstrate, by
referring to some of the salient facts listed in the repon, that the applicant's
contention in this respect is correct. | will obviously not repeat the full content of the

report, but only highlight certain aspects.

The purpose on page 1 of the report is stated to be to present to the provinciaj
council on cooperative governance and traditional affairs a "State of local
government report in the North West Province". Important is the fact that

immediately thereafter one finds the guotation of Section 152 of the Constitution.

d
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54. Page 7 of the report provides a "handy" summary of audit findings in respect of all

59.

the municipalities in the North West Province for a period of 7 (seven) years. The

Honourable Court will note that the calculation is simple. There are 22 (twenty-two)

municipalities who had to submit audit reports over 7 (seven) years. That brings us

to a total of 154 audit reports. Of these 154 audit reports, | could find only 16

unqualified reports. The remainder consists of qualified reports, disclaimer reports

and adverse reports. The last audit reports are listed to include:

54.1.

54.2,

54.3.

54.4,

54.5.

there are 4 regressions,

there are 9 no improvements which municipalities all received disclaimer

audit cutcomes;

there are 5 no improvement, which municipalities are described as stagnant

in terms of received qualified audit outcomes;

there are only 2 improvements, but those improvements are from

disclaimers to qualified audit reports;

there were then 2 municipalities wherein the audit process was not finalised.

The report further provides an overview on the State of the municipalities. For

purposes of this appiication, it is only necessary to deal with the status of the fifth

and sixth respondent municipalities. The question arises, why the applicant does

not also address the plight of the remainder of the municipalities listed in the report. _

A
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The applicant, however, acts in accordance with its memorandum of incaorporation
and more particularly, to address its members’ rights to an environment that is
conducive to conduct their trade feely in an environment where service delivery is
optimal. The applicant has members within the area of jurisdiction of the fifth and

sixth respondents who are prejudicially affected by the total collapse of gove rnance.

Fifth respondent, Ditsobotla Local Municipality:

56.

57.

The facts in respect of this municipality are set out on pages 47 up to 50 of the
report, annexure X3. [t seems that this municipality was at some stage under
intervention since there is reference made to an administrator. It is recorded that the
appointment of the municipal manager and other senior managers had its

controversies and irregularities, allegedly identified by the appointed administrator.

The municipal manager, apparently with the support of other councilors, dismissed
more than 11 employees who were all newly elected SAMWU shop stewards. This
dismissal happened without any disciplinary hearing/s, which created tension within
the administration of the municipality as well as the local labour forum. Only 2
positions of senior managers are filled, being the paosition of municipal manager and
chief financial officer with the remaining 4 others vacant. The work of MPAC is not
resourced and the committee’s reports are not processed by the municipal council.
Serious and damning allegations against key office bearers and councillors are not

allowed to be tabled at council meetings.
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This municipality experienced community protests which resulted in the closure of
municipal offices. Employees strike from time to time, complaining about the

conduct of the municipal manager.

Under the heading "sound financial management" it is apparent that the situation of
this municipality is also dire. The approved budget is not cash backed. The
municipality is accordingly not financially viable and fails to pay its creditors and fails

to fulfil other commitments.

It is recorded in the report that the ever-increasing creditor book balance is an
indication that this municipality fails to honour its obligation to pay creditors within
30 days as envisaged in Section 65 of the MFMA. This municipality owes Eskom a

total amount of R627 717 201.00, of which R607 004 585.00 is overdue. In addition:

60.1. a firm of attorneys has been appointed to conduct a forensic investigation
with regards to the loss and embezzlement of INEP (integrated national

electrification plan) funds;

60.2. the supply chain management unit receives no attention, because the

position of the supply chain management manager is not filled:

80.3. the municipality does not run on a proper municipal IT system:

80.4.  the municipality has received 3 consecutive disclaimer audit opinions for the

financial years 2016 / 2017 to 2019 / 2020;
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In respect of service delivery, this municipality is not collecting refuse as expected
and the communities must dispose of their own refuse. This leads to violent protests,
Access roads are not being maintained and the internal roads have deteriorated to

such an extent that they many informally and with time turned into gravel roads.

This is a municipality that clearly requires intervention.

Sixth respondent, Naledi Local Municipality:

63.

64.

The story of this municipality is reported on pages 14 to 17. This municipality was
also placed under intervention, which intervention was withdrawn after a period of 6
months. It is somewhat mindboggling that the intervention was withdrawn if one
accepts that the municipality is in no position to comply with is service delivery
obligations and.demonstrabky fails to do so. It is alleged that the municipality has,
during the period of intervention, embraced and demonstrated commitment and
support towards the realisation of the objectives of the intervention. | pause here to

mention that “attitude” alone does not constitute a basis to terminate an intervention.

During the intervenfion, a number of tangibles were attained such as the filling of
the position of corporate services, community and technical services, restored
stability and most labour related challenges were resolved. The problem however is
that, after the intervention, the municipality again started to experience political and
administrative instability. The position of municipal manager and chief financial

officer remain vacant, despite efforts to fill these positions.
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85.  The failure to appoint a municipal manager has created disruptions and chaos in the
councit and the administration, which resulted in the municipal offices being closed

for a period of 3 weeks. The community was, during that period, unable to access

any services.

66. Under the heading "financial management", it is conceded that poor audit outcomes
are recurring and inthe past 7 financial years the municipality received 3 unqualified,
2 qualified and 2 disclaimer audit opinions. Here, also, the budget is not cash
backed, in that the municipality is not financially viabie. It fails to pay its creditors
and fails to fulfil other financial commitments. Its total creditors, as at the end of
January 2020, amounted to R127 000 000.00, of which amount of R124 000 000.00
was outstanding for more than 90 days. The municipality is unable to implement its
credit control measures and to recover outstanding debts from its consumers. It has

a total outstanding debtor book of R423 000 000.00, as at the end of January 2020.

67. Under "service delivery”, it is recorded that refuse removal and the cleaning of the
town and townships are not adequately performed. There are no landfill sites at
Stella and Rekgaratlhile townships. Interrupted supply of water is recorded due to
lack of maintenance and non-payment of water services. The infrastructure is old

and inadequate. This municipality ought to be placed under compulsory intervention.

REPORT: OBSERVATIONS AND CONSCLUSIONS

68. In the conclusion, the report talks about a "trust deficit”. This is a lack of trust that
communities have in the implicated municipalities. According to the report, this

deficit can be attributed to all of the municipalities' political leadership since the

o
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election in 2016. Municipal councils have no relationship with communities which,
in return, has the effect that the communities do not play their paﬁ in service delivery,
by paying for services rendered. | shail demonstrate later in this affidavit that the so-
called "trust deficit” plagues the North West municipalities already since the year

2008.
The inability further to collect revenue results in a lack of service delivery.

Also, the underspending on capital projects results in municipalities losing funding
through grant funding which affects infrastructure capacity building. All of the
municipalities are highly indebted to Eskom, the Water Board, the Auditor General
and other creditors. Despite support by Provingial Treasury, on revenue
management and the implementation of credit control measures, the municipalities
remain stagnant. It is stated that this is so, because there is political resistance and
lack of oversights by the political office bearers, which is characterised by a lack of

accountability to higher authorities in the national and provincial governments.

It is therefore a tale of distress. What is apparent though is that, in general, the
problem commences with the elected political officer bearers. It therefore starts with
the councils. On a proper consideration of the full report it seems that there is
another problem and that is that the first respondent and the Provincial Council lack
the political will of dismantling the respective councils. Where councils govern with
such disastrous effects, as one sees in the North West Province, one would have
expected the serious consideration of the dissolution of the incapacitated councils.
This is particularly relevant in circumstances where it is a confirmed fact that

communities distrust the elected councillors.
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72. Yet, we see no implementation of what the legisiation, referred to in this affidavit,

requires the municipalities to do.

QUALIFIED AUDITS

73. Fruitless, wasteful and irregular spending in the two respondent municipalities has
become a massive problem facing the affected communities. It is especially
wortysome considering the relatively small annual budgets and the collapsing of
service delivery and infrastructure of each respondent municipality, | proceed to
consider the audited financial statements of each respondent municipality year on

year in this respect:

73.1. fifth respondent

'Fruitiess & Wastefull, :

: spending irregularspending_Unauthorised ;

| 2019 R 15388567400 R119928013,00  R1910714500
2018 njfa_ .0/ nja

. 2017°R 2854691500 R 1430911400 nja
_2016: R 4296831,00 i R 2685 267,00 ; R44429 483,00
2015/ R 9170709,00 (R 1642110,00 R21264 256,00 |
2014 R 4442948300 : R 2126425500 . R74960 358,00 [[R 1

73.2. Sixth respondent

7
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- Fruitless & Wasteful ;
spending ;‘Irregular spending? Unauthorised
_ 2020nfa  infa onfa
,2009'nfa - R_654011200:nfa |
2018 R 2971699100 | R 67 848 016.00 . R 61958 614.00
2017 R 3512749400 1 R 2076713.00 : R28227 765.00 |
2016' R 29515344.00 R 3163057.00  R60158320.00 [
2015 R 61958614.00 : R 2822776500 ; R 60 158 320.00
2014§ R 60 158 320.00 " R333671280.00 : R54322626.00 |

The tables mentioned above are derived from the audited financial statements of
the fifth and sixth respondents. For the sake of brevity, the applicant will not attach
every annual financial statement. The applicant's attorneys will make same,

however, available to any of the respondents, if so requested.

It is clear from the financial track record of the two respondent municipalities that
they are not conducting proper financial management of the respondent
municipalities. In the case of the fifth respondent, the year of 2019 saw a massive
increase in so-called irregular spending. Where the municipality previously had an
irregular spend of less than R20 000 000,00 per annum, the municipality's audit
noted irregular spending in the sum of R119 828 013,00. At the same time it was
found that the municipality embarked on fruitless and wasteful spending in the sum

of R1563 885 674,00.
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A similar situation arose with the sixth respondent. Even though there was a stark
decrease in the irregular and wasteful spending from 2018 until 2019, the
municipality has a long track record of massive irregular and wasteful spending. The
differences between the 2019 and 2018 financial statements should also be

considered in the light of the reports of the Auditor General.

it the financial crisis and administrative collapse within the fifth and sixth
respondents is not already glaringly obvious, one needs to only turn to the audit

reports issued by the Auditor General.

In order to clarify its opinion, the Auditor General issues a general descriptive of the
audit findings of each year. Relevant to this case is the Auditor General definition
of the following descriptive (1 refer to the Auditor General's “Background fo the Three

Aspects We Audit” publication which 1 attach hereto as annexure X4):

78.1. Qualified Audit Opinion means: The financial statements contain
materfal misstatements in specific amounts, or there is insufficient
evidence for us to conclude that specific amounts included in the financiaf

statements are not materially misstated.

78.2, Disclaimer of Opinion means: The audilee provided insufficient
evidence in the form of documentation on which to base an audit opinion.
The lack of sufficient evidence is not confined to specific amounts, or
represents a substantial portion of the information contained in the

financial statemenis.
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78.3. Financially Unqualified means: The financial statements cortain no

material misstatements. Unless we express a clean audit outcome,

findings have been raised on either reporting on predetermined objectives

or non-compliance with legisiation, or both these aspects

79. For the periods of 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019, the Auditor General

issued the following opinions relating to the fifth and sixth respondents:

Auditor-General audit opinions per financial year

Fifth Respondent

Sixth Respondent

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Disclaimer of
apinion
Disclaimer of

opinion

Qualified
Disclaimer of
opinion
Disclaimer of
opinion
Disclaimer of

opinion

Unqualified - Emphasis of Matter
items
Unqualified - Emphasis of Matter
items
Unqualified - Emphasis of Matter

items

Qualified

Disclaimer of apinion

Qutstanding
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The above information was obtained from the National Treasury's Municipal Data

(https//municipaldata.treasury.gov.za) sife and published Municipal Finance Data

Tables as on 23 April 2021.

The applicant's attorney has in its possession the complete audit opinions of the

Auditor General (which it can produce on request):

81.1. in the case of the fifth respondent for the financial period ending in 2017
and 2018.
81.2, inthe case of the sixth respondent for the financial period ending in 2014,

2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018.

The fifth respondent on its municipal website (hitps:.//www ditsobotla.gov.za) as on
23 April 2021, has only published the findings of the Auditor General for the periods
ending in 2013, 2014 and 2015. The sixth respondent's website was non responsive

and no findings of the Auditor General could be obtained.

Whilst there is a clear and increasing decline in the ability of the sixth respondent to
meet the audit requirements of the Auditor General, resulting in it not even
submitting audit information of the financial period ending in 2019, the fifth
respondent has for 5 of the last 6 audit periods been unable to provide the Auditor

General with sufficient information to conduct an audit.

The financial crisis of the two municipalities is evident from the most recent audit
reports issued by the Auditor General, being the reports for the financial period

ending 2018: S
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fifth respondent { for which | attach a copy of the financial statements for

the period ending 2018 as well as the corresponding audit report issued

by the Auditor General for the same period as annexures X5 and X6

respectively) :-

84.1.1.

84.1.2.

84.1.3.

84.1.4.

The fifth respondent could not provide sufficient appropriate
audit evidence in regards to almost every aspect of its assets,
liabilities and general expenses, contractual commitments,
debtor accounts, accounts receivable, and creditor accounts

{see paragraphs 4 — 25 of the audit report)

The fifth respondent does not have an adequate accounting
system which is compliant with GRAP1% accounting
guidelines issued by the National Treasury (see paragraph 22

of the audit report);

There is no supporting evidence to account for
R43 168 235.00 worth of cash and cash equivalent
transactions in the financial statements (see paragraph 7 of

the audit report);

There is no supporting evidence to account for
R329 798 777.00 worth of income generated by municipal
service charges as reported in the financial statements (see

paragraph 15 of the audit report). The same lack of supporting

e
Pt
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evidence prevented the Auditor General from making a
determination regarding the revenue and receivables relating
to the provision of retail water services in the sum om

R64 799 674.00 (see paragraph 16 of the audit report) ;

84.1.5. No appropriate supporting evidence was available regarding
almost R56 084 797.00 worth of property rates purportedly
collected by the fifth respondent (see paragraph 18 of the audit

report),

84.1.6. Material discrepancies between the financial statements and
the accounting records of the municipality {which is again
described as being insufficient and inappropriate), also
resulted in the Auditor General being unable to audit general
expenses amounting to R101 744 342.00 (see paragraph 20

of the audit report);

84.1.7. The Auditor General has been unable o check or audit the
reported unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful
spending. The Auditor General even states that it has become
impracticable to determine the full extent of unauthorised,
irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure in the municipality

(see paragraphs 26, 27 and 28 of the audit report);

84.1.8. In general the financial statements of the fifth respondent were

not prepared in all material respects in lerms of section 122

.
o
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(1) of the MFMA. The statements include material
misstaternents which were not corrected by the municipality

{see paragraph 39 of the audit report);

84.19. The municipality failed to implement reasonable and
appropriate asset management systems and accounting
systems, even though these disclaimers were raised during
the previous year's audit (see paragraphs 42 — 47 of the audit

repaort);

84.1.10.  The municipality simply did not take any reasonable steps to
prevent unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful
expenditure as is required by section 62 of the MFMA (see

paragraphs 48 — 50 of the audit report).

84.1.11.  The municipality failed to even investigate unauthorised,
irregular, fruitless and wasteful spending (see paragraphs 51

— 52 of the audit report).

84.1.12.  Allegations of financial misconduct against officials of the
municipality is simply not investigated (see paragraph 54 of
the audit report).

sixth respondent (for which | attach a copy of the financial statements for

the period ending 2018 as well as the corresponding audit report issued

by the Auditor General for the same period as annexures X7 and X8

respectively).-

-
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84.2.1. The sixth respondent could not provide sufficient app ropriate
audit evidence in regards to almost every aspect of its assets,
liabilities and general expenses, contractual commitments,
debtor accounts, accounts receivable, and creditor accounts

(see paragraphs 3 -- 24 of the audit report)

8422, There s no supporting evidence to account for
R148 416 969.00 worth of income generated by municipal
service charges as reported in the financial statements. The
same lack of supporting evidence prevented the Auditor
General from making a determination regarding the revenue
and receivables relating to electricity and water. This was due
to the sixth respondent not having an adequate system of
internal control to account for these service charges (see

paragraph 12 of the audit report);

84.2.3. No appropriate supporting evidence was available regarding
almost R46 057 550.00 worth of property rates purportedly
collected by the municipality {see paragraph 13 of the audit

report);

84.2.4. Material discrepancies between the financial statements and
the accounting records of the municipality (which is again
described as being insufficient and inappropriate), also

resulted in the Auditor General being unable to audit general
!,;7
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expenses amounting to R17 966 478.00 (see paragraph 23 of

the audit report);

84.2.5. The Auditor General has been unable to check or audit the
reported unauthorised, irregular, fruittess and Qastefu!
spending. The Auditor General even states that it has become
impracticable to determine the full extent of unauthorised,
irreguiar, fruitless and wasteful expenditure in the municipality

(see paragrabhs 27, 28 and 29} of the audit report;

84.2.6. The municipality failed to implement reasonable and
appropriate  asset management systems and accounting

systems (see paragraphs 62 — 64 of the audit report);

84.2.7. The municipality simply did not take any reasonable steps to
prevent unauthorised, irregular, fruifless and wasteful
expenditure as is required by section 62 of the MFMA (see

paragraphs 59 — 61 of the audit report).

84.2.8. The municipality failed to investigate unauthorised, irregular,
fruitless and wasteful spending (see paragraph 77 of the audit

report).

85.  The lack of proper accounting practises, financial procedures, accounting system
and management oversite in the fifth and sixth respondents cannot be overstated.

[t is evident that there are simply no proper controls in place. The Auditor General
-7
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is, due to a lack of evidence, in no position to check whether the unauthorised,
irregular, fruitless and wasteful spending referred to in paragraph 79 above, is
Indeed accurate. The municipalities cannot account for millions of Rands’ worth of
cash and cash equivalent iransactions that occurred in the year 2018. The public
can only rely on the municipalities’ own financial statements (which apparently do
nat even correspond with its actué! insufficient and inadequate accounting

records).

A lack of oversight, financial records and control is the perfect breeding ground for
corruption and irregular spending. The reported unauthorised, irregular, fruitless
and wasteful spending of the fiﬁh and sixth respondent (if one is to consider the
state of their financial records- or rather fotal lack thereof), is most likely only the
tip of the iceberg. Over the last six years, the public has effectively only been able
to gauge the state of the fifth and sixth respondent based on self-compiled financial
statements. There is no real tangible way to accurately gauge the state of affairs
within the municipalities. Regardless of the repeated audit failures over the years,

the first to fourth respondents have failed to effectively intervene.

EVENTS SINCE THE REPORT OF 24 AUGUST 2020

87.

As indicated hereinbefore, in the affected towns situated within the respondent
municipalities’ jurisdiction, the applicant has several members. The applicant has
obtained affidavits of its members which are attached to these papers and referred
to herein after. | will not repeat the content of those affidavits, 1t is, however,

apparent that, as from August 2020, nothing has changed in the affected towns. It

/'/?
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is unknown to the applicant whether the first respondent andfor the second
respondent have developed a so-called municipal recovery programmes. If is,
however, submitted that the development of a municipal recovery programme is

meaningless. | say this, because of infer alfia the following facts:

87.1. it is the first respondent's contention, in its report, that mere interventions
are ineffective, because there does not exist the political will within the

municipalities to work with provincial and/or national government;

87.2. there is instability within the councils of each of the municipalities which

leads to infighting and consequent maladministration.

If one takes into account only these two factors, it follows, without any doubt, that
the providing of some sort of a municipal recovery programme, without oversight or
reporting responsibilities, to the affected municipalities will have no effect
whatsoever. Therefore, much more is required. Mandatory interventions are
required and, in many instances, once a mandatory intervention has been
promulgated in respect of the affected municipalities, consideration must be given

1o dissolutions of councils.

if and when it becomes apparent that the respective councils of the municipalities
refuse to cooperate with provincial and national government and/or in instances
where there is a resistance fo such intervention, the only logical consequential
decision to make then is to dissolve the councils. It should at all times be borne in
mind that one deals here with the plight of the communities who ought to be served

by these political officials or councillors. /,»j
»/ /,FJ/
;_J/-.\/
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90. Since August 2020:

Fifth respondent, Ditsobotia Local Municipality:

90.1. The municipality continues to decline.

90.2. In or about July/August 2020 the applicant instructed its attorneys, Kriek Wassenaar
and Venter Inc, to submit a formal information request to the fifth respondent in
terms of the Promotion of Access to information Act 2 of 2000 ("PAIA™). This request
was submitted in order to obtain various municipal documents such as the Auditor-
General's audit reports, management reports, annual performance reports, annual
compliance reports, non-compliance recommendations and various others all of
which related to the fifth respondent. A copy of the applicant's PAIA request directed

at the fifth respondent's offices is attached hereto and marked X9.

90.3.The request was sent via email to the fifth respondent on 6 August 2020. No
response was received. On 21 October 2020 the applicant's atforneys sent a letter
following up on the request. On 23 October 2020 the Acting Legal Manager of the
fifth respondent responded and requested that the letter accompanying the PAIA
request be forwarded. The letter and a full copy of the request was once again sent
to the fifth respondent on 28 October 2021. On the same date the complete PAIA
request was served by Sheriff onto the fifth respondent's nominated address.
Notwithstanding service via email, follow up correspondence as well as service by

Sheriff the fifth respondent failed to respond to the request.
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90.4. As a result of the failure of the fifth respondent the applicant instructed its attorneys
to issue an application to compel delivery of the requested documents. On 19
January 2021 the applicant issued the application in this Honourable Court under
case number M27/2021 and the matter was enrolled for hearing on 25 February

2021.

90.5. Despite proper service of the application, the fifth respondent failed to enter into
appearance to defend the matter. The application continued on an unopposed basis
and an order was obtained against the fifth respondent directing them to provide the
applicant with the requested documents as set out in the PAIA request. In this
regard, | attach the order aa annexure X10 and the request, which is already

attached hereto as annexures X9.

90.6. The order was served by sheriff on 29 March 2021. A copy of the Sheriff's return is
attached as annexure X11. in disregard of the service of the order, the municipality
has failed to provide any response. Considering the Auditor General's findings, | can
only make the inference that the administrative collapse within the fifth respondent
has potentially made it impossible for the fifth respondent to respond. Mechanisms
like PAIA, which seeks to promote transparent government - a vital constitutional
check on public power - have become stillbom legislation in the specific context of

the fifth respondent.

90.7.1n addition to a lack of communication, the municipality simply no longer maintains
the municipat roads and other infrastructure. The rainfalt cycles of the area continue
to wash away the roads. Potholes become mare visible and significant each time it

rains. The vast number of potholes in the town make it an undesirable tourist

X
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attraction and have basically destroyed what was left of the tourism industry in the
town. In this regard, | attach a photo album which | mark as annexure X12. The
photo album photos 1, 2, 3, 4, 8, and 9 clearly show overgrown and washed away
roads. It is but a mere sample of the town of Lichtenburg's depleted and decaying

municipal area.

90.8. The municipality fails to settle its outstanding water debts. It was brought to the
applicant's attention that the fifth respondent currently has millions of Rands in debt
still outstanding and due to the relevant Water Board. The precise outstanding
amount is however unknown to the applicant. The municipality also owes Eskom a

sum of R691 783 110.00.

90.9. Water supply has become irreguiar and unpredictable. The municipality no longer
has the necessary skills and funds to service the water reticulation networks. As
a result, residents often sit without water for weeks on end, waiting on the
municipality to fix broken connections and pipes in the area. It has become such
an issue that most houses rely on bulk water storage containers in order to help
them through these long periods of service interruption. Unfortunately, not
everyone in the municipal area can afford these water storage containers. I
residents are unable to get access to a borehole or other water source, they are
often without water. The residents of Lichtenburg often need to take the lead with
regards to service delivery by transporting and distributing water to residents. It is
often the surrounding farmers who need to assist in the supply of drinking water to

the local communities in order for them to survive.

&
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The municipality also no longer maintains the electricity reticulation networks and
infrastructure. The electricity network's distribution poles have not been
maintained over the years. As a result of a lack of maintenance the poles have
are completely rusted. As a result of a lack of maintenance, the community faces
regular interruptions in the suppiy'of electricity to their businesses and homes. At
this stage it seems as if the municipality is merely trying to maintain thé
deprecated network by fixing the network as and when something fatally breaks
down. This then takes weeks to do and by the time that an issue is resolved,
several new breakdowns have been reported. There is no improvement being

made to the network. The municipality simply does not have the money.,

The stormwater network of the municipality has become basically non-existent.

It is not maintained at all.

Probably one of the biggest issues currently in the municipality of the fifth
respondent is the failing sewage network. The applicant has received many
reports from businesses who have had to deal with raw sewage spilling into their
business premises for days on end. The municipality merely informs residents
that they are unable to attend to the matter due to a lack of funds — with the result
that businesses are required to appoint private contractors to repair their own
sewage connections. In this regard | refer to the photo album which is already
attached as annexure X12. The photo album, more specifically photo 7 clearly
shows how sewage is spilling out of a manhole which the fifth respondent failed

to maintain.
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The sewage treatment plants are not properly maintained and continue to seep
raw sewerage into the Harts River, which as a consequence provides poliuted

water to the town of Schweizer-Reneke.

One of the most alarming concerns within the municipal area of the fifth
respondent which was brought to the applicants attention was that the fifth
respondent has continuously failed to adequately maintain and upgrade the
refuse removal infrastructure of Lichtenburg. Refuse is being dumped along the
roads of Lichtenburg and the dumping sites are not adequately maintained by the
fifth respondent. In this regard | refer to the photo album which is already attached
as annexure X12. The photo album, more specifically photo 6, and 11 - 17
demonstrate the fifth respondent's neglect and failure to adequately maintain and
upgrade the refuse removal infrastructure of Lichtenburg. It is evident that the fifih
respondent no longer possess the required skills andfor funds to ensure

continuous and reliable refuse removal service delivery to the town.

The town is no longer a desirable place for conducting business. The applicant
has received reports from numerous businesses who have indicated their desire
to relocate to another area of the country in order to build a better future for their
business and families. Unfortunately this will result in job losses in an already
ailing local economy. As a resutt of the failing network, the town is losing its
economic lifeblood, being the businesses and business people who sustain its
economy. In this regard | can refer to letters received from businesses located in
the municipality’s jurisdiction, who have indicated an intention to relocate their

ventures to more sustainable areas as a result of the collapse in service delivery
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and administration in the municipalities, which | attach hereto as annexures X13

and X14.

80.16. In this regard | attach supporting affidavits deposed to by residents who live

and/or conduct business within the area of the fifth respondent as annexures X15

and X16.

Sixth respondent, Naledi Local Municipality:

80.17. The sixth respondent similarly fails in its duty to deliver services to the community

and to maintain the infrastructure of its towns.

80.18. The sixth respondent is no longer able to maintain the municipal roads and other
infrastructure adequately or regularly within the town. As a consequence of the
heavy rainfall this year the potholes in the town roads have muitiplied in number
and size and the community can no longer with confidence use the roads since
they fear damage being caused to their cars. In this regard | attach a photo atbum
which | mark as annexure X17. With specific reference to photo's 4, 5 and 14 it
can be seen that the roads of Vryburg are no longer in a desirabie condition and

constitutes evidence of the town of Vryburg's decaying municipal area.

90.18. The sixth respondent has failed to regularly maintain and upgrade the water
infrastructure of Vryburg. Municipal water delivery has become inconsistent to
such an extent that a large part of the community has resorted to installing water
tanks on their property in order to manage the ongoing water disruptions suffered

which have lasted up 7 days in the past. Consequently, the less fortunate of the

s
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community who do not have the necessary resources to install private water
storage fanks are left without water for days during these water disruption periods
and consequently they suffer from the reluctance of the sixth respondent to
maintain and upgrade the water infrastructure of Vryburg. Moreover, water pumps
in Vryburg have exploded and/or broke down on numerous occasions which left
the town without any water supply for days on end before the sixth respondent
attended to and fixed the water pump. It is evident that the sixth respondent no
longer possesses of the required skills andfor funds to ensure continuous and

reliable water service delivery to the town,

90.20. The sixth respondent is in arrears with its liabilities towards Eskom SOC Limited.
The sixth respondent owed Eskom roughly the amount of R 280 000 000.00 as
on 30 December 2019. Since then, the sixth respondent's debt has increased
dramatically and to date the éixth respondent, owes Eskom approximately
R390 000 000.00. The most astounding fact regarding the sixth respondent's
debt towards Eskom is the fact that the majority of the local community is on a
pre-paid electricity system and Eskom directly supplies electricity to the township
of Vryburg. The effect of this is that it is not possible for the local househoids and
businesses to be in arears with their electricity accounts towards the sixth
respondent. The most logical explanation for the sixth respondent's spiralling debt
due to Eskom is that the sixth respondent fails and/or refuses to pay over any

and all amounts due to Eskom.

90.21. As a consequence of the sixth respondent's failure and/or refusal to settle its debt
due towards Eskom, Eskom has resorted fo terminating the bulk of the town's

electricity supply on numerous occasions which left the local community without
)
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any electricity for extensive periods. Those members of the community who can
have taken precaution by installing generators and solar power systems.
Notwithstanding these preventative measures taken by the community, most
businesses still suffer financial and productivity loss due to the termination of the
electricity supply. Unfortunately, the less fortunate residents of the community are
once again left without any form of electricity supply. On or about 19 December
2019 a large part of the community of the sixth respondent, represented by Naiedi
Concerned Citizens as the applicant, approached the High Court of South Africa,
Gauteng Division, Pretoria by issuing an urgent application under case number
9370512019 seeking an order to prevent Eskom from terminating the supply of
electricity to the town due to the sixth respondent's failure to settie their debt
towards Eskom. The relief sought was granted and the matter was postponed

and is still pending. | attach hereto the order as annexure X18.

90.22. In addition to the above, during the month of February 2021 it was reported to the
applicant that the sixth responded failed and/or refused to attend to and fix a
transformer which exploded in Vryburg and left the majority of the town without
efectricity for more of less a week. in this regard | refer to the photo album which
t had marked X17, with specific reference to photo's 7 and B. It constitutes a prime

example of the town of Vryburg's decaying municipal area.

90.23. On or about 9 March 2021 the Democratic Alliance (DA} issued a media
statement wherein it expressly addressed the sixth respandent's reluctance to
timeously attend fo and fix the Viakfontein electric cables providing electricity to
the farms in the area of Vryburg, who depend on the electricity supply to their

farms for their own safety and security. The DA expressed that the issue was
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indeed brought to the attention of the current Directror of Technical Services, Mr.
Nelson Mongale, who is alsc the acting Municipal Manager. To date this issue
has still not been resolved and the fammers in the Vryburg are are still left at risk.
Inthis respect [ refer to photo 13 in the album, which constitutes the press reliease

of the Democratic Alliance.

90.24. The applicant has received numerous reports that the majority of the streetlamps
in the town of Vryburg do not work and the sixth respondent has failed andfor
refused to attend to and replace the broken street lights. In this regard | refer o
photo 12 in the Vryburg photo album. It is evident that the sixth respondent no
longer has the required skills andfor funds to ensure continuous and reliable

electric service supply to the town.

90.25. One of the primary issues currently within the municipal area of the sixth
respondent is the failing sewage network. The applicant has received many
reports from businesses who have had fo deal with raw sewage running down
the streets and spilling into their business premises. Such occurrences would
continue for days on end and on occasion even for as long as two weeks. On
numerous occasions, private contractors had to be contacted by the community
themselves to come to the town's aid since the municipality neglected and/or
refused to timeously attend to and repair the sewage issue. In this regard | refer
to photo 6 in the Vryburg photo album showing raw sewage spilling into

stormwater.

90.26. Another issue within the municipal area of the sixth respondent which was

brought to the applicant’s attention is the fact that the sixth respondent has failed
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to maintain and/or upgrade the refuse removal infrastructure of Vryburg. Refuse
is being dumped along the roads of Vryburg and the dumping sites are not

maintained by the sixth respondent.

The sidewalks in the town are in an extremely neglected condition due to the sixth
respondent's failure to preserve the upkeeping of the sidewalks. Consequently
the responsibility to attend to maintenance the sidewalks and cut the grass is left
to the local community of Vryburg. In this regard | refer again to the photo album
X17. With specific reference to photo's 1, 2, 9, and 10, it can be seen how refuse
has clogged one of many stormwater drains; how the sixth respondent fails to
maintain the dumping sites of Vryburg, and how refuse is dumped along the
streets of Vryburg. It is evident that the sixth respondent no longer possesses of
the required skilis andfor funds to ensure continuous and reliable refuse removat

services to the town.

Several years ago, the local community attempted to minimise the adverse effect
of the sixth respondent's failure to deliver services and maintain the infrastructure
by establishing a local chamber of commerce who represented the business
community of the town Vryburg. Their focus was primarily to negotiate with and
put pressure on the sixth respondent to uphold basic service delivery standards

within Vryburg.

However, the decay of the sixth respondent's service delivery ability has
worsened to such an extent that, together with the sixth respondent's lack of co-
operation, the responsibility this local chamber of commerce had to carry,

became too much and consequently it withdrew itself from upholding the sixth
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respondent's responsibilities, since its attempt to improve municipal service

delivery and the economy of Vryburg proved to be fruitless.

90.30. The town of Vryburg is no longer a desirable place for the conducting of business.

The applicant has received reports from numerous businesses who have
indicated a desire to relocate to another area of the country in order to build a
better future for their business and families. In this regard | again refer to a letter
of an attorney representing businesses in the municipal area who have expressed
their dismay at the relentless and rapid deterioration of the town, which I attach

hereto as annexures X19.

90.31. In this regard | also attach a supporting affidavit from a resident of the sixth

respondent as annexure X20.

THE THIRD RESPONDENT

91.

92.

The provincial government in the North West Province has itself been under
continuing administration, with the third respondent during February 2021
announcing that the province's administration imposed on it by the National
Government has been extended for an additional three months (effectively until May

2021 unless a further extension is granted).

Except for indirect intervention resulting from intervention at the provincial level, the
third respondent has not directly intervened in the affairs of the fifth and sixth

respondent.
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FOURTH RESPONDENT

93.

94.

95.

The applicant's consultations with the communities residing in the towns of the fifth
and sixth respondents have shown an alarming lack of intervention from the second,
third and fourth respondents. From what the applicant has been able to determine,
intervention has only come from the first respondent's office. These were
discretionary intervention and wholly ineffective. A discretionary intervention does
not apply where one is faced with serious financial problems at a municipality. Then,

only mandatory interventions are appropriate.

| pause at this stage to refer to the annual National Treausry: The state of local
government finances and the financial management report ("State of local
government report”), which the National Treasury publishes after June of each year.
An extract of the report insofar as it pertains to the two implicated municipalities is
attached and marked annexure X21. In the unreduced report, National Treasury lists
all of the country's municipalities, including the fifth and sixth respondents, and their

deemed financial health.

Of interest to this application is the report sections that indicate whether or not a
municipality is in financial distress and whether the municipality is subject to
discretionary intervention under section 139 of the Constitution. | point out that
National Treasury has omitted a reference to section 139 interventions in
municipalities from its State of local government reports since 2018. The report also
does not specify what form of intervention has been applied to a specific
municipality. It merely states that intervention under section 139 of the Constitution

has been effected or not, 7
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86. The applicant has considered the annual State of local government reports for the
financial years ending 2009, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and
2019. The applicant has not been able to find any more recent reports published by
National Treasury. From these State of local government reports, the following can

be gleaned:

96.1. The fifth respondent:

96.1.1. The fifth respondent has been identified as a municipality in
financial distress since 2013 (including the years 2013, 2014,

2016, 2017 and 2019);
96.1.2. The fifth respondent has been under some form of intervention
described in section 139 of the Constitution since 2013

(including the years 2013, 2014, 2016 and 2017);

96.2. The sixth respondent;

86.2.1. The sixth respondent has been identified as a municipality in
financial distress since 2011 (including the years 2011, 2014,

20186, 2017, 2018 and 2019},

96.2.2. The sixth respondent has only been under some form of
intervention described in section 139 of the Constitution in

2017,

%

Ay
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97. As far as the applicant is aware, the fifth and sixth respondents have to date only

98.

been subjected to so-called discretionary interventions at the hands of the first
respondent in terms of section 136 of the MFMA. According to the first respondent's
August 2020 report discussed above, the first respondent terminated its formal

discretionary intervention over the fifth and sixth respondents at the end of 2019,

A summary of the State of local government reports for the financial years ending
2009, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019, as well as the
relevant extracts of each year in question is attached hereto and marked annexures
X22 - X29 respectively. Full copies of the reports may be requested from the

applicant's attorneys.

FIRST AND SECOND RESPONDENTS

99.

Before launching this application, the applicant, during December 2020, instructed
its attorneys, Kriek Wassenaar and Venter Inc, to submit a formal information
request to the first and second respondents in terms of the Promotion of Access to
Information Act 2 of 2000 ("PAIA"). These requests were aimed at determining
whether there had been provincial interventions of the fifth and sixth respondents
(including eight other municipalities listed in the first respondent's report of August
2020). A copy of the applicant’'s PAIA requests directed at the first and second
respondents’ offices is attached hereto and marked X30 and X31 respectively. The
request was intended to procure a complete record of the first and second
respondents’ interventions in inter alia the fifth and sixth respondents over the last

five financial years.
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These requests were sent via email on 14 December 2021 to the first and second

respondenis,

. The second respondent responded to the PAIA request submitted to it, and a virtual

meeting was held on 11 February 2021 between inter alia the applicant's attorney,
Mr Wassenaar, and the second respondent's head of department, Mr NI Kunene.
During the meeting, Mr Kunene confirmed that the second respondent has never
undertaken any formal interventions in the fifth and sixth respondent and that the
matter has never been escalated past discretionary interventions in terms of section

136 of the MFMA at the hands of the first respondent.

In this regard, the second respondent forwarded a letter dated 12 February 2021
confirming the position, which | attach hereto as annexure X32. The sécond
respondent also transferred the PAIA request submitted to the second respondent
to the first respondent in terms of section 20 of PAIA. In this regard, | attach a copy

of transfer notices as annexures X33 and X34.

The second respondent did indicate that they are stili considering interventions but
that they were unable to give any further particulars to our attorney during the

meeting.

Our attorney on 15 February 2021 requested that the second respondent confirm
whether they have the intention to intervene in the affected municipalities, which
include the fifth and sixth respondents. A copy of the letter is attached hereto as

annexure X35. No response has, however, been received.
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105. To date hereof, the first respondent has failed to reply to the applicant's PAIA

requests (I refer here to both the direct request sent via email on 14 December 2020

as well as the transfer PAIA request transferred by the second respondent on 12

February 2021).

106. Even though the applicant has yet to receive a formal response to its PAIA requests

from the first respondent, the response received from the second respondent, if

considered in the light of the National Treasury's “State of local government report’,

confirmed the following:

106.1.

106.2.

106.3.

106.4.

The fifth and sixth respondents have all been in financial distress for more than

seven years;

Except for the first respondent, none of the remaining respondents {specifically
the second to fourth respondents) have over the last seven years taken any
formal action to intervene in the fifth and sixth respondents, notwithstanding the

escalating municipal debt crisis in the North West Province:

Since the termination of the first respondent's discretionary interventions and
since the issuing of the first respondent's report in August 2020, no new
interventions have been implemented. The management of the defunct

municipalities has been left without any formal oversight since end of 2019:

Regardless of an escalating municipal debt crisis, the intervention mechanisms
entrenched in section 139 of the Constitution and the MFMA have not been

applied;
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106.5. The fifth and sixth respondents are municipalities that, as a result of a crisis in its
financial affairs, are in severe and persistent material breach of their obligations

to provide basic services and to meet its financial commitments:

106.6. Provincial interventions by the first and second respondents have been materially
ineffective and lacking. The first and second respondents’ provincial governments
have allowed a continued and progressive failure of local government
administration to persist for aimost a decade, even allowing the defunct municipal
administrations unfettered control after the removal of the discretionary
administrators in 2019. An already serious crisis has been exasperated by the
failure by the first and second respondents to intervene since at the latest end of

2019 effectively;

106.7. The inadequate response by the first and second respondents’ provincial
governments results in the fourth respondent having a duty in terms of section
139 (7) of the Constitution to now intervene. | have, however, already shown that
the fourth respondent and National Treasury have been aware of the escalating

crisis for more than seven years.

GOVERNANCE FAILURES EXCEEDING A DECADE

107. | do not wish to give an extensive exposition about this issue. This is a matter that |
mention to demonstrate that the North West Province has been plagued by festering

maladministration as from the year 2009 and earlier. In 2009, the then president of
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the Republic of South Africa, appointed the Special Investigation Unit ("SIU™) to

investigate in respect of municipalities in the North West province inter alia:

102.1  serious maladministration in connection with the affairs of the municipalities;

102.2  improper or unlawful conduct by councillors, officers and/or employees of

the municipalities;

102.3  unlawful appropriation or expenditure of public money or property;

102.4 intentional or negligent loss of public money or damage to public property,

etcetera.

108. The above list is not exhaustive. The relevant proclamation is atiached hereto and
marked annexure X36. It lists 24 municipalities in the North West province. The
outcome or findings report or meeting of the SIU of 12 September 2012 is attached
hereto and marked annexure X37. It is apparent from a reading of the report that it
conveys a tale of desperate maladministration, corruption, nepotism or simply
ignorance. It shows that the problem outlined in this affidavit, is deep rooted and at

least more than a decade old.

109. This brings me to the appointment of a special master.

APPOINTMENT OF SPECIAL MASTER
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110. The financial demise of each of the affected municipalities is to a large extent due

111,

112.

to poor debt Collection. Poor debt collection, on the other hand, is exacerbated by
the fact that the communities do not trust the political structures within the
municipalities. One of the main reasons why communities distrust political
structures, is because they know of their corrupt activities. They know that their hard-
earned money is maladministered. They furtr;ermore know that many of the
councillors are corrupt. This entails that community members understand that
money paid over into the hands of such corrupt officials will not find its way to the

municipalities' true creditors.

| have dealt hereinbefore with the example of Eskom. It is factually so that, for
example, Eskom money ought to be ringfenced. To do so, each municipality
requires a separate account into which Eskom money is received and then paid over
to Eskom. This never happens. Eskom money is usually paid into the general
municipal account where it gets intertwined with the other money received and used
for all sorts of purposes, including unlawful goals (except to pay the Eskom bill}.

This, in turn, results in electricity terminations or suspensions to the affected towns.

Similar situations happen with money due to the water boards and so forth. The
applicant therefore proposes that this Court, pending the outcome of the process of
this structured interdict, appoints what we will refer to as a special master. This

should be, for example, a reputable firm of auditors who will have as task:

112.1. the collection of money due to the municipalities for electricity sold to its

P

consumers,
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112.2. the collection of money due to the* municipalities for water sold to its

consumers.

Once collected, this special master shall have the obligation to pay over to Eskom
an amount of 70% of all money collected in respect of electricity from the
municipalities’ customers and retain, in a trust account, the remaining 30% which

may be used for purposes of the upgrading of the electricity reticulation network.

in respect of water consumption and other municipal services, the amount aught
also to be ringfenced. This process will entail that, at least, the current accounts of
the municipalities are paid. None of the municipalities ought to have any problem
with this arrangement, in that they still are entitled to collect rates and taxes for other

purposes, such as payment of salaries and so forth.

it will be submitted and argued at the hearing of this application that, where organs
of State fail fo comply with their constitutional duties, this Court is entitied to appoint
such a special master which will function under Court supervision. This happens
where the disfunction of an organ of state, with consequent violation of rights (in this
instance the violation of the rights of the communities involved) is so extreme that it
warrants such an appointment. In this case where the maladministration is so
prevalent and so clear it is submitted that such an appointment is justified. It is so
that the special master must operate under the supervision of this Court and be

directed to report regularly on its duties.
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REQUIREMENTS FOR AN INTERDICT

1186.

To the extent that this Court may hold the view that this application is stricto sensu
an interdict, it is submitted that the facts set out herein demonstrate that an interdict

is warranted and is in fact as a matter of expediency required.

CLEAR RIGHT

117,

118.

119.

As indicated earlier in this affidavit, the applicant is a public interest organization
With a supporter and donor base of more than 17 000 businesses in the Republic of
South Africa. | also indicated above that, within the municipal areas of only the fifth

and sixth respondents, the applicant has more than 89 business-owner members.

It is necessarily so that the failure of the first four respondents to act in accordance
with the prescripts of the legislation referred to in this application, directly infringes
upon the rights of each of the business owners that are situated within municipal

areas of the fifth and sixth respondents.

The municipalities have the constitutional duty to ensure that there is proper and
effective service delivery within their respective municipal areas. The communities
of the fifth and sixth respondents have the concomitant right to accept that the
municipalities will comply with their constitutional duties and ensure that the towns
wherein these businesses are situated are suitably habitable and conducive for the

conducting of business.



0075

Page |-62-
120. For that privilege {in fact a constitutional right), the business owners pay rates and

taxes. They also pay for other services, such as electricity, water, sewerage, etc.

121. Each of the applicant’s members situated within the municipal areas are rate payers.
In addition, the failure of the respondents to adhere to the legistative obligations that
they have, constitutes illegal conduct. The applicant has a right to prevent such
illegal conduct. Each of the business owners has the Section 22 of the Constitution
right to freedom of trade, occupation, and profession. This entails that these basic
rights ought to be advanced by the municipalities in providing proper services, and
to the extent that it is reasonably possible, to create an environment that is

conducive {o advancement of the rights.

122. As such, it follows that the applicant has a clear right, on behalf of its members
residing within the jurisdictional areas of the fifth and sixth respondents, to claim that
there shall be compliance with infer alia section 139 of the MFMA and the correlating
sections in the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa. This requirement has

therefore sufficiently been established in the papers.

APPREHENSION OF HARM

123. It is submitted that it would be a bit superfiuous o reiterate the harm suffered by the
communities residing and trading within the municipal areas of the fifth and sixth
respondents. This affidavit speaks for itself. The state of neglect and
mismanagement by the fifth and sixth respondents is plainly unacceptable. it is

apparent that there is a total collapse of government.
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124. As a result of the inability to deliver services, the towns within the jurisdiction of the

fifth and sixth respondents do not attract any form of new investment any mare. The
infrastructure in these towns is on a dangerous slippery slope. Soon it will be
impossible to conduct normal husiness within these towns. | shall refrain from

repeating what has been set out hereinabove already.

125. In this respect the Honourable Court is also again referred to the affidavits of

business owners attached to this affidavit. The continuous harm is apparent.

NO ALTERNATIVE REMEDY

126.

127.

Year after year the indications are that mandatory interventions into the affairs of
the fifth and sixth respondents are not only warranted, but needed. This fact is
emphasized in the different reports referred to in these affidavits. What | mean to
say is that all of the respondents are very well aware of the total collapse of
governance within these municipalities. It is recorded on an annual basis. Yet, they

do nothing.

All that one sees is that sometimes discretionary interventions are implemented with
no effect at all. It makes no sense to take steps that have no effect. It is apparent
that, notwithstanding all the signs that interventions are required, the respondents
are for some or other reason reluctant to do so and then eventually neglect to

intervene.
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128. If government fails in its duty fo act in accordance with the prescripts of the

Constitution and ancillary legislation, the only alternative remedy is that the judiciary

intervenes and grants the relief as envisaged by the applicant in its notice of motion.

CONCLUSION AND COSTS

129. Itis submitted that the applicant is entitled to the relief sought in the notice of motion.

130.

131.

132.

In the alternative, the applicant is entitied to such relief as this Honourable Court
deems fit, but it is apparent that mandatory interventions are something that this

Court ought to grant.

The relief to appoint a special master is warranted in circumstances where the
collapse of governance is to such an extent sthat the relevant dgovernment
institutions cannot give effect to their constitutional mandate. in this respect, the
applicant will rely on existing constitutional case law to justify the appointment of a

special master,

Insofar as it relates to costs, | respectfully submit the following. The applicant is a
non-profit company. It relies on donations of its members to conduct its affairs,
Litigation is a very costly affair. An application, such as this, requires many days of

preparation and consultation.

Had the affairs in the fifth and sixth respondent municipalities been refatively
properly handled, an application such as this one would never have been warranted.
It is entirely due to the neglect of the first to sixth respondents that this application

became necessary. Therefore, the applicant should not be out of pocket. To ensure
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that an applicant is not entirely out of pocket, but a bit less out of pocket, a punitive

costs order is warranted.

133. In the premises, | request this Court to grant the relief as sought together with costs
on an attorney and client scale against the first to sixth respondents. A cost order

against the seventh to ninth respondents will only be sought in the event of them

p Ll D

IETER JACOBUS LE ROUX

opposing this application.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE DEPONENT HAS ACKNOWLEDGED:

(a) he knows and understands the contents of this affidavit;

{b) he has no objection to taking an oath;

(c) he considers the oath to be binding on his conscience.

THUS signed and sworn before me, at /ﬁué;,a,‘p ‘ on this the MA

day MAY 2021, the Regulations contained in Government Notice No, R1648 of 19 August
1977 (as amended) having tge.eri fully complied with.

comwss;éneﬁ OF OATHS
FULL N?/IO!I%&/

BUSINESS ADDRESS:
DESlcgeﬁTlomz

AREA / OFFICE:
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SAKELIGA NPC
REG: 2012/043725/08

EXTRACTS OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF DIRECTORS HELD AT CENTURION ON 26 NOVEMBER 2019

A A i — S

PRESENT: - NAME: - CAPACITY

ANDRIES BRINK DIRECTOR

DAVID JAKOBUS DE VILLIERS DIRECTOR

BERNARD DU PLESSIS DIRECTOR

CHRISTIAAN PHILIPPUS LERM DIRECTOR

MARIO BRONN PRETORIUS DIRECTOR

NICOLAAS HOUGH VLDK DIRECTOR / CHAIRMAN

PIETER JACOBUS LE ROUX DIRECTDR / CEQ

RESQLVED:

1} That the Board hereby delegates to the Company’s chief exacutive officer (CEQ), PIETER JACOBUS
LE ROUX, the authority to authorise the Company to institute, defend and J or to participate in
any legal praceedings {whether as a party or amicus curiae), which includes but s not timited to
appeals and/or reviews of any matter, and/or the right to have the Compa ny appear, argue, act,
support and/or oppose any matter before any State authority or judicial body, as is set out in the
Company's objectives.

2} The Board hereby authorises the CEQ to represent the Company in all matters referred to in
paragraph 1) above, and to sign any document on behaif of and in the name of the Company as jts
lawful representative,

3) The CEQC s furthermore duly authorised to incur costs on behalf of the Company and to appoint,
instruct and diract attorneys, experts and/or consultants to assist the Company with any matters
relating to paragraph 1) above,

4} The CED is hereby granted all necessary powers ta take any such further steps and to do all further
necessary things on hehalf of the Company in order to give effect to paragraphs 1) to 3) above.

5} The CEQ may, within the sole discretion of the CED, delegate all or some of his functions in terms
of paragraphs 1) to 4) above to any such employees or agents of the Company as the CEO deems
meet.

CERTIFIED AT CENTURION ON MM p/- g .
4’/

T

NICHOLAAS HOUGH VLOK
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
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SAKELTGA

REPUBLIEK VAN SUID-AFRIKA
MAATSKAPPYEWET, 71 VAN 2008

AKTE YAMN OPRIGTING VAN 'N MAATSKAPPY SONDER
WINSGOGMERK MET LEDE

SAKELIGA NPC
REG: 2012/043725/08
{(hierna die “Maatskappy” genoem}

Hierdie Akte van Oprigting {"Akte”) is behoorlik aanvaar by wysa van 'n
Spesiale Resolusie van Direkteure kragtens

die Maatskappyewet 71 van 2008 {“die Wet”) tydens

‘n vergadering van die Direksie gehou te PRETORIA

op 2y M.} 2 /7 2019 en is vir identifikasiedoeleindes

deur die Voorsitter van die Direksie ondertekan,

Kragtens artikel 16{3}{b}{i) van die Wet
sal hierdie Akte van krag kom met die liassering daarvan,

- e
el
-~ e
VOORSITTER
)

SARELIGA NPT AKTE VAN OPRIGTING - CACDATE 2313-04-13 /y

£
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SAKLELIGA

teenstrydigheid effektiewefik aan te spreek, en

3.3.3. Dle aksfes neem wat binne hul uitsiuitlike diskresie nodig is om die oartreding,
botsing en/of teenstrydigheid azn te spreek, wat insiuit maar nie beperk is tot
die voorstel van wysigings tot die Akte en die beléd van ‘n spesiale
Ledevergadering ten einde daardie wysigings goed te keur.

A4, DOELSTELLINGS EN MAGTE VAN DIE MAATSKAPPY

4.1.  Ter nakoming van artikef 1 van bylaag 1 tot die Wet, verkiaar die Maatskappy hiermea
die vofgende hoofdoelstellings:

4.1.1. Die bevordering wvan konstitusionale orde, vryemarkbeginsels en 'n
kapitaalkragtige, regverdige, en valhoubare sake-amgewing in die Republiek;

4.1.2. Die skepping van 'n selfstandige sakegemeenskap in die Republiiek;

4.1.3. Die behoud van eiendomsreg, holisties gesien, ooreenkomstig die Grondwet
van die Republiek;

4.1.4. Om, sonder inperking, Dydraes en skenkings te doen tot die Helpende Hand
Beursfonds en/of die Solidariteit Helpende Hand NPC;

4.1.5. Om kollektief namens Lede, ondersteuners en die publiek met Owerhede te
onderhandel en verhoudinge met Qwerhede asook plaastike, nasienale en
internasionzle instansies en persone te beding te einde die doelstellings van
die Maatskappy te bevorder:

4.2, Die Maatskappy verklaasr hiermee die volgende aanvullende doelstellings, maar sonder
inperking van die algemene aard van die Maatskappy hcofdeelstellings:

4.2.1. Om as 'n openbare sakewaghond wat fokus op die regte en belange van sy
Lede, ondersteuners en lede van die publiek in die algemeen, Op te tree;

4.2.2. Om condersoek in te stel oor gevalle waar die regte van Lede, ondersteuners
asook die publiek aor die algemeen, geskend en/of ingeperk ward, en om waar

nodig ook op te tree ten einde daardie regte te beskerm of te bevorder.

4.3 Die volgende magte word ook, sonder inperking van die algemene magte van die
Maatskappy soos uitgeoefen Direksie kragtens die Wet, aan die Maatskappy verleen:

4.3.1. Om deur selfreguiering en privaat institusionele infrastruktuur 'n afternatiewe

SAKELIGA MPC - AKTE VAN OPRIGTING - ICDATE 2019.03.13
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SAKRELIGA

sake-omgewing te skep waarbinne ekonomiscse aktiwiteit voarigesit kan word:

432, Om die Maatskappy se Lede, ondersteunars en lede van die publiek in die
uitoefen van hul belange en regts, hetsy op plaaslike, rasionale of
internasionale viak, by te staam, te advisser, te ondersteun an/of (e
vertaenwoordig.

4.3.3. Om die publiek oor die algemeen by te staan mat die baevordaring van hui
regte op 'ri plaashke, nasionale en internasicnale viak;

43.4. Om nwiye, enafhanklike en goedgunstige sake-omgewing in die Repubiiek te
beskarm, stimuleer en waar nodig te skep;

4.3.5. Om regsgedinge in (e stel, daartoe toe te tree, om sake te oppancer enfof te
verdedig, om as gnvicus civice in sake op ie tree, deel te neem aan appelle,
hersienings, en om voar enige Owerheid ta verskyn, submissies te maak, te
argumenteer, op 2 tree, teen fe staan enfof te anderstaun.

Ta
Ut
=i}

Om met dia Owerhede, politicke partye, lade van die sakewéreld, die media
asook enige ander fid van die publiek te karamuniieer, te onderhandel, in te
debat te tree en om ook waar nodige daardie persone en/of instansies te
vooisian met vonrsielle, vertoe, submissies, verslag, argument en/of inligting.

4.3.7. Om navorsing ter hevordering van hierdie doelstallings te doen asook om
infigting n te samel, statistiek op te bou, 18 verwerk en te publisear; :

4.3.8. Om onafhanklike regsadvies oor enige saak wat enige doelstelling van hierdia
Akie raak, te bekom en waar nodig om ook regsverteenwoardiging aan te stal
om die Maatskappy te verteenwoordig in die bevordering van hierdie
doelstellings.

4.3.9. Om met antler organisasies of persona met soortgelyke doelstellings te
anderhandet, ooreenkomste te sluit, projekie te hardloop, sake te bevorder,
heforndsing te voorsien, befondsing te ontvang, endersteuning te biad en/of te
affilieer.

4.3.10. Om deel te neem in die bestuur, heheer of aktiwiteite van enige ander
organisasie wat socrtgelyke doefstellings as die van die Maatskappy net en om
in hulle te beld, beiznge te bekom enfof om vennootskappz  of
samewerkingsoareeniomste met hulle aan te gaan.

4.3.11. Om enige persann of organisasie t2 vergoed vir hu! dienste gelewar aan of

SAKELIEA MRC - AKTE VAN OPHIGTING - OCOATE 2013 0311
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coghsia X3

Conperative Governance, Human
Seftierents and Tradittonal Affairs
Morth West Provincial Government
REPUBLIC Of SOUTH AFRICA

The Chairperson

PC on Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs
P.O BOX 15

CAPE TOWN

8000

Date: 24 August 2020

Dear Hon. A F Muthambi

SUBJECT : REPORT ON THE STATE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT IN THE
NORTH WEST PROVINCE
1. PURPOSE

The purpose of the submission is to present to the PC on Co-operative Governance
and Traditional Affairs a "STATE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT REPORT IN THE
NORTH WEST PROVINCE”

2. BACKGROUND

Section 152(1) of the Constitution, stipulates that the mandate of Local Government
is to provide democratic and accountable government for local communities; ensure
provision of services to the communities in a sustainable manner; promote social and
economic development; promote a safe and heaithy environment and encourage the
involvement of communities and community organizations in the matters of Local
Government., These constitutional mandates remain our foundation to put necessary
systems and controls in place if we were to change the phase of Local Government in our

province.,




0084

Page 2 of 7ZBREPORT ON THE STATE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT IN THE NORTH WEST PROVINCE

Section 152(2) of the Constitution stipulates that a municipality must strive, within
its financial and administrative capacity, to achieve the mandate as set out in Section
152(1) ahove.

Section 153 of the Constitution further stipulates that a municipality must structure
and manage its administration  and budgeting and planning processes to give priority
to the basic needs of the community and to promote the social and economic

development of the community.

The National and Provincial Government in terms of Section 154 of the Constitution must
by legislative and other measures support and strengthen the capacity of municipalities

to manage their own affairs, to exercise their powers and to petform their functions,

Despite these empowering provisions of legislation aimed at 'Making Local
Government Work for Everyone' and ensuring 'Accountable, Responsive and
Accessible, it is a well-documented fact that local government in the North West is in a
state of paralysis; our municipalities have invariably and in varying degrees been and/or
are bedeviled by immense capacity challenges. These challenges includes but not {imited

to the following:

a) Failure and collapse of governance and administrative systems in

municipalities;

b) Legislative provisions & prescripts flouted, in particular Supply Chain
Management (SCM) processes and procedures;

c} Declining Audit Outcomes with increasing trend of Unauthorised Irregular
Fruitless and Wasteful (UIF&W) Expenditure;

d} Non-compliance with MFMA and other legislative conditions that led to loss and
or withholding of Equitable Share and Conditional Grants such as MIG over the

years;

e) Inability to provide sustainable, uninterrupted and quality services and
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f) Weak Public Participation and accountabifity systems.

3. BASIC INFORMATION REGARDING THE MUNICIPALITIES IN THE
PROVINCE

The following table provides statistics in terms of categorising our municipalities in the
province and also to share the type of the mayoral council system per municipality.

3.1. Legend:

C:l. »| District Municipalities which are Not Water Services Authorities

District Municipaiities which Are Water Services Authorities

Local Municipality with a Large Budget and Containing a Secondary City

+ Local Municipality with a Large Town as a Core

Local Municipality with a Small Town, with relatively Small Population and Significant
proportion of Urban Population but with no Large town as Core.

Local Municipality which are mainly Rural with Communal Tenure and with, at most, One or

| Two Small Towns in their Area.

NgakaModiriMolema
District Municipality

Mahikeng Local
2, T B2 35 69
Municipality
Mayor, Exe
Tswaing Local X C .
3. o B4 Speaker and Council 15 29
Municipality L :
Committees.
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| Mayor, Executive Committee, |
Ditsobotia Local
4. o B3 Speaker and Council 20 40
Municipality .
Committees,
Mavyor, Executive Committee,
Ratlou Local )
5. L B4 Speaker and Councll 14 28
Municipality ]
Committees,
) Mayor, Executive Committee,
RamotshereMoifoa
6. B3 Speaker and Council 19 38
Local Municipality .
Committees.
Dr. Ruth
7. | SegomotsiMompati Cc2 0 16
District Municipality Louhdl Commit!
) 'Mayor, Executive Committee,
Natedi Local
8. B3 Speaker and Council 10 t0
Municipality
Committees
Mamusa Local
g, 83 9 18
Municipality
Mayor, Executive Committee,
Greater Taung Local .
10, L B4 Spealker and Council 24 48
Municipality ) .
Committees,
LekwaTeemane Local
11. _ 83 8 16
Municipality
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Kagisano Molopo

Mavyor, Executive Committee,

0087

12, B4 Speaker and Councii 15 29
Local Municipality ]
Committees,
Bojanala Platinum
13, c1 0 29
District Municipality
Kaetlengrivier Local Mayor, Executive Committee
14, T B3 _ 8 15
Municipality and Council Committees.
Moses Kotane Local Mayor, Executive Committee
15. ) B4 34 68
Municipality and Council Committees.
L 2 V TR *‘Mv‘w
Madibeng Local f
18, Bi 41 81
Municipality
Rustenburg Local
17. B1 45 89
Municipality
Moretele Local
18. L B4 Speaker and Council 26 52
Municipality )
Committees.
18, | Dr. Kenneth Kaunda
o ) cit 0 16
District Municipality
City of Matlosana
20, B1 39 77
Local Municipality
1B Marks Local
21. B1 34 67

Municipality
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i

aqal Hills Local

Mavyor, Executive Commitiee
22. | M B3 ] ] 11 22
and Council Committees,

Municipality
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4. SUMMARY OF AUDIT FINDINGS FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT

The table below summarises the audit outcome of all municipalities in the North West Province for the
past seven (07) financial years to date: :

04 Regressions

09 Mo Improvement, receiving disclaimar audit culcames

0% Mo Improvement, stagnant in terms of receiving Quatified audit outcomas
02 Improvement from Disclaimar to Qualified

02 Aundif process not vet finalised

#. Bojanala District: AFS submitted 30 Jan 2020, off-site audit currently in progress.

#. Greater Taung: AFS submitted 30 Jan 2020, off-site audit currently in progress.
Anticipated completion date is June 2020
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4.1.1. Provincial Overview

NgakaModiriMolema

Mamusa 06 < (Disclaimer since
inception

Bojanala 04

Lekwa-Teemane 04

Madibeng 04

Ditsobotla 03

5. STATE OF GOVERNANCE IN NORTH WEST MUNICIPALITIES

The Governance Committee in the main assessed Municipalities in terms of the four key

focus areas of the Back to Basics (Pillars) namely:

a) Governance and Administration
b) Financial Management and Viability

) Service Delivery and Infrastructure Development
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5.1, AN OVERVIEW ON THE STATE OF MUNICIPALITIES
E.1.1 Dr. Ruth SegomotsiMompati District Municipality

Dr. Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality (previously Bophirima District
Municipality) is in the North West Province of South Africa, with the Botswana border
immediately to the north. This area characterised by cattie farming as the most significant
economic activity, is commonly known as the ‘Texas of South Africa’,

The District is one of four in the province, with poor rural areas, formerly situated in the
former Bophuthatswana homeland. With the population dispersed across more than 470
villages and towns in a 250km radius (approximately 50km north to south and 200km
east to west), this district presents unique management and organisational challenges.

There are five local municipalities which fall within its jurisdiction and there is largely
rural, consists of a few small towns, with Vryburg as the base of the DRSM offices.,

Over past three years, the DRSM has been plagued with crisis after crisis, scandal after
scandal, ranging from total failure to deliver water and sanitation serviceé as the Water
Service Authority to incremental decline in the governance as evidenced by the free fall
from successive Unqualified Audit Report to Disclaimer Report by the Office of the

Auditor-General.

a) Governance and Administration (Building Stable Institutions)

It must be noted that since the current Council was elected in 2016, the Auditor General
Report has regressed from Unqualified to Qualified and now Disclaimer Opinion. This is
against the backdrop of DRSM having been a beacon of hope and best placed to be the
first NW municipality to get a Clean Audit, having run a record unbroken 16 Unqualified
Audit Report in the period preceding the election of the current Municipal Counci,
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The municipality will approach the next Local Government Electionson the back foot
uniess the downward spiral is halted and reversed. This implies consequence
management for the officials and councillors who presided over this morass, to restore

institutional integrity and regain trust by the community.

All senior management posts are filled, with the recent appointment of Director Technical

Services,

b) Sound Financial Management

VBS Investment

DR. Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District Municipality invested R150, 7m in VBS Mutual Bank
and lost the funds which were meant for the following critical investments:

a) Infrastructure Development,

b} Economic Development;

c) Job Creation,

d) Free Basic Services and

e} Office Building

The District Municipality according to Auditor General in his 2018/2019 Financial Year
Report had to significantly scale back Its Rural Sanitation Programmeas a result
of lack of funding. The District Municipality has failed to provide the support to its iocal
municipalities as a Water Service Authority. The use of water tankering is continuing to
deplete funds which should be utilised to maintain water and sanitation infrastructure.

It should be noted that DRSMDM pays about R350 000.00 per month on  office rental
when the municipality would have completed its own building thus freeing these funds

for other critical infrastructure development, investment and poverty eradication

purposes,
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Impact on Financial Health (Liguidity)

According to Auditor General Report of 2018/2019 Financial Year, the municipality had to
enter intc a repayment agreement with National Treasury to repay the R150.7 m, to avoid

withholding of the entire amount from the equitable share,

The arrangement with National Treasury resuited in a significant increase in outstanding
payables and the unspent conditional grants in the current year as a result of these cash

flow constraints.

Cansequence Management
Auditor General in his 2018/2019 Financial Year Report is stressing that even though the

Municipal Manager was suspended, no decisive action has been taken to effect
consequence management despite disciplinary board making recommendations to
Council. The Council instead of taking decisive action opted to generate a resolution to
reinstate the Municipal Manager,

c) Service delivery & Infrastructure Development

The District is a Water Services Authority with local Municipalities and Water. Board being
appointed as the water services provider. As indicated above the VBS Investment had
negatively impacted on capacity of the district to effective manage the water services
function.

The size of the Sewer Plant in Naledi LM was reduced by half due to'Eoss of VBS
investment and the [ifespan of the Sewer Plant was reduced by half, meaning that
government will soon be faced with the reality of having to spend much more on an asset
that should last 30 years and the District Municipality according to Auditor General in his
2018/201S Financial Year Report had to significantly scale back its Rural Sanitation
Programimeas a result of lack of funding. The District Municipality has failed to provide
the support to its local municipalities as a Water Service Authority. The use of water




0094

Page 12 of 78REPORT ON THE STATE OF LOCAL GOVERHNMENT IN THE NORTH WEST PROVINCE

tankering is continuing to deplete funds which should be utilise to maintaining water and

sanitation infrastructure.

The 2019/20 MIG expenditure as at 30% June 2020 is 77%. The municipality was alocated
a total amount of R 138 393 000.00 of which R 107 090 187.00 was spent with a balance
of R 31 302 814.00

5.1.2. Kagisano Molopo Local Municipality

The municipality is situated in a rural area within the Dr RSM District Municipality with a
population of 102 703 as per the 2016 community survey, consisting of 15 wards. The
municipality is grant dependant as it does not have service charges, such as electricity,

water and sanitation, which results in a low income from own revenue generated sources.

Water shortage and sanitation within the municipality is a concern as the municipality has
been highly affected by draught. Landfill site powers and functions are still not cleared
between the District and Local Municipality, resulting in environmental issues not being
addressed. MEC for Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs will make a final

determination on the matter.

a) Governance & Administration (Building Stable Institutions)

The municipality invoked section 139 (1) (b) Intervention of the RSA Constitution in
September 2018. The Intervention was as a result of governance and finance systems
failures characterised by politicat and administrative instability and non-compliance to
supply chain management processes which impacted negatively on service delivery.

After a protracted resistance which lasted almost a period of 8 months, the municipality
took the Provincial Government to court to chalienge the Intervention, the court ruled in
favour of the municipality. The Provincial has since applied for a leave to appeal which
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was granted by the Court. The appeal wil! take place as soon as the date is set by the
Court.

There are currently two (2) vacancies within senior management, i.e. Planning and
Development, Infrastructure and Technical services resulting in service delivery initiatives

not being implemented.

The position of Municipal Manager, Planning and Human Settlements, Community
Services, Corporate Services, Local Economic Development are filled. The Council and its

committees are functional.

b) Sound Financial Management

The municipality has adopted an unfunded budget. There UIF&W is growing and is linked
to transgression of supply chain management prescripts and fack of oversight. The
municipaliity has received a qualified audit opinion for the 2018/19 financial year which is
an improvement when comparing it with the 2017/18 audit opinion. According to the
audited AFS for 2018/19 financial year, the Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitiess and
Wasteful expenditure (UIF&W expenditure) stands at R676 759 704.

The following are the figures for the utilisation of Consuitants by municipality:

o 2015-16 (R2 400 000)
o 2016-17 (R1 817074)
o 2017-18 (R890 000 )

b) Service delivery & Infrastructure Development

There is a lack of operating and maintenance for internal roads remains a problem,
associated with lack of adequate operating plant and equipment. The municipality is
experiencing dire shortage of water which exacerbated by unresolved issue of service

provision by and between the municipality and District Municipality.
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Kagisano-Molopo is one of the 3 municipalities in the Province that recorded 100%
expenditure of the 2019/20 MIG allocation. The municipality s allocation was
R39 568 000.00 for the 2019/20 financial year.

5.1.3. Naledi Locai Municipality

Naledi Local Municipality is a category B Municipality situated in the Dr Ruth Segomotsi
Mompati District in the North West Province of South Africa. It covers an area of
approximately 7 264 square kilometres with a total population of 68 803 — according to
the Community Survey of 2016 by Statistics South Africa and is divided into 10 wards
representing the interests of the communities of Viryburg, Kismet Park, Huhudi, Colridge,
Dithakwaneng, Stella Devondale, Broedersput(Tihakeng) and the newly developed
extension 25/28.

a) Governance & Adininistration

This is a municipality that was placed on intervention by the provincial government (in
terms of Section 137 of the MFMA, and 139 of the Constitution) with the support of
national government. The National Coundil of Provinces (NCOP) supported the invocation
of section 137 of the MFMA but not Section 139 (1) (b) of the Constitution, the led to the
Provindal Government withdrawing the Intervention after a period of six months. The
municipality has during the intervention, embraced and demonstrated commitment and

support towards the realisation of the objective of the intervention.

Prior to the provincial intervention, the Executive Committee and Council were not
functional. Failure by Council to fill senior management positions within the prescribed

period has dismally affected the performance of the municipality.

During the Intervention, a number of tangibles were recorded such as filling of position

of Corporate Services, Community and Technical Services; restored stability, most of the
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labour related challenges have been resolved. Improved Council functionality anc public

paicipation.

Post the intervention, the municipality started to experience again political and
administrative instability. The position of the Municipal Manager and Chief Financial
Officer remains vacant despite efforts to fill the positions. The municipality resolved not

to appoint a municipal manager after following a recruitment and appointment process.

The issue of the recruitment and appointment of the Municipal Manager has recreated
chaos in the Council and Administration and also attracted a lot of community interest,
As a result, the municipal offices were closed for almost a period of three weeks and in

that period community couldn’t access services.

MPAC has been performing its minimum statutory duties, but has regressed due to lack
of permanent support staff in the unit. There is only one support staff member appointed
to assist MPAC. There is insufficient support for MPAC to address the Increasing UIF&W
expenditures. The municipality participates in the district shared audit committee.

b} Sound Financial Management

Poor audit outcomes with recurrent audit findings for the past seven financial years has

received 3 unqualified, 2 qualified and 2 disclaimer audit opinions.

The municipality has received a disclaimer audit outcome for two consecutive years i.e.
2017/18 and 2018/19 financial years, there is no improvement registered.

During the 2018/19 financial year, the municipaiity submitted its annual financial
statements late to AGSA, which is in contravention to the legislated date which states
that AFS should be submitted to AG within two (2) months after the financial year end.
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The approved budget is not cash-backed, as a result, the municipality is not financially
viable and fails to pay its creditors and fulfill other financial commitments. This is evident
due to the fact that most of its creditors are not paid within 30 days as per MFMA
prescripts.

The municipality has not complied with the submission of section 71 reports as per
requirements of MSCOA, information on debtors and creditors age analysis could not be
verified to determine the current status. Total creditors as at the end of January 2020
amount to R127 millions of which 97 percent or R124 million is outstanding for over 90
days. The municipality is unable to implement credit control measures to recover
outstanding debts from consumers, This is justified by a total of R423 million outstanding
debtors as at the end of January 2020.

There is a costly EPWP programme which the year to date its expenditure is at R2.5
million against the grant allocation that is R1.6 million. Employment guidelines in this
program is grossly mismanaged. There is gross non-compliance to Supply Chain

Management (SCM) processes, wherein SCM processes are conducted manually.

The following are the figures for the utilisation of Consultants by municipality:
o 2015-16 (R2 800 000)
o 2016-17 (R2 394 823)
o 2017-18 (R2 100 000)

This clearly shows that UIF&W expenditures are not investigated and loss of money not
recovered as per the requirements of section 32 of MFMA,

c) Service delivery & Infrastructure Development

The refuse removal and the cleaning of the town and townships not adequately
performed. No landfill sites at Stella and Rekgaratihile. There is interrupted supply of

water due to lack of maintenance and non-payment for water services. The old and
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inadequate infrastructure and poor maintenance in general resuit in blockages leading to

spillages of sewerage,

This anomaly has attracted unwarranted sporadic national media coverage, Poor
expenditure of MIG which affect infrastructure development and lack of upgrade of water
reticulation systems resulting in shortages of water, also lack of installation of meters for
domestic consumption for about 9000 households, hence the municipality experience

community protests relating to water.

The following is a reflection of the MIG allocation during the 2019/20 financial year,
allocation for was R16 979 000.00, Expenditure R 10 390 566.12, % expenditure 61%
and R & 588 433.88 balance.

5.1.4. Greater Taung Local Municipality

Greater Taung Local Municipality is a category B4 municipality within the Dr. Ruth
Segomotsi. Mompati District. It is a low capacity predominantly rural municipality with
communal tenure and a population size of 177 642 and 48 613 households. The
municipality is constituted by 26 wards with councilors comprisi'ng of Mayor, Executive
Committee, Speaker and Council Committees, According to census 2011 results, the
municipality population has decreased from 182 163 in 2001 to 177 642 in 2011. Despite
the decrease in population size, the munidipality is still the highest in popuiation size
within the District,

a) Governance dministration (Building Stable Institution

The position of Municipal Manager, Planning and Human Settlements, Technical Services
and Community Services, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Services are filled(
Corporate Services to started on 1% July 2020). Council and its committees are functional.
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b) Sound Financial Management

The municipality has submitted the 2018/19 Annual Financial Statements late to the
Auditor General for auditing on the 30% January 2020, audit process has not yet finalised.

The municipality has been receiving qualified audit opinionfor the past consecutive years,
since 2014/15,

The following is a reflection of the MIG allocation during the 2019/20 finandial year,
aliocation for 2019/20 was R 47 604 000, expenditure R 47 604 000, % expenditure 80%
and R 37 864 680 balance.

The foilowing are the figures for the utilisation of Consultants by rhunicipality:

o 2015-16 (R2 400 000)
o 2016-17 (R1 817074)
o 2017-18 (R890 000 )

¢} Service Delivery & Infrastructure Development

Lack of operating and maintenance for internal roads remains a problem, associated with
lack of adequate operating plant and equipments. Shortage of water including unresolved

issue of service provision by and between the municipality and the District Municipality.

5.1.5. Mamusa Local Municipality

Mamusa LM is a categery B municipality (established in terms of the Municipal Structures
Act, Act No. & of 2004) in the Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District. The municipality is
icenced to provide electricity only in town. Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District is a water

authority however Mamusa is performing this function within the area of jurisdiction.
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It is one of the municipalities that struggling with collection of their revenue which

impacted negatively on its financial sustainability and delivery of basic services.

The municipality remains problematic and lacks sound financial management; and good
governance. There arg many on-going political and service delivery risks associated with
the instability of the municipality

a) Governance & Administration (Building Stable Institutions)

The Municipality received an amount of R 7 million from their insurers to enable them to
reconstruct the municipal administration block that burned during riots in June 2017,
approximately 26months after the incident the municipal building still lay in ruins because
the funds provided by the insurer were misused and Council has failed to provide
oversight and hold those responsible for the misuse accountable, The municipality and

municipal services are therefore inconvenienced as a result of the burned building.

The municipality is facing a series of costly litigations which led to municipal assets being
attached in the past few months, Council and its newly established committees are
functional. The newly elected council participated in the induction programme facilitated
by both Cogta and SALGA. Out of five Senior Managers, three positions are vacant and
only two filled, i.e. Director Community Services and Director Corporate Services. The
positions of MM is not filled, former Administrator is appointed in an acting capacity, the
Chief Financial Officer is on suspension.

b) Sound Financial Management

The municipality has adopted an unfunded budget, the budgeted expenditure far exceed
the projected revenue, The UIF&W is growing and is linked to transgression of supply

chain management prescripts and lack of oversight. No consequence management cases

have been conduded. Poor audit outcomes with recurrent audit findings pertaining to
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UTF&W and the municipality have not addressed them in accordance with section 32 of
the MFMA owing to lack of oversight and consequence management. The municipality
has been receiving disclaimer audit opinions since inception. There are serious leadership
chalienges to oversee effective mSCOA. The municipality is unable to honour the payment

obligation and do not get consistent support from the system vendor.

c) Service delivery®& Infrastructure Development

Lack of operating and maintenance for internal roads remains a problem, associated with
lack of adequate operating plant and equipment. Shortage of water including unresolved
issue of service provision by the District municipality on water and sanitation. No

operations and maintenance plans for internal roads.

The following is a reflection of the MIG allocation during the 2019/20 financial year,
allocation for was R 15 696 000, Expenditure R 13 180 506.91, % expenditure 84% and
R 2 515 493.09 balance.

5.1.6. Lekwa-Teemane Local Municipality

Lekwa-Teemane LM is a category B municipality (established in terms of the Municipal
Structures Act, Act No. 6 of 2004) in the Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District. It is known
for its diversified economy which agriculture is the predominant economic activity, and

the Vaal Dam which provides water to the municipality and the surrounding arrears.

Lekwa-Teemane municipality has been under severe financial challenges in the form of

cash flow problems and inability to raise sufficient revenue which impacted negatively on

its financial sustainability and delivery of basic services.
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The municipality remains problematic and lacks sound financial management; and good
governance. There are many on-going risks associated with the instability of the

municipality

a) Governance & Administration (Building Stable Institutions)

This is a municipality that was placed on intervention by the provincial government with
the support of national government and the National Council of Provinces (NCOP), The
municipality has during the intervention, demonstrated inconsistent support for provincial
intervention (minimum resistant/disregard of the authority of the provincial and national

government, including Parliament),

There are serious problems in the municipality because systems have collapsed, the MPAC
and other Committees are not functional. The municipality not hoiding public / community
meetings with specific reference to ward 6. Material conditions at the municipality

determine the type of intervention needed to rescue the municipality.

The divisions amongst the ANC councillors are hampering on the functionality of the
administration. The Provincial executive has taken a cautious decision to place the
municipality under section 139(1)(b) of the constitution due to collapse of systems and
poor or biased service delivery. MPAC Is not functional and there's a general lack of
commitment from members. The Municipal Manager has been recently suspended by
Council, pending the disciplinary processes. All other positions for section 56/57 Managers

are filled except for the Director Technical Services.

b) Sound Financial Management

The municipality required much needed assistance on revenue enhancement. Total
outstanding Debtors as at June 2020 amounted to R 955 miltion, of which R888 million is

owed for over a year, Collection of some of these outstanding debtors is of a concern




0104

Page 22 of 7BREPORT ON THE STATE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT IN THE NORTH WEST PROVINCE

especialiy households debt. Households constitutes mast of the outstanding debt at R788
million, followed by Commercials at R121 million, government R45 million and R372 000
attributed to other™

The total outstanding creditors as at end of June 2020 amounted to R386 million, of
which R339 million is outstanding for more than a year. Total debt owed to Eskomn as at
July 2020 amount to R45 482 924 and R37 459 889 is overdue for more than 30 days
period.

The UIF&W expenditure of the municipality is increasing and not dealt with in accordance
with section 32 of the MFMA, The mSCOA implementation is progressing well through the
commitment of Municipal Leadership however not all modules offered by the systerm have
been fully implemented. The Municipality is still highly dependent to the system vendor.

The following are the figures for the utilisation of Consultants by municipality:

o 2015-16 (R6 671 099)
o 2016-17 (R1 800 000)
o 2017-18 (R1 800 000)

Poor audit outcomes with recurrent audit findings pertaining to UIF&W expenditure and
the municipality has received consecutive disclaimers with regard to AG's reports, in the
past seven financial years has received 5 disclaimers and 1 qualified audit opinions. The
municipality maintained a disclaimer audit opinion from 2017/18 to 2018/19. The result

is indicative that there is no consequence management.
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There instances are the cash flow situation deteriorated to an extent that the municipality

is unable to honour its financial obligations.

¢) Service delivery & Infrastructure Development

The conditions are real at the municipality as service delivery is skewed - the Christiana
town receiving or enjoying more advantage than the Bloemhof town as far as service

delivery is concerned.

Service delivery yellow fleet not roadworthy and very unsafe as resuit the municipality
has procured and announced the defivery of two new service delivery bakkies.
Furthermore, the municipality is changing from conventional to pre-paid electricity
meters. Despite all the challenges refuse collection is happening in the municipality.
Skewed service delivery in Bloemhof and Christiana continues to be a challenge.

The following is a reflection of the MIG ailocation during the 2019/20 financial year,
allocation for was R 14 793 000 and further adjusted to R10 000 000, Expenditure
R19 782 (59.82, % expenditure 80% and R 5 010 940.18 balance.

5.1.7. Bojanala Platinum District Municipality

The Bojanala Platinum District Municipality (BPDM) is the home of the cradie of
humankind and is strategically located on the *platinum belt’ of the north-eastern side of
the North West province. To the north the BPDM is surrounded by Waterberg District
Municipality (Limpopo Province), Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality (Gauteng Province),
West Rand District Municipality (Gauteng Province) to the Southeast. To its south is
surrounded by Dr Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality and the Ngaka Modiri Molema
District Municipality to the west.

The Bojanala Platinum District Municipality accounts for a total population of 1.81 milkion,
or 44.5% of the total population in the North-West Province, which is the most populous
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District in the North-West Province for 2018. The ranking in terms of the size of Bojanaia
Platinum compared to the other District remained the same between 2008 and 2018. The
Bojanala District spans over 18 333km?2, and has 5 local municipalities (Kgetleng-Rivier,
Madibeng, Moses Kotane, Moretele and Rustenburg) with a total of 139 wards.

a) Governance & Administration (Building Stable Institutions)

The District Municipality is on the municipalities in the Province with a full complement of
senior management positions. The municipality experienced labour unrest which affected
its ability to perform constitutional obligations during 2019/20 Financial Year, Key to
labour unrest, was a failure by the Municipality to pay salaries and employee benefits due

to financial crisis.

Bojanala Platinum District Municipality has been experiencing financial crisis since
beginning of the financial year 2019/20. The financial crisis was excercebated by the
misappropriation-of R134 million that was erroneously transferred to the municipality by
then Department of Local Government and Human Settlement and had to be repaid by
the District Municipality.

On the 16" October 2019, the Council convened a special sitting to assess the situation
it found itseif in. In that sitting, the Council resolved to piace the Municipal Manager and
Chief Financial Officer on precautionary suspension in terms of paragraph 6 of the Local
Government: Disciplinary Regulations for Senior Managers and ultimately suspended the
two senior managers pending the disciplinary process.

The disciplinary processes has commenced after a delay due to the outcome of the
forensic investigation'conducted. Council took time to meet and consider the report which
gave effect to the disciplinary process of the Municipal Manager and Chief Financial
Officer.
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The municipality was also without a Council Speaker for some time, thus making the
convening of meetings very hard. A Speaker was ultimately elected in October 2019,
Management of Council meetings are still a challenge to date. Council Committees for

most part of 2012 were not sitting regularly to consider regulatory reports.

The Provincial Government is currently providing support and capacity building measures
to the District Municipality through Section 154 of the Constitution. The support provided
by the Provincial Government is in & form of an Acting Municipal Manager and the Acting
Chief Financial Officer. The Provincial Government Is also assisting the District Municipality

by preparing Financial Recovery Plan.

b) Sound Financial Management

As indicated above, Bojanala Platinum District Municipality has been experiencing
financial crisis since beginning of the financial year 2019/20. The financial crisis was
excercebated by the misappropriation of R134 million that was erroneously transferred
to the municipality by then Department of Local Government and Human Settlement and
had to be repaid by the District Municipality. To date, it is not known how and for what
the allocation was used for

Creditars were outstanding for up to 180 days (some more than 6 months unpaid), due
to mismanagement of cash flows. The municipality operéted on an overdraft facility in
2018, In Nov 2019, the municipality owed its creditors in excess of R80million. The
municipality currently, in May 2020, owes creditors an amount in excess of R52million
after having gone through invoices and assess and enter into the system. Some have
been negotiated with and payment arrangements made. '

The municipality has a limited budget to support its local municipalities. There was bad
financial management by the previous Council. Over-expenditure of 100% to 300%

reported,
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The following are the figures for the utifisation of Consultants by municipality:
o 2015-16 (R2 100 000}
o 2016-17 (R1 €78 464)
o 2017-18 (R1 900 000)

Poor audit outcomes with recurrent audit findings pertaining to UIF&W expenditure and
the municipality in the past six financial years has received 2 unqualified and 4 disclaimer
audit opinions. The last financial year i.e. 2017/18 the municipality received a disclaimer
which shows stagnation. The UIF&W expenditure is growing every year.

The municipality submitted the Annual Financial Statements late to Auditor General for
auditing on the 30™ January 2020, audit process is currently underway. Effectively
implemented the following modules on the mSCOA system:

« Revenue and grant management

o Procurement {SCM)

» Budget and planning

With regard to mSCOA implementation, asset management and payroll are hosted on a
sub-system. Implementation challenges include:

» Lack of training

¢ Ineffective utilization of the system

There has not been any receipt MFMA Section 71 reports by the Executive Mayor which
are obiigatory in terms of the MFMA to report on the finances of the municipality. The
Executive Mayor and her Executive (Mayoral Committee) has never raised the lack of
these reports to her Munidipal Manager and CFO so that she is on par with the financial
affairs of the municipality. The Mayoral Committee as a collective failed in their duties to

ensure the sound financial management of the municipality.
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If the above MFMA Section 71 reports, inciusive of the MFMA Section 52 (d) Quarterly
Financial reports were properly dealt with by Council, Council could have taken action to
remedy the financial situation. Council found itself in sever finandial distress as far back
as March 2019. The Annual Financial Statements for the 2018/19 financial year were
never submitted by the relevant officials and this led to the municipality not being audited.
The Council should have known that the matter was unattended and causing the
municipality not to be audited for the 2018/19 FY. Gross financial mismanagement has
been identified in the Forensic Report that was tabled in Council.

¢) Service delivery & Infrastructure Development

The municipality is not a Water Services Authority and is not playing coordinating and for
supporting role to its local municipalities. The District does not have resources to support
infrastructure development projects in local municipalities,

5.1.8. Moses Kotane Local Municipality

Moses Kotane Local Municipality is a category B4 Municipality located within the Bojanala
District Municipality in the North West Province, It was established after re-demarcation
of Municipal boundaries and subsequent municipal elections in 2000.

The Municipality covers an area of approximately 5220km2 and is mostly Rural in nature
comprising 107 villages and 2 Two townships namely Mogwase and Madikwe. Moses
Kotane Local municipality is known as one of the best tourism attraction areas through
Sun City in the Pilanesberg as well as Madikwe Game Reserve, The municipality is striving
to promote the minerals, agricultural, tourism, Arts & Culture as their cornerstone.The

economy of Moses Kotane is mainly characterized by Tourism, Mining and Agriculture,
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owing to its location within the major tourism and mining belt of the North West province
around Pilanesberg and Sun City.,

a) Governance & Admiinistration (Building Stable Institutions)

Coundil is fully functional and stable has ensured that planned programmes are
implemented and realized which bodes well for service delivery acceleration and other
governance. There are two vacancies for senior management positions, namely; Head of
Dept. Corporate Services and Head of Dept. Infrastructure and Technical Services, All
other Senior Management positions are filled. The Municipality is at an advance stage of
recruitment and appointment process to fill Corporate Services and Infrastructure and

Technical Director positions.

Appointment of the ICT Company is under the investigation by the Hawks and is depieting
Council resourcesas it is expensive. There is also a service provider appointed for fleet

management with a contract value of R 9miltion.

MPAC is functional and continues to sit for critical matters. The oversight report was
adopted by council in May 2020, The municipality has recently appointed support staff to
MPAC which commenced its duties on the 1 July 2020. Council adopts MPAC
recommendations, but the weakness is that the adopted recommendations are given to

Management for implementation without any political oversight role by Council.

b) Sound Financial Management

The municipality has adopted an unfunded budget as the budgeted expenditure exceeds
the anticipated revenue to be collected. As at June 2020, the total outstanding Debtors
amounted to R 1.2 biflion, of which R1.1 biilion or 91% is owed for over a year. Collection

of some of these outstanding debtors is of a concern especially households debt.

Households constitutes most of the outstanding debt at R809 million, followed by
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Commercials at R220 million, government R184 million and R7 million or 6% of the debt
s attributed to other’ category’
The municipality has improved from a disclaimer in 2017/18 financial year to a qualified

audit outcome in 2018/19 financial year.

UIF&W is growing and is linked to transgressioh of supply chain management prescripts
and fack of oversight. No consequence management cases have been concluded.
According to the audited AFS for 2018/19 financial year, the Unauthorised, Irregular,
Fruitiess and Wasteful expenditure (UIF&W expenditure) stands at R923 556 913. Poor
audit outcomes with recurrent audit findings pertaining to UIF&W and the municipality
have not addressed them in accordance with section 32 of the MFMA owing to lack of

oversight and consequence management.

The following are the figures for the utilisation of Consultants by municipaiity':
a. 2015-16 (R0.00)
b. 2016-17 (R 4 09 528)
c. 2017-18 (R2 100 000)

There are serious leadership challenges to oversee effective mSCOA. The municipality is
unable to honour the payment obligation and do not get consistent support from the
system vendor, Moses Kotane is one of the 2 municipalities that have improved on their
audit opinions, from Disclaimer in 2017/18 to qualified audit opinion in 201819.

c) Service Delivery & Infrastructure Development

Lack of operating and maintenance for internal roads remains a probiem, associated with
lack of adequate operating plant and equipment. No operations and maintenance plans

for internal roads.
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The following is a reflection of the MIG aflocation during the 2019/20 financial year,
allocation for R 149 692 000, Expenditure R101 331 863.51 % expenditure 68% and R
48 360 136.49 balance.

5.1.9. Madibeng Local Municipality

The Madibeng Local Municipality is a local municipality in Bojanala Platinum District
Municipality. It consists of 41 wards and 81 members elected by mixed member
proportional representation.Madibeng Local Municipality is classified as category B
municipality with Executive Mayoral and ward type system of municipality. It is
strategically located in NW Province, centrally between Pretoria (50 km), Johannesburg
(80 km} and Rustenburg (45 km). Predominantly rural: revenue base therefore limited.

a) Governance & Administration (Building Stable Institutions

The municipality has during the intervention, embraced and demonstrated commitment
and support towards the realisation of the objective of the intervention.A brief overview
of the status quo at the municipality since the municipality was placed under
administration. The situation in the municipality can be described as stable and improving
although there are serious underlying challenges which will take a long time to address.
The damage inflicted to the municipai finances, coupled with the dilapidated state of
municipal infrastructure will require a complete turn—around in the way in which the

municipality is managed politically and administratively.

The intervention team was warmly welcomed by the majority if not alf the stakeholders
in the municipality. To date there has been no visible active resistance to efforts to
stabilise the municipality from both the political and administrative wings of council,
including community structures. As this report will indicate, the community has lost trust
in the current political leadership of the municipality and the starting point in bringing

fong-term stability in the municipality is to win back the community’s trust.
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There is general stability in the municipality which is characterised by: Coundl and
Mayoral Committee meetings as per council agenda, the majority of portfolic committees
are meeting regularly and only a few meetings are postponed, MPAC and Audit Committee
are also functional, and there is still mistrust among counciliors organised labour

continuously engaged through the Local Labour Forum.

Ward committees have been established in ali the forty one municipal wards and they are
functional. There is however not adequate public participation as there are limited
engagement of communities in the form of community meetings. Communities regard
the municipality as corru.pt and uncaring. Although there is general stability in that there
has been no fabour unrest in the past eight months, the administrative wing of the

municipality is characterised by:

Low staff morale, only three of the seven senior managerﬁent positions are filled. Four
positions of Municipal Manager, Chief Financial Officer and Directors of Infrastructure and
Technical and Human Settlement and Planning are vacant, the organisational structure is
bloated at the top and is not aligned to the municipal functions, high number of
unresolved labour matters, blurred lines of responsibility between council and
administration, there is general trust deficit of council by communities, council seem to

be too scared to engage communities

There is a document on Forensic Investigation on the municipality where no action is
taken. There is also a need to investigate the IT contract because the IT Company, has
5 different accounts with the municipality. Council has not yet followed on the disciplinary
process following the investigations conducted on VBS. Disciplinary process has not
started, Officials were initially suspended but to date the other one is back in the employ

of the municipality while the former Municipal Manager has been employed in Waterberg
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District Municipality in Limpopo province. No Consequence management has been
undertaken, '

The investigations implicated one member of the Mayoral Committee. MPAC is hitting the
wall on cases of maladministration of credit cards, llegal debit orders in the municipal
primary bank account. There is an irregular staff appointment that needs to be
investigated because of the allegations of flawed recruitment processes. There is a need
to conduct life style audit starting with Councillors. There are also allegations of irregular
appointments of contractors and refated payments - all contract awarded until April 2019
needs to be investigated, There is a degree of mischief in the municipality. The situation
at Madibeng LM is a cause for grave concern and calls for the institution of Section 106
of the Municipal Systems Act (MSA) investigation.

The committee is divided into two groups wherein the minority component is supportive
of the Executive Mayor whilst the balance of the Committee (about six) are not in support
of the Executive Mayor. The Intervention Team impressed upon the members of the
Mayoral Committee to participate and honour the schedules of the Portfolio Committees
as Chairpersons of such committees has the potential to strengthen the Mayoral
Committee reports which the Administrator will from time to time table before Council for

noting and decision making when so required.

Some members hold the view that there is section 139 (1)(b) intervention and therefore
the mayoral committee must not be convened because it has no powers. There is a need
to have workshops/working sessions with MMCs and TROIKA to deal with the challenges
to the extent of ascertaining how they affect governance ‘issues and to empower the

functionality of the Mayoral Committee.

The Administrator has cleared the misunderstandings and reinforced the need to respect

the legislative prescripts to both councillors and officials. There are community

intermittent projects stoppage which negatively affect the progress of certain projects.
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These need urgent political intervention. The structures involved in these disruptions are
being profiled to determine the root cause of the problem so that a proper prognosis can
be instituted.

The limited capacity of MPAC and its implications on accountability and leadership. The
MPAC has not been able to do effective oversight and this has compromised the measures
to hold Councillors and officials accountable. Consequence management is thus not
implemented despite huge irregular expenditure (R130 million) and other forms of
misconduct or non-performance as well as disclaimer audit opinion of over the last three
financial years. MPAC is unable to deal with UIF&W expenditures due to capacity

constraints.

There are Councifiors who for a fong time, owe the municipality for rates and services.
These Councillors remain in active service and ordinarily, must be chémpions of payments
for rates and services to realise the -most needeci revenue for the municipality. The
Speaker should have also instituted action agaihst Councillors involved as demanded by
the Code of Conduct of Councillors (Schedule 2 of the Systems Act). There is neither
commitment £o make reasonable arrangement to settle the debt, nor was there any action
taken. Political Leadership and discipline is required to appreciate the roles and

responsibilities of various committees and structures of Council.

It is therefore recommended that the counciliors be engaged to ensure that there is
meaningful and continuous interface with the communities to explain challenges relating
to service deiivery in general, the need for payment of services in areas where no
payment of services is done and also explain the planned phases of delivery to various

communities or wards,

Three is a possibility of escalating protests and destruction of critical infrastructure owing

to lack of information or poor communication to communities. This will escalate with the
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advance of the 2021 local government elections where populism and candidacy to
elections will take centre stage. It is therefore important for councillors to hold frequent
and regular ward and sectional meetings to keep the existing gap narrower with the view

to close it completely.

b) Sound Financial Management

The mSCOA implementation is progressing well through the commitment of Municipal
Leadership however not all modules offered by the system have been fully implemented.
The Municipality is still highly dependent to the system vendor. The municipality is in
financiat distress, thus being highly indebted to its creditors. This opens room for potential
litigations. This is evident on the total outstanding creditors as at end of June 2020 which
amount to R598 million. Total debt owed to Eskom as at July 2020 amount to R172 018
384 of which R110 450 325 is overdue for more than 30 days period.

Total outstanding Debtors as at June 2020 amounted to R 2.6 billion, of which R2.3 biliion
is owed for over a year. Collection of some of these outstahding debtors is of a concern
especially households debt. Households constitutes most of the outstanding debt at R1.9
biffion, followed by Commercials at R554 million, government at R178 million.

The municipality has been receiving Disclaimer audit opinions for the past 4 consecutive
financial years. The municipality was identified as one of the top 10 contributors to a high
Irregular expenditure in the country during the 2016/17 financial year. There is generally
none implementation of legislative frameworks to address the UIF&W expenditures,
which leads to an annual increase. The UIF&W expenditures increased to R3 460 380 422
for the 2018/19 F/Y from R3 033 645 601 in the 2017/18 F/Y The AG has raised a finding
on flegal debit orders in the municipality’s primary bank account which have not been
dealt with for more than 2 years, There are allegations of fraud and corruption including
tender rigging. |
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The foliowing are the figures for the utilisation of Consuitants by municipality:

o 2015-16 (R4 800 000)

o 2016-17 (R4 300 000)

o 2017-18 (R4 500 000)
Poor audit outcomes with recurrent audit findings pertaining to UIF&W expenditure and
the municipality in the past six financial years has received 3 disclaimers and 3 qualified
audit opinions. The municipality has received a disclaimer audit opinion during the
2018/19 financial year which shows stagnation. The result is indicative that there is no
consequence management and financial viability of the municipality is under profound
scrutiny. There is a need to test the authenticity of all Regulation 32 of SCM appointments,

¢) Service delivery & Infrastructure Development

The municipality's service delivery challenges are primarily in the provision of clean water
and reliable energy. Among others the following are the municipality’s service delivery
status: old, difapidated and inadequate water network, poor state of internal roads,
especially in villages, insufficient funding for infrastructure, vandalism of municipal

infrastructure, stoppages of projects by business forums.

Treatment of Sewerage network is currently compromised due to ageing infrastructure
and vandalism, and does not operate optimally. Most of the sewerage pump stations
around the municipality are not functional and as a result, there are spillages within the
residential areas and continuous contamination of the Crocodiie River. Provision of clean

water is a huge challenge for the municipality. The municipality owes the Water Board

miilions of rands, The municipality is experiencing continued community protests. There
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is no operations and maintenance plan for roads and water infrastructure assets. Uneven

provision of services, poor standard of internal roads.

There is non-compliance with the regulatory environment governing the provision of
services. There is also lack of adequate operating plant and equipment. Shortage of water
including unresolved issue of service provision by and between the municipality and the
City of Tshwane.

The following is a reflection of the MIG allocation during the 2019/20 financial year,
allocation for was R 281 797 000, Expenditure R136 221 809.70, % expenditure 48%
and R145 575 190.30 balance.

5.1.10. Moretele Local Municipality,

Moretele LM is a Category B municipality located within the Bojanala Platinum District in
the North West Province,provides all the basis service to the communities, except for
electricity services which are being performed by Eskom. The municipality services
communities which are predominantly in rural areas and indigent, as a result,is highly

depend on government grants to provide services to communities,

a) Governance & Administration (Building Stable Institutions)

There are heightened political tensions in councit and EXCO. Sabotage is prevalent in the
running of Council. Incidents of political interference in the administration are prevalent
and this accounts to disrespect for the rule law. A municipal offidal stole a water JoJo
tank meant to assist the community, was reported but no consequences were meted
against same,

Organizational culture is not in keeping with acceptable ethical norms and standards that

is, employees report late for work and knock off early.There are other people in the
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municipality who are equally implicated in the VBS scandal not only the Municipal

Manager.

MPAC needs to be reconstituted and include the representation of the opposition parties
as a sign of good practice. It also needs support staff to complement its daunting task.

It is alleged that the Mayor appointing and entertaining rented crowds / people to disrupt
operations of the municipality. The infighting among Councillors is growing and thus
affect their oversight role which then impact on service delivery.

A number of cases have been referred to the Finandial Disciplinary Board for processing.
The municipality was visited by the Hawks and SIU on the appointment of an ICT service
provider through Reguiation 32 of SCM regulations. The investigation report on the ICT
is finalised and shared with the municipality to implement its recommendations.

Prevalence of malfeasance during the tenure of the then Acting Municipal Manager,
resulted in the appointment of an ITC service provider, through usage of Reguiation 32
of the National Treasury Regulations (tapping from similar appointment by Madibeng LM).
The appointment of the ITC company by the then Acting Municipal Manager, remains
irreguiar and untawful. Currently, the municipality has extended the contract of the ICT
service provider,

It aiso points out sharply to weak or lack political oversight, in that on a monthly basis, a
financial report is submitted to the Mayor in terms of Section 71 of the MFMA., It therefore,

insinuates that the centre is not holding.

b) Sound Financial Management

The municipality has adopted an unfunded budget for the 2020/21 financial year. The
audited financial statements also indicate that the municipality will run shot of resources
to can address its creditor's commitments. The audited 2018/19 Annual Financial
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Statements indicates a creditors balance of R273 million, R236 millions of which relates
to Current Liabilities.

There is steep cost incurred by the municipality in the information communication
technology which could be avoided as it drains the limited financial resources of the
municipality. The Mayor and Executive Committee do not consider and deliberate on the
monthly financial report submitted in terms of Section 71 of the MFMA. This is because
the Members of EXCO, do not report to office to play political oversight.

There UIF&W is growing and is linked to transgression of supply chain management
prescripts and lack of oversight. According to the audited AFS for 2018/19 finandial year,
the Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure (UIF&W expenditure)
stands at R1 759 397 699. The municipality has been stagnant on qualified audit opinions
since 2013/14. The issue of the investment of the municipal funds with VBS is currently
handled by the Directorate of Priority Crimes Investigations Directorate {DPCIP)
commonly known as the Hawks.

The disciplinary hearing report on VBS was concluded and received by council during a
special council meeting, the council has not yet acted on the report. Stagnant audit
outcomes with recurrent audit findings pertaining to UIF&W and the municipality have
not addressed them in accordance with section 32 of the MFMA owing to lack of oversight

and conseguence management.

The following are the figures for the utilisation of Consultants by municipality:
a. 2015-16 (R3 900 000)
b. 2016-17 (R6 092 475)
¢. 2017-18 (R4 500 000)

Municipality is experiencing impiementation challenges due to non-functionality of most

modules on the system and lack of support and training from Municipality. This resulted
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in the municipality opting to run on the mSCOA system parallel to a non-mSCOA compliant

system.

c) Service delivery & Infrastructure Development

Lack of operating and maintenance for internal roads remains a problem, associated with
lack of adequate operating plant and equipment. Shortage of water including unresolved
issue of service provision by and between the municipality and the City of Tshwane.

The following is a reflection of the MIG allocation during the 2019/20 financial year,
allocation for 2019/20 was R 114 780 000.00, expenditure R107 642 154,36, %
expenditure 94% and the balance is R 7 137 845.64.

Uneven distribution of projects, at a glance through municipal budgets and annual reports
will reveal that only few highly favoured wards is were projects of high values are
concentrated. It is evident that one Ward has more than one project during the financial

year while some Wards do not have even one project for that financial year,

5.1.11. Kgetleng-Rivier Local Municipality

Kgetleng-Rivier local municipality is spread over 3 973 square km of land and has 8 wards
with a population of 51 049 and 17 401 households. The municipality is required by the
Water Services Act 108 of 1997 to provide the right of access to basic water supply &
sanitation.

a) Governance & Administration

This is a municipality that was placed on intervention by the provincial government with
the support of national government and the National Council of Provinces (NCOP). The
municipality has during the intervention, demonstrated inconsistent support for the
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intervention (minimums resistance/disregard of the authority of the provincial and

national government, inciuding Parliament).

There is governance stability in the municipality since the provincial intervention,
characterized by weak oversight. Council and its committees do meet as per the revised
council calendar. MPAC has only one permanent support staff, yet managed to compile a
backlog of oversight reports from the financial year 2008/09, the 2018/19 Oversight
report is not yet tabled. The municipality does not have a disciplinary board, and therefore
does not have enough resources to deal with UIF&W expenditures.

There is community buy-in in the current paradigm shift in council. Although still tense,
no protests or disruptions have taken place of late. Resolutions register is in place
including tracking of implementation. The municipality is prone to litigations due to
negligent decision making. '

The positions of Municipal Manager, Technical and Community Services and Chief
Financial Officer are filled and only Locat Economic and Corporate Services are vacant.
The process to fill the two vacant positions is awaiting Councit approval. The Local Labour
Forum is not functional due to the term of Officer Bearers of the Trade Unions having
lapsed and once processes of fresh elections are completed, establishment process shall

commence and a program of action be developed.

b) Financial Management

The Approved 2020/21 Budget is not cash-backed, as a result, the municipality is not
financially viable and fails to pay its creditors and fulffil other commitments. The debtors’
book is high and could only be serviced once the equitable share is transferred. No

outstanding payments to third party contributions.
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The following are the figures for the utitisation of Consultants by municipality:
o 2015-16 (R2 500 000)
o 2016-17 (R1 700 000)
o 2017-18 (R1 700 000}

The UIF&W expenditure remains not investigated owing to lack of internal capacity, thus
resulting in transgression of applicable legislation, fack of oversight and consequence
management. The municipaiity has thus been exposed to a mixture of, disclaimer,
unqualified two qualified audit outcomes and the last financial being a disclaimer leading
to regression. The municipality has maintained a disclaimer audit opinion for the 2018/19

financial year.

The municipality is experiencing challenges with implementation of mSCOA due to poor
contract management and failure to work amicably with the vendor to deliver the
expected results. The municipality is experiencing system challenges, mainly due to lack
of capacity and support from the system vendor. It is also notable that the MIG aliocation
which is intended to reduce infrastructure backlog to enhance service delivery is not
adeqguately utilised.

The financial challenges of the municipality have a potential to collapse the provisioning
of services to the Community and this might lead to a total collapse of governance.

c) Service Delivery & Infrastructure Development

The persistent draught has reversed ail the gains with regard to water provision by the
municipality. Poor water conservation and water demand management strategies not in
place and this is compounded by the cracking of the dam-wall. Water provision is
adversely affected by lack of operation and maintenance of water treatment plant and
waste water treatment plant characterized by sewer spillage in the townships.
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Lack of waste management plan and poor maintenance of landfill sites including non-
compliance of the fandfill side with applicable legisiation exacerbates the non-compliance
with environmental legislation. The incomplete project of waste water treatment plant
has received R Smillion financial boost from the Provincial Infrastructure Grant (PIG) and
expected completion time is 2019, Water tankering remains a key cost driver without

leaving any infrastructure legacy for the municipality.

Road maintenance of potholes is progressing well with the assistance from the
Department of Public Works and Roads, including grass cutting on the sides of several

roads.

The following is a reflection of the MIG allocation during the 2019/20 financial year,
allocation for was R25 847 000.00, Expenditure R 16 838 131.71, % expenditure 65%
and R 9 008 868.29 balance,

5.1.12. Rustenbutrg Local Municipality

Rustenburg Local Municipality is a category B1 municipality within the Bojanala Platinum
District. Tt is a secondary city with the largest budget and a population size of 545 575
and 199 044 househoids. It is constituted by 38 wards with councilors comprising of
Executive Mayor, Mayoral Committee and Council Committees. The municipality is
responsible for the provision of basic services as legisiated in Chapter 7 of the Constitution
and in terms of schedules 4 and 5. According to census 2011 results, the municipality
population size has increased from 387 057 in 2001 to 549 575 in 2011,

a) Governance & Administration (Building Stable Institutions)

The Council is a hung Councif led by a coafition arrangement. The recruitment process of

the Municipal Manager is underway. The Municipality has so far appointed three Municipal

Managers in a space of four years. The municipality has experienced raids from the Haws,
Public Protector and Minister of COGTA and reports are still outstanding.
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There are several media leaks that have been circulating revealing a worrying situation
in the municipality, for instance, alleged leaked communication between the Council Whip
and Councillor of the EFF, The MPAC is performing its minimum statutory functions,

although there has been insufficient support from administration,

b) Sound Financial Management

The municipality is highly indebted through loans for its resource projects. The Auditor
General report has revealed a number of fraudulent transactions in the Supply Chain
Management space of the municipality, for example, one service level agreement was
signed between a company called R&T on the 2™ March 2018 yet the first invoice of five
R 5061 999.33 was already received twelve days thereafter, (invoice date 14 March
2018).

The municipality is currently transacting in the mSCOA chart and is able to produce
reports on the same system. Debtors balance as at June 2020 amounted to R5.6 bilfion,
of which R5 billion or 89% is outstanding for more than 90 days.

The major contributor is household which constitute 78% or R4.4 billion followed by at
R689 million and government at R22 million, R503 million is been attributed to other’
category. The total outstanding creditors as at end of June 2020 amounted to R1.1 billion,
of which R665 million or 58% were outstanding for more than 90 days.

Eskom debt as at July 2020 amounted to R286 233 296 of which R148 497 842 is
overdue. This included the disputed balance of R100 million which was referred to NERSA
for the building of the substation standard charges.

The UIF&W expenditure stands at R7 199 326 which makes the municipality to be
considered one of the top 10 contributors to UIF&W in the province.
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Poor audit outcomes with recurrent audit findings pertaining to UIF&W expenditure and
the municipality in the past six financial years has received 1 unqualified and 5 qualified
audit opinions. During the 2018/19 financial year, the municipality maintained the

gualified audit opinion.

¢} Service delivery& Infrastructure Development

Backlog with regard to road infrastructure, Potholes and street lights need attention.

The following is a reflection of the MIG allocation during the 2019/20 finandial year,
allocation for was R 235 107 000, Expenditure R 224 394 872.94, % expenditure 95%
and R10 712 127.06 balance.

5.1.13. NgakaModiriMolema District Municipality

Ngaka Modiri Molema District is one of four district municipalities in the North West
province and covers an area of approximately 28 114km2. There is currently 961 960
people living in Ngaka Modiri Molema District Municipality and is comprised of 268 099
househoids. There are 640 000 (67.66%) people living in poverty, using the upper
poverty line definition, across Ngaka Modiri Molema District Municipality - this is 3.14%
higher than the 621 000 in 2008.

a) Governance & Administration (Building Stable Institutions)

All positions of senior Managers indluding Municipal Manager are filled. The expenditure
on personnel budget is accounts for over 47% of total expenditure which is not
sustainable considering that the municipality is grant funded at 98% total revenue. There

s an organizational process to address the issue of high personne! budget.
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There was an investigation by the Public Protector of South Africa against the
municipality. There are aggrieved employees who were favoured by the Remedial Action
of the Public Protector. A Council resolution to adopt the outcome of the report including
implementing the remediai action but to date, no progress has been registered including

reporting back to the department of COGHSTA on implementation.

MPAC is partially functional and performing its minimum responsibilities. The support
staff's contracts have been linked to the current chairperson’s term of office. The
municipality will not have institutional memory should the current chairperson vacate the
office for any reason.

b) Sound Financial Management

The municipaiity has approved the budget that is unfunded. As a result of lack of capacity
in the Budget and Treasury Office, there is non- compliance with Municipal Budgeting
and Reporting Regulations (MBRR)..

Regarding internal controls, there is no virement policy, segregation of duties, lack of
business processes. The municipality developed standard operating procedures (SOP) to
improve internal controls and is currently transacting in the mSCOA chart and is able to
produce reports on the same system however: not all modules are active e.g., Contract
Management. Section 71 reports are not submitted as legislated.

The foliowing are the figures for the utilisation of Consultants by municipality:
o 2015-16 (R3 000 000)
o 2016-17 (R2 094 916)
o 2017-18 (R3 500 000)

This clearly shows that UIF&W expenditures are not investigated and recovered as per
the requirements of MFMA section 32. The municipality has been receiving Disclaimer
audit opinions for over the past 6 financial years, For 2018/19 financial year the
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municipality has regressed from disclaimer to adverse audit opinion. This is so because
of lack of oversight and consequence management. The municipality is one of the top

ten contributors to UIF&W in the province.

¢} Service delivery & Infrastructure Development

Lack of water across the district due to draught and lack of Adequate Water infrastructure
to address water shortages. The municipality disputed Sedibeng Water Board debt over
bulk supply and operations and maintenance resuited in understatement of contracted

services expenditure in the AFS,

Under budgeting of operations and maintenance of waste water treatment plant. There
is lack of business processes to deal with lack of payments and cash mManagement,
including lack of operational procurement plan and sound cash flow projections due to
lack of internal controls. Furthermore, there is an unfunded incomplete/abandoned
project which adversely affects service delivery, particularly on provision of water and

sanitation.

There is huge' backlog of water and rural sanitation projects which are not costed due
fack of technical capacity. There is generally lack of water conservation leading to water
losses and loss of revenue due to iltegal and unmetered yard connections in various areas
of the district roll-out the draught relief programme funded by the department of Water
and Sanitation augment the DRF through internal funding to drill new boreholes in the

next financial year.

The following is a reflection of the MIG allocation during the 2019/20 financial year,
allocation for was R 299 499 000.00, Expenditure R 264 601 047.50, % expenditure 88%
and R 34 897 952.50 balance.
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There is a recent report from the Pubiic Protector indicating that the Municipality is failing
its obligations to fuifil its responsibility of providing decent access to water and sanitation
as a Water Service Provider. Upon the interaction by the MEC responsible for COGHSTA
with the municipality, it was discovered that the decision by the provincial government
that the budget allocation of water and sanitation to its residents to paid directly to
Sedibeng Water Board, is not assisting the municipality fulfiling its obligations.

5.1.14. Ditsobotla Local Municipality

Ditsobotla Local Municipality is located in the Ngaka Modiri Molema District Municipality
in the North West Province and covers approximately 6500 km2, The municipality is
home to approximately 181 8651 people. The total number of households with access to
piped water stands at 43 162 of the total households which translates to 79%, the number
of households without access to water is approximately 6 000 based on the emergence
of informal settlements notably in Ttekeng Tthabologang and Biydeville

a) Governance and Administration (Building Stable Institutions)

The appointment of Municipal Manager and that of Senior Managers had its controversies
and irregularities. The Administrator identified serious procedural flaws relating to these
appointments including the fact that as Administrator, he was not involved in the process
despite the terms of reference directing that he facilitates and lead these processes.

The Municipal Manager with the support of other Councillors have dismissed more than
eleven employees, most of whom were newly elected SAMWU Shop stewards. Their
dismissal happened without any disciplinary hearing and has created unnecessary tension

in the administration and Local Labour Forum,.




0130

Paga 4B of 7BREPORT ON THE STATE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT IN THE NORTH WEST PROVIMCE

Only two (2) positions of Senior Managers are filled, namely the Municipal Manager and

the Chief Financial Officer, the remaining four (4) positions are vacant.

The work of the Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC) is not properly resourced.
MPAC reports are not processed as expected by the municipal council. Serious and
damning allegations against key office bearers and some Counciliors have not been

dllowed space to be tabled.

The municipality is experiencing community protests which resulted in the closure of
municipal offices. The employees are also on strike, complaining of the conduct of the

Municipal Manager.

b) Sound Financial Management

The approved budget is not cash-backed, as a result, the municipality is not financially
viable and fails to pay its creditors and fulfil other commitments. There are serious cash
flow challenges hence its inability to meet its financial obligations. Section 65(2)(e) of the
MFMA states that all money owing by the municipality must be paid within 30 days of
receiving the relevant invoice or statement, unless prescribed otherwise for certain

categories of expenditure,

The ever increasing creditor book balance is a clear indication that Municipalities fail to
honour the latter section of the MFMA. The municipality owes Eskom bulk account a total
amount of R627 717 201 million of which R607 004 485 is overdue for more than 30 days
period.

Firm of attorneys have been appointed to conduct forensic investigations with regard to
the loss and embezzlement of INEP funds. A register of all UIF&W Expenditures has been
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developed by the MPAC - it forms part of the Post Audit Action Plan. The Suppty Chain

management unit is not given atfention as the position of SCM Manager is not filled.

Municipality is still operating on the old system version of SEBATA FMS and in a process
to migrate to EMS. Municipality having internal capacity challenges to effectively
implement mSCOA.,

The following are the figures for the utilisation of Consultants by municipality:
= 2015-16 (R3 500 000)
»  2016-17 (R3 200 000}
= 2017-18 (R2 900 000}

This clearly shows that UIF&W expenditures are not investigated and recovered as per
the requirements of MFMA section 32. Poor audit outcomes with recurrent audit findings
pertaining to UIF&W expenditure and the municipality in the past seven financial years
has received 6 disclaimers and 1 qualified audit opinions. The UIF&W expenditure stands
at R360 893 730 in 2018/19 finandial year. The municipality has received 3 consecutive
disclaimer audit opinion from financial year 2016/17 to 2018/19, The result is indicative

that there is no consequence management.

¢) Service Delivery & Infrastructure Development

The municipality is not collecting refuse as expected, as a result the communities have

to dispose of their own refuse. This led to residents waging violent protests.

There is generally incidents of non-compliance with service delivery commitments as the

access roads are not maintained. The internal roads have totally deteriorated to appoint
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wherein most of the tarred roads, have informally turned into gravel roads including the

town of Lichtenburg.

Ditsobotla LM is one of the three municipalities that have spent 100% of their MIG

allocation.,

5.1.15. Mahikeng Local Municipality
Mahikeng Local Municipality is a B2 category municipality in Ngaka Modiri Molema District

Municipality, capital city of the North West Province. It is demarcated into 31 wards
comprising of Executive Mayor, Mayoral Committee, Speaker and Council Committees. It
is @ medium capacity, semi-urban and predominantly rural municipality with a limited
revenue base. It has no electricity license as revenue source with high consumer debt
and poor Operations and Maintenance of infrastructure. The municipality has a population
size of 291 527 with a total number of households estimated to 84 239 and this therefore
means that the population has increased from 259 478 in 2001 to 291 527 in 2011,

a) Governance and Adminjstration {Building Stable Institutions)

This is a municipality that was placed on intervention by the provincial government with
the support of national government and the National Council of Provinces (NCOP). The
administration started from 1 September 2018 being placed under 137 of the MFMA, on
5 December 2018 EXCO took a decision to escalate the intervention to Section 139 (1)
(b) of the constitution.

The Intervention Team started effectively with its work during the month of March 2019
after numerous engagements with Council and Mayoral Committee in which the objective
of the intetvention was outfined, including the Terms of Reference for the Intervention
Team. The delay was as a result of resistance and rejection of the Provincial Intervention.
The intervention was later extended until the municipal end of financial year, i.e. 30 June
2020.
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There is governance stability in the municipality since the provincial intervention, Council
and its committees do meet as compared to previous years where the municipality was
facing difficulties and service delivery protests. The municipality has resolved the

appointment of Municipal Manager’s position.

The municipality investments with the VBS and the repossession of the White and Yellow
Fleet affected the financial position of the municipality adversely. The poor financial
position of the municipality also affected payments of staff statutory deductions such as

pension fund

b) Sound Financial Management

The municipality has adopted an unfunded budget for the 2020/21 financial year. The
municipality is unable to implement credit control measures to recover outstanding debts
from customers. As at the end of June 2020, the total outstanding debtors amount to
R1.8 billion of which 93 percent or R1.7 billion is outstanding for over a year. Households
constitutes most of the outstanding debt at R948 million, followed by government
department at R717 million and commercial or business at R174 million. The outstanding
creditors is standing at R112 mitlion as at January 2020, the municipality is not reporting

consistently on section 71 reports,

The UIFAW is growing and is linked to transgression of supply chain management
prescripts and lack of oversight. The results of lack oversight led to negative audit

outcomes as follows, five disclaimer opinions, two qualified audit opinions for the past

seven years. The municipality has received disclaimers for two consecutive years, i.e.
2017/18 and 2018/19 financial years. The UIF&W expenditure stands at R2 018 535 768
in 2018/189 financial year. The municipality is one of the top ten contributors to UIF&W in
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the province, The MPAC has no capacity to address the UIF&W expenditures. There is no
permanent support staff of MPAC office, only one official seconded from Speaker’s office.

Poor audit outcomes with recurrent audit findings pertaining to UIF&W and the
municipality have not addressed them in accordance with section 32 of the MFMA owing

to lack of oversight and consequence management.
The municipality has spent 100% of MIG allocation as at the end of June 2020,
¥BS Investment

Mahikeng Loca! Municipality invested R83, 4m in VBS Mutual Bank and lost the funds

which were meant for the following critical investments:

a) Infrastructure Development,
b) Economic Development;
c} Job Creation,

d} Free Basic Services

Impact on Financial Health (Liguidity)

According to the report of the Auditor General for the financial year 2018/2019, at
Mahikeng LM, the loss of R83, 4 million added further pressure on the municipality’s
ability to pay suppliers. The municipality had R7 million bank balance at year-end
compared to payables in excess of R553 million.

Consequence Management
Auditor General in his 2018/2019 Finandial Year Report emphasised that even though the

Municipal Manager was suspended and released from his employment contract, no
decisive action has been taken to effect consequence management against those
responsible. Lack of implementing consequence management is a direct result of lack

political oversight.
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The VBS investment saga affected the stability of Council, there is no cohesion amongst
TROIKA and this affected the functioning of Council. There has been attempts to remove
the Executive Mayor, Speaker and Single whip of Council, the cause amongst others

inciude VBS investment.

The lack of leadership was quite glaring since Council could not seat to conduct oversight
over the Executive and the Administration thus the VBS and Kwane saga which saw
millions of the Municipality’s yellow and white fleet being lost leaving Mahikeng residents
without machinery and equipment to deliver services. Non-payment of suppliers by
Mahikeng resulted in the cancellation of a contract for vehicles leased for the waste and

refuse removal. As a result all refuse removal services at the municipality came to a hait.

The matter relating to inconsistent appointment of personnel in political offices outside
policy prescripts is still to be addressed. The political disruptions in council have affected
the business of council negatively and will require constant intervention in order to restore

public confidence in the Counciilors.

Maftkeng Local Municipality presented the tabled19/20 MTREF budget in full compliance
with Section 16(2) of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA, Act No. 56 of 2003),
the IDP consultation did not take place as scheduled due to meetings being disrupted by
factions fighting within the Council, Therefore, the credibility of the budget could not be
determined and also if the budget is funding the prioritised needs of the community as
community consultation did not happen.

The municipality is reliant on government grants to fund its capital programmes and even

more worrisome is the fact that the funding of capital expenditure from own generated
revenue is not realistic. The tabled budget is not funded over the 2019/20 MTREF. The
18/20 MTREF budget is not sustainable, not funded and cannot meet the financial
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commitments of the municipality. Operating surpluses over the medium term are not
realistic and are based on overstated revenue and will not be able to address maintenance

of ageing infrastructure and funding of capital projects.

5.1.16. RamotshereMoiloa Local Municipali

Ramotshere Moiloa Local Municipality (MLM) is a category B municipality (established in
terms of the Municipal Structures Act, Act No. 6 of 2004) in the Ngaka Modiri Molema
District. The municipality is licenced to provide electricity in town. Ngaka Modiri Molema
District Municipality is a water authority and provides water to the remote villages.
Ramotshere provides water in town only. Its estimated budget is R 476 million in the
2020/21 financial year. The municipality has been experiencing financial and service
delivery challenges due to administrative instability and poor governance structures.

a) Governance & Adminisiration (Building Stable Institutions)

The municipality has during the intervention, embraced and demonstrated commitment
and support towards the realisation of the objective of the intervention. To date council,
fts Committees and EXCO meetings are convened as per the developed corporate
calendar. Management meetings and action plan developed and managed including
tracking of Council resolution implementation.

All senior management posts are filled except Chief Audit Executive and the LLF is
functional. We have noted recently with serious concern signs of regression with respect
to the functionality of EXCO,

MPAC is not functional because of lack of commitment by members, non-attendance of
some members to the meetings (struggle to form a quorum). MPAC recommendations

are not adopted in council, which renders it as ineffective. Management does not respond

to request of information from the committee, the effectiveness of MPAC is also
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hampered by non-implementation of the committee’s recommendations. The oversight
report for 2018/19 could not be adopted prior to the lockdown. The committee had 3
support staff, including a manager who has been placed under suspension. MPAC is
reportedly not informed of the progress pertaining to the case. This creates a void in the
MPAC office as the support staffs serve as an institutional memory of the committee.

The municipality received disclaimer audit opinion for 2 consecutive years, from 2017/18
to 2018/19. There is no evidence that the municipality is implementing audit remedial
plans, and recommendation of the internal audit unit as well as the MFMA Sec 166 Audit
Committee. Legislfative frameworks to address the UIF&W expenditures are not

implemented which leads to an annual increase in the UIF&W expenditures.

b) Sound Financial Management

The approved budget is not cash-backed, as a result, the municipality is not financially
viable and fails to pay its creditors and fulfil other commitments. There are serious cash
flow challenges hence its inability to meet its financial obligations.

This is evident due to the fact that most of its creditors are not paid within 30 days as
prescribed by the MFMA, Recently the municipality experienced electricity disruptions as
a result of non-payment of Eskom account, The municipality owes a total of R49 million
to Eskom as at the July 2020. Furthermore, the municipality is unabie to implement credit

controf measures to recover outstanding debts from customers.

The following are the figures for the utilisation of Consuitants by municipality:
= 2015-16 (R2 500 000)
= 2016-17 (R1 700 000)
s 2017-18 (R1 700 000)

c) Service Delivery & Infrastructure Bevelopment
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The persistent drought has reversed all gains with regard to water provision by the
municipality. Service delivery is adversely affected lack of operation and maintenance of
water treatment plant and waste water treatment plants characterized by sewer spillages
in the townships. There is lack of the waste management plan and poor maintenance of

landfill sites including non-compliance of the landfill sites with applicable legisiation.

The role of the District municipality as a Water Service Authority, undermines the

constitutional rights to access basic services like water and sanitation.

The following is a reflection of the MIG allocation during the 2019/20 finandial year,
allocation for was R 37 154 000.00, Expenditure R 19 534 522.79, % expenditure 53%
and R 17 619 477.21 balance.

5.1.17. Ratiou Local Municipality

Ratiou LM is a category B municipality situated in the Ngaka Modiri Molema District
Municipality in the NW Province. The municipality is predominantly rural in nature and is
constituted by about 26 villages and commerdial farms. The size of municipal area is 14,
618 km2, with a population density of 24.37 per square kilometre and is divided into 14

wards.

a) Governance & Administration (Building Stable Institutions)

The functionality of Council and its committees is restored. They convene as per schedule,

There are instances where Council sitting is disrupted by members of the community,

Ratlou LM has a history unstable administrative leadership for the past four years where
they were not able to appoint a substantive Municipal Manager and Chief Financial Officer.
The municipality only managed appoint a substantive Municipal Manager and the Director

Technical Services.
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The positions of the CFO and other senior managers, namely Director Community
Services, Director Corporate Services and Town Planning & Development are still vacant.
The instability in senior administrative leadership has an impact on the performance of
the municipality, hence the qualified audit opinions over the past three years (2015/2016
to 2017/2018), and regression in 2018/19 financial year to a disclaimer audit outcome.

The MPAC has reported that it is nof receiving sufficient support from both administration
and council. MPAC is partially functional and performing its minimum statutory functions.

b) Sound Financiaj Management

The municipality has adopted an unfunded budget as the total expenditure exceeds
anticipated revenue projections to be collected, The UIF&W is growing and is linked to
transgression of supply chain management prescripts and fack of oversight. The recorded
Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure amount to R121 216 763 in 2018/19 financial

year. No consequence management cases have been concluded,

Poor audit outcomes with recurrent audit findings pertaining to UIF&W and the
municipality have not addressed them in accordance with section 32 of the MFMA owing
to lack of oversight and consequence management. The municipality has been stagnant
of qualified audit opinion for the past 3 consecutive financial years, and now regressed
to a disclaimer in the 2018/19 financial year.

The following are the figures for the utilisation of Consultants by municipality:
a. 2015-16 (R2 3000)
b. 2016-17 (R 1900 000)
€. 2017-18 (R1 700 000)
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Municipality had implementation challenges due to aged ICT infrastructure the
municipality has since upgraded the server in order to improve mSCOA implementation.
The Municipality is over reliant on the system service provider for implementation of

mSCOA due to lack of capacity and training.

c) Service Delivery & Infrastructure Development

Lack of operating and maintenance for intemnal roads remains a problem), associated with
lack of adequate operating ptant and equipment. Shortage of water including unresolved
issue of service provision by the District municipality on water and sanitation, No

operations and maintenance plans for internal roads.

The following is a reflection of the MIG aflocation during the 2019/20 financial year,
allocation for was R 29 400 000, Expenditure R6 502 041.04 % expenditure 23% and R
22 497 958.96 balance.

5.1.18. Tswaing Lecal Municipality

According to census 2011 Tswaing local municipality has a total population of 124 218
people with a population growth rate of 0.84%.The main economic sectors is agriculture
and small scale mining provide and elaborate on efforts/plans by the munidpality to
address. The municipality still faces challenges of serious back logs in the provision of
water, electricity, sanitation, roads and street lighting. The main reason for this is the
increased population influx from the neighbouring farms and villages, partly due to the
natural growth of the popuiation. The unemployment rate as at 2011 was 28.7%, whilst
the youth unemployment rate was 40.1% .the elderly (65+) constitute 6% of the
population and individuals of working age { 15-64) constitutes 58%.

a) Governance & Administration {Building Stable Institutions
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The municipality was placed under Administration on 2 May 2019 by the Executive
Committee (EXCO) of the Province. The intervention commenced on the 17th of July 2019
and expires on 30 June 2020. The intervention team started effectively with its work
during the month of July 2019 after numerous engagements with council in which the
objective of the intervention was outlined, including the terms of reference for the
intervention team. The intervention team spent a lot of time stabilizing the volatile
situation within the municipality by engaging the different stakeholders and pressure

groups across the municipality.

The intervention team has assisted in resuscitating the following governance structures:
Portfolio committees resuscitated and functional. EXCO, Council are functional and
resolution register is kept and regularly updated.

MPAC was not functional and has been resuscitated, to that end this committee has
managed to sit and completed oversight reports for the past ten financial years (2008/09
to 2017/18). The MPAC oversight reports were tabled before council on 22 august 2019.
The biggest challenge with MPAC to function effectively is the lack of complete staff
complement. The municipality does not have Audit committee. Financial Disciplinary

Board still to be appointed by Council.

Now recently the municipality is experiencing political instability, which resulted in the
ousting of the Mayor and the suspension of the MM and the CFQ??
Most of the ward committees are dysfunctional and no effective interaction with

communities done. A disjuncture between committees and departments is a challenge.

The municipal council is in dysfunctional and as such cannot provide any oversight to the
administration. The council committees are dysfunctional and the municipality is unable
to discharge on its mandate as espoused in the Constitution and key pieces of fegisiation.

Councillors are colluding with officials for service providers are paying kickbacks.




0142

Page 60 of 7BREPORT DN THE STATE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT IN THE NORTH WEST PROVINCE

Councillors and officials are frustrating municipal processes in order to benefit themselves

materially.

b) Sound Financial Management

The municipality has adopted an unfunded budget. There UIF&W is growing and is linked
to transgression of supply chain management prescripts and lack of oversight. The results
of lack oversight led to negative audit outcomes as follows, one disclaimer opinion and
three qualified opinion. The municipality maintained a qualified audit opinion from
2015/16 to 2018/19.

The total outstanding Debtors as at June 2020 amounted to R 247million, of which R225
million is owed for over a year. Collection of some of these outstanding debtors is of a
concern especially households debt. Households constitutes most of the outstanding debt
at R219 miltion, followed by Commercials at R24 million and government R3.6 million

The total outstanding creditors as at end of June 2020 amounted to R165 millions of
which R137 million is outstanding for more than a year. Total debt owed to Eskom as at
July 2020 amount to R71 271 976 and 64 884 486 is overdue for more than 30 days
period,

A number of cases are fraud remains unresolved. No consequence management cases
have been concluded. Poor audit outcomes with recurrent audit findings pertaining to
UIF&W and the municipality have not addressed them in accordance with section 32 of
the MFMA owing to lack of oversight and consequence management. The results of lack
oversight led to negative audit outcomes as follows, one disclaimer opinion and three

qualified opinion which is a stagnant.

The following are the figures for the utilisation of Consultants by municipality:
a. 2015-16 (R2 500 000)
b. 2016-17 (R4 662902)
€. 2017-18 (R2 100 000)
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The Municipality does not utilize all available modules on the system and opts to perform
manual transactions. There is heavy reliance on the system service provider caused by

lack of training and capacity.

c) Service delivery & Infrastructure Development

Lack of operating and maintenance for internal roads remains a problem, associated with
lack of adequate operating plant and equipment, Shortage of water including unresolved
issue of service provision by the District municipality on water and sanitation. No

operations and maintenance pians for internal roads.

The following is a reflection of the MIG allocation during the 2019/20 financial year,
allocation for was R 29 274 000, Expenditure R 22 432 476.64, % expenditure 77% and
R 6 841 523,36 balance.

5.1.19. Dr. Kenneth Kaunda Districk Municipality

Dr. Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality, which is one of the four category C (district)
municipalities in the North West Province, with a total population of 742 822 people, in
accordance to Stats SA Community Survey of 2016,

The popuiation is unevenly distributed among the three (3) local municipalities and the
average annual growth rate of the district is 1.07% which dropped from 1.16% between
2001 and 2011 (which can be attributed to death, migration etc.).

Dr. Kenneth Kaunda district is a category C municipality situated in the southern portion
of the North West province. The district municipality has three local municipalities under

its jurisdiction namely and has devolved all of its powers and functions allocated in terms

of Section 84 of the Municipal Structures Act. The municipality retained powers and
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functions that relates only to provision of Environmental Health Services, Disaster
Management and Fire Services across the entire district area of jurisdiction. As a result,
the District Municipality is highly dependent of government grants, as its primary source
of income. The funding mix of Dr. Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality made up of 98%
government grants as well as own revenue which contributes 2% of the total revenue

base,

a) Governance & Administration (Building Stable Institutions)

Dr Kenneth Kaunda District municipality has fully functioning governance structures in
place which are the Shared Audit and Risk Committee, Intemal Audit, MPAC and
Disciplinary Board to assist Council with discharging the powers and functions.

The vacancies at senior management positions are at Director: Community Services and
Director LED and Planning. Recruitment process was halted by the Covid-19 lock down,
but it is now activated. Other senior management positions including the Municipal
Manager are substantively filled. MPAC is performing its minimum statutory functions, but
does not have enough capacity to investigate the UIF&W expenditures.

b) Sound Financial Management

The foliowing are the figures for the ufilisation of Consuitants by municipality:

o 2015-16 (R3 100 000)
o 2016-17 (R2 900 000)
o 2017-18 (R3 000 000)

Poor audit outcomes with recurrent audit findings pertaining to UIF&W expenditure and
the municipality in the past seven financial years has received 3 unqualified and 4

qualified audit opinions. According to the audited AFS for 2018719 financial year, the
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Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure (UIF&W expenditure) stands
at R220 546 415. The municipality has been stagnant on qualified audit opinions since
2015/16 financial year to 2018/19 financial year. .

The mSCOA implementation is progressing well through the commitment of Municipal
Leadership however not all modules offered by the system have been fully implemented.

The Municipality is still highly dependent to the system vendor.

¢) Service delivery & Infrastructure Development

The municipality is not a Water Services Authority and is not playing coordinating and /or
supporting role to its local municipalities. Infrastructure development projects have not
been implemented, resulting in local municipality playing the role of salaries with no
developmental program.

5.1.20. Maguassi Hills Local Municipality

Maquassi Hills is a category B municipality (established in terms of the Municipal
Structures Act, Act No. 6 of 2004) in the Dr Kenneth Kaunda District.It is bordered by
Tswaing in the north, the Free State Province in the south, City of Matlosana and the Free
State in the east, and Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District in the west.

It is one of the three municipalities that make up the district, accounting for a third of its
geographical area. The main Economic Sectors are Agriculture (49%), domestic (17%),
community services (15%), and manufacturing (14%). The municipality has been under
severe financial challenges in the form of cash flow problems and inability to raise
sufficient revenue which impacted negatively on its financial sustainability and delivery of

basic services.

The municipality lacks sound financial management; and good governance. There are

rmany on-going risks associated with the instability of the municipality
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The Municipality is spread over 4 678.4 square kilometres and has 11 wards with a
population of 82 013 and 24 077 households (based on the Community Survey of 2016).
The Municipality is required by the Water Services Act to provide the right of access to
basic water supply & sanitation, hence 22 247 {92.4%) households have access to water
supply and 21 717 (90.2%) households have access to sanitation out of 24 077 total
households.

a) Governance & Administration {Building Stable Institutions)

This is a municipality that was placed on intervention by the provincial government with
the support of national government and the National Council of Provinces (NCOP). The
municipality has during the intervention, demonstrated total disregard for the authority

of the Provincial and National government, including Parliament.

The former administrator Mr. T, Mokhatla was rejected from the onset by the municipal
council to the point where he had to be replaced by Ms. D. Thoaele and the team.
Similarly her team also experienced resistance from councillors in the municipality, which
resulted in three months of the intervention period being lost. Councillors were involved

in violent activities to challenge the intervention.

There is instability of Council characterized by infighting that led to political instability and
weak oversight. Furthermore, this has also led to non-functionality of Council and its
Committees and in particular the MPAC.

MPAC is not fully resourced with permanent support staff and tools of trade. The
institution has a back-log of oversight reports from 2008/0¢ to current. Lack of stability

in council and non-commitment of majority of members has rendered the MPAC

dysfunctional.
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The recruitment and appointment of senior managers was conducted without the
involvement of the Administrator. This act borders on non-compliance to the Terms of
Reference of the Intervention, The MEC issued a directive to the Mayor for the attention
of Council, directing that they should not appoint any senior manager without consulting
the Administrator since the municipality is under Section 139(1) (b} of the constitution.

The Council disregarded the directive of the MEC and continued with the appointments.
Only two Councillors disassociated themseives from the whole council process of
perpetual defiance. Section 106 of the Municipal Systems Act was invoked and the report
was submitted to the office of the Mayor for tabling in Council, but to date it's still pending
to be tabled in Council.

The report resulted in some of the senior officials and the Mayor being implicated in
wrong doing, especially with regard to misuse of municipal vehicles. Public participation
at Ward level has completely collapsed, and this is a recipe for violent public protests.

b) Sound Financial Administr

The municipality is considered one of the top 10 contributors to UIF&W expenditures in
the province. The municipality regressed from a qualified audit opinion in 2016/17 to a
disclaimer in 2017/18, and maintained a disclaimer in the 2018/19 financial year.

The municipality has approved the budget that is not funded, this mainly of the fact that
the municipaiity has projected to have.a positive net cash from operating activities
without factoring in all arrangements in piace with creditors. The approved budget is not
cash-backed, as a result, the municipality is not financially viable and fails to pay its
creditors and fulfil other commitments. The total outstanding creditors as at end of June

2020 amounted to R242 million, of which R201 million or 76% were outstanding for more
than 90 days. Eskom debt as at July 2020 amounted to R 38 524 785 of which
R29 336 967 is overdue for more than 30 days period,
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The total outstanding Debtors as at June 2020 amounted to R 1.5billion, of which R1.4
billion or 95% is over 90 days. Households constitutes most of the outstanding debt at

R1.4 billion, followed by commercial /business R60 milfion, government R11 million

The municipality is experiencing low revenue collection due to poor revenue

management,

The UIF&W expenditure stands at R1 089 367 513 for 2018/19 which makes the
municipality to be considered one of the top 10 contributors to UIF&W in the province.
With regard to mSCOA compliance — there are serious Jeadership ch_ai[enges to oversee
mSCOA implementation.

In the past seven financial years the municipality received 4 disclaimers and 3 qualified
audit opinions, for 2018/19 financial year, the municipality maintained a disclaimer audit

outcome.

c) Service delivery & Infrastructure Development

The communities of the municipality could go for a long period of up to three weeks
without water, The water crisis was reported as early as May 2019 and to date the |
situation is still to be addressed in totality. Service delivery is adversely affected by fack
of operation and maintenance of water treatment plant and waste water treatment plant

characterized by sewer spillages in the townships.

There is lack of plan for waste management and poor maintenance of landfill sites. There

is also poor water conservation and water demand management strategies,

The following is a reflection of the MIG allocation during the 2019/20 financial year,
allocation for was R 28 209 000.00, Expenditure R 27 164 239, % expenditure 96% and
R 1 044 761 balance.,
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5.1.21. City of Maticsana Lecal Municipality

City of Matlosana is a category B municipality (established in terms of the Municipal
Structures Act, Act 6 of 2006) in the DR Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality, in the North
West Province. The main economic activity in the municipal area is gold mining with Anglo
Gold Ashanti being the biggest player in the market. The gold mining sector in the country

has been decreasing due to supply and demand as well as the pricing of the commodity.

This has negatively affected the economy of the municipality resulting in some areas
being as distressed mining towns, The job losses have increased poverty and ability of
households and businesses to pay for municipal services. The municipality in current state
remains financial not viable due to fow collection rates and increasing debt book which

has a direct impact on service delivery

a) Governance & Administration {Building Stable Institutions)

The City of Matlosana have been having challenges dating as far as 2017. The Mayoral
Committee is divided and is not coherent, including TROIKA. Seme Councillors are a
grouping of the Speaker and others are a grouping of the Executive Mayor.

This anomaly is impacting negatively on governance and oversight of council, thus
creating an enabling environment for the collapse of service delivery and violent service
delivery protests, Meetings of Committees of Council are not convened and/or poorly
attended. Ali senior management positions are filled. MPAC is partially functional with
only one permanent support staff. It does not have sufficient capacity to address the
increasing UIF&W expenditures,

The municipality continues to experience great instability in that there’s been a huge

involvement of criminal elements which threaten both the functionality of the municipality
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and the council proceedings. A number of councilors have reported on many occasions
how they are under threat and are not able to exercise oversight or even interrogate

council matters without being intimidated.

After the concerted effort by the MEC to strengthen Council, the following occurrences
took place in the municipality; it was reported that council sat to discuss the performance
report of the Accounting officer, of which a number of thugs were bussed into that
meeting and the council sitting was disrupted with councillors being poured with water

while in council chambers.

There was a council meeting that took place in which the MPAC tabled its oversight report,
upon deliberations by council on the report the council resolved to put the Municipal

Manager on precautionary suspension given the financial misconduct allegations.

The Executive Mayor was ssubsequently instructed by Council to inform the Municipal
Manager of its decision and further resolved that the Executive Mayor should write to the
Municipal Manager within seven days informing him of the decision. It is alleged that the
Executive Mayor did not oblige to that council resolution and instead a councit meeting
was convened by the Speaker at a jater stage and reversed the decision arising from the

minutes,

As a result of the above there was a removal of some members of the Mayoral Committee
by the Executive Mayor. Council is currently kept in the dark about the precautionary
suspension of the Municipal Manager as the Executive Mayor elected not to implement
the Council resolutions, and is working in cahoots with the Speaker to undermine the
authority of Council.

b) Sound Financial Management
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The approved budget is not cash-backed, the budgeted expenditure exceeds anticipated
revenue to be collected. The total outstanding creditors as at end of June 2020 amounted
to R1.3 billion, of which R1 billion or 76% were outstanding for more than 90 days period.
Eskom debt as at 31 July 2020 amounted to R524 516 492, of which R417 901 942 is
overdue for more than 30 days period. The municipality is not financially viable and fails

to pay its creditors within 30 days period.

The municipality is unable to implement credit control measures to recover outstanding
debts from consumers. This is justifiable by a total of outstanding Debtors as at June
2020 amounting to R 4.4billion, of which R4 biilion is over 90 days. Collection of some of
these outstanding debtors is of a concern especially households debt. Households
constitutes most of the outstanding debt at R3.9 billion, followed by commercial /business
at R398 million and government at R111 million

The UIF&W expenditure stands at RS 316 108 187 which makes the municipality to be
considered one of the top 10 contributors to UIF&W in the province.

The following are the figures for the utilisation of Consultants by municipality:
o 2015-16 (R4 800 000)
o 2016-17 (R4 300 000)
o 2017-18 (R4 500 000)

Improved audit outcomes is indicative that the municipality is in the right direction with
regard to oversight and consequence management, The municipality in the past seven
financial years has received 1 disclaimer and 4 qualified audit opinions. It has regressed
from unqualified audit opinion in 2017/18, to gqualified audit opinion in 2018/19. The

Municipal Manager is currently is currently facing criminal charges and Council has not

been able to process this matter in line with the spirit of the relevant legislation.




0152

Page 70 of 7BREPORT ON THE STATE OF LOCAL GOVERMNMENT IN THE NORTH WEST PROVINCE

c) Service delivery & Infrastructure Development

The municipality is characterized by ageing infrastructure. There is frequency of sewerage
spillages. Road infrastructure is dominated by potholes but the municipality is currently
attending to the problem. Poor contract management resulting in several blocked
projects. This is directly denying communities of their expected services, and there is no

action taken against both responsible officlals and service providers.

The following is a reflection of the MIG allocation during the 2019/20 financial year,
allocation for was R 87 489 000, Expenditure R 52 721 954.28, % expenditure 60% and
R 34 767 045.72 balance.

5.1.22. JB Marks Local Municipality
JB Marks Local Municipality is a Category B municipality situated within the Dr Kenneth

Kaunda District in the North West Province. It is the largest municipality of three in the
district, making up almost half its geographical area.

It was established by the amalgamation of the former Ventersdorp and Tlokwe City
Council Local Municipalities in August 2016. It combines the following areas from the
Tlokwe Region: Ikageng and its extensions, Potchefstroom town, Mohadin, Promosa,
Matiwang, Leliespan/Baitshoki, Haaskraal, Turfvlei, Vyfhoek, Mooibank, Machavie,
Buffeldoorn, Miederpark, Kopjeskraal, Wilgeboom, Lindequesdrift. (Agricultural Holdings)
Rooipoortjie, Venterskroon, Buffelshoek. (Rural) Vredefort Dome. (World Heritage Site)
Vaal River. (Tourism attraction) and the rural hinterland.

Ventersdorp Region consists of a vast rural / commercial farming area as well as the
urban area of Ventersdorp, Tshing and Toeviug and has six (6) villages namely
Goedgevonden, Welgevonden, Tsetse, Ga-Magopa, Boikhutso and Boikhutsong.

a) Governance and Administration (Building Stable Institutions
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The Municipal Council rejected the NW EXCO resolution to invoke Section 139(1) (b) and
accordingly approached Mmabatho High Court on an urgent basis to review and set aside
this decision. The MEC of COGHSTA opposed this court application and was successful in
his argument that the matter was not urgent since the decision had been made and
communicated to the municipality a couple of months preceding the urgent court
application challenging it. In other words, the NW EXCO decision to place the municipality
under administration through $139(1)(b) remained in force until set aside successfully by
the municipality through the normal court application in which process the merits of the
matter would be considered. In effect, the invocation of $139 (1) (b) remained in force.

Accordingly, the MEC COGHSTA, instructed the Administrator to resume his duties as per
the Terms of Reference and submit monthly progress report on the terms of reference.
The Administrator obliged and resumed his duties as there was legal certainty and clarity.
The municipal council, however, defied the court ruling and resolved to not accept being

placed under administration.

Since the application by JB Marks Council to set aside Provincial EXCO resolution on
urgency was dismissed, the application was enrolled again for hearing in the ordinary
course which was initially set down in the court roll of 28 February 2020. The matter was
removed from the roll by the Municipality without consulting with the Provincial
Government. The matter is again enrolled on the court roll and is set for hearing on the
315 July 2020,

Due to continued resistance of the Provincial Intervention by the municipality which
affected the effective implementation of the Intervention, thus undermining the authority
of the provincial government, the National Council of Provinces, and the Minister
responsible for local government; the Ministry of COGTA came down to Klerksdorp in an
attempt at inter-governmental dispute resolution. Even though terms were agreed upon,

the municipality again reneged on the agreement on invocation of $139 (1) (b).
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Present at this meeting with the Deputy Minister COGTA were MEC COGHSTA, Executive
Mayor and Municipal Manager of JB Marks LM and the Administrator. It becomes
fundamentally important to observe that, the municipality have been constantly defiant
to the authority of the Provincial Government with respect to the implementation of the

Provincial Intervention.

The MEC of COGHSTA made efforts again during the month of April 2020 to engage with
Municipal Leadership to reconsider their stance with regard to Provincial Intervention. A
meeting was coordinated for 3 and 6 April 2020 with Members of Troika, Members of
Mayoral Committee and Municipal Manager. Both meetings couldnt materialise, the
Municipal Leadership requested a postponement to a later date due to COVID-19.

The department has therefore agreed to the postponement. Finally the meeting took
place on 5 May 2020 in which the MEC and the Deputy Minister emphasised that the
Municipality is still under administration until the Provincial EXCO resolve otherwise, but
should be noted that the Mayoral Committee is not in support of the Intervention and
requested that only Council can rescind its decision to reject the intervention.

The department sought a legal opinion from the Senior Counsel representing EXCO in the
matter between provincial governments V/S JB Marks LM regarding implementation of
Section 139 (1) {b). The legal opinion suggest that in an instance that the effective date
of intervention is postponed, and such decision is challenged in the High Court, the

municipality has prospects of success,

Allegations of Maladministration of the Trust Fund Account

It becomes fundamentally important to observe that, the municipality have been
constantly defiant to the authority of the MEC of COGHSTA. This is evident in the
municipality’s practice of intransigent behaviour towards a letter of enquiry by the MEC

on matters related to maifeasance, which are also a subject of investigations by the
Hawks.
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The municipality continue to give no cooperation to the Hawks and the MEC in spite the
fact that, there is empirical evidence of financial impropriety against some Councillors and
officials invoiving royalties paid towards the municipality by one mining house into a Trust
fund Account that is allegedly being heid at Willem Coetzee Attorneys. For example, there
were local and national media reports about an alleged Durban July Trip that took place

at great financial cost to the municipality.

Apparently officials who are not as per their job description part of the Sub-Directorate:
Local Economic Development were part of the expensive trip, monies from the Trust Fund
were allegedly paid into the personal bank account of officials and it ended up as a trip

not being value for money.

In addition, there is an amount of R 200 000.00 which was withdrawn through the
Executive Mayor purporting to assist the Non-Governmental Organisations. It is on record
that the Executive Mayor made a promi'se to the attorneys who are the administrators of
that the money shall be returned to the trust account later, byt in vain.

Financial Governance
Council not sitting reqularly as Scheduled, this is evident by the approval of the 2020721
Budget and IDP after the legislated time frame.

MPAC is not functional because of non-attendance of some members to the meetings
(struggle to form a quorum). MPAC recommendations are not adopted in council, which

renders it as ineffective.

Although the municipaiity has improved audit opinion for 2017/18 financial year from
disclaimer to Qualified audit opinion, it remained stagnant with a qualified audit opinion
for the 2018/19 financial year. The municipality was identified as one of the top 10

contributors to a high UIF&W expenditure in the country during the 2017/18 financial
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year with UIF&W expenditure of R 3 084 446 315 for the 2018/19 financial year and R2
889 876 047 for the previous financial year,

Legislative frameworks to address the UIF&W expenditures are not implemented which

leads to an annual increase in the UIF&W expenditures

b) Sound Financial Management

Total outstanding Debtors as at June 2020 amounted to R 636 million, of which R478
miilion is owed for over a year. Collection of some of these outstanding debtors is of a
concern especially households debt. Households constitutes most of the outstanding debt
at 244 million, followed by government at 65 million, businesses R45million and
R281million is classified under “other”,

Total outstanding creditors as at end of June 2020 amounted to R31 miliion.
R138 598 135 is owed to Eskom and R58 034 057 is overdue debt

6. QOBSERVATIONS AND CONCLUSION
As indicated above the greatest challenge facing the municipalities is the trust deficit

which can be directly attributed to the conduct of the municipality’s political leadership
since their election in 2016. As a result of this trust deficit, majority of the municipal
councils has no relationship with communities and this makes it difficult to convince

communities to play their part in service delivery by paying for services rendered.

There is therefore a need to focus on winning the trust of the community by strengthening
council’s capacity to play an gversight role and improving the image of the

municipalities as a caring, responsive and corruption free institutions.

The Inabllity of several municipalities to collect revenue from the provision of basic
services results in low revenue collection rate and ultimately the inability to meet
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financial obligations. Continuous failure to collect revenue has a negative impact on
the maintenance of revenue generating assets and ultimate loss of revenue. LOwW revenue

collection, threatens municipal sustainability.

Underspending on capital projects (MIG) results in municipalities losing out on

funding through stopping of grant funding and roli-over processes thereby affecting
service delivery which is the cornerstone of existence of municipalities. Incapacity
challenges, especially in Finance and Technical services, characterised by poor project
management planning, results in many municipalities in the province not spending their

capital budget as expected, undue delays in supply chain management and high

vacancy rate in senior positions,

There is notable liguidity risks at municipalities that are highly indebted to ESKOM,
Water Boards, Auditor General and other key creditors. Despite the hands-on-support by
the Provincial Treasury on revenue management and implementation of credit control
policies, municipalities remain stagnant. This is 50 because, there is political inertia
and lack of oversight by Coundils, characterised by lack of accountability to both

the higher authorities of national and provincial government and the electorate in general,

Leadership in all municipal councils, did not provide adequate political oversight and

monitoring of the control environment, financial performance, implementation of

consequence management, over recurring Supply Chain Management

transgressions and lack of implementation of post audit action plan, One of the key

elements that characterise the desperate governance situation is the anecdotal

evidence of disregard for the local government applicable legislation,
unethical leadership, disregard of democratic centralism, and a culture of non-

accourntability.
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We have a responsibility as a collective-Municipalities, National and Provindal
Government and all oversight bodies to improve the state of municipalities in line with
our legislative mandate to achieve a developmental local government as articulated on

the White Paper for Local Government.,

The ideal municipality we want must;
« Provide democratic and accountable government for local communities

* Be responsive to the needs of the local community

e Ensure the provision of services to communities in a sustainable manner

= Promote social and economic development

« Promote a safe and healthy environment

s Encourage the involvement of communities and community organisations in the
matters of local government

» Facilitate a culture of public service and accountability amongst its staff

» Assign clear responsibilities for the management and co-ordination of these

administrative units and mechanisms.

We shoulid ail strive for a;

» Functional, Well-Performing Municipality
¢ Sustainable Municipality
e« Accountability

'Key elements of a functional, well-performing
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Constitutional
objects of
local
government

ommunity Oversight and Accountability

Sound Political Leadership

Good gevemance practlees that facilitata transparent,
accountable and parlicipative desision-imaking and oversight
Reasponsiveness to community participation and feadbacic

Priorilies and policios 1hat addrass the cammunity's social and
econcemic devalopment meads, with a suslainabla emphasis
arn the interesis of he poor

A sound spathal development plan

Integrated and suslainabie IDP's and Rudgeis

Compatant and dedicated senler managers
Key technical positions filled by competent staff
Employees committed ta serving the community

| Key decisinn-making, managament and reapoding systema in
place and functiening
Efficient and effeclive service detivery systams

Sound ravenus ard expendlvre managemeant processes
Procurement processes that ara afficiant and hanest
Efective coniract monitoring and managemaent

Good proiect management processas and systemns

Economies of Scale Choice of Technology
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Departmental officials will be assigned to implernent the Municipal Recovery Programme
in the context of District Development Model.

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Use the budget allocated for 2020721 Financial Year to fund the Municipal Recovery
Prograrnme.

9. CONSULTATION IMPLICATIONS

The MEC for COGTA and PT to engage with the both political and administrative
leadership of the affected municipalities for the implementation of Municipal Recovery

Programme.

10. POLITICAL IMPLICATIONS

The MEC for COGTA and PT to engage with the both politicall and administrative
leadership of the affected municipalities for the implementation of Municipal Recovery
Programme.

11L. RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Provincial Executive Council mandate the MEC of
COGTA working with MEC of PT to develop a Municipal Recovery Programme focusing on
Kgetleng; Moretele; Maqquasi Hills; Ditsobotla; Mahikeng; Lekwa-Teemane; Ratlou;
Mamusa; Naledi; Dr RSM and Bojanala DM.

Tl

HON. B. MOILOA
MEC: COGHTSA

DATE: 24/08/2020
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Ditsobotla Lecal Municipality
Annual Financiel Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018
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Disobotlz Loca! Municipalily
Annual Financial Staiemanis for the vear ended 30 Juns 2013

Genoergl Information

Legal form of entity Category B municipality in terms of Section 1 of Local Covernmeni's
Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act 1170f 1998} razd with section
Section 15 (1) of the Constifution of the Republic of South Africa (Aot

108 of 1996}

Mature of Buginess erd principal activities The primary function of the municipality is to provide basic services i.e.
water, elechicity, sewerage, water and sanilaton fo the Lichtsnburg
Jurisdietion,

#ayore]l commiites

Expcutive Mayor Hon. Glir.D.T Buthelezi

Councillors Clir. Mmota ME (Speaker)

Cllr. Modisane BM {Chiat Whip)
Chir. Njakanjaka

Clir. Van Der Linde WG
Clir. Marutse MW
Cltr. Mathholoa RE
Clir, Schnepet AR
Clir. Botswe MM
Ciir. Motlhaka K

Clir. Diale GS

Clir. M. Mmota

Clir. English hiJ

Clir. itthopeng KL
Cllr. Joe TJ

Clir, Matshane SA
Cilr. Matshogo MP
Clir, fdofokeng MER
Cir. Mogatwe PM
CGlir. Mokheane TB
Clir. Mokonang LI
Clir. Mekoso MH
CHr. Molawa TE

Chr. Moloko Vi

Clir. Mongale LG
Cilr. Moreo MP

Clir. Milkamipe JL
Clir. Mvundisi TS
Cllr. Nkashe iT

Clir. Salihara OS5
Clir. Sonaklle T

Clir. Thebeyzgae ML
Chr. Feuriz JPG

Clir, Mohota By

Cilr. Engelbrecht A
CHir, Mefamu TK
Clir. Moeketsane SE
Clir. Seribe KM

Gilr. Daemans KH
Clir. Guiube A

Grading of locai authorily Grade B
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Diisobotia Lonal Municinalty
Annual Financiat Statements for the year ended 30 June 2015

Acsounting Officer's Responsibilitios and Approval

The accounting officer is required by tha Muricipal Finance Management Act {Act 56 of 2003}, to maimzin adequate
eccouniing recards end ks raspoasthle for the content and integrity of the annval financiat statements and retated financial
information included in this repert. It is tha responsibility of the accounting oificsr 1o snsura thet the annuat financial siaismeanis
fairly present the state of affairs of the municipalily 2 at the end of the financial year and the resulis of its operations and cash
ftows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinton on the annual financial
statemenls end was given urvestricted access fo all financial records and refated data.

The annual financial statements have bgen prepared In accordance wiith Standards of Genarally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) incleding any intarpreteiions, guidelines ano diractives issuad by 1he Accounting Standards Board.

The annual financial staternents are based upon appropriaie accounting policias consistently applsd and supporied by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The accounting officer 2cknowiedges that he is ultimately responsibie for the system of intarnal financial coning! aslaplished by
the munizinality and place considerable imporiancs on maklaining & strong contro! environmsnt. To 2nable o acoouriing
ofiicer tn meet these rasponsibilities, the sets standards for intermal control aimed at reducing the risk of errer or deficii in a
cost sifective manner. The siandards incheas the proper delfogation of responsibiitos whhin & cleaily defired framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties ¥ ensure an acegptable fevel of rigk. Thesa contrals are
manitared throughout the municipality snd al amployeas are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the
municipality's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is abova reproach, The focus of rick
managsment in the municipality ks on ldentifying, 455@ssing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the
municipality. While eperating risk cannot be fully sitminated, the municipality endeaveurs to minimise it by ensuring that
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour ars applied and managed within predetermined procedures

and constraints.

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the inlormetion and explanations given by management, that the system of
intarnal contro! provides reasonable assurance that the fnancial records may ba refied on for the praparation of the annual
fingncial statemente. However, sy Eystem of internal finenciat eentro! can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assuiance against materal misslatement or deficit. :

The accounting officer has ravigvrd the municipality's cash figw forecast tor the year to 30 June 2019 and, in the {ight of this
review and the current financial position, he is salisfied that the municipality has or has sccess lo adequate resourcas 1o
continue in operational existance for the foraseeable futyne.

The annual financial statements set out on pagas 5 19 58, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were

approv: e on 30 Novembiar 2018 and wers signed on its behalf by
doufikg Otfar
Designation
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Ditsobotla Local Municipalily
Annual Financial Statemenis for the year ended 30 Junz 2018

Accounting Offlcer's Report

The accourling efffcer submits his repon for the year ended 30 June 2018.

1. Incomeration

2 FReview of activiiles

Hain busineas and operations

Litsobotia Local Municipality is a iow capacity Jocal municiplaily and delivers basic services such as water, elactricity and
refuse removal services to the Litchenburg rgion. The oparaiing resuils and state of alfairs of the municipality are fulty sst

outin tha attached annual financial statements and da nat in our opinion requine any furiher comment,

The aperating resuits and state of affairs of the municipality are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements and
do not in our opinian require any further comment.

3. Geing concerm

The annual financiat statements hava been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to 2 going concern. This
basls presumes that funds wilt be avaitable to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and seftlement of
tiabllities, cantingent ohligations and commitments will accur in the ordinary course of business.

¢.  Subsequent evenis

The accounting officer is not aware of any malter o circumsiance arising since the end of the financial year.

5.  Accounting policles

The annual financial statements prapared in accordance with the South African Statements of Generally Aceepted Accounting
Practica (GAAP), Including any intarpretations of such Statemants issusd by the Accounting Practices Board, and in
accordance with the prescribad Standards of Generally Recognised Accaunting Practices {GRAP) issued by the Accounting
Standards Board as the prescribed framework by National Treasury.

6. Bankars

The municipafity banks primarily with ABSA Bank.

7.  Auditors

Auditor General of South Africa will continue in affice far the next financial pertod.
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Figures in Rand Hote(s) 2018 2017
fosels
Current Asseis
Inveniaries 8 1509 333 1 821 889
Racaivables from exchangs iransactions g9 1025 1026
Receivablas {rom non-axchange traneactions 10 11080 586 7 016 043
VAT receivable it 42 051 467 27 265 624
Consumer debicrs 12 348936871 152 224 803
Cash and cash equivalents 13 43168235 GG 556 284
446 37 623 2584 970 543
Nen-Gurrent Assets
investment propary a 104365083 104 569 063
Property, plant and equipment 4 B&9 673552 879 683 §59
Intangible asseis g 193 870 193 870
Hertage assais [ 506 794 506 794
074943 278 984 953 796
Total hegeis 1 421 620 902 1 239 033 376
Uebitities
Current Labilifies
Payables from axchange transaclions 17 4593 488 099 430 293 416
Consumer deposits 18 2 8395 583 3 553 098
Employeo benefit obligation 7 . - 1336600
Unspent conditianal grants and receipts 15 3324 740 3323 230
Pravisions 16 20060946 20 944 706
TI9TIA3TE 45D ABQ 510
Mon-Current Liabilities
Emplayee benefit abligation v 17620000 16 484 000
Pravisians 16 9212000 9 212 000
27032000 256585000
Tova! Liahitities 546 7A5 376 485 146 51n
Mat Asseis 674 935524 754 76 065
Accumulated surplus 14 874 835 524 754 786 265
G- 31 August 2018 - D1:52 PM
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Figures in Rand iaie{s) 20i8@ 2017
Aavenus

Revenus from exchange tranesctions

Service charges 20 329799 777 235 481 620
Rerlai of facilities and equipment 2i 464459 {3531 713)
Interest received {irading) 41415396 29647 200
Agency services 1994 BI7 2225939
Licgngces and pemmits 189920 374 892
Otlher income 23 {4 065 419} 5772829
Acluarial gains - 32270060
Total revenue from azchange iransactions 368 TSR 030 373 184 767
Revenus from nanr-eXchange fransactions

Taxation revenus

Property rates 24 56 084 757 49089 870
Transfer revenue

Governmant grants & subsidles 25 138779427 151 228 079
Fines, Penaitios and Forfeils 144 339 203 385
Total revenue from non-exchenge ransactions 195 002 053 200 521 343
Total revenus 19 5548070893 473 746110
Expanditure

Employee refated costs 26 (175 802 068) (188 253 411}
Remunaratlon of councifiors 27 (11712265) (11 630 005}
Depyeciation and amortisation 28 {40951 003} (54 580 992)
Impaimnent loss/ Reversal of impaimmenits 29 - {8 B52 808)
Finarce casts 30 {30 521 038) (22 386 476)
Bulk purchasas a1 {82 341 359) (114 710 529)
Contracted services 2 {1588388) (2 119513)
General Expenses A (101744 342) (80 567 520)
Total expenditure {4424 658 497} {472 211 352)
Surplus for the year 120 148 855 1 504 754
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Ditscbotia Local Munisipality
Annual Financial Statemsnis for the vear endad 30 June 2018

Staiement of Changes in Net Asgets

Accumulatad Tolal nat

Figures in Rand sumphss assais
Balaiice a1 01 July 2016 58 282107 753 282 1497
Changes in nef asssis

Surpius for the yeer 1 504 758 ¥ 504 758
Total changes 1504 758 1 504 755
Baiance g3 01 July 2047 TS TS5 858 754 TRS 958
Changes in net assets ]

Surphus for tha year 1201484656 120 148 856
Total changes 120148 856 120 14B 855
Belaneo at 20 June 2013 874 935 524 474 83&5 523
Nate(s)
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Figures in Aand Mote(s) 2018 207
Cesh flows from spersiing aclivitiess
Recelpts
Sale of goods and services - 240326 567
Grants - 151 228 07%
tntorest raceived 29 841 200
Othar recelpts - 48293250
- A70 488108
Payments
Employee casts (175 883 415)
Suppliers - {185 155 074)
Financs costs (30 521 036} {22 386 476)
Cther cash ftam 37 - T 887 238
{30 521 0368} (285 737 728)
et cash flowss from operéting aciivitien . a6 TA458 535 B4 TR 70
Cash flowa fram investing activitles
Purchase of proparty, plani and aguipment 4 {BO 506 638}
Frecasds from sale of properly, plant and squipment 4 1026745
ttet cash flaws {rom investing activitiag - {108 521 152}
Nai Increase/ddocrosss) in cash and cash equivalenis TA4SEE05 (23 705 774)
Cash and cash equivalents al the baginning of the year 86 550 284 64 032 348
Cash and caeh equlvalenis of the 2nd gf the yoor 13 F4108789 20262575
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Buggel on Cash &asis

Anproved Adjustmenis  Final Budpet Actual amounds  Difference Refmience
budget | on comparable between final
basis budget and

Figures in Rand actual
Statemnent of Financis! Perfarmence
Ravenus
Revenue from exchangs
mansacions
Service charges 233 00O 000 233600000 32a7ag 777 RS TDS 7T
Aental of facililies and squipmemt 3 506 000 - 3 500 000 4644808 (3 D35 541}
Interest received {frading) 5 500 000 SS00M 41415308 35015386
Agency servicos 4 000 009 4800 080 1894 807 (2005 1435)
Liences and peroits 20C 0C0 200 008 189 320 {110 050}
Other incema - {raflug) 2060 000 - 2 900 QoY (4066 418) (3058 419}
Totel ravenue from exchange 249 300 00§ ~ 248300000 385702030 %1 488 630
tranaecHons
Revenue from non-exchange
tranz2zctions
Taxaticn revenie
Property rates 55 000 DO 534004603 55084 7o¥ 1364 797
Transfar rsvenue
Governmant grants & subsidies 102 042 00G 02042006 130770427 36 TIT 4T
Fines, Penallies and Forfiis 200 000 200 06D 144 838 (55 151)
Total revenus from non- 157 243 GO0 157242000 185 00B 053 37 767 063
afchange reregciiong
Totel revenue 405 §32 000 - G5 B42000 554307082 15D 255 033
Expenditura
Persannel 167 882 000 167 BB2 000 (775 802 065) (343 EB4 OG6)
Remunoration of councillors 14 700 - 12700 (11712265 (11 726 9a5)
Depraciation and emortisation 31 764 000 - THA000  oesto0s) (72 716 003)
Finanes costs $30 000 S0 00 (30521 036) {31 451 036)
Debt Impairment 20 500 G0Q 20 500 000 - {20 800 000)
Bulk purcheses 95 244 000 86224000 (322341 359) (178 585 359)
Contracted Services 19 500 000 - T930000C (1536365 (21096 356)
Transters and Substdles 13 000 000 11 000 209 - {11600 00gY
Other matarals 18 000 500 - 12000000 (101 744 342) (116784 342)
Cther {taken aut of General 19 700 000 15 700 000 - (18700 000}
eXpenses)
Total sxpendiiure 85 524 To0 ~ 3BEFILTO0 (4449 633 437) (830193 137)
Surplus beforg texation T91 476 100 - TNU7eT00 (IO 948855 (570823 Dy
Ashual Amoung on Comparshle 791 075 700 - T OPE TG0 120 t45 656 {670 928 044)

Basls a5 Presented in tho
Budgei and Acius]
Comparative Statement

Heeoncibatien
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Ditsobotia Local Municipality
Anrual Financial Statements for the year ended 38 Juna 2018

Accounting Policies

1. Prosoniation of Arnual Financiol Statemanis

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Racognised Accaunting
Practice (GRAPY, issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance
Wanagemen! Act (Act 56 of 2003).

These annual financial statements havs basn prepared on an acerual basis of accounting dand are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specilied otherwise. Thay are presented in South African Rand,

A summary of the significant accourting policles, which have been consistently soplied in the preparation of these anriual
financiai statemants, are disclosed balow.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

11 Progentaiion currency

These annyal financial siatsments are presented in South African Rand, which s the functional currency of the municipality.
1.2 Golng conearm assumption

These ammual financial statemenis have been prepared bassd on tha expectaton that the municimality wil! cantinug to
operate a5 a going concern for at least the nsxt 12 months.

13 Invesiment propery

Investment property is property {fand or a buiiding - of parl of a building - or botf} held io eam rentals or for capital appreciatien
or both, rather than for:

*  usgin the production or supply of goods or services or for

s administrative purposes, or

= salein the ordinary course of operations.

Ownaf-occupied propearty is propery hald for use in the production or supply of poods or sorvicas or for administative
pUrpoSes.
Investment property is recognised as an assst whan, it is probable that the future economic bensfits or sarvice potential that

afe associated with the investment properiy will flow 1o the municipality, and the cost ar fair vatue of the investment Rroperny
can be measured retiably.

Investment praperty is initialty recagnised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the iniliat Mmeasurement,

Whara investment propefty is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, s cost s ils fair valus as at the date of
acquisition.

Costs Include costs Incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently o add to, or to replace a parl of, ot sarvice a property. ifa
replacemant part is recognised in the camying amount of the investmant property, the carrying amount of the replacad nan s
derecognised,

11 - 31 August 2018 - 01:52 PM
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Ditsobolia Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Jure 2018

Acocounting Policies

1.3 Imvestimant property (conipued}

Falr valuz

Subseguent to intial measurement investmant property is measured at jair value.

The fair value of investment praporty reflects market conditions at the raporting date.

A gain ar foss arising fram a changa in fair valua is included in net sUMius or defict for the periad in which it arises,

if the antity delermires thal the fair vafua of an investrmant property under construction is net reliably detarminabla but gxpoects
the fair vaiue of the property to be raliably measurable when canstruction s complaio, it maasures that investment preperty
under congirucion av epst Uil sither its fair vaiue becomes refiably detarmingbin or construstion s completed fwhichever is
earlier]. If tha eniily determines that the fair value of an investment praperly {othar than an investent propery under
constructian) is not refizbly determinazle on 2 continuing basis, the sntity moasures that invesimeni popeny using the cost
mode! (a6 per the accounting pokicy on Property, plant and equipment). The residuat value of the investment preperty is then
assuimed fo be zero. The entity appliss the cost rmodel {as per the accounling paticy an Proparty, plar and equipmant} untit
disposal of the investment property.

Once the entity becomas able ko measure reliably the fair valus of an invesiment property under construction that has
nrevigusly been measured at cost, R moasures that proparty atits fair value. Once construction of that property is complate, it
Is presumed that fair value can be measured reliably. f this is not the case, the praperly is accounted for using the cost modet
in accordante with the accouniing poficy on Progerty, plant and equipment.

Campanisation from third pariias for Investment praperty that was impaired, lost or given up s resognised in sumplus or dedicit
when the compensation becames receivable. .

Property interasts held under operating leases are classified and accounted for as investment property in the foliowing
circumstancas:

When classificatlon is difficuit, the gritetia usad 1o distinguish investment property fram oxner-occupiad property and rom
pioperly heid for sale in the ardinary course of ggerations, including the nalure or type of properlies classified as hald for
strategic purposes, are as follows:

The neture CR type of propanies classified as held for stratepic purposes are as follows:

Tirs municipality eparaizly disclcses sxpanditure 1o rapalr and maintain investmam praperty in the notes fo the annuaf
financiat statements (see nate ).

The municipality disclosss relevant information relating to assets under construclion or development, in the noles to the ennual
finaneial sietements (see neis ).

1.4 Property, plant end equipmant

Properly, plant and equipment are tangibfe non-current assais énctuding Infrastructura asseis) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or sarvices, rental o cthars, or for administrativa PUrposes, and ere sipacted o be used duninp
more than ane perigd.

The eost of an itern of propatty, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

¢ lRtis probable thai fulure scanomic Benefits or service potental associeted with the item will flow to the

municipality; and

= the cost of e #em can be measired mlisbly.
Property, pfant and squipmant is Initially measured at cost.
The cost af en ftem of property, plant and equipmant is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring fhe asset to the
facation and eondilion necessary fer it to ba capable of oparating in the mannar infended by managemenL Trade discounts and
rebates are deducied in arriving at the cost.

Whare an asset is acquired through a non-axchange fransestion, is cost is s fair value ag at date of acquisition.

12 - 31 August 2018 - D1:52 Pi
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Ditsoboila Local Municipatity

Annual Financial Statements for the year endsd 30 June 2018

Accounting Policies

1.4 Fropery, piant end eguiprment (continusd)

Where an ftam of praperty, plant and squipment is acquired in exchange for a nan-monetary asset or monetary assets, or 2
cembination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cosi). i the
acquired jtern’s fair value was not determinabla, it's deemed cast is the carrying amount of the assal(s) given up.

Fhe initial estimate of the ¢osts of dismantiing and remaving the Rem and restoring the site an which # is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, whers the ety is obligrated to incur such expenditure, and where the
obligation arlses as a result of acqulving the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventorias.

Fecognition of costs In the camying ameunt of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the Hem s in the iocation
and conditfon necessary for It to be capabie of bperating in the manner intanded by management.

Major spare paris and standby aquipment which are expected to b2 used far more than one period are included in properly,
plant and equipment. {n addtion, spare parts and standby eguipment which can only be used in connection with an item of
property, piant and aguipmen; are accounted jor as property, biant and equipment.

Mafor inspection cosis which ara a condition of continuing use of an ltem of property, plant and equipment and which maet the
recagnition criteria above are included as a replacement In the cost of the ftem of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the pravious inspaction are derecognissd.

Propsrty, plant and equipmiant is canied at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and eguipmant is carrled at cost fess accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses ascept for X X and X
which is carried at revalued arnount being the fair value al tha date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumutated impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciaied on the over their expected uaeful lives to thelr astimated residual value.
Proparty, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumuiated depreciation and any impairment Insses,

The useful lives of items of propanty, plant and equipment have basn assessed as foliows:

Hem Fepreciation method Average useful life
Land N7A tndefinite

Buildings Stralght line 30 years

Piant and machinery Siraight lina 1 - 7 years
Furniture and fidures Straight line 1 - 7 yoais

fiotor vahicies Straight line 2- 4 yoars

IT equipmant Straight line 14 years
Investment proparty Straight line a0 yaars

The depreciable amount of an asset iz allocated on a systematic basis over its usaint fiie.

Each part of an item of propeny, plant and etjuipment with a cost that is significant in relation fo the tatal cost of the item s
depreciated separately.

The depraciation method used reflects the patkarn in which the asset's future econcmic benefils or senice potential are
expecled fo be consumed by the municipality. The depreciation meihed appiied to an asset is reviowed at least at each
reporting date and, it there has been a significant change in the expected pattem of cansumption of the fulure economic
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset, the method is changsd to reflect the changed pattarn. Such a change is
accourtad for as B change in an accounting estimate,

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the municipality expeciations about the
residual value and the useful lite of an asset have changed since the preceding reporling date. if any such inchication exists, the
municipality revises iha expected useiu! life andfor residual vailuo accordingly. The change is accounted for as a changa in an
accounting estimate.

Tha depreciation charge for each peried Is recognised in surplus or deficit uniess it is included in the garrying amount of
another assel.
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Ditsobollz Local RMunicipality
Annua! Finansia! Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policies

1.4 Progeriy, plam and equipment (continusd)

ltlems of proparty, plant and enuipment ara deracognised when the asset is disposed of ar when thare are no funher economic
beneilts or sanvice potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or ioss arising from tha derecognition of an ilem of praperty, plant and equipment is included in surplus ar deficit when
tha item l¢ derecagnized. The gain or less arising from the derstagnition of ar tem of propary, plan! and equinmant iz
determined as the ditference betwaen the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carryirg amount of the e,

Assels which the municipality holde for rentals to others and subsequently vouiinaly selt as part of the ordinary course of
activities, are ramsfermed 1o inventories when the rentals end and Lhe assets are available-for-sala, Proceeds from sales of
those assets are recognised as revanue. All cash flows en these assets ars included In caph flaws from operating activiiiss in
1ha cash flow slaisment.

The munieipalily saparately disslosas axpenditure to repair and maintain property, ptant and equipment in 4he netes to the
financial statements (sge note ).

The municipafity discloses ralevant information relating 1o assets under eanstruction or devslopment, in the noies to the
firanciaf statements (¢ve noia ).

15 Iniengible asacts

An asset is identifiable & it either:

*  is separable, ie. is capable of being separaied or divided from an eniity and sold, transfarred, licensed, renied or
exchanged, elther individually or together with & related cantract, identifiable assets o Hability, regardiess of
whether ihie entity intends to do so; or

»  arises from binding arrangements (including rights frem cantracis), regardiess of whether those righis are
frahisferabla or separable from the municipakity or fram other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arangemant that confers simifar rights &nd obligations on the parties to it as if H were in
the farm of a coniract.

An intangible asset is racognised when:
n it is probable thet the axpacted futLre economic benafits or servica potential that are attribuizble to the asset will
flow o the municipality; and
»  the cost or tair value of the asset can be maasured reliabiy.

‘The municipalily assasses the prodability of expected fulure economic benedits or satvice potential using reasonable and
euppartable assumptions thet represent management's best estimate of tha set of economic conditions that will sxist over the
useful life of the ssset.

Where an intangible asset s aequired fhrough a ron-exchange transastian, its initial ceet at the date o acquisition is moasured
atiis fair valus as at that daie.

Expenditure an research {or on the regesrch phase of an internal project) is recegnised as an expanse whan it is incurred.

An intangible asser arising from development (or flom the development phase of an intemal projent} is recognised wher
] It is technicalty feasibie to complete the assel so that it wit be avallable for usg or sala,

there is an infertion ko complete and use or sef it

there is an zhility to uge nr cell i,

it will genorate prabable future acenomic benefiis of service potential,

there ars aveilable technical, financial end other resources fo complate the development and to usa or sall the

asset.

+  the expenditure afiribwlable to the asset auring ils develapment can be ineasurad roliably.

LY

.

Intangible assels ars caimied at cost less any eccumulated amortisation and any impaiment losses.

An intangible asssf is rogardad as having an indefinite useful itz when, based on all relevant faclors, tharo is no toreseeable
#irnit te the period over which tha asset is expecied to gangrate net cash inflows ar service potsrtisl. Amortisation is not
provided for these intangible assals, but they aro testad for impaimtent annually and whenever thers is an indication that the
agset mey be impaired. For all other intangible assats amartisefion js provided on 2 stralght fine bests over thelr useiul ife.

‘The amoriisation period and the amertization meihod for inangible assets are raviewsd at each reporting date,
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15 Intangibla assets (continuesdy

Reassessing ihg usetul fita of an intangible asset with a finite usefu! life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that
the asset may be impaired. As a rasuit the asset Is tesied for impairment and the remaining camying amaount is amortised over
its usaful life,

Intornely ganerated brands, mastheads, publishing tities, customer lists and items similar in substance are nol recognised as
intangibie assets,

Internally generated goodwli is not recegnised as an infangible asset.

Amortisation is providad to write down the intangible asssts, on a straight fine basis, {o their residual values as folloves:

Haly] Depreciation method Average veehut dike
Cornpuler software, intermaly genatated Straight line 1-5 yaars

The munigipality discloses relevant information refafing to assets under construction or gavaiopment, in the noles o the
financial siaiements (see nate ).

1.6 Heritage assois

Agseis are resaurces controlied by an municipality as a result of past evenis and from which future economie berefits or
sefvice potential are expected to flow to the mupicipality.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an assst is recognised aftor deducting accurnulated impairment fosses.

Class of heritage assats means a grouping of hetilage assets of a similar nature er function In &n munieipaiity’s operations that
is shown as 2 single item for the pumoss of disclosure in the annuat financlat stalements,

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair valle of the other censideration given 1o acquire an asset at the
time of its acquisition or construction ar, whera appiicable, the amount attributed fo that asset when Initially recegnised in
accordance wilh the spesific requirements of ather Standamts of GHAP.

Depracizalion Is the systematic aflocation of the depreciable amaunt, of an assat over its useful fife.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, o a liahility seftled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm's length fransaction,

Heritage assets ara asseis that have a cuitural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technologlcal or arlistic significance
and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and fulure generatons,

Animpairment logs of a cash-generating assst is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset axceeds its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss of a non-cash-generating asset is tha amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
racaverable service amount.

An inaliznable itemn is an asaat thal an municipality is requirsd by law or otherwise to retain indefinitely and cannot be disposed
of without cansent.

Recoverable amouni is the higher of a cash-generating asset's nat selling price and its vaiue in use.
Receverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in usea.

Valug in use of a cash-generating assed is the prasent value of tha future cash flows expedied to be derived from an psset or
cash-generating unit.

Value in use of a non-cash-generating asset is the present value of the asset's remaining service potential.

The municipaiity separately discioses expenditure to repair and maintain teritage assets in the rotes to tha financial
statements {see note ).
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1.E Heslinge assels {conifinued)

The municipality disclosas relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the rnoies to the
finzneial statements (see note ).

1.7 Financial inetrumenta

A financial Instrument is any coniract that gives risa 1o a financial asset of one entity and a #inancial lishfity or a residual
interast of another entity.

The amortised cest of a financial 2eset er financial libiiity is the amount at which ths financisl asse: or financial liability is
megzured at initial recognition ininus principat rasayments, plus or minus the cumulative amartisatian using the eifective
interest methad of any difieranes hetween that initial ameunt and the matunily amount, and minte any feductien (direcgly or
trrough the use of an aliowance account) for impairment or uncoliactibility.

A concessionary ioan |s a loan granted io or received by an entity an lerms that ars not markst related.

Cradtt risk is the risk that one party to a financial insirument will cause & financial loss for the ather party by failing to discharge
an ahligatan.

Currency risk Is the risk that the tair vaiue or futura cash Kows of a financial instrument will ftuctuete because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

Deracagnition is Lhe removal of & praviousty recognisad financial assat or financal liability from an enity’s statement of
firancial position.

A derivative is & financial instrument ar other contract with a/l three of the following characleristios:
= lUtsvalua changes in isponse to the change in a specified interest rate, financial nsrument price, commodity prics,
fereign exchange rate, index of prices or ratss, credd rafing or credit index, ar other varieble, provided in the cage of
a non-financial variable thet the variable is not spacific to 2 party to the contrast {sumatimes called the "undariying’).
= ltrequires no kiitial net investment or an initiaf nat investmant that is smaller than would be requirad for other types
of comiracts that would be expected to have a similar respanse 1o changes in market factors.
*  Itis galtled at a future date.

The effective interest method is a methed of coleulating the amortised cost of a financal assat or & financial liability (or group of
financial assats or financial Habiliies) and of aliocating the intarest income or intarast Bxpanse gver ihe relevant perled. Tha
offectve interest rate Is the rate that axactly discounts estimatad future cash payments or receidts through the expactad life of
the finaneial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorler period to the nat carrying emount of the financial asset or financia
iiability. When caloulating the effective intarast rate, &n enity shall estimate cash Rows sonsidering all contractuel terms of the
Einancial instrument tor sxample, prepayment, cafl and similar optians) but shall not considar future credit (oeses. The
catculalion includes all fees and points paid or recsived between pariies ko tha contract that are an integral parl of ths effective
infefest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenye from Exchangs Transactions), transaction costs, and )t other premiums
or discounts, Thare is a presumption that the ¢ash fiows and the axpected life of a group of similar financial instrumenis can be
astimaied reliably. Hawever, in those rare cases when i is nel passible to reliably estimate the cash flows o tha expected fife
of a financial instrument {or group of financial instrumenis), the entity shall use tha contraciual cash flows aver the fult
contractual tenm of the financial instruyment (ar group of financiat instruments},

Fair value is the amaunt for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability sstiled, between knowledgaable willing parties in
an gm's length transaction.

A financiat asset is:
@ cash;
*  aresidual Intareat of ansther entity; or
= aconirachet rght io:
= raceiva cash or angter financial assat from anoiher anitty; or
- exchange financial agsets or financial fiahilities with angther entity under conditions that are potentially
tavourabia 1o na antity.

A financial guaraniee tontract is a contract that requires the issusr to make spacified payments fo reimburse the heolder for a
toss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to meis payment when due in accordance with tha original or modified terms of &
dabt instrument.

A firanclzl iabiity i any liability thet is & contractual obligation to:
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1.8 Heillage asseis {eantinued)

The municipality discloses relevant informayion relating to assels under construction or development, in the notes 1o tha
finaricial staiemenis (3¢ hoio ).

1.7 Finencial instruments

A financial insirument is any conlract thai gives risa to a financial asset of ane entity and a financial fiabiliy or a resigual
interest of apother eniity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial tiablfity is the amourt at which the financis} assel or financial fiahility is
maasurad at initial recogaition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumuiativa amorisation using the effective
interest mathad of any diffgrancs hetween that initial amourt and the maturity amount, and minue any raduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) far impairment ar uncollectibility.

A concessionary loan is a loan granted io or reteived by an enity on lerms that ara not marke? related.

Credit risk is the risk that ons parly to & financizl instrument will cause a financial loss for the other perly by failing to discharge
an chligasion.

Currency risk is tha risk that the fair value ar future cash Hows of a finangial instrument wilf fuctuate bacauce of changss in
foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previsusly recegnisad financiat asset or financial liability from an entity's statement of
financiai poshion.

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contrac! with all three of the iollowing characieristics:
= lts values changes in response to the changs in a speciied interest rate, financial instrument price, commadity price,
forsign oxchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or erevit index, or other variable, provided in the case of
a nor-financial variable that the variable is not spacific 1o a party to the contract {aometimes called the ‘underlying’).
*  ltreguires no lnitla! net Investment or an inftlaf net investment that is smaller than woudd be required for other typas
of coniracts that would be expectad to have & similar responss to changes In marketl {actors.
e ltis setiled at a futuro date.

The sffective interest method is & mathed of calculating the amorlised cost of & financial asset or a financiat liability {or group of
financial assets or financial Itabilities) and of aliocating the interast income or interest axpense over the relevant period. The
effaclive interest rata Is the rate that exactly discounts estimatad future cash paymants or receipts through the expecled fife of
tho financiel instrument o, when eppropriate, a sherter pariod 0 1he net carrying amount of tha financial assat or financial
Habilily. When calculating the effective interes! rale, an erttity shall estimate cash fiaws considsring al contractual tems of the
financial mstrumeant for exampte, prepayment, call and simiizr options) but shall nat consider future cmdit fossss. The
cafculalion includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the comtract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (see the Standasd of GRAP on Revenue from Exchangs Transactions), iransaction cosi, and ali ether premiums
or discounts. There is a presurmption that the cash flows and the axpected life of a group of similar financial instrumeants can be
estimated reliably. However, in thosa rare cases when & is not possible t rellably estimate the cash fiows or tho expected lifg
ot a financial instrument {or group of financial insrumentz), ihe anilty shall use the contractual cash {lows over the ful!
contractual term of the finencial instrument (or group of financia Ipstruments). - :

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liabifity settied, between knowledgeatde willing parties In
an armm’s length transactipn.

A financial asset ig:
~  cash;
*  armsidual interest of anather entity: or
* & cgrachaal right o
- receive cash or another #inancied asset from anather emity; or
- ewchange financial assats or financiat liabilitias with anothar enlity under canditions that are potantiaily
favourehie 1o the antity.
A financlal guaranies contract is a contract that requires the issusi to make specified payments o reimburse the holder for a
logs it incurs Because a spacHied debtor fails to meke payment when due in aczardance with the original or meditied terms of &
debt instrument.

A financial liabilty is any liabity thst is & contrastua) obligation to:
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1.7 Finenelel instruments {continued)
= deliver cash or another financiaf assst ta another entity; or
= exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentlatly unfavourable to the aniity.

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair vaiue or future cash Hlows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk sncountered by an sniity in the event of ditiiculty in mosting obfigations associated with financial
liabilt¥es that are seflled by delivering cash or enother fnancial asset.

Laan commitmant is a firm commitment to provide cradit under pre-spaciied terms and conditions.
Loans payahle are financiat fiabilities, other than short-term payables an normal credit terms.

Market risk is the rigk that the fair vatue or future cash flows of a financial instrument wil fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other prica risk.

Oiher price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a financial instrument will Auctuate bacause of changes in
market prices (other than thase atising jrom interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
spectfic o the individua! financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all simitar financial instruments tradec in the
market.

A financial asset is past due whan a countsrparty has failed to make a payment when contractustly due.

A residual infarest is any contract that manifosts an interest in the assats of an entity afier deducting all of its iiahilites, A
rasidual intarest includes eantributions from owners, which may be shown as:
= equity instruments er similar forms of unitised capital;
= 2 fonnal designalicn of a transter of resaurcas {or a class of such transters) by the parties o the transection as
forming part of an entity's nat asseis, either bafore the comribution occurs or at the tima of the contributten; ar
° & formal agreement, in relation to the contribulion, establishing or ingreasing an existing financial interest in the net
asssis of an entity.

Transaction costs are incremantal cosls that are direcily attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financia! liabifity, An incremental cost '8 one lhat would nat have been incurred if the entity had net ecquired, issuad or
disposed of the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative finencial assets or non-derivative financial iabilities that have fied
or determinable payments, exciuding shose instrumants that:

*  the eniily designates at fair valus at initial recognition: or

+  are hald for traging.

Financial instruments at cast are investments in residual interests that do not have & quoted market price in an active market,
and whose fair value cannol be refiably measursd,

Financia! instrurents at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:

- derivativas;

] combined inslruments that are deslgnated at fair value:

o instruments held for frading. A financial Instrument is hald for trading if.
- it is acquired or ingurred principally for the purpose of salling or repurchasing it in the neas-teem; or
- on initiaf recognition it is part of a portfelio of identified financial instruments that are managsd tagether and for
which thera is evidence of a recent aciual pattern of short tarm profit-taking;
- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabitities with fxed ar detesminable payments that are designated 2t
fair value at Initial racognition; and
- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or finenciai
Instrumants at cost.
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1.7 Financia! izstruments (cantinues)
ClassHigeiion

Tha antity has the inliowing types of financial assets {classes and categary) as reflecied on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thersio:

Clase Category .
Recsivables from non-exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at fair value
Invastments Financie! agset measured at fafr value

The enlity has the faliowing types of financial Kakilites (classes and categery) as reflected on lhe face of the statement of
finencial position ar in tha notes thereto:

Claes Category
Long-term kabililies Financial liability measured at amoriised cost

Payables from exchenge and nan-exchange transacions Financial tiabifity measurad at fair value

Initial recogniticn

The entity recagnises a financlal asset or a financial Habilty in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
pariy to the contractual provisions of the instrumant.

The enlity rscognisas fnancial assets using trade datas accounting.
initial meszuremant of financiai assels and financlal lebiltes

The entily meesuras 2 financlal agsat and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are diractly
aftributable {o the acquisidon ar Issus of the financial assst or financial tabifity,

The sniity measures a financial asset and financial liabifity initially at its fair value [#f subsequently measured at fair vakuej.

The eniity first assesses whethar the substance of a concassionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the entily
anaiyses 2 concessionary loan info fis cemponant parts and accounts for each component ssparately. The antily accoaunts for
that part of a coneassionary joan that is:
+  asocial benefitin accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements,
whera it is the issuer of the joan; or
= nen-2xchangs revanus, In accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Kon-sxchange Transaclions
(Taxes anc Transfers), where i is the recipient of the loan, :
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1.7 Finamcizl inatrumanis {continuod)
Subssauent measurement of financial assets and financial Nabliiies

The entity measures all financial assets and financial labilities after initial recognition using tha following categorias:
a Finangial instrements at fair value.
a Financial instrumants at amortised cost.
. Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measurad at amortised cost, or cosi, are subject 10 an impairment review.
Raociaseificalion

The entity doss not reclassily a financial instrument wiile it is issued or held unless it is:
@ combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
® an invesimen in a residual interest that meets the reguirements for reclassification.

Where the eniity cannot refiably measure the fair value of an embedded derivaiive that has hesn separated from a host
contract that is a financial instrument at 2 subsequent reporting date, it measures lhe cambined instrument at fair value. This
requives a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost ko fair value.

i fair value can no fonger be measured reltably for an investment in a residual interest measurad at faw vaiue, the entity
raclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The camying amount al the date that fair valuz is no longer available
becomes the cost,

i a reliable measura becomes availabls for an investment in a residual intarest for which a measure was previgusly not
aveilable, and the insirument would have been required ™ be measured at fair vaiug, the entity raclassifies the instrurnent from
cost to fair value.

Galns and iosses

A gabn or loss arising frorn a change in the fRir vaiua of a tinancial asset or financial fability measured at fair value iz
recognized in surpius or defigit.

For financlal assets and financial liabiliies measured at amariised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or dedicit
when the financial asset or financiaf {iabllity ks derecagnised or impaired, or through the amartisaiion process.

impatmment end uncolieciibiliiy of financial acaets

The entity assesses atihe end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence thet a financial asset or graup
of financial assels is impaired.

Financial assets magsured at amartised cost:

It there is abjective evidence that an impairment loss on tinencial assets measuted at amorlised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the {oss is measured as the diffarence hetweasn the asset's canying amount and tha presem value of estimatad
futie cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incured) discounted at the financial asset's original
effectiva interest rale. The carrying amount of the assel is reduced directly GA through the use of an allowance zccount, The
amount of the foss is recegnised in surplus or deficit.

i, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and tha decrease can be ralated chjsctivaly to an
event occurring after the impairmant was recognised, the praviously racognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by
adfusting an allowance account. The reversal does not resul in a canrying amount of the financial asset that exceads what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is ravarsed. The amaount
of the reversal is recogrised in surplus ar deficit.

Financial essets measured at cost:

It there is objective evidence that an impaiment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not
measurad at fair valse bacause its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impaimment loss is measured as
the diterence betwsan the canying amount of the financial asset and the prasent velue of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of ratum for a simiar financial asset, Such impairment lgsses are not reversed.
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1.7 Financlal nstruments {continued)

Berscogniion

Financlal asseis

The entity derecagnises finansial assets using frade dsie aecounting.

Tha entity derecognisas a financial asset only when:

= the contraciual rights to the cash flows from the finansiai assat Expire, are ssitled of welved;

¥ ihe enlily ransfers to another party substantiaily 2l of ihe risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or

*  the enilty, despita having retained some significant risks and rewards o ownership of tha imancial asset, has
transfermsd contral of the asset i anclher party and the other party has the practicz] ability o sell the asset in fts
entirsty to an unrelated third parly, and is abile in excreise that ability unilaterafly and without needing 10 impase
sdditional resiristions on te transfer. in e case, tho emity ;
- darecognize tho assel; and
+  recognise separatety any rights and obligations creaied or retained in the transter.

The carrying amounts of the transferred assat are alincated between the rights or ohligations reteined and thoss transferred on
the basis of their relative fair values at the ransfar date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their tair values
at that data, Any differonce batwsen the considaration received and the amounis recognisad and derecognised Is racegnised
in surpius or deffclt in the penod of the transfer.

If the entity transfers a Hinanclal asset in a transfar that qualifies for derseognition in iis entirety end relsing the Hght ta servica
the financla! assst for a fos, I recopnise elther a senvicing asset or a sendeing liabifity for that sefvicing eontract. If the fee to ke
received is not expacted to compansate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing lability for the servicing
whiigation Is recognised ai its fair vaius. f the fee to b8 received is expaciet! 10 be more than adsquate compensation for the
sendcing, a servising asset is recopnised for the serviclng right at an amourt determined an the basis of an allocaiion of the
carrying amount of the larger financial asset

i, as @ result of a transfer, a financial assst is derecognised in its sniirety but the Iranafer fesulfs in the entily oblaining a new
financial assel or assuming a new financial liabifity, or 2 servicing Fability, the entily recognise the new Francial assel, financial
liability ar senvicing Hability at fair valus.

On deracognition of & finandal asset in fs entirety, the differencs between the carrying amount and the sum of the
censideration recalved is recegnised in surplus or dafich,

if the transferred asset is par! of a Jerger drancial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the
previous cairying amour of the lerger financial asset is allocated betesesn tha part thaf continues to be recagnised and the park
that is darecognized, based on the relativa fair valuaa of Ikose parts, on the date of the ansfer. For this purpase, a retained
gervicing asset is freate s a part that continues to be recognisad. Tha difference between the carrying amaun aliocated 1o
the part derecognised and the sum of the cansidaration received for tha part deracognised is racognisad In sumplus or defici,

If a transfer does not result in derecegnition because the enlity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the transferved asset, the antity continues o recognisa ihe transferred asset in itz entiraty and racegniss a financial tiabtlity
for the consideration recshved, in subsequent pariods, the entity recogrises any revanue on the ransferrad assat and any
expanse incurrod on the financial liebility. Nefther the asset, and iffe associoted liabllity nor the revenue, and the associated
expansas are oflsst.

Financial lablifics

The enfity removes a financial dabiity {or a part of a finanesl kability) from its statemant of financial posillon when it ie
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract i oischerged, cancellad, expires or waived.

An axchange betwsen an existing porrower and landsr of gebt tnstumenls with substentlaly gittsvent terms Is accounted for a5
having extingulshed the erginal financial liahifity end a new financial liabilty is recogmised. Similany, a substantial modification
of the torms of an axisting financial liability or a part of it is accounied for as having extinguishad the oniginal financial ilabifity
and having recognized a new finarcial Yability.

20 - 31 August 2018 - 01:52 PM



0186

Ditsobotia Local Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accounting Policies

1.7 Financial insfrumenis (continued)

Tha differencs batwean the carrying amount of a financial Habiiity {or part of a financia! liability} exiinguished or ransferred to
anoltier party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assels transferred or liahilities assumed, is rtecognised in
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgivan ar assumed by anethar entity by way of a non-sxchange trarsaciion
are accounted for in actordance with the Standard of GRAP an Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and
Transfers),

Presenisticn

Interest ralating to a financial instrument or 8 component that is & financiai Hability is recognised as revenue or exgensa in
surplus or deficil.

Dividands or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that s a financiat liahility is racognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or daficit.

Losses and gains releting to a financizl instrument ar a component that is a financial iability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.

Disiribudions to holders of residual interests are recognised by the antity diractly in met assets. Transaction costs incurred on
residual interests are accounted for as a deduction from nel assets. Income @x [where applicabla] refating to distributions to
hoiders of resldual interests end to transaction ensts incurred on residual Interests ars accounted for in accordance with the
Intamational Accounting Slandard an Income Taxes.

A financiat asset and a financial liability are anly oftset and ihe net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when the enlity currently has a legally enforceable right to sat off the vecognised amounts and intands efther to setile on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simuttaneously.

in aceounting for & fransfer of a finandlal asset that does not qualify for deracognition, the entily does not offset the iransferred
asset and the associated fiability.

1.6 Tax
1.9 lzases

Alease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantiatly all the risks and rewards incidenial 1o ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating leasa if it does nat transfer substaniially alt the risks and rewards ingidentai to owrorship.

When o lsese includes both tend ard bulldings elamants, the ontity seseeses the clasaifioation of eaeh elemant
separaiely.

Operating leass - kegsee

Operating lease paymenis are fecognised as an expense an a straight-line basis over the iease tam. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operaling lease asset or liability.

1.18 Invsntories

Inventarigs are initially measuicd at cost except where inventaries are acquired through a non-gischange transaction, then fheir
costs ars thelr fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lawer of cost and net realisabls valye.
Inventories are measured at tha towar of cost and current raplacement cost where they are hald for;
¢ distribubion at no charge or for a naminat charge; or
¢ cansumgptien in the preduction process of gogds to be distributed at na charge or for a nominal charge.

Net reallsable value is the estimatsd seliing price in the ardinary coursa of operations less the estimaiad costs of comptetion
and the eslimated cosis necessary to make the sals, exchangs or distribution,

Current replacemant cast is the cost the municipelity incurs o acguire the asset on the reparting data.
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1.10 Inventories (continuesd)

The cost of inventories compsises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversian and other costa incurred in bringing tha
fnventories to thair present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of flems that ars not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services preduced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using spacific identification of the indiviguat costs.

The cost of Hiventories is agsigned using the iormula. The same cos1 formuia is used for alf inventories having a siméiar naturs
and uge {o the municipality.

When inventories are sold, the cazrying amaunts of those invenfories ars recognised as an expensa in the period In which the
related sevenua is recognised. d there iz no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distrbuted, or
refated services are rendered. The amount of any wrile-down of inventories to net reafisable value or cuirent replacement cost
and all lasses of inventores are recognised as an expensea in the period the wrile-down or ioss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inveniories, arising from an increase in net reatisable value or current replacement cogt, are
recegnised as a reduction in the amaunt of inventories recagnised as an expanse in the period in which the reversal ocours.

1.1 impsitnent of cash-generating aasals

Cash-generating assats are assets used with the objective of generating a enmmercial refurn. Commercial return means that
pcsitive cash flows are expecied io he significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

impalment is a loes in the fuiure econamic benefits or service polential of an asset, aver and above the systematic recognition
at the loss of the assel's future economic benefils or service patential through depreciation ({amorlisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is racognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated deprecfation and accumuiated impairment Iosses thereon.

A cash-genarating unit is the smallest idenifiatle group of assets used with the ohjective af generating 2 commercial ratum
that generates cash inflows from cantinuing use that are largaly independent of the cash inflows frem Gthar assets or groups of
asseis,

Costs of disposal are incramental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance ¢osts and incame tax
expense.

Depreciation {(Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an assst over it useful fifa.

Fair value less costs te self is the amount obtainehle from the sale of an assat in an arm's tengih transaction batween
knowledpaable, willing parties, less the casts of disposal.

Recaverable emount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair valus lese costs te ol and its value in use.
Useful life is either:

@ the perlod ot ime over which an asset is expected 1o be used by the municipality; or

*  the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality.

Judgements made by managamant in applying the criteria lo designate assets As cash-ganerating assels of non-cash-
generaiing assete, are as follows:

{Specify judgements made]
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1.91 Impeinmant of cagh-generating asceis (continued)
Revergal of impairment loss

The municipality assesses al each reporling date whether there is any indication that an impatrment loss recognised in orior
pariods for a cash-generating assei may no fonger exis! or may have decreased. I any such indication eists, the entity
estimates the recoverable amount of that asset.

An impairment l0ss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if thete has been a change in the
estimates used t0 determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying
amount of the asset is increased 1o s recoverable amount. The increasa is a reversal of an impaiment joss. The increased
cartying amaunt of an asset aftributabls to a reversal of an impalrmert loss does net exceed ihe carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of depretiation or amartisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
periods. :

A reversal of an impairment loss for & cash-genarating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any raversal af an impaiment lass of a revalued cash-generating asseatis freated as a revaluation increase.

After a reversal of an impafment loss is recogniced, the depracistion famortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future perods to allocate the cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residuaf value (if any}, on a
systomatic basis over its remeining useful life,

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit s allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata with
the carrying amounts of those assets. Thase increases in careying amounls are irsaled 55 reversals of impairment fossss for
individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contribuiting service
patenlial to a cash-generating unit.

in allgcating a reversal of art impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the earrying amount of an asset is not increased above
the lower of:
¢ i recoverable amount (if determinable); end
= the carrying amaunt that would have been determined ({n=i of amordisation or depraciation) had na impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prigr periods.

The amount of the raversal of the impairment koss that would otherwise have been alloceted to the asset is aliocated pro rata tn
the other asseis of the unit.

1.12 Share cepital / contributed cepitat

An equity instrument is any caniract that evidences a residual inferest in the assets of an municipelity afler deduciing all of its
lrebilties.

1.13 Emplovee beneilis
Employee benefits are all forms of considaraiion given by ari entity in exchange for service rendered by employess.

A guallfying insurance policy is an insurance pakicy issued by an ingurer that is not a related pary (as defined in the Standard
of GRAP on Related Parly Disclosures) of ihe reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy ean be used only to pay or fund
smployew benafils under a defined benefit pian and are not available to the raparling ertity's ewn creditors {even In liquidation)
ard cannot be pald to the reparting entity, uniess either:
® e procesds represent sUrpius assets that are not needed for the policy to meet &/f the related empioyee benofit
obligations; or
*  the nroceeds are refumned fo the reporting antity to reimburse it for emplovee benefits aready paid.

Termination kenefits ars employea benetits payable as a result of either;
«  aneniity's decislon to terminate an employes’s employment before the nermal retirement date; or
= anemployee’s decision {0 accept voiunlary redundancy in exchangs for those Densfits,

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits {pther than post-empioyment benefits and termination benefits) that
are not due to be settied within twelve months aftes the end of the period in which the employsas render the refated service.

Yesled employee benefits are employae benefits that are not conditional on future emplayment.
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1.13 Employee benafits (continuesd)

Gompasite social securily programines are established by legislation and sporte as muki-employer plans to provide post-
erployment benafits as well as to provide bensfits that are not consideration in exchange for sanvice rendered by employess.

A constrective ohpigation is an obligation that datives from an aniity's actions where by an astahlished pattem of past praciice,
publishsd policies or a sutficientty specifie cument statement, the entily has indicatsd 1o other parties thal it will accept cerain
responsibifittes and ss a result, the entliy has created a valid expactation on the part of those other partiss that it will discharge
thosa responsibilities,

Shori-term employea Lensfits

Shoft-term employee henelits ara employee bensfiis (ther than temination benefis) that are due to be seifled within twelve
months after the and of the peried in which the employees render iha relaied servics.,

Short-term amployee benefits include ftems such as:

®  wages, saiares and social secusily congkibutions;

2 short-tarm compensated absences {such as paid annual jsave and pald sick lsave) where the compensation for the
ahsences is due to be settied within twelve months afler the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee servics;

*  bonus, incentive and performance related paymants payable within twelve manths afier the ond of the reporting
pariod in which the empioyees rander the relaied service: and

*  hon-monetary benefifs {for example, medical care, and free ar subsidised goods or services such ag housing, cars
and celiphones) for curent emplioyese.

¥When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reparting pericd, the ertity racognise e undiscounted amaunt
cf shon-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for Ehai service:

°  as aliahility (accrued expense), after deducting any amount alteady paid. if the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of 1he benafits, the eniity recognise that excess as an asset {prepaid oxpense) fo the extant
that the prepayment wiil lead lo, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

" &8s anexpense, unless another Standard requites or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the enst of an asset.

The expanted cost of compensated absances is recognised 28 an expense as the employses rendar senvices that increase
their entilement or, in the ¢ase of nan-ascumulating sbeances, when the abssnce occurs. Tha entity measures the expectad
cost of accumulaiing compensated ebsences as e additional amount that the anily expects to pay as a resull of the unused
eniitismer that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The sniity racogrise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performancs retated nayments when the eniity has a present
legal or construciive ohiigation to make such payments as a rasult of past events and a reliabio estimate of e obligation can
be made. A present obtigation exists when the ertily has no raalistic attarnative but to make the payments.,

Poat-empioyment bencfits

Postemployment benefits are empioyee bensfits (other than fermination benefits} which are payabie aiter the completion of
smploymant,

Fostemployment benefit plans are formal or informal arrangementsa under which an entity provides past-employment benafits
for ene or more employees.

Muli-employer plans are defined contribution plans (sther than state plans and composie soclal security programmes) or
defined benefit plans (ather than state plans) that pool the assets contributed by varlgus entities that are nat under common
eontrol and use those assels to provide benefits to evnplayees of more tnan ane entily, on the basis thet contribution and
benefit levels are determined without regand to the ldanthy of the entity that amploys the empioyees concemed.
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1.13 Employae henefts {ceaiinued)
Actvarial essumptions
Actuarfal assumnptions are unbiased and mutually compatils.

Financial assumptions are based on market expectalions, at the reporting date, for the period over which the chiigations are to
be saltlad,

The rate used to discoun: post-employment benefit obligations {Boik funded and unfunded) refiect the time value of maoney,
The currency and ferm of the financiat instrument selactad to reflect the tims value of money is consistent with the Currency
and estimated term of the post-employmant benefit obligations.

Past-employment benefii obligations are measured on 2 basts that reflects:

s gstimated future salary increases;

*  the benefits sef out in the terms of the plan (or resulting from any constructive obligation that goes beyond those
terms} at the reporting date; and

*  esiimated future changes in the level of any state benatits that affect the benefils payable under a defined benefit
pian, if, end only If, either:

°  ihoge changes were enacted bafors the reporting date; or

= past history, or other reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefhs will change in some predictable marnner,
tar example, in lina with future chanrges in general price levels or general satary lavsls,

Assumpiions about medical cosls take account of estimated future changes in the cost of medical services, resulting from both
inflation and specific changes in medica! costs.

1.14 Provigions snd contingencies

Provisians are racognised when:
@ the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
= ltis probable that an qutfiow of resources embadying scanomic benetits of service polential will be required 1o
sotiie the obligation; and
»  areliable eslimate can be made of tha obiligation.

The amount of a provision is the bast estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the pressnt obligation at the
reporting date.

Where the effect of time velue of money is material, the amount of a provision is the presani value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the abligation.

The discount rate is a pretax rate fhat reflects surrent market assessments of the fime value of money and the risks specific to
the liability.

Where same or all of the expendifurs required to selfie a provision is sxpected to b reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virually cenigin that reimbursement will be received if the municipality
setlles the obligation. The reimbursemant is racted as a separate assst. The amount recagnised for the reimbursement does
not exceed the amount of the provision.

Pmvisions are reviewsd at aach reporiing date and adjusted to reflect ths current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
o langet probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecanomic benefits or service notential will be required, to seltle the
ohligation.

Where discounting is used, the carying amount of a pravisicn increases in each pericd to reflact the passage of fime. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only far expenditures for which the provision was ofiginaly recagnisad.
Pravisions are not recagnised for future oparaling surplus {deficit].

¥ an entity has a contract that is onerous, the prosent obligation (net of recovenies) under the coniract is recognised and
measured as a provision, :
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1.14 Provisfons 2nd contingencles {eominued)

A constructive obligation 1o restructure arises anly whan an entity:

®  has a detailed tprmal plan for the restruciuring, identifying at least:
- the aclivity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concemed;
- the principal lccations affastsd;
- the locatian, function, and approdimaia number of amplayees wiha will be compensated for services baing
terminated;
- the expenditures that will be underiakan; and
- whan the pian wiii be implememed; ang

©  has reised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting o implement that
plan or announzing its main feakires to thase affected by it.

A restructuring provision Includes only the direct expendituras arising from the restructuring, which are those that are bath:
# ngcaasarily antailed by the restruciuring: and
¢ not asseciated with the ongoing activities of the municpality

No abligation arises as a consequence of the sale or ransfer of an oparation until the municipality is commitied to the sale
or transfer, that fs, there Is a binding arrangement.

After their initial recognition contingerit Rabilitias recognised in entity combinations that are recognised sepasately are
subseqguently measured at ihe higher af:

¢ the amount thet would be recognised as a provision; and

= {he amount infizily recognised less cumuiative amonisation,

Confingent assets and contingent liabifities are nat recognised. Cantingshcies are disclosed in note 40

A financial guarantee contract [s a contract ihat requives ihe issuer to make specified paymenis to reimburse the holder for a
lass it incurs bacause a specified debtor falls to make payment when duo in accordance with the original er modifizd terms of a
debt instrument.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditicns.

The municipality recogrises a provision for finansial guarantess and tosn commitments when i is probable that an oulflow of
resources smbodying sconomic benstits and sarvice potential will be required to settla the ehiigattan and a relizhle estimats of
the obiigation can ba mada.

Betarmining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relatien to financlaf guarantees requiras judgemasnt. Indications thai
an outflow of resources may be probable are:
= financial difficutty of the debtor;
= defauits or delinquencies in interest and capial repayments by tha debiar;
s breaches of the terms of the debt instrumerst that result in & being payable eaflier then the agreed term and Lhe
ability of {he debtar 1o seftle its obligaticn an the amended terms; and
*  adeclinein prevailing econcmic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on
the abllity of entities o repay their obligations,

Yhete a fee is recaived by the municipaiity for issuing a financiat guarantee and/or where a fog Is chargad on loan
commitments, it is considerad in detenmining tha best estimata of the amount required 1o setife the obligation at reporting date.
Whare a fee [s charged and the municlpallty considers that an outflow of sconomic resaurcas is probabls, an municipality
recognises the abligation at the higher of:
¥ the amoint detsmmined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingeni Liabiities and Contingent Assets;
end
o the amount of the fee initially recognised less, whare appropriale, cumulative amortisation racognised in ascordance
with the Standard of GRAP on Revenus from Exchange Transaclions.

1.15 Revsonue from exchange trensactions

Revenue is the gross inllow of economic benefits or service petontial during tha reponting perlod when thase inflows resul in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to soniriputions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipalily receives asssts or services, or has Iiabilitias extinguished, ard directly
gives epproximately egual value {primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to ke other party in exchangs.
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1.15 Revenue from exchange ransactions {cantnued)

Fair value is the amaunt for which an asset could be sxchanged, or a ability setiled, betwaen xnowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s length trensaction.

Measuremeant
Revenue is measured at the falf value of the consideration recaived or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
Sale of gocds

Revenue from the sale of goods is racognised when all the following conditions hava been satisfled:

o the municipality has ransferred to the purchaser the significent deks and rewards of ownership of the guods:

*  ihe municipality retains nelther continuing managenial involvement io the degrea usually assaciated with
awnership nor effactive contral over the gaeds sofd;

»  the amount of revenue can ba measured reliably;

E it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associzted with the transaction will How to the
municipality: and

+  the costs incuired or io be incurred in respect of the iransaction can be measured reliabky.

Fendaring of services

When ths outegme of a transaction involving the randering of services can be estimaied relicbly, revenue associated with
the fransaction s recognised by reference 1o ths stage of completian of the transaction at the reporting date. The oulcoms
of 2 fransaciion can ba estimated reliably when alt the foltowing condifions are satisfisd:

L the amouni of ravenue can be measurad reliably;

@ ftis probable that the ecanomic benefils or sarvica potential associated with the fransaction will fiow 1o the

municipality;
+  ihe stage of complstion of the ransattion at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
= the costs incursd for the transaclion and tha costs to complete the trensaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specitied ime frame, revenue is recognised on g
straight line basis over the specified time frame unfess there is evidence that some other method betier represents the stage of
cemplslion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recoqnition of revenue is pastponed urlil the
significant aet is exacitad.

Whan the outcome of the vansacition involving the rendaring of services cannot be eslimated reliably, revenus is recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recovarabla.

Service ravenus is recognised by reference jo the stage of complstion of tha ransaciion at the reporiing date. Stage of
completion is determined by .

Interest, royaliles and dividends
Revenue arising irom the use by athers of entily assets ylelding inferest, royafties and dividends or similar distributions s
racognisad when:
= ltis probable that the ecanamic bensfils or servica pofentlal associated with the transaction will flow to the
munictpality, 2nd
. The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.
Intevest Is recognised, in sumplus or deficit, using the effective interast rale mathed.
Royelties are recognissd as they are samed in sccordance with the substance of the ralevant agreamenis.

Oividends ar similar distributions are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the municipality’s right o receive payment has
Deen established. 4

Servite fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue aver the pariod during which the service is
performed.
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7.8 Fevenus from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable oy a municipaiity, which
represemis an increase in net assets, other than increases refating to contributions #rom cwrers.

Caonditions cn transfetred assets are stipulations that specily thal the future economic benefits or service potential embsodiod in
the asset is required o be cansumed by tha resipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor.

Cantrol of an asset arise when the municipality can uss or ctherwise beneft from the asset in pursuit of s objectivas and can
exctude or otherwise regulate the acress of others to that bensfit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in whigh ane entity receives assets ar serviess, or has liabilities extinguished, and
direclly gives approximetely equal value {primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or usa of assels} 10 another entity in
exchange.

Expensas paid through the {ax system are amounis that are avaitable te beneficiarias rogardiess of whether or not they pay
taxes.

Fines are ecancmie benefits or sorvica potential received or receivable by entifies, as determined by a caurt or other law
enforcement body, as & cansequence of the breach of [aws or regulations.

Non-exchange fransactions are transactions that are nol exchange fransactions. in a non-exchange transaction, a municipality
either receives value from anather municipality without directly giving approximately equal valus in exchanga, or gives value to
another municipality without direclly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restriclions on transterred assels are stipulations that limit or direct the purzases for which a transferred asset may be used,
But do not specify that future economic benefits of service potential is tequirad o be refurned 1o the iransferor if not doployed
as specified.

Stipulations on transterred assets are temms in laws ar 7egulation, or a binding &rrangement, imposed upon the use of a
transferred asset by entities exiernal to the reporting municipality.

Tax expendituras ars proferantial provisions of the tax law thai provide ceriain taxpayers with eencessions thet are not evailable
0 others.

Tha taxabke gvent is the avent thal the governmant, Isgislature or other authority has determined wilt be subject to taxation.
Taxes are economic benefits or service patantial computsority paid or payable ta entities, in accordance with faws and or
reguiations, established to pravids revenua to govammant. Taxes do not include finas of other renalties imposed for breaches
of the (aw.

Transfars ars inflows of fulure sconomic bansfits or sarvice potantial from non-exchangs transactions, other than taxes.

Resoaniden

An inflow of resources frem a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recagnised as revanue, except 1o the extent
that a fiability is also recognised in respact of the same inflow.

As the municipality satisfies a oresent oblipation recognised as a liatitity in respest of an inflow of resaurces from a non-
exchanga transaciion recognised as an asset, it reduces tha carrying amount of the liability recagnised and recognises an
amount of revenue egual to that reduction.

Transiers

Aparl from Services in kind, which are nat recognised, the municipality racognises an assel in respect of transfers when ihe
transferred resources meet the detinition of an asset and safisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

The municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and
satisfy the eriteria for recognition as an asset.

Transferred assels are measured al their Fair vafuo as at the date of acquisition,
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1.16 Revonue irom non-exchange iransactions {continuesd)

Debi fergivenaas and nasumption of Hakiltiea

Tha municipality recognise revenus in respect of debt forgiveness when the former debl no longar meets the detiniticn of a
lizbility or satisfles tha criteria for recognition as a labitity, pravided that the dabs forgivenass does not satisly the definition of a
contribution from owners.

Revenue arising from debt forgivaness is measured al tha carrying amaunt of debt foigiven.

Fines

Fines are recognised as revenue when the raceivable mesets the definition of an asset and satisfies the critaria for recognition
as an asssk.

Assels atising from fines are measured ai the best sstimate of {he inflow of resaurces (o the minicipality.
Where the municipality coilecls fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine will not be revenus of ths colleciing entity.
Gitts and donetions, including goods in-kind

Gifts and donatlons, inciuding geods in kind, are recognised as assets and revenue when it Is probakila that the future
aconomic benefits or service potential will tiow to the municipality and the air value of the assets can ba measured reliably.

Sergices in-kind
Exespt for financial guaraniee contracts, the municipality recognise services in-kind that are significant to its operations and/or
servica delivery abjectives as assets and recagnise the related ravenue whan it s probable thef the futiire economic benefiis or
service polantial will fiow fo the municipakty and the fair value of the assels can be measurad refiably.
Whare services in-kind are nat significant to the municipality's aperations and/or service delivery objectives and/or do not
satisfy the criteria for recognition, the municipakity disclose the nature and type af services in-kind received during the reparting
pericd.
1.17 tnvestrnent Incame
Invesiment income is recognisad on a time-proportion basis using the etfective interest methsad.
1.13 Borrowing coata
Borrowing costs are [nterest and ather expenses incurred by an entity In connaciion with the borrowing aof funds.,
Borrowing costs are racognisad as an expanse n the period in which they are incurred,
1.18 Comparative dgures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been recfassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
1.20 Uneuthorised expendiiure
Unautherised expenditure means:
*  overspending of a vate or a main division within a vole; and
+  oxpendiiure not in accordance wilh the purpose of & vote or, in the case of 2 main division, not in accordancs with
the purpose of the main division.
All expendiiure relaling to unauthorisad axpenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in
the year that the expenditure wes incuired. The expendituns is classified in accordance with the nature of the expanse, and
where recovered, it is sitbsequently accounted for as revenue in the staiement of Francial performance.
1.27 Fruitless and wasisfu! expenditure

Fruitiess expenditure means expendilure which was made in vain and weuld have been avoided had reasanable care bagn
exarcised.
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121 Frultless gnd weateful expendiiure (contnued)

All axgenditure relating to fruitiass and wasteful expenditure is recogmssd as an expanse in the statement of financial
pertormanca in the yoar that the expendlture was incurred. The expenditure is classiiad in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequantly accounted for as revenus in the slatemont of financial performance.

1.22 Yrogulay oxpendiure

imagular expendins a5 Gafined in saviion 1 of the PFMA is expendituie DtheT than unadtonset cipensiure, incurred in
cantravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any appiicable iegislation, incluging -

{a) this Act; or

{b) the State Tender Board Act, 1568 {Act No. 86 of 1958}, or any regulations mada in ferms of the Act or

ie} any provinciat legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincia) govemment.

National Treasury practice noia no, 4 of 2008/2609 which was issued in terms of sactions T6{1) to T6{4} of the PFMA raquires
the following {effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular exponditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condonsd before year end
andior before finakisation of the financial statements musl also be recorded apprepriately in the imegular expenditure register. In
such an instance, no furthar action is also required with the exception of updaiing tha note fo the financial statemarts.

imegular expenditurs that was incurred end identified during the currert financial year and for which condonement is being
awaited at year and must be racorded in the irragutar expanditure register. No further action is reguired with the exceptian of
wxdaling the note to thz financial statements.

Where imegular axpenditurs was incurred in the pravious financial year and is only eardonad in the follawing Snancial year, tha
register and the disclosure nols 1o the financial statements rmust ba updated with the amount condoned,

imeqular expenditie that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was nat condoned by tha
Mational Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. I liability for tha
ireguiar axpenditure can bre attiited (0 a persan, a debt account must ba created if such a pearson is Hable in law. Immedizts
staps must thereafter be taken to recaver the amount from the parson concemed, If recovery is not poseible, the accounting
officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt Impairmant and giscipee such in the relevant nofe to the
financial statements. The imegutar expandhivre register must alzo be updated accordingly. if the imegular expenditure has not
kisen condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure relatad therste must ramain against the relevam
programme/expandiure iterm, ba disclosed as sush in the nate to the financial stalements and updated zceendingly in the
irregular expendilure ragisler.

frreguiar expanditure is expendiiure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act {Acl Na.56 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act {Acl No.32 of 2040), and ths Public Gflice Bearars Act {Act No. 20 of 1988] or is in ceniraventon of the
economic eNtily’s supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditurn excludes unauthorised expendlture. lragutar
exponditura is acenunted for as expenditure in the Statermnent of Financisl Parformance and whara recovered, it is subsaquantly
accourmed for as revenus in the Stalement of Rnandal Performance.

1.23 Budget infsrmation

Munigipalily are typlcally subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or bugget autiherisations {or sijuivalem), which
is given enfect through authodsing legistation, appropriation or simitar.

Ceneral punpase financial reporting by municipality shall provide information on whather resaurces ware obtained and used in
accordances with the legally adopted budgst.

The approved tudget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by scanomic classification linked to performance cuicome
jectvas.

The approved budget covers the fiscal periad fram 2010/04/01 to 201 1/03/31.
The buzget for the economic erity includes all the ertities approved budgets under iis comol.

The annual financia! statemants and the budget are on lhe same bagis of accounting therefore & comparison with the budgated
amounts for the reporting period have been inciuded in the Statemsnt of comparisan of budgel and actusl amounts.
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1.24 Rzlated parlies

A related party is a parson or an entity with the ability to central or jointly conirol the other party, or exercise significant influence
over the abher party, or vice versa, ar an enfity that is subject to commaon contral, or Joint control.

Condrot is the pawer to govem the Financial ard operating palicies of an entity 50 as ko obiain benefits fram its activiiies.

Jolnt control is the agreed sharing of contral aver an activity by a binding arrangemsnt, and axists only when the strategic
financial and operaling decisions ralating to the activity require the unanimous censent of ths parties sharing control {the
venturars).

Relaled party fransaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligatons batween the reporting entity end a related party,
regardiess of whether a prics is charged.

Bigniticant influence is the power to parlicipate in the financial and operaling policy decisions of an entity, but is not control aver
those policies.

Management are those persona responsible for planning, directing and comtraliing the ectivities of the municipaility, including
those eharged with the govemance of the municipality in accordance with legislation, in instences whete thay are required o
perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person aro considered to be those family members who mey be expected to influence, of be
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the municipaliy.

The municipatily is exermnpt from disclosure requirements in relation ta ratated parly transaclions if that transaction cceurs within
normat supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on terms and condilions no more or less favouratle than those which it iz
reasonabie to expect the municipality to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity ar persan in the same tircumstances
and tarms and conditions ara within the normal operating paramslers established by that reporting entity's lsgal mandate.

Where the munkcipality is exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above, the municipality discloses namative
information about the nature of the transactions and the refatad outstanding balances, to enable users of the entity's financlal
statements to understand the effect of related pary ransactions on its annual financial statements,

1.25 Evenis after reperting date

Events after reporting date are those avents, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reparting date and the
date whan fhe financial stataments are autharised for issue. Twa types of aven!s cen bs identifiad:
s thosa that provide evidence of condhions that existed at the reporting date (adjusiing everts after the reporling data);
and
+  those that are ingicaliva of conditions that aross aflar the reporting date {non-adjusting events after the reporting

date).

Tha municipality will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statemants o reflact adjusiing ovents atier the reporting date
once the event oceurred.

The municipafity wilf distlosa the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effact or a statemant that such esiimate
cannat be made in respect of all matedal non-agjusting events, where non-diselosure could influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of the financia) siatements.

Moles o the Annual Financial Statemeants
Figurss in Rand 2018 2017
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2.

How atandarda and interpratations

2.1 Stendards and imerpretations isawved, bt net yat effeclive

The municipaiity has nel applied the following standards and interprotations,

for the municipality's accounting periods beginning on or after 07 July 2018 or later perigds:

Slandard/ Interpretadon:

GRAP 34, Separate Financial Statemesnis

GRAP 35: Cansolidated Financial Siztemnenis

GRAP 36: Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
GRAP 37: Joint Arangemenis

GRAP 38: Disclosure of interasts in Other Enliies
Guigsling: Aceounting for Arrangemenis Undertaken if.a
the Mational Housing Programme

GRAF 110: Living and Nan-living Besources

GHAAP 110 (as amended 2016): Living and Non-fiving
Resaurcas

GRAF 6 (a3 revised 2010): Conselidaied and Sepamate
Financial Statements

GRAP 7 (as revisad 2010): Investmients in Associates
GRAP 8 (as revised 2010): Interests in Joint Ventures
GRAF 18 (as amended 2016} Segment Reporling
GRAF 20: Reotated parflas

GRAP 32: Sorvice Concession Arrangemants: Grankor
GRAF 105: Transfera of functions between entities under
commeon contral

GRAP 106 (as amanded 2016}; Transfers of funciions
between entifies not under common cantrol

GRAP 107: Mergers

GRAP 108: Slatuiary Receivabies

GRAF 108: Accourting by Princlpals and Agents
IGRAP 11: Consolidation — Special purpose entitios
HARAP 12: Jointfy controiled entities — Mon-monetary
contributions by vantuies

IGRAP 17: Serviese Concesslon Arangemeans where a
Grantar Gontrols a Significart Residual fmerest in an Asset
IGRAP 18: Interpratetion af the Standard of GRAP on
Recognition and Derecognition of Land

IGHAF 19: Liabilities tn Pay Lavies

GRAP 12 (as amendad 2016): Inventarias

Effective date:
Years beglnniitg on ar
afier

0% Anril 2099
01 Aprit 2099
01 Anril 2069
01 April 2099
01 April 2088
01 Apdil 209%
01 Apiil 2020
01 Apnil 2020
01 Apii 2015
01 April 2019
01 Aprii 2019
01 Apri 2019
01 Aprit 2018
Qi Aptil 2013
01 Apit 2018
01 Aprli 2018
0% Aprii 2015
01 April 2019
01 April 2038
01 Apri] 2019
01 Aprit 2013
01 Aol 2015
o1 April 2019
01 April 2019

01 Apqil 2018

Exzected Impact:

Unfikely there wili be 2
mateniat impact
Unlikely there wilf be g
material impact
Unfikely there will ba a
maerial impact
Unlikely thers will ba &
malarial inpaci
Unlikely there wil be a
material impact
Unlikely there will be a
material impacl
Unlksly thare will be &
material impect
Unidcely there will be a
material impact
Unlikely thera wiill be a
material impact
Unilikaly there wili be a
maierfal impact
Undikely there will be a
material iImpact
Uniiely there wili be a
matarial impact
Unlikaly there wilf be g
mabstiat impact
Unlikely thers will be a
matenal Impact
Unlikely thare will be a
maierial impact
Unkkety there wit be &
maferial impact
Uniikely therg will be a
material impact
Unlikaly there will be a
matesial inpact
Urilikaly thera witl be a
material mpact
Unlikely there will be a
matarial IRpact
Linilkely there wil be a
matenal impact
Unlikaly there will be a
material impact
Unidaly thare wit be a
matetial impact
UnEkely there wili be e
materiel impact
Unlikely thare will be a
material inpact

which have been published and are mandatory
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2. New standards and interpretations (continued)

&

GRAP 16 {as amended 2018): Invostment Property

GRAP 17 (aa amended 2018): Property, Plant and
Equipment

GRAP 21 (as amended 2016}: impaimment of non-cash-
generafing assets

GRAP 26 {as amended 2016}: impaiiment of cash- -
generaling assels

GRAP 27 (as amendad 201 8): Agriculture

GRAP 31 (as amended 2016): Intangible Assets
GRAP 103 (as armended 2018} Heritage Assets

Directive 12: The Selection of an Appropriate Reparting
Framawork by Public Enfities

01 Aprit 2018
81 Apnot 2018
01{ April 2018
01 April 2018
01 April 208
01 Aprit 2018
01 April 2018

01 April 2018

Unlikely there wil be a
material impact
Unlikely there will be &
material impact
Unlikety there will be a
material impact
Unlikaly there will be a
material impagt
Liniikely there will be a
material impact
Unfkely there will be a
materiai impact
Unlikely there will be a
materlal impact
Unlikely there will be a
malerial impact
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Motes fo the Annual Financial Statemenis
Figueas in Aand

1. investmant gtoparly

208 2017
Cogtf AceuRUWated Coryng velue  Cost/ Accurmizicted Canying value
Yzlupdan  dopresizlion Yolustlen  deprocletion
and and
aecumutzted acosrmulam o
Img atsment fenmtrmant
Investmaenl property 104 552 G63 - IM5EE 063 TD4 569 043 - 104 5G9 583
Tlation of properiy - 2018
Dperdnyg Total
bakercs
veetment propary 104 569 061 104 560 063
Razonsiiation of invwsimsont property - 2017
Opanisg Transters Toiad
brlzrca
Invactment propety 111 717 524 7 14% 461) 104 569083
A regislar conlaliing e informalion required by section B3 o Lhe Municipal Financo Ma 1 At is available lor
=p al the reg affice of the
Ri on the ity of imveatmant proporty of the rasmi -] i p of diapagal ara ga foflows:
Conlraciual ebligations lo purchese, or tavalop ar for rapsirs, mainlsnence or anfencoments i
2% Tokows:

In te exceptional cases when ha municipality hes te measwre investmant preparty ysing the cost model in the Standard of
GRAP or Property, Plan and Equipment when the muricipality subsequertly uses the fair value measurement, dsclaee the
fafenbng:

- desclpton of the invorkment o

+  anexplanation of why fav valua cannol tre delemmined neitably.
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Flguras In Rand 2018

2017

& Inveafinent propedty {continusd)
*  if possible, the range of estimates within which fair vafue is highly ikely 1a lie, and
» on disposal of investment groperiy not carried at fair vajue:
- the tagt that the entity has dispesed of investmeant property hot carried at fair value,
he carrying ameunt ef that investment propenty at the time of sale, and
- the amouni of gain or koss recognised.
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Figuras in Pand

4. Property, planz £nd sgulpmend

2018 2017
Tosl/ Accumudmisd Cavving veiua  Coetd Accumulatad Camying value
Vahmllon gopresiation Valualich  depraviglion
ik and
aogitruiated agceaulated
Impatnmeni trapalrmeny
Land 462 175007 {201 545 529) 260539472 458 232 BAR {203 B35 495) 254 596 369
Plgnt and maginary 7S 333308 - TY393IE 55552885 - 55852685
Imrastruciura 1078965248 (S53952 625 525002683 1077563110 (513256817} 564 726 294
Caher property, phanl and equipmen 22196886 {17 388 745) ABIR ST D21SEBNE {17 350 745) 4 BD6 151
Todet 1652 650451 (772995 690) RODOTIBEL 16TINST SN0 (PN 2THBSTT O7E B0 40
Heconciiisticn ot properiy, plam and seuipment - 2013
Openlag Tord
trat?tco

Lard 254 398 809 2R0 523 477
Werk in prograss {(1WIF) EX 552 805 ¥ 33T 306
Infrastructura S6d 726 233 525 002 823
Ohher propedty, plant and equipmen 4+ BOE 151 4 B0 151

219 ER 9T (10010 44g) 573 552
Reoeonciliziton af prapesiy, plent end squipment - XHT

Cpandy At F T Deprec/edh Empa(renani Tokal
belanca lagn

Lang 275 935 959 . - {13984309) (2063 171) 254 595 069
Worl in progress (Y1P) 21 724 422 57 1567 481 - {3339 ) - - 55552 596
Infrastiuctune 572 451 381 21 338 117 (t B2% 745) {38 232 My 464 726 2583
Cihar property, piank and squiprors 4 TUB 508 - - . 4 308 151

B723TMI0 3632424 AISOGGE9  (1G7a7AW) (23334708 (52250309 (2083 171) B70687 950

I7 - 31 Augu=t 2016 - G1:52 Ph!




0203

Ditsobaotia Local Municipality

Annual Financiaf Slatsraents for the year ended 30 June 2018

Motes 10 the Annual Financial Statemenis
Figuwes in Rand 2018 2017

4. FProgery, plan? ard equipment (condnued)

A register conlaining ths Infoiration required by section 63 of the itunicipal Finance Mansgement Act is avallable for
inspection at the registersd offica of the municipality.

5 intapgible asseis

2018 E0I7
Coaif Agcusnulated Ceerving value  Onst/ Ascumulated Ceaylog valus
Yaivallon  amortsaticn Valusticn  emostizstion
angd &ndd
acsumuiaiod acevmulsied
impaiment krpeirment
infangidle assets 1 1092513 (B33 643) 183 70 1082 513 {898 643} 193 870
Eeconciliaticr of intangile assets - 2018
Cpening Totsl
EBalance
Intangible assets § 192 870 193 870

Aszcorciliation of intangible assels - 2017

Upeming  Amcrtisation Taotal

. bainmoa
Intangible assels 1 218 970 (626 000} 193 870
8. Herllage sasein
2018 2017
Gast / Accumulzied Canying vatue Cost f Accumuinted Carndng value
Yaluation  Impalrment Walgation imgaimnant i
logses ieesen
Higturicat monuments 506 794 - 506 704 505 T84 - 508 794
Reconclilaifen of herhage asonts 2018
Opening Toka)
balones
Hisiorical monumeants 506 794 506 764
Roconeiiplion of heritago azeats 3017
Openlng Tiztal
bBalence
Historieal moenuments : 506 794 506 724
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Figurss in Ramd 2008 =017

F. Employsa boreik obligations
Delined Denofit plan
Pest retirement benefii pian

The municipality provides certain posi-relirement benefit heaith care benefils by funding the medizal aid contributions of
qualitying retired members of the municipality. According to the rules of the Medicat Aid Funds, with which the municigality is
associated, a member who is on the (Conditions of Service) is entiiled to remain & continued member of such medicat aid fund
on retirement, in which casa the munleipaflly Is liable for a certaln portion of the medicat aid membership fee. The municipallty
operates an unfundsd defined benefit plan for these qualitying employees. No olher post-retiremant benefits are providad to
hese employees.

The most recant actuarial valuations of the present valug of the defined benefit abligation wara caried ouf at 30 June 2017 by
bAr Mizl Fourie, Fellaw of Actuarial Society of South Africa. The presert value of the defined benefit abligation, and the related
curreny service cost and past ssrvica cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credh Method.

The emounts recegnized it the atotement of Inznslal posiion are as follows:

Carrylng value
Present va_iue of the defined bensfit obligation-parily or whoily funded o - {17 820000}

woel i

] S

{17 820G 0C0) {17 820 0UG)

MNan-current lizbifities I (17 820000} {16 484 000)
Current Habiliies - {t 336 000}

{17520 000) (17 820 0Q0)

Met expsnse recognized in ihe staiemen? of Hingnelal perormance

Current senvice cost - 3234000
Interest cast - 2041000
Actuanal {gains) losses - (4 351 000}
Selilemeant - {1 240 000}

- (33327 000)
Koy sssumsilons used

Assumptions used at the reporting dato:

Discount rates ussd - % 775 %
Expected rate of return on assels - % 5.25 %
Expected rate of retum on raimbursement righis - % 5.27 %
Actual retum on reimbursement righis - % 441 %

The basis used o determine the overall expected rate of refurn on assets is as foliow: [provide detaiis]
The effact of the major categories of plan assets is as follow: {stste eflect)

Salarias - Changes in an index or olher variable specitied in the farmal or conatructive terms of a plan e the bagis tor future
benelit increases: {provids details]

The basis on which the discount rate has been detenmined is as follow: {state basis)

The basis used to determine the overalf expacied rate of returmn on assats, including the effect of the major categores of plan
assgts, is as follows:
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Flguras In Rand

2018 2047

8. invspdories

Consumakble stores
Water

8.  Rseelvabisg Tom wrchahge Yransactiong

Trage debtors

16 Recslvables from nen-<exchsange iraraecione

Other recalvablas from hon-gxchangs revanue

11, VAT recaivable

VAT

12 Comsumer debiors

27083 balences
Rates

Electricity

Weler
Sewarage
Reiuse

Less: Allowanse for impeirment
Accumutated impairments

Nat batance
Batoes
Electricity
Water
Sewerage
Refuse

Giher (spachy)

Rates
Curent {0 -3 daya}
31 - 60 days

&1 - 80 days

81 - 120 days

121 - 365 days

> 355 day.*f

Sde e L P T
DRSS s S E

1438 295 1 750 828
71043 71043

1509 338 1 821 863

1026 - 1025

11 060 586 7 016 043

42081 467 27 285 624

TO5580 72 802 3%
124 416488 50 065 o2
205560 781 146 593 645

78878070 53 Q09 84S

43480988 36 €37 048

955 121 577 353 409 740

(208 184 946) (206 184 948)

95705590 72802 39%
124416488 50 086 82t
206 560 781 148 693 845

79978070 53G0S 848

494609686 35837045

(206 184 848) (206 184 948)

MEBIGET 152 224 963

4 058 660
2234 101
+ 27291658
- 1882 678
- 1 600 314
35 850 580

85705860 72832331
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Figures in Rand 2018 2047
12 Consumer deblors (sontnued)
Elachicity
Currant {0 -30 days) 15 656 577
31 - 50 days 2017 164
&1 - 90 gays 2 278675
91- 120 days - 1 109851
121 - 365 gays 1 460 259
> 365 days ) - 27504482
124 435488 502 066 821
Wa!er.
Gurrant {0 -30 days} - 23 306685
31 - B0 days 5 4165 009
61 - 30 days 3 454 631
91 - 720 days 2143915
121 - 365 days - 2 283 t77
> 365 days _ 110 083 227
2058 280 731 123 593 §45
Sowerage
Cumrent (0 -30 days) B 126222
31 -60 days - 2 413 380
81 - 90 days 1886 412
81 - 120 days 1 723 062
121 - 385 days - 1 828 513
> 385 days ) - 37033247
B3 008 840
Refuss
Current (0 -30 days) - 1872084
31 -850 days 1 042 058
61 - 90 days - 996 344
91 - 120 days - 896 771
121 - 365 days - ©h4 008
» 355'days . 23 975 772
SBAGDYEE 35837045
Other {specify)
Current {0 -30 days) - 216 694
31 - 60 days 154 025
61 - 50 days 137 357
§1-120 days - 131971
121 - 365 days - 136 441
> 365 _days_ = (206 861 434)
{206 1984 945) (205 184 248)
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Figures in Rand

2018 2017

12. Conaumsr debigrs {continued)

Fiaconciiation of alicwance for inpaimment
Balance at beginning of tha year
Cantributions te allowance

13. Cash ang cash eguivalsnls
Cash and cash equivalenis congist of:
BHark balances

Short-tarm deposifts
Gther cash and cash equivalents

14, Accumuiated sumius

5. Unspen? cenditional granis and recelpts

Unskent conditional grenta end recelpie comprizes of!

Unspent condidonal granis and recelms
Library grant

#IG grant

Financiat Managemant Grant

- (184 B&2 915)
{11 322 031)

(208 184 946} {205 124 945}

1084 084 1 421 865
1933 505 837 513
40150646 64 590 306

43156238 ©F §50 284

1086 2068 1 084 838
§ 966 018 1956013

272 433 272 433
3324 740 3 323230

The nature and exient of governmant grants recognised in the annual financial stetements and an indication of other forms of
government assistancs from which the munisipality has directly benefited; and

Unfulilsd condiions and other continganeles attaching 1o govarmment assistance that has been rectgnised.

See note for recanciliation of grants fram Mational/Pravirtial Govemmant.

These amounis ere invested in & Hng-fenced investment unitil willlsed.
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017

15. Pravisicns

Raconciiiaticn of brovisions - £098

Gpening iKillaed Total
Balance quring the
veat
Environmenial rehabilitatlon 20844 708 (883 760) 20 060 946
Legal procsedings 9212 000 - S 212000

30 155 705 (863 TG, 2% 272046

Hzconcilietlen of provisions - 2017

Opherning Addiions Uttlised Totak
Balance during the
yoay
Environmental rehabilftation 20 060 b4E BR3 760 20944708
Long service awards 8573000 1525 000 (886 0G0} 9 212 000

28 633 246 2 403 760 (885 450y 30 158 70§

Man-current Kabilitios 5242 000 9212000
Current labllities 20 060 946 20 944 708

282728468 3D 155706

Envlronmentat rebabilitation provision

in terms of the licencingof the fandfill refuse site, the municipaiity will incur ficensing and rehabilitation costs of R19 272 526 fo
restore the site af the end of its usaful life, estimated 1o be between 2015 Lo 2022 for Lichtenburg Townlands landfill site.
Pravision has been made for the net present vaiue of this cost, using the average cost of borrowing interest rate.

Leng servlcs awards

The municipality gperates an uniunded dafined henefit glan for all its employees. Under the plan, a Long-service Award is
payabla to employess aftar 10 years of continuous sefvice, and every 5 yoars of coniinuous service from 10 yaars of sarvice to
45 years of senvice. The provision is an gstimate of the long service based con historical staff tunever. Additional cash/gifis are
awarded to employess for levels of past service pet the LSA palicy.

The most recent actvariz# valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carvied at 30
June 2017 by Mr N Fourie, Fellow of the Acturial Secisty of South Africa. Tha present vatue of the defined henafit obligation,
ahd the refated curram service cast and past sefvice cost, were measured using the Project Unit Credit Method.

The principal assumptions used for the purmposes of the acturlal vafuations were as follows far the year endad 30 Jung 2017
Discount rate - B.68%

General salary inflation - 7.28%

Net discount rate - 1.26%

The basis on which discount rate has baen detarmined is as foliow:

GRAP 25 stipulates that the choice of this rate should be derived from high qualily corperate bend yieds. However, where the
market in these bonds Is no't significant, the market yields on government bonds consistent with the astimated term of the
postemployment liabilitues should he used.

The prineipal essumplions used for the purposes of the actuarial veluations

Expected Relirement Age - Females 83 63
Expecteel Retiremant Aga - Males 53 &3
. 126 126

dovement in the present value of the Deflned Beneft Cbligation were as
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Figures in Fland 2018 2017
16. Provisions {continued)
Balznce at the baginning of the year 8573000
Current sarvice cost 898 000
Interest cosks &30 000
Benfits paid {885 000}
Actuarial losses / {gains} £203 D00)
9,212,960
The amaunt meogniged i the Siatement of Financlal Pesitlon are as follows:
Present value of unfunded chilgaiions 2212000
The amount recgnilzed in the Stasment of Finansial Performance are as follows:
Currant senine cost 858 200
interest cost 830 g
Agtusrial losses f {aains) (203 900}
Total Beneflt included in Emploves 1525080
17. Payables irom exehange wansacilons
Trade payabtes 393782762 3256 454 281
COther payables 1 5599 M5 20 429028
Accrued loave pay 18 082 164 13 167 013
Accrued bonus 5676 401 5 §76 401
Depnsits recelved 63 938 137 59 443118
Other payables 2409 290 2 343 547
Cther craditars #1 - 2780018
483 438 098 430 283 415
18, Consumer deposlts
Services 2 835 523 a 553 098
12, Rewenue
Service charges 329788 777 235 481 621
Rental of fadilities and squipment 454 459 (3531 713)
Imetest received {rading) 4141539 29 541 201
Agency services 1894 887 2228539
Licences end permits 189 920 374 892
Gther income - {rallup} {4 086 418) 5772831
Proparty rates 56 084 797 49 08¢ 79
Govemmant grants & subsidiss 138 779 427 151 228 080
Fives, Penalties and Forfelts 144 B39 204 385
564 807 082 470 488 115
The ameunt inckided in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or sendices
are as followe:
Service charges 329798 777 235 481 623
Rental of tacilities and equipment 464 459 {3 531 713}
Imerest received (trading) 41415386 29 641 201
Agency services 1984 857 2 227 932
Licences and permits 189 920 374 Bg2
Other income - (roliup) (4 066 419} 5772831
365 798 030 26D 06T TTY
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017
19, Hevenuws (coniliued)
Thz argunt incisded in revenue arlslng from non-euchange iranzaziions s as
fellows:
Taxaiion revenus
Propeny rates 55084797 45083878
Transier revenue
Govemmant grants & subsidies 138 779 427 151 223 080
Fines, Penalties and Forleits © 144 B39 203 385
185002 G583 200 521 244
20. Ssrvice charges
Sale of electricily 216 263 457 124 725862
Sale of waijer 54 795 674 G571 231 442
Sewerage and saniiation charges 33 945 015 34407 419
Refuse removal 14 791 621 15 116 897
329799 717 233 481620
21. Heniai of faciliiies and eguipment
Premizes
Housing - (3 592 482)
Commiunity halt 45 586 58 523
45 BES {3 533 955}
Facilltles and equipment
Rental of facilitias 418 873 2 24B
4564 455 {3 831 713}
22, Cher reyanle
Other income - {roflup) {4066 419) 5772831
22, Ciher income
Other income 1 {< 066 419) 5772831
24. Propedy retes
Rates received
Residential 36304 058 34581 915
Commercial 25 694 033 20 207 493
State & 097 404 3120 058
Lass: incoma forgone (72 030 898) (8 819 567}
EE 084737 ADGBSETE
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017

25. Gowernmeni grants and subsidias

Operating grants
Equitable share 97 931 627 B9 925 662

Capital granis

MIG grant 19123 000 52908 982
FMG grant 2 100 00¢C 1537 567
MSIG grant 361 800 444 987
LG SETA grant - 368 882
EPWP grant 1 208 00D 1038000
INEP grant 18 045 000 5000 000

20 B47 BDO &1 298 418
128779427 151 228 080

EPWP

Current-year recaipts 1208 000 -

Conditions et - transferred to revenue {1918 924) -
d £ TG ais .

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 15).

Provide explanations of conditions siift to be met and other relevant infarmatian.

Likrary grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 1084 832 303 721

Current-year receipts t 450 1150 000

Conditions met - transfarred to revanue - {368 882}

1 D86 248 10684832

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities {see note 15).

Provide explanations of conditions still 1o be met and other relevant information.

MiG

Balance unspent at beginning of year 1956 018 -

Curreni-year receipis 19 133 000 54 B75 000

Conditions mat - transferred to revenue {19133 000) (52 503 942}

1 366 0iA 1966 018

Conditions still to be met - remain fiabiiities {(see nole 15}).

The MIG expenditurs for 2017/18 includes R18.8 ralaling tc Projects that were on the impiementation plan. The remaining
R2.4m will be rolled over to 2018/19 subject to approval by Treasury..

Financial Management Gram

Ralance unspent at beginning of year 272 433 -
Current-year receipts 2145 000 1810000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue {2145000t {1537 567)
272433 272433
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017
25. Government grants and subsidiss {coniinued)
Canditions stilt to be met - remain labilities {see note 15.
INEP Grant
Current-year receipts 18 000 000 -
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (5 681 586) -
Lnaafingd Differanas SERAT AT
Conditions stitl to be met - remain liabilities {see noia 15).
Pravide explanations of conditions stil to be met and other relevant information.
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Motes o0 the Annual Financial Siatements
Figures in Rand 2018 2017

26. Empisyes relalod costs

Basic 102842884 104 745132
Bonus 8117 766 & 627 525
Madical aid - company camiributions 8075 524 7 567 045
UiF 58 339 978 152
5oL 1962 840 1826134
Other payroll levies 22314678 19 140532
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and olher aflowances 13782875 13075985
Overlime paymants 17284618 14 {04 253
Long-service awards 2401 742 H 087725

TS BUZ 0BG 162 253411

Remuneration of Municipal Manager: TG Remagaga

Annual Remunaration 294 095 410127

Municipal managsr was appainted from 1st June 1o 30 Seplembar 2017

Remunesation of Chief Flnanelai Cficer: L) Dintwe

Annual Remunreration 719 377 1199017
Car Altowance 221708 -
Confributions to UIF, Medicat end Pension Funds - 167 2680

841 085 1 366 277

Chief Financial Officer was appeinted and staried on st June 2017 to January 3ist 2018
Remuneration af Acting Blunivipal Banagar: TF Mopeloa

Annual Aemuneration 473 359

Agting Municipal Menagar was appeinted and started on 151 Felaruary {0 day 31st 2018
Remunaratien of Acting Municpal Manager: MJ Molpalsl

Annual Remungrgtion 386 98¢

Acting Municipal Manager was appointed and started on 1st June ta June 30th 2018

Remuneration of Compermie Sorvicas Dirpcior: AST Myumalo

Annual Remuneration 88 505 1118104
Contribulions Lo UiF, Medicat and Panslan Eunds - 1596 625
Selfing of Long Service 189 304 .

235 839 1314730

7, Remunerathon of ceuncilions

Exesutive Major 705 964 765 932
Counciliors 11005301 10 BG4 072

11 712365 71 538 ¢oa
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Figuras in Rand 2018 2017

28. Depretiziion erd amorfisation

Property, plant and aquipment 40951003 54 390992

28, impeiment of 255518

impalrments

Invastment preperty : B 852 808
Descripe the evonis and circumstances that led to the recognition or reversal of the

impaimment toss. The recoverable amaunt or [racaverabla sendce amaunt] of the asset

was based on s fair value less costs to sell or [is value in use.)

[Disclose the following information for the apgregate impairment losses and ihe aggregate reversals of impairment losses
recognised during the pariod tor which na information has etherwise been disclosed)]

Tive main classes of assets aftected by impairment losses are:

The main classes of asseis affactad by reversais of impairment losses are:

The main evenis and circumstances that led to the recognition of these impaimant losses ara as folfows:
The main evenis and circumstances thet led fo the reversals of these impairment losses are as follows:
30. Finance cosie

Cwnors ’ 30521036 22 386476

Capitalisetion rates used during the pariod were -% on specific borrowings for capital projects and -% being the weighted
average cost of funds borrowed ganarally by the municipality.

Total inlerest expense, caloulated using the aflective interest rate, on financial inslrumenis not at fair value through surpius or
deficit amounted ta 8 - {2017: R -).

31, Butk purcheses

Electricy 7A 506 852 110 308 065
Walar 4034 707 3 901 464

£2341359 114 710529

32, Conbrecied services
Other Contractors 1 586 286 2113513
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Figures in Rand 2013 2817
23. General expenges
Advartising 928 580 1142 270
Audftors remunaration 1858 221 & 554 188
Bank charges 445 822 {333)
Consulting and professional fass 18143500 20 084 588
Consumgbles 199 650 G74 377
Insurance 2173852 1436 8o4
Medical expanses - 19 188
Pachkaging - 1767 522
Fuet and oil 3265283 3340474
Postage and courier 1637 408 1 891319
Protectiva clathing G658 781 2398930
Repairs and maintanance 18 905 458 B 354 802
Security (Guarding of municipal propetty) 3082 411 8116744
Subscriptions end membership fees 8718 21637
Telephane and fax 179 312 i 787
Training - 54 967
Travel - ocal 450 DO4 258 331
Aefuse 8 785 416 964
Expense 2 2336 435 1 828 963
Expense 8 B 608 251 6 §00 343
Expense 10 2916 620 2653711
Chamicals 110 251 44428
Hostel charges §08 737 16 176 954
Cther expenses 82 936 484 8 571 480
107 T84 3542 BY 367 628
¥, Fzir valus adjusiments
35, Auditars’ remuneration
Fags 1058 221 & 654 148
36, Cash genermied frem operations
Surplus 120 148 656 26 508 531
Adlusinmenia foe:
Depreclation and amortisation 40951 0023 52 253319
Movemenis in reiirement benefit assets and liehilities - {3 227 Do)
Movements in prowvisions (883 760) 1552780
Cther man-cash items - 1687 239
Trangfers 30 487 678
Amortization G286 000
Chanrgea n working capital:
Inwenioties 253 85 594
Conzumeor dablorm {186 712 168) (112 847 210)
Qther receivablas from non-exchangs transactions {4 Qdd 543} -
Payablas from exchange transactions 83194684 102814512
VAT (14795843} {15 157 306}
Unspsnt conditional grants and receipis 1 450 3019568
Consumer deposits {743 505} (43007
7 4568 505 84 751 378
37, Oiher cash item 1
38. Financial instrumants dizclosure
Cetegoriag of financlal lnstrumants
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Figuras in Rand 2018 2017
3B. Finzneist inshuments dizclosure {continuesd)
2018
Finzncial asseis
Al amortizedt Total
coat
Trads and other receivaires from exchange fransactions 1028 1026
Other recaivables from non-gxchange transactions 17 DGO 586 11 060 586
Consumer debtors 34R 962 531 348 962 531
Cash and ¢ash equivalenis 5205 464 5 205 464
365 229807 385 225607
Financial liaktiifles
Arameortized Total
co&!
Trade and other payahles from exchange transactions 430293 417 430 283417
2017
Financlal assets
Al fair vahle At amortised Totai
cosi
Trade and other recefvables from gxchange transaclions . 1026 1026
Other receivables from non-exchange iransactions - 70164043 7016043
Consumer deblors - 152224 803 152 224 B03
Cash and cash squivalsnts 66 650 284 - 86 650 284
85650 204 159 241 872 225892156
Finangial liabilities
At amortlsed Toizf
oSl
Trads and other payables frgm exchange iransactions 430 283 417 430 2943 417
38, Commitments
Authorlsed caphkal expenditire
Already coniracted for bud net provided for
. Property, piant and equipmett 16 384 328
Tola! capkal commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for - 16 384 3268
Total commiimentia
Totel commitmenis
Authorised capital sependiture - 15384328

This commitied expenditure relates to plart and equipment and will be financsd by available bank facilities, existing cash
rgsaurces, MiG allocations during 1he year and funds intermally generated.
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Hotes i the Annual Finencizl Siatements

Figures in Rand 2018 2017

46. Contingencias

The municipality has the following contingent liabilities and contingent assats:

Sitbar Trading §43/ Citaotote Lid {(Juns 2043

The Plaintiff was appointed on risk to do Credit Control on behalt of Council. He terminated his services due to lack of
cooparation from our stalf. Ha claims tha amount for collaction services on the 30-120 day and more Debtors Book from Lhe
Defendant. The claim amaunt is R3 080 537.

Eerarnoous Pavmnent (Novamber 2014

The municipality has institvied fegal action for payments made to pravious employees and councillors amourting io A167 226}
Maiebilo Trading Cec//Ditsabetla LM, {(June 2014

Conlract was terminated for wab design, develepment and maintanance amounting ta RE0 000

Balemi Clvils//Ditsoboila LM, {July 2092)

Termination of contract due to non-perfarmance. The matter was handied by Edward Mathan Sonneberg Attormeys and due to
their high fees the Administrator Mr, Dikoko directed that it be dealt with lacally. The olaim amount is A3 800 000

TictleTihago Plant Hire//Diiscbotla LM (Qctokar 2012) 10 Dee 2010
The Plaintlif tencered for the upgrading of the tsoseng Internal Roads & Stormwater system. The claim amount is R2 565 436
Ditsohetla Locat Municipality/Annemie Qoncalves {July 2613}

Appointed to sell Electricity to Municipality. The municipality has insthuted a claim against Annemie Goncalves fo the amount of
R2 183 124.
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Figures in Rand 2018 2017

40, Contingensies {coniinued)

EL Masige {January 2014)

Siruck by spike al the park Cases Na. D242, The claim amount is R2 100 000

Tshikaletl TYE31 Consulting Cef Fab 2608)

Payment {or Service rendered on meter readings: DID19&. The claim amount is R15 800G 000,

Phakisa Civils (Edms) 9ok Nune 2057}

DLOOSE. The claim amount is A185 668.

Wiilem SmilffEHaobotia LM {den 2014)

Plaintiff's car damaged by pothole on the 31st August 2011 on Deelpan Aoad. The claim emount is AB2 390.
Brawell Construction//Ditsobeils Local Munieipality (2001)

Terminatian of contract for non porfomance in RDP construction project, The cfaitn amaunt is R435 560.
AbravoiiDitsobotla Local Municipality (February 2014)

Failure to pay services renderad. The claim amount is H1 500 000,

Mabess Consirucilon/Dizoboile Lecel Municinatiy
2015

Chaflenging the termination of Coniract R7 000 000.

Mosimanegepe Matiapat/DLE (Mune 2074)

Damagas Claim. The claim amount is R500 000,

G.L Pratorids/Dioshoila Lecal Municipatity (1998) Water Supply in Collany.

They ctaim for supplying water withaut proper readings. The claim amount is is R593 000)

Quiill and Assoiates//Ditschoba Local Bunicipailty

Failure to pay fov services rendered o the Municipality. The ¢laim amountis R10 260 000.

Francleus B arend Yan Ber Merwe/Distelotla Local Municipailty

Failure fo mainiain roads Lhat led to an accident. The claim amaunt is R2 200 000

Lueas Foucha'/fDiisehotla Local Municlpatity

Failure to maintaln roads that led to demage ot wehicle. The claim amount B190 000. Combinad

summans bemween Molganedivorse//Ditaobota Lacal Municipality {April 2015} Fallure o provide slaciricily contrary o the
contract sale of land. The claim amount RS50 4.

Bule MosebetsifGiisobotle Locat Bunlcinality (Apnl 2017)

Failure to pay for services rendered and claims on loss of income (Onsite Billing and cradit conirol} R27 000 000,

Zandile Mansgement Services//Ditaoboiiz Local Bunicipality (May 2617)
Failure o pay for services rendered and ¢faims on loss of income {Debt Collections) R44 000 000,

Western Transvas] Secutity Servicer//Minebcila Local Municipallty (201672517)

53 - 31 Avgust 2018 - 01:52 PM



0219

Ditsoboiia Local Municipality

Annual Financial Siztements for the year ended 30 June 20128

Hotes io the Annual Financis! Statomenis
Figures in Rand 2018 2017

4. Contingencies {confinuad}
Failure fo pay from servicas rendeared {Security Sarvices) R1 500 000,
£1. Hefated parilas

Relationships
Astaunting Oificar Refer to accounting oiigers report note

The Munigipality has various procssses in placa to identify and note any reieted pariy transactions wih regards to Hes matar,
The range from this disciozure by bidders on bid documents {MB4) 1o meinienance of a conilict of interest register. Far
Couneiliors, this is kept in the Office of the Speaker whilst for the other Senior klanagers it is kept by the Corporate Services.

Felated party transections

Equitabie Shate 97831 626 89 929 661
Municipal infrastructure Grant (RRG) 19133000 52508982
Finzncial Management Grant {FhG) - 1 537 567
LG SETA grant 361 800 444 987
Library Grant : 368 862
EPWP Grant 1208 GO0 1 038 000
IMEP Grant 20 145 000 5 000 000
Asmunerafion of courc!iinrs

Executive mayar 706 954 B70 871
Councillors 11005 301 8679483

The compensation of key management personnel is set out in 25 to Annual Financial Statements.
42 Prior-yeer adjusiments

Prezented belov? are thase items contained in the statement of inancial posifion, statemsnt of financiat perdormance and cash
flow statement that have been afiectad by prior-year adjustments;

. Conpumer debtois & Service charges
There was a decrease in cansumers debtors due to corraction of various consumer accounts billed incormoctiy.

2. Unauthorised expendiiure
There was an adjustment made t the unauthorised expenditure amounting lo R167 765 702. The unauthonised axpenditure
incurred s stilf under investigaiion.

3. Ireguisr expendiure

Managemant has reviewed alf transctions from 2011/12 financial year that relates to transactipns whera a procurement procoss
shauid have been under taken. Pracusement conlracts, originating from the prier yaar, which wes classified as iregular,

rasuited i the increase of iregutar axpenditure in the current year as thesa payments will be deemed irrequiar for the entire
contract pariod until the comract is approved as not irvegular or weite-off. The irregular expenditure refating to 2015/18 was
gdjustad with an amount of R61 665057

Statement of financial postiion

201§
Maie As previously Correctianef  Rasteted
reported ervor
Cansumer deblors 42 941 453 (1871562} 41069 891
2m7

Slatement of financial performance
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Disclaimer of oninicn

1. Twas engaged {o audit the financial statements of the Ditsobotla Local Municipality set out on
pages xx to xx, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, the
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement
and the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as
well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

2. | do not express an opinion on the financial statements of the municipality. Because of the
significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of cpinion section of my report,
| have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these financial statements.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion
ramnarty, panrd angd equipment

3. lwas unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for property, plant and equipment
due to differences between the financial statements and the accounting records. | was unable
to confirm these assets by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine
whether any adjustments o property, plant and equipment of R868 673 552 disclosed in note 4
and depreciation expense of R40 951 003 disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements,
were necessary.

ra

Pavables Trom axchangs iransactions

4. | was unable o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for payables from exchange
transactions due to differences between the financiai statements and the accounting records. i
was unable to confirm these payables by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to
determine whether any adjustment to payables from exhange transactions of R493 488 099
disclused in note 17 to the financial statements, was necessary. '

T S TS,
Oormnnar dabitors

5. The municipality did not have adeguate processes and systems in place to correctly account
for impairment on consumer debtors as required by GRAP 104, Finangial instruments as an
impairment assessment of outstanding consumer debts was not performed. | was unable to
quantify the resuftant misstatement as it was impracticable to do so. in addition, | was unable to
ohtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for consumer debtors due to differences between

T,
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the financial statements and the accounting records. | was unable to confirm these debtors by
alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any further adjustment to
consumer debtors of R348 936 97+ (2017: R152 224 803) disciosed in note 12 to the financial
statements was necessary.

6. twas unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for investment property as the
municipality did not maintain a register for investment properly. | was unable o confirm the
investment property by alternative means, Furthermore, during 2017 the municipality
incorrectly included sold properties in the investment property register contrary to the
requirements of GRAP 18, Investment properfies, which resuited in investment propérty being
overstated by R48 583 657. This misstatement was stilf not corrected in the current year.
Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any further adjustment to investment
property of R104 568 063 (2017: R104 569 063) disclosed in noie 3 to the financial statements
was necessary.

Cash and gash eouivalenis

7. Jwas unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for cash and cash equivalents due
to differences between the financial statements and the accounting records. | was unable to
confirm these cash and cash equivalents by alternative means. Consequently, { was unable to
determine whether any adjustment relating to cash and cash equivalents of R43 168 235
{2017: R66 650 284) disclosed in note 13 to the financial slatements was necessary.

- EE AN T e s P e s Ty
Ragelvables Fom nom-aschangs frensantioas

8. During 2017 the municipality did not have adequate systems to maintain records for
receivables from non-exchange fransactions. This resuited in receivables from non-exchange
iransactions being overstated by R7 016 043 and payables from exchange transactions atso
being cverstated by the same amount. This misstatement was sfill not corrected in the current
year.

8. In addition, the municipality incorrectly recognised outstanding debts on property rates as
cansumer debiors, This resulted in consumer debtors being overstaied and receivables from
non-exchange transactions being understated by R95 705 590 (2017: 72 802 391).

10. Furthermore, | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for receivables from
non-exchange transactions due fo the status of the accounting records and non-submission of
information in support cf these receivables. | was unable to confirm these receivables by
alternative means. Consequently,  was unable to determine whether any adjustment was
necessary to receivables from non-exchange transactions of R11 060 586 disclosed in note 10
to the financial statements. '

R T A
VAT recebabis

11. I was unabte to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the VAT receivable due to
differences between the financial statements and the accounting records. | was unable to
confirm the VAT receivable by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine
whether any adiustment relating to VAT receivable of R42 061 467 disclosed in note 11 to the
financial statements was necessary.

remd honm

T e b - L iTne
AT GYE D TR GELIDT

12. | was unabie to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had properly
accounted for the empioyee benefit obtigation, due to the status of the accounting recerds and
the non-submission of information in support of the employee benefit obligation. | was unabe
to confirm the employee benetit obligation by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to
determine whether any adjustment to the employee benefit obligation of R17 820 000 disclosed
in note 7 to the financial statements, was necessary.

4
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13. F was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had properly
accounted for provisions, due to the status of the accounting records and non-submission of
tnformation in support of these provisions. | was unable to confirm these provisions by
alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any adjusiment to
provisions of R29 272 948 disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements was necessary.

foom i navsr pdea et coggenats
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4. 1 was unabie to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the accumulated surplus due to
differences between the financial statements and the accounting records, | was unable to
confirm this account balance by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine
whether any adjusiment relating to the accumuiated surplus of R§74 935 524 disclosed in noie
14 to the financial statements was necessary.

P S L

15.  was unable to cbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that revenue from service charges
had been properly accounted for, due o the status of the accounting records and non-
submission of information in support of this revenue. | was unable to confirm revenue from
service charges by alternative means. Conseguently, | was unable to determine whether any
adjustment to service charges of R329 739 777 disclosed in note 20 to the financial
statements, was necessary,

16. Furthermore, | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that revenue,
expenditure and receivables relating to the provision of retail water services have been
correctly accounted for by the municipality as the service delivery agreement entered into
between the Ngaka Modiri Molema District Municipality as water service authority and the
municipality as water ssrvice provider had expired. In terms of section 22 of the Water Services
Act, 1997 (Act No. 108 of 1997), no person may cperaie as a water service provider without
the approval of the water service authority. | was unable fo confirm, by alternative means, that
the local municipality was authorised to operate as the water service provider. Consequently, |
was unable to determine whether any adjustments relating to revenue from sale of water of
R64 799 674 included in the service charges disclosed note 20 to the financial statements or
any other related receivable, expenditure relating to the provision of retaii water services by the
municipality, were necessary.

intarest receiverd frading

17. 1 was unable fo obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that intarest received had been
properly accounted for, due to the status of the agcounting records and non-submission of
information in support of this revenue. | was unable to confirm revenue from interest by
alternative means. Conseguently, | was unable fo determine whether any adjustment to interest
received of R41 415 396 disclosed in the Statement of Financial Performance, was necessary.

Property rates

18. I was unabie to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had properly
accounted for property rates, due io the status of the accounting records and non-submission
of information in support of this revenue. 1 was unable to confirm ihe revenue from property
rates by alternative means. Consequently, { was unable to defermine whather any adjustment
(o praperty rates of R56 084 7287 disclosed in note 24 to the financial slatemenis, was
necessary.

YR lnCOme

18. During 2017, | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for other incoms as
the municipafity did not have an adequate system of internal contro! to account for other
income and did not keep proper records. | was unable to determine whethar any adjustment to
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the other income of R5 772 829 disclosed in note 22 and 23 to the financiat statsments was
necessary. My audit opinion on the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2017
was modified accordingly. | was stili unable to confirm this other income by alternate means.
Consequently, my opinion on the current period's financial statements is alse modified because
of the possible effect of this matter on the com parability of the current period's figures.

RERAE SRR

- | was unabie to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for general expenses due to

differences batwean the financial statements and the accoeunting records and for an adjustment
to the corresponding figure due to non-submission of information in support of this adjustment.
t was unable to confirm these expenses by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable {0
determine whether any adjustments relating to general expenses of R101 744 342

(2017:R89 567 620) disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, were necessary.

21.

23,

Buring 2017, t was unabie to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for impairment of
assets as the municipality did not have an adequate system of internal control to account for
impairment losses and did not keep proper records. | was unable io determine whether any
adjustment to the impairment loss of R8 852 806 disclosed in note 29 fo the financial
statements was necessary. My audit opinion on the financiaf staternents for the period ended
30 June 2017 was modified accordingly. | was still unable to confirm this impairment loss by
alternate means. Conseguentty, my opinion on the current period’s financial statements is alsg
maodified because of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability of the current
period’s figures.

gencias

. The municipalily did not have an adequate system to account for its contingent liabilities as

required by GRAP 19, Provisions, contingent fiabiiities and confingent assefs. This resulied in
certain centingencies being understated by RS 585 490. in addition, i was unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had properly accounted for all
contingencies due to the status of accounting records and the non-submission of information in
support of these contingencies. | was unable to confirm this disclosure by alternative means.
Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any further adjustment to contingencies of
an undisclosed amount in note 40 to the financial statemenis, were necessary.

i :
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t was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management had properly
disclosed coniractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment as
required by GRAP 17, Property, plant and equipment for the current and prior period, due to
the municipality not having an adequate system to maintain records of commitments. | was
unable to confirm these commitments by alternative means. In addition, in the previous year
commitments were understated by R31 892 498, Consequently, | was unatble tc determine
whether any further adjustment to commitments of RQ {2017: R16 384 328) disclosed in note
39 to the financial statements, was necessary.

imenis

. The municipality did not carrectly disciose prior period errors in note 42 to the financial

statemenis, as required by GRAP 3, Accounting policies, estimates and errors as the nature
and the amount of the correction for each financial statement item affected and the amount of
the correction at the beginning of the earliest prior period, were not disclosed. In addition, | was
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the prior-year adjusiments disclosed
as the supporting information was not provided. | was unable o confirm these disclosures by
alternative means. Consequently, | was unabie to determine whezher any further adjustment to




0224

the the disciosure of prior-year adjustments in note 42 to the financial siatements, was
nacessary.
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25. t was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the calculation of net cash flows
from operating activities as well as investing activities in the cash flow statement, as the
municipality did nof appropriately account for cash and non-cash items as required by GRAP 2
Cash flow statements. The municipality's system did not allow for the performance of
afternative procedures to determine the extent of this misstatemant. Consequently, | was
unable to determine whether any adjustment o the net cash flows from operating activities
and investing activities in the cash flow statement and the note thereto, was necessary.

T R B Y P
Unsuibinricsd AMGETLRTI R
i

26. Section 125 of the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 {Act No. 56 of
2003) {(MFMA) requires the disctosure of unauthorised expenditure incurred. The municipality
incurred unauthorised expenditure of R38 186 563 during the current year, (previous vears:
R255 408 303} due to overspending of individua! votes within the budget, however no
unauthcrised sxpenditure was disclosed. As the municipality did not quantify the full exient of
the unauthorised expenditure, it was im practicable fo determine the total unauthorised
expenditure that should have been disciosed.

irragular srpenditure

27. Section 125 of the MFMA requires the disclosure of irreqular expendiiure incurred. The
municipatity made payments of RS 475 149 during the cutrent year, (previous years:
R80 301 548) in contravention with the supply chain management requirements, however no
iregular expenditure was disclosed. As the municipality did not quantify the ful! extent of the
iregular expenditure, it was impracticable fo determine the fotal irregqular expenditure that
should have been disclosed.

28. Section 125 of the MFMA requires the disclosure of fruitiess and wasteful expenditure incurred.
The municipality made paymants of R53 820 717 during the current year, (previous vears:
R60 959 266) that were regarded as fruitless and wasteful expenditure, howaver no fruitiess
and wastful expenditure was disclosed. As the municipality did not quantify the full extant of the
fruitless and wasteful expenditure, it was impracticable fo determine the total fruitless and
wasteful expenditure that should have been disclosed.
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28. The municipality did not disclose water and electricity distribution losses as required by section
125(2){d}{i) of the MEMA. As the municipality did not have adeguate control measures in place
to accurately determine the nature and extent of these losses, | was unable to quantify the
resulting understatement as it was impracticable to do =o. In addition, the municipality did not
inctude the other compulsory MFMA disclosures as required by section 125(1)(b) and (c} of the
MFMA, in the financial statements, | was unable to quantify the omitted disciosure as it was
impracticable to do so.

Other matter

30. | draw attention te the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matier.
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31.In terms of section 125(2)e) of the MFMA, the municipatity is required to disclose particufars of
non-compliance with the MFMA, This disciosure requirement did not form part of the audit of
the financial statements and accordingly I do not express an opinion thereon.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

32. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the SA standards of GRAP and the requirsments of the MFMA
and the DoRA and for such internal control as the accounfing officer determines is necessary
10 enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether dus to fraud or error.

33. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the
municipality's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate
governance structure either intends to liquidate the or io cease operations, or there is no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemenis

34. My responsibility is to conduct an audit of the financiat statsments in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and to issue an auditor's report. However, because
of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of optnion section of my report, | was not
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these financial statements.

35. | am independent of the in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code) together with the
ethical requiremenis that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements, | have fufilled my
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.

S Farer mnf g oy o ] s
SROTIATIS TnrIniation o BT ]

36. F am unatle to audit and report onthe usefulness and reliability of the performance information
as the annua! performance report of the municipality was not prepared as required by section
46 of the Municipal Systems Act of South Africa, 2000 {Act No. 32 of 2000) (MSA) and section
121(3)(c} of the MFMA.

| Report oo avdidit of compliance with laisiation jl
introduction and scope
37. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004} (PAA) and
the general notice issued in terms thereof | have a responsibility to report material findings on
the compliance of the municipality with specific matters in key legistation. | performed
procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance,
o g
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38. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in kev legislation are as followys:

39. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in
accordance with the requirements of sectien 122(1) of the MFMA. Material misstatements
identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were not adequately correctad
and the supporting records could not be provided subsequentty, which resuited in the financial
statements receiving a disclaimer audit opinion. Simitar non-compliance was also reported in
the prior year.

40. The 2016-17 annual report was not tabled in the municipal council within sevan months after
the end of the financial year, as required by section 127(2) of the MFMA. Similar non-
compliance was also reported in ihe prior year.

41. The council failed to adopi an oversight report, containing the council's commenis on the
annual report, within the prescribed timelines as required by section 129(1) of the MFMA.
Simitar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

42. An adequate management, accounting and information system which accounts for revenue
and debtors was not in place, as required by section 64(2)(e) of the MFMA. Simitar non-
compliance was also reported in the prior year,

43. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that accounts for service charges
were prepared on an accrual basis, as required by section 64(2)(c) of the MFMA,

44. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that interest had been charged on
all accounts in arrears, as required by section 64(2)(g) of the MFMA.,

AEDLLE NHnangonong

45. An adequate management, accounting and information system which accounts for assets was
not in place, as required by section 63(2)(a) of the MFMA.

DEpendiiure Manarament

46. Money owed by the municipality was not aiways paid within 30 days, as-required by section
65{2)e) of the MFMA. Simiiar non-compliance was also reporied in the pricr year.

47. An adequate management, accounting and information system was not in place which
recognised expenditure when it was incurred, as required by section B5(2)(b) of the MFMA,

48. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent unauthorised expenditure, as required by section
62(1)(d) of the MFMA. The fuli extent of the unauthorised expenditure could not be quantified
as indicated in the basis for qualification paragraph. Simiiar non-compliance was also reported
in the prior year,

49. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irreguiar expenditure, as required by section
62(1)(d) of the MFMA. The fuil extent of the iregular expenditure could not be quantified as
indicated in the basis for quatification paragraph. Similar non-compliance was also reported in
the prior year.

50. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent fruitiess and wasteful expenditure, as required by
section 82{1)(d) of the MFMA. The full extent of the fruitless and wasteful expendifure could not
be guantified as indicatec in the basis for qualification paragraph. Similar non-compliance was
also reported in the prior year.

Conseguencs mansgement

51. Unauthorised expenditure incurred by the municipality was not investigated to determine if any
person is liable for the expenditure, as required by section 32(2){a) of the MFMA.
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92. Irreguiar expendifure incurred by the municipality were not investigated to determine if any
person is liable for the expenditure, as required by section 32(2)(b) of the MFMA. Similar non-
compliance was also reported in the prior year.

53. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred by the municipality was not investigated to
determine if any person is liable for the expenditure, as required by section 32{2)(b) of the
MFMA. Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year,

54. Allegations of financial misconduct laid against officials of the municipaiity were not
investigated, as required by section 171{4){a) of the MFMA.
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55. A performance management system was not established, as required by secticn 38({a) of the
MSA. Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

56. Performance in respect of programmes funded by the Municipal Infrastructure grant (MIG) and
integrated Nationai Electrification Programme grant (INEP) was not evaluated, as required by
section 12(5) of the DoRA. Simitar non-compliance was also reported in the pricr year.

57. The INEP grant was not spent for its intended purposes in accordance with the applicable grant
framework, as required by section 17(1) of the DoRA.
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8. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that contracts and quotations were
awarded in accordance with the legislative requiremenis as no record management system
was in place. Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

59. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that some goods and services with
a transaction value of below R200 000 were procured by obtaining the required price
quotations as required by SCM reguiation 17{a) & {c). Similar non-compliance was aiso
reported in the prior year.

60. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained for some of quotations accepted
from prospective providers, that these providers were on the list of accredited prospective
providers or meet the listing requirements prescribed by the SCM policy, as required by SCM
regulations 16(b) and 17({b). Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

61. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could nat be obtained that awards and contracts were
awarded only to bidders whe submitted a declaration on whether they were employed by the
state or connected to any person employed by the state, as required by SCM regulation 13(c).
Similar nen-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

B82. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that guotations and coniracts were
only accepted from bidders whose tax matters had been declared by the South African
Revenue Service to be in order, as required by SCM reguiation 43, Simiiar nofi-compliance
was also reported in the prior year.

63. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that deviations approved by the
accounting officer were only if it was impractical to invite compstitive bids, as required by SCM
regulations 19(a) and 36(1). Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

64. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that bid specifications were
unbiased and aliowed all potential suppliers to offer their goods or services, as required by
SCM regulation 27(2)(a}. Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

65. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be ohiained that invitations for competitive
bidding were advertised for a required minimum pericd of days, as required by SCM regulation
22(1) & 22(2). Similar non-compliance was aiso reported in tha prior year.
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6. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that the preference point system
was applied in all procurement of goads and services above R30 099 as required by section
2(a) of the Praferential Procurement Policy Framework Act. Simiiar non-compliance was also
reported in the prior year.

67. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that construction contracts were
awarded {o coniractors that were registered with the Construction industry Development Board
(CIDB) and qualified for the contract in accordance with section 18(1) of the CIDB Act. Similar
non-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

68. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that all extensions or modifications
to contracts were approved by a properly delegated official, as required by SCM regulation 5.

§9. The performance of contractors or providers was not monitored on a menthiy basis, as requirad
by section 116(2)b) of the MFMA.

70. Awards were made to providers who are in the service of other state institutions, In
contravention of MFMA section 112(j) and SCM regulaticn 44. Similar awards were identified in
the previous year and no effective steps were taken to prevent or combat the abuse ¢f the
SCM process, as required by SCM regulation 38(1).

71. Persons in the service of the municipality who had a private cr business interest in contracts
awarded by the municipality failed to disclose such interest, in contravention of SCM regulation
46(2)(e). Similar non-compiliance was also reported in the prior year.

.
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72. | considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable legistation, however, my objective
was not to express any form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below are fimited to
the significant internal controf deficiencies that resulted in the basis for disclaimer of opinion,
the findings on the performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included
in this report.

» Leadership did not ensure that there is appropriately skifled staff in key positions within
the finance, performance and compliance units. Furthermore, leadership’s in-year
monitoring and cversighi was inadequate to prevent material limitations in the financial
staternents, non-compfiance with laws and regulations and the absence of a system to
support the collection, pracessing and reporting of performance against pre-detarmined
abjectives.

= lack of sufficiently skilled staff negatively impact on the implementation of proper systems
to coliate, process and report financial ang performance information. This has led to
excessive reliance on consultants to compite financial information and statements. Lack of
internal conirols and oversight contributed to inaccurate and unreliable financia! reports
and recerds. Furthermore, there are no systems in place to enforce compliance with laws
and regulations and no actions are taken against staff that is responsible for these
fransgressions.

s There were no appropriate governance structurss at the municipality, as an audit
committee and internai audit unit were not appointed for the year under review.
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Maledi Local Municipality

{Registration number NW382 - (Grade 3))

Trading as Naledi Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the ysar ended June 30, 2018

Accounting Officer's Responsibiiities and Approval

The accounting officer is required by the Punicipal Finance kanagement Act {Act 56 of 2003}, to maintain adequate
accounting records and is respoisible for the content and integrity of the annual firancial statements and related financial
informatian included in this report. i is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financial siatements
fairly present the state of afairs of the municipality as at the end of the financial year ang the results of its operations and cash
flows for the period then ended. The axternal auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annua! financial
statements and was given unresiricted access to all inancial records and related data.

The annual financiat statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Genaraily Recognisad Accounting
Practice (GRAP) including any interprelzlions, guidelines and directives isaued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriaie accounting poticies cansistently applied and sypparted by
reasonable and prudent judgemenls and estimatas,

The accounting afficer acknowledges that he is uitimately responsible for the system of internal financial contral estahlished by
the municipality and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong controt environmeant. To enable the accounting
oificer ta meei these responsibilities, tha accounting officer sets standards for intemal control aimed at reducing the risk of
eror or deficit in a cost effective mznner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly
definzd framewark, effleclive accounting procedures and adequate sagregation of dutias o ensure an acceptable level of risk.
These controls are monitared throughout the municipality and ail employess are required to maintain the highest ethicat
standards in ensuring the municipalily's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable dicumstances is above
reproach. The focus of isk management in the municipality is on kientifying, assessing, managing and monitoring af known
forms of Nsk across the municipality. YWhite operating risk canne! he fuily eliminated, the municipality endeavours fo miinimisa it
by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, confrals. sysiems and eihical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constrainis.

Thie accounting officer is of the opinian, basad on the information and explanations given by management, that the systam of
internat cantrol provides reasoniable assurance that the fingncial records may be refied on for the preparation of the annual
financial statements. However, any systern of internal financial controd can provide onty reasonable, and nat absolute,
assurance against materiat misstalemant or defcit,

The accounting officer has reviewsa the municipaiity's cash flow forecast for the year to June 30, 20118 and, in the light of this
reviaw and the current financial position, he is safisfied that the municipality has or has access to adequate resources to
continua in operational existence forthe foreseeanie fuiure.

Although the accouniing officer is primarily responsible for the financiat affairs of the municipaiity, he is supparted by the
municipalify's externat auditars.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and eporting on the municipality's annual financiat
statements. The annua: financial stalements have been examined by the municipality's external audiiors and their repor is
presented 6n page 5.

Th,sf'énnual financial siatements set out on pages S to 63, which have been prenared on the going concem basis, were
approved by the council an August 20, 2015 and were signed on its behalf by:
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Naledi Local Municipatity

(Registrabon number NW392 - {Grade 3)}

Trading as Naledi Local Municipality

Annaual Financizl Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Accounting Officer’'s Repeort

The accounting officer submits his report for the year ended June 30, 2018.

1. PReview of aclivities

Wlain business and operabions

The municipality iz engaged in iocal municipality and operates princinally in South Africa.

The municipality is engaged in -provision of a democratic and accountable local govemment;

s ensuring the provision of sustainable municipal services,

[ promoiion of social and economic devefopment:

4 proemotion of a gafe and healihy environment; and

® encourage the invalvement of communities and orgariisations in the matters of local governmeni.

The operating results and state of affairs of the municipality are fully set out in the attached financiai statements 2nd do not in
~our opinion require any fuber commant,

Met deficit of the municipality was R 31 382 413 (30 June 2017 surplus R 10 009 340).

2. Financial sustalnabiiity

The municipafity is currentty faced with numerous finencial problemns which impact, amongst others, on its abilily to meet ils
financiat commitmenis and the provision of sustainabie basic services. Chafienges faced regarding financial Issues manifests
in ¢ash flow constraints.

During the current fnancizl period, the municipality experienced serous cash flow challenges. While the municipality had taken
reasopnable steps to ensute lhat all creditors were pait within 30 days, i was not able io meet this criterion. Because of this,
there were some instances where the municipality ingurred interest in respect of oulstanding bailances of creditorst

3.  FPruitdess and wastelful expendifare

Given the current financial position of the municipality. tiere were insiances witere the municipality incurred interest due to fate
payment of credifor accownts. The interest incurred in this respect was unavoideble and has been disclosed in 52




MNaiedi Local Municipality

{Registration number HYW352 - {Grade 3}

Trading as Maledi Locat Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Statemnent of Financial Position as at June 30, 2048
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Figures in Rand Note(s} 2018 2017
Aogois
Current Aszels
Inventaries 7 2.253 877 2.898 951
Receivables from nan-exchange tranzactions 8 14,508,073 10,393.205
VAT receivablie 9 17,613,925 32.670,327
Cansumer deblors 74550113 18,552,982
Cash and cash equivalents 2,591,295 18,626,259
191,547,008 83,184.724
Non-Current Assets
Properly, ptant and equipment 4 1,207 679,505 1,222 663,185
Heritage assets ' 5 709,286 709,286
1,208,389,181 1,222,352,474
Total Agaels 4,319,90€,280 1,306.577,i58
Liakilittas
Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities 16 12,058,547 12,058,547
Payabies from exchange fransactions 18 513,534,015 437,892,809
Cansumer deposits 18 5,406,172 6.4590,924
Unspent canditionaf grants and receipts 15 2925619 26571287
Proyisions 17 5,950,154 B, 379,440
i 340,874,517 491,283,007
Non-Curren? Lizbilities
Other financial liabilities 15 8,055,895 12,213,730
Pravisions 17 59,665,168 67,235,882
T7ZL 663 B0 140827
Totai Lizbilities 18,895,580 571,542,678
Mot Asseto 761,310,700 735,634,566
Resarves
Revaluation reserve 12 2470,085 Z 470,085
Accumulated surplus 13 700 920,867 732 554,489
Total Met Azsetz 703,380,952 735,034,586
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Naledi Local Municipality

{Fegistration number NW382 - (Grade 33)

Trading as Naledi Local Municipality

Annuat Financial Sfatements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Statement of Financial Performance
Frures in Rand Mote(s] 2018 2017

Revenue

Revenue from exchange iranzaciions

Service charges 21 148,416,960 148.583.18%9
Rental of facililies and equipment 22 2.775.504 1,003,614
Licences and permits 5,221,107 6,390,006
Other income 24 4,456 415 30,881,755
Interast recaved 25 23,861,165 21,123,736
Tofat revenue from exchange iransactions 184,732,256 207,287 337

Revenue from non-exchange fransactions

Taxatian yevenio

Properly rates 25 46,057,550 76,825,604
Transfer revanue
Gaovernment grants & subsidies : 28 103,005,574 108750077
Fines 4,311,314 1,811,750
Total reveriue from non-exchange iransactions 153,376,038 184 28T 431
Totat revenue 20 338,147,288 392,389,768
Expenditure
Employes related costs 25 {161,555 358) (162,318,272)
Rernuneration of councillors 30 {7.712 870} (6,580,076}
Depreciation and amertisation 3% (43,477,451} {35,892,345)
Impairment joss/ Reversal of impaimenis 3z {15,488 214} {33,585 8139)
Finance Costs a3 {32,225502) (38,587,328)
Repairs and maintenance (2,055 560) 12,510,401}
Bulk purchases 34 (78,311,879) (76,304 580}
Contracted services 35 (11,184,185} [25876.025)
Transfers and Subsidies 2 {20,214} (144,043}
General Expenses 3G (17,966,478} (26,276,661)
Tatal expenditure {3582,897,911) (409.456,598)
Operating daficit (34,890,623 {17,925,830}
Loss on disposal of FPE 508,210 {2,276,139)
Actuarial gainsflosses 6 - 10,090 685
(Gain on naturat movermnent of game / animals - (684,583}
Unwinding of discounting - {12,673}
508,240 7,147,490
Deficit for e year {3%,382,413) (10,009,346}




Maledi Local Municipality
{Registration number MW3a2 - (Grade 3)}
Trading as Maledi Lacal Municipality

Annuat Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Statement of Changes in Net Azsets

0238

Figures in Rand

Revaluation Accumutated Toiaf net
reserie surplus assets

Bafance at July 1, 2016
Changes in nei asseis
Revaluation of game animals
Offsetting of depreciation
Realisalion of revaluation resesve

Mel income ({losses) recognised directly in net assets
Deficit for the year

Total recognised income and expenses for the year
Total changes

Balance at tuly 1, 2017
Changes in net assels
Sumplus for the year

Total changes
Bajance at June 38, 2448

Note{s)

2,764,229 749.640,183 743,904,422

1,235,484 - 1239484
{533,628} - {333.628)
- 933,628 933623

305,355 933,628 1,239,484

- (10,008,340; {10,008,340)

305,856  (9.075.712) (8.763.856)

305,858 {9.075,712)  (B.769.858)

2,470,085 732,103,280 734773365

(31,282,.213) (31,382.413)

3

(21,382,413} (31,332.417)

Z4T8,055 TO0,920,887 703,350,552

12
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Nzledi Local Municipality

{Regislration number NW392 - (Grade 3))

Trading as Naledi Local Municipality

Annual Financial Stalements far the vear ended June 30, 2018

Cash Flow Statement

0239

Figures in Rand Motels) 20%8 2017
Gash flows from operating activities
Recefpls
Taxation - 67,260 355
Sale of goods and services 160.871,085 157500338
Granis 105,933,193 113,747,390
Intarest income 23,861,165 21,123,735
290 655,443 359,721,849
Payments
Empioyee costs {161,555,358) (169,259 348)
Supptiers (80,097.227) (97.523535)
Finance costs (32,225,802} (39,577 504)
(273 .878.487) (306,400,487}
Met cash flows from operating achvities 38 16,795,958 53,331,332
Cash fows from investing celivifies
Furchase of propery, plant and equipment 4 {28,474.295) (49.684,420;
Procesds from sale of property, plant and squipment 4 508,210 {9.999}
Proceeds from sale of heritage assets 5 - 10,000
Proceeds from sale of biological assets that form part of an agnculfural activity 3 - {G84 3483}
Movement in Landfill Site Asset - 1,736,718
Nat cach flows from investing activites (27,266,085} [48,832,0%4)
Cash flows from firancing scivides
Repayment of other Enancial lishifities (4,857,835) (4,186,027}
Firance fease payments - {457 697}
Net cash flowe from financing actvities {4.857,835)  {4,853,724)
Net increzse/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {158,036,984} 45,314
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 18,628,259 18,562 745
Cash and cash equivalents zt the end of the yaar 1 2580295 18,626,259
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Nzledi Loca! Municipality

{Registration number NW392 - (Grade 3}}

Trading as Naladi Locat Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounis

0241

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved Adjustimenis  Final SBudget Actualamaunts Dilference

budget an comparable behwzen final
basis oudget and
Figures in Rang actual

Reference

Statement of Financiai Performance
Revenue

Revenue from exchanoe

rensactions

Service chames 211,227,000 307,000 281534008 148 416,989  {63,317,031)
Other Own Ravenue 25,718,000 635,000 26,357 200 5221107 {21,135,083)
Qther income - - - 4,455,415 4,465,415
Interast raceived - invesiment 358,000 - 358,00 23,861,165 21,503,158
Taotal ravenus from exchanes 237,393,000 B4E000  732,249.000 181,355,868  (56,293,344)
transacions

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

Taxation revente
Properly rates 47,231,000 3,318,000  S0,548,008 45 057 550 4,499,450}

Transfer revente
Govemment granis & subsidies 48,911,000 1334000 56,245000 403005574 52,760,574

Fines, Penatties and Forfeits 1,097,000 6,500,000 7,897,008 4,311,914 {3,385,086)
Toiat revenue froin non- 97,233,000 11,452,900 106,381,000 983,375,038 £4,984,032

exchange transactions

Total revanus 334,542,000 12,688,000 146,840,000 335,330,654  {41,300,306)
Erpenditure

Persannel {168,980,000; +0.988,000 {157,992,000) (161 555356}  ,6563,3583;
Remuneration of councitfors (7,633,000) it2.000 {7.523.004; (7,712570) {189,678}
Depreciation and amarlisaticn {14 370,000} - (44,370,000 (43477 451) 92,549

impairment foss/ Reversal of {16.650,000} - [t6,850000) 1i5488214) 1,181,786

impairments

Finance costs (15,772,000) (8,423,000} (24,798,008} (32 225302) (8,039,502
Repairs and maintenance - - - {2,055,660) (2,085,550}
Bufk purchases (97.973,000) - {S7,973,000} (78.311879) 19,664,124

Contracted Services (14618000}  (5212000) (255300000 (11184.185) 9,345,815

Transfers and Subsidies 37,960,000 2,825000 46,785,000 {20,214) {%6,805,244}
QOther expenditure {38,150,000) 17,748000 (21,467,000} - B4nt,000

Totat expenditure {387,88,000) 17,332,000 (349,345,000} (352031433 (2,182,433
Operating defici £32,645,000] 29,437,000 (3,209,000} {16,700,73%)} (13,481,739}
Gain on disposal of assets and 10,000,000 - 18,800.008 508,210 (9,421,790}
fiabilities

Surplus (22,645,000] 29,437,000 873,000 (15,192528) (22.983,525)

Actual Amount cn Comparsble (22,645 000} 29,437,080 3,791,000 {18,182 33258} {(22,98132%)
Basis as Fresented in the

Budget and Actual

Compatative SEtement

10
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Maledi Local Municipality

{Registration number NW392 - (Grade 3}}

Trading as Maiedi Local Municipatity

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2013

Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Annuat Financial Statements

The annual fnanciat statements hava been prepared in accardanca with the Slandaeds of Generally Recagnises Accou ftirg
Practice {GRAP), issued by the Accounding Standards Board in accardance with Section 122{3} of the Municgpal Finance
Management Aci (Act 56 of 2003).

These annual financiat statements have been prepared on an acervel basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise.

Assets, fiabilities, revenues and expenses were not offsat, except where ofisetting is either required or pemitted by a Standard
of GRAP.

A summaty of the significant accounting pelicies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annuai
financiat staiaments, are disclosed hefow.

These accaunting palicies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Freseniation currency

Thase annual financiat statements arg presented in South Afican Rand. which is the funclionat curency of the municipatity.
1.2 Golrg congern assamption

These annual financial statemenis have bean prepared based an the expeciation that the municipality will continue 1
cperate as a going concem for at least the next 12 months. -

1.3 Compamiive information

Budget informaticn in accordance with GRAP 1 and 24, has bsen provided as part of these fisancial statemants and forms part
of the audited annual financial stalements.

When the presentation or classiication of items in the annuai financial statements is amended, prics peniod comparative
ameunts are restated. The nature and reason for the reciassification is disclosed, Where accounting aerrors have been
identified in the current year, the carvectian is made refrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are
restated accordingly, Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the curreni year, the adjustment is made
refrospeclively as far as is practicable, and ihe prior year comparatives are restated accordingly,

1.4 invesimaenrt property

Initial recognition

Investment propery inoludes property {land or a building, or parl of a buitding, or both land or buildings held under a finance
lease) hald to earn rentals endfor for capiial appreciation, rather than held o meet service delivery objaclives, the production or
supply of goods or services, or ihe sate of an esset in the ordinary course of operations.

At initial recognition, the: municipality measures invesiment properly at cost! including transaction cosls once i meets the
definition of investment property. However, where an invesiment property was acauized through a nonexchange fransaction
{i.e. where it acguired the investment property for no or @ nominat value), its cost is its fair value as af he date of acquisition.
The cost of selfconsiructed investment property is the cost ai daie of completian.

Subseguent rneasanemet

fnvestment property is measured using the fair value model. Under the fair vatue model, investment praperty is camied at its
fair vajue at the reporting date. Any gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of the properiy is included in surplus or

deficit for the period in which i arises.

Compensation from third parties for investment properly that was impaired, lost or given ua is recognisad in surptus or deficit
when the compensaiion becomes receivabla.

iR
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Naledi Local Municipality

(Registration number NW392 - (Grade 3 i

Trading 2¢ Mafedi Locat Municipality

Annual Financiaf Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Accounting Policies

1.4 investment property (contnued)

Property interests held under opesaling \eases are dassiied and aceaunted for as investment property in tha following
circumstances:

When classification is difficult, the criteria used to disfinguish investrnent preperty from owneroecupied property and from
propeny held for sale in the ordinary course of operations, including the neture or type of properfies classified as held for
strategic purposas, are 2s foilows.

1.5 Property, plant and equigment

tem Depreciation method Averzge useful ¥z
Infrastructure - Roads and Lighls Staight fine 1040
infrastructure - Water Pipefines Straight line 25-50
tnfrastructure - Water Pumps, Purification and Reservoirs Straight ling 36-55
Infrastructure - Sewsrage Siraight fine 25-30
infrastructurs -« Lang Straight line indefinite
Infrastructure - Landfi#i Site Perimeter Protection and struciures Straight line 10-85
Community - Buidings Straight fine 30
Cammunity - Recreational Faciiities Straight line 30
Community - Cemeterics Sirzight fine 30
Community - Halis Straight ling 3¢
Community - Libraries Straight fina a0
Cammunity - Civic Buildings Slraight fine 30
Community - Other assets Straight line 15-30
Qther - Buiidings Straight ling ao
Other - Office equinment Straight line 7
Other - Furntture and fitlings Straight line 7
Ciher - Emergency equipment Siraight line 10
Other - Computer equipment Straight fine 5 -
Olher - Machinery and Equipment Straight line 6-1
Qther - Official Viehiclos Straight fine 7
Other - Qther assels Siraight kne 4-15
Qther - Game / Animals Straight line 4-21

1.8 intzngibls azsols

nitial recognition

An intangible asset is an identifiable nonmonetary asset without physical substance. Examplas inciude computer sofwa re,
licences, and develepmant costs. The mu nicipalily recognises an imangible asset in its Statement of Finangial Position oniy
when it is prabable that the expected future economic benefits or service potentiel that ars atirisutable to the asset will flow to
the municipality and the cost or fair vajue of the asset can ke measured reliabjy,

Inlernally genarated intangible assels are subject to strict recegnition criteria before they are capitlised. Research expenditure
is never capiialised, while development expenditure is only capitziised 1o the axfent lhat;

= the municipality intends o complete the intangibte =ssat for use ar sale;

* it is technically keasible to complete the intangible asset

> the municipality has the resources to complete the project: and

» it is probabile that the municipaiity will recgive future economic benafits or service potential.

tntangible assels are initially recognissd at cosi.

12
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Naledi Local Municipality

(Registration number NW392 - (Grade 3})

Trading as Naledi Local Municipality

Arnuzl Financiat Staternents for the vear ended June 30, 2015

Accounting Policies

1.6 Infampible asasts {continuad)

Wherse an intangible assel is acquired by the municipalify for no o7 nominal cansideration {i.e. a nonexchanga fransaction), the
cost is deemed {o be egual ta the fair vaiue of that asset on tha date acquired,

Where am intangible asset is acauired in erchange lof a nonmonetary dssal of manetary assets, or a combination of monetary
and nonmonatary assefs, the assel acquired is initially measured at fair value {the cost). If the acquired Hem's feir value was
not determinable, il's deemead cost is the carrying amaunt of the asaet{s) given up.

Sutisequent migasurement

The cost mode! has been chosen for Intangihle asssts,

intangible assels are subsequentiy carried at cosi fess accumulated amoritisation and im paimments. The cost of an intangibie
assef is amontisad aver the uselul fife where that usefiut life is finite. Whers the usaful fife is indefinife, the asset is not
amartised but is subject to an annuat impaimant test.

Amortsation and impairment

Amaortisation s charged so as o write off the cost of valuation of intangible assels over their estimated useful lives using the
straight line method

The amortisalion pened and the amonisation Method far an intangible asset with a fnite usefu! life are reviewed at each
reparting date and any changes are recognised as 2 change in accunting astimate in the Stetement of Financial Performanca,

The municipality tasts intangible assets with finite usaful fves for impaimment where there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. An assessmeni of whether there is an indication of passible impaimment is done at each raporling date. Where the
carrying armount of an lem of an intangible asset is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (of racoverahle service
amount), it ig writien down immediataiy {0 i recaverabie amount (or récoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is
charged 1o the Statement of Financial Performance.

Barecogniticn

fntangible assets are derecognised when the asset is dispesed of of when thate are no furlher economic benefits or service
poteniial expaciad from the use of the 2sset. The gain or loss arising on the disposa! or retirement of an intangible gsset is
determined zs the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying valve and is recognised in the Stelement of
Financial Perfarmance.

ftem Depreclation methsd Avarage usaiul ie

1.7 FHerilage assels

Heritage assels ae assels that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technoiogicel or artistic significance
and are held indefinitety for the beneffl of present and future generations.

13
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Naledi Local Municipality

{Redgistrafion number R332 - {Grade 3})

Trading 3s Waledi Local Municipalily

Annuai Financia! Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Accounting Policies

.7 Herllage assais (continued)

A heritage asset eoognised is initially measured at its cost. The cost of 2 purehased heritage esset comprises of i purchase
price, intluding any costs directly attributable to bringing the heritage szset to iha lozation and condition necsssary for it to be
capable of operating int the manner intended by mznagement.

Where 2 herilage azsst is acquired by the municipality for no or nominal considerstion (i.e. 2 nonexchange transactio n}, the
cost is deemed fo be equal to the fair vafue of thaf asset on the date acquired.

Subsequent measuremen? Coot moded

ARer recognition as an asset, a clasg of hentage assets shall be caried at its cost less any accumutfated impaimment losses,
Depreciation and impairmant

Heritage assets are not depreciated.

Tha municipality tests for impaimment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of whether
there is an indication of passiale impaiment is done at each reporting date, Where the caimying amount of the hardtage asset is
greater than the eslimated recoverable amount (or recoverable sarvice amount}, it is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount (or recoverable service amaound) and an impaimmznt loss is charged to the Statement of Finanaial
Perdomance.

Derecagnition

Heritage assats are derecognised when the azsat is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or seryica
patential expacied from the use of the asset. The gain or foss arising on tha dispasal or refirement of the heritage asset is
determined as the difference beiwaen the seies proceeds and the camying value and is recognised in the Statement of

Financizl Performance.

14
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Naledi Local Municipality

(Regsstration number MW 392 - {Grade 3))

Trading as Maledi Loca} Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Accounting Policies

B Financial instruments

iritial recognition

Finanecial instruments are inkially recognized at {air value.
Suvheequent measurament

Finandial Asseis are categorised according to their nature as sither fnancial aesefs ai fair value through profit or loss, held o
maturity, loens and receivables. or available for sale. Financial habifiies are cateqofised as elther at fair value through profit or
loss or financial liabifittes carried at ameriised cost (“other™). The subsequent measurement of financial 2sssts and kabilites
depends on this categaorisation and, in the absence of an approved GRAP Standard on Financial Insfrumenis, is in aceordance
with A5 38,

investmants

Investments, which includs listed government bonds, unfisted municipal bonds, fixed deposits and shorl term daposits invested
in registered commercial banks, are categorisad as efther heid to maturity where the criteria for that catagocisation are met, aor
as loans and recsivables, and are measured at amortised cost. Where invesimants have heen impaired, the carrying vaiuve is
adjusted by the impairment loss, which is recognised as an expense in the period that the impaiment is identified. Impaimments
are calculaled &s being the differance between the camying amount and tha prasant value of the expected fuiure cash lows
flowing from the instrument. On disposal of an investment, the difference between the nel disposal proceeds and the camrying
amount is charged or crediled to the Staiemeni of Financiai Padomancs.

Trada and other receivabley

Trade and other receivables are categorised as financial assets; loans and receivables and are initially recognised at fzir value
and subsequently carmied at amortised cast. Amariised cost refars to the inilial carrying amount, plus inlerest, less repayments
and impainments. An estimate is made for deubiful receivables based on a review of alf oy Istanding amounts at year end.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that (he debtar will enter bankruptcy or financial regrganisation, and
defautt or delinquency in payments {more than 30 days overdue) are considered indiczlors that the trede receivable is
impaiied, impzirments are determined by discounting expecled future cash flows o their presant value. Amounts that are
receivable within 12 manths from the reporling date are classified as current, .

An impaiment of rade receivables is socounted for by reducing the camying amoun! of rade receivables through the use of an
allowance account, and the amourt of the Igss is recognised in the Slatament of Financial Perfomanace wilhin operaling
expenses. Yvhen a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off. Subsequent recoveries of amaunts previously wrilien of are
credited against operafing expenses in the Statement of Financiai Performance.

Trade payzbimg and barrowingo

Financial liabilties consist of rade payables and bormowings. They are calegonsed as financial liaibililies held at amonised
cost, are intitially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amorised cost which is the initis! carrying amount,
less repayments, plus intergsl

Cash and cash squivalents

Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash} and cash with banks {including ca¥ deposits). Cash equivaients sre short
term highly liguid investments, readify converfibie into known amounts of cash, that are held with registarad banking institutions
with maturilies of three months or less and are subject ko an insighificant risk of change in value. For the purposes of the aash
flow siatement, cash end cash equivelents comprise cash an hand, dsposits held on call with banks, nst of bank overdrafs.
The municipality calegorises ¢ash and cash equivelents as financizi asssts: joans and recaivebles,

Bank overdrals are recored based on the facifity utitised. Financa charges on bank averdrail are expensed as incurred.
Amounts owing in raspect of bank overdrafts are categonised es fnandal liabilities: other fnancia! ligpiitles carred at amenised
cost.
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MNaledi Local Municipality

{Registration number MW332 - (Grade 3))

Trading a5 Naledi Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Accounting Policies

1.8 Tax

Value added Tamation (VAT

The municipaiity accounts for value added fasation on the accruzl basis,
1.0 Lesses

Municipality 25 lessze

Leases are classified s finance feases where substaniially zll the risks and rewards associeted with ownership of an asset are
transferred to the municipality. Property, piant and equiprnent or intangible zssats subject to finance lease agreements arg
initially recognised at the Inwer of the assef's Fair vaiue and the present vaiue of the minimum lease payments. The
Corresponding liabilities are initialiy recagnised at the inception of the lease and zre measurad as the sum of the minimum
lease payments due in terms of tha lease agreement, discounted for the effect of interast. In discounling the jease paymenis,
the municipality uses the interest rate that exactly discounts the lease paymants and unguaranieed residust value to the fair
value of the asset plus any direct costs incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognifian, the leased assets are accounted for in accordance with the stated accounting policies
applicabie to properly, plant, equipment or intangibles. Tha lease liability is reduced by the iease payments, which are ajfjocated
between tha lease financa cost and the capita! fepayment using the effectiva interest rate method. Lease finance costs arg
axpensed whan incutred. The accaunting palicies relating to derecognition of financial instruments are applied to lease
payables. The lease assel is depraciated over ihe shorter of the asset's useful ife ar the i=s52 {erm.

QOperating leases are those leases that do not fal! within the scope of the above definition. Operating lease rentals are accrued
on a stiaight kne basis ovar the term of the ralevant lease.

Municipality as lessor

Under a finance lease, the municipality recognises the lease payments to be received in terms of a leass agreement as an
asset feceivable). The receivable is caiculated as the sum of ail the minimum lease payments to be recetved, plus any
unguaranteed residuaf accruing 1o the municipality, discounted at the interest rate impkcit in the lease. The mceivable is
reduced by the capital portion of the lease instalments received, with the interes: partion being necognised as interest revenue
on a time propartionate basis. The accounting policies relgting to derecognifion and impairment of financial instrumenis are
applted to lease receivables.

Rentat income from operating teases is recognisad an a straight line basis over the term of the releyant fease.
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111 Invenicries
initial recognrition

Inventonies compnise cument asseis held for sake, consumption or distribution during the ordinary course of business.
Inventories are initially racognised at cost, Caost generaily refers ta the purchasa price. plus taxes, transport cosis and any other
costs in bringing the inventories to their current location and condition. Where inventary is manufactered, construcied or
produced, the cest includes the cost of iabour, materals and overheads used during the manufaciuring process,

Where inventory is acquired by the municipafity for no or nominat consideration {i.. a non exchange transaction), the cost is
deermed o be equal to the fair vaiua of the item on the date acquired.

Subseguent measurement

inventories. consisting of consumabie stores, raw mazlerials, wark in progress and finished goods, are valued af the lawer of
cost and net realisable value unless they are fo be distributed a2 no or nominal charge, in which case they are measured at the
fawer of cost and current replacemart cost. Redundant and slow moving inventonies are identified and written down in thig

way Diflferences arising on the vatuaiisn of inventory are recognised in the Statement! of Financial Ferformance in the year in
which they arose. The amount of any reversal of any write doan of inventorias arising from an increase in net reatisable value
or current replacement cost is recognised as a reduction in the amgount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
wihich the reversai cecors.

The carmying amount of inventories is recognised as an expense in tha pariod that the inweniory was sold, distibuted, written off
or consumed, uniess that cost qualifies for capitalisation fo the cost of ancther asset,

In general, the basis of affocating cost to invenfory items is the first in, first aut method OR the waighted average rmethod.
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1.12 impainment josses
Ideritificaiion af cash generaling agsebs from non cash genaraling asgets

FPrimary objective of holding an assat is to genefate a commercial retum. Asseis will generzste a commarciat return when the
eniity infends 1o generate positive cash flows from the 2sset similar to & profit orieniated entity and therefore the cash flows (or
retum) generated shoukd refiect the rigk involved in holding ihe asset. in olher words, in addition fo the mere intention to hoid
assels 10 generalg cash flows the intention should also be io generate maruet retated cash fows from that asset. To the extent
that the cash flows are not market retatad, those cash fows are not represontative of tha risk invoived in helding the asset,
therefore the asset will be non cash generating. An asset can ba non cash generating, gven if it generated a commerciai return
during a particular prenod.

Non cash generating assets are managed for service delivery purposes {no commertizt return). in some situations, it rmay not
be clear what the main objective of hotding an asset is {l.2. whether it is to generata & commereial retuin or nof). In thesa
circumstances, it may be necessary to evaluale the significance of the eash flow genersted from such an asset,

Impaiiment of cash generailng assots

Cash generating assets are those assats helg by tha muricipality vath the primary ohjective of generzfing a commercia? retum.
When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that dopled by a profit arientated entity, it generates a commergial
raturn,

tdentification

When the carrying amount of a cash generaling asset exceads is recoverable emount, it is iMpaired, The municipality
assesses al each reporling date whether there is any indication that 2 cash generating asset may be impaired. If any such
indication axists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amaunt of ihe assel. Irospective of whether there is any indication
of impairment, the municipality 8iso fests a cash gsnerating intangible aseet with an indefinte ussfu! fife or a cash generating
intangible assei nat yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its cariying amount with its recoverable amount,
This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an intangible asset was initially fecognised dunng the current

reporting period, ihat intangible agset is tested for impairnant before the end of the current reporting penod.

Yaiue in use

Value in use of a cash genarating assat is the present valus of the estimated future cash flows expected o be derived fram the
continting use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of is useful lifa, When astimating the value in use of an asset. the
municipality estimaies the future cash infows and outfiows 0 be defivad from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate
disposal and the municipality applies the approprizie discount rate to those future cash flows.

Dizcaunt rate

The discount rate is a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime vaive of monay, represented by the
current risk free cate of interest and the risks apecific 1o the esset for which the future cash flow esiimates have not been
adjusted.

Recognition and measurement {individual assat)

if the recoverable amount of 2 cash genarating asse! is less than its camying amount, the carrying amouni of the assst is
reducad to its recoverable amounl This reduction is an impaimment loss. An impaimment lass s recognised immediately in
surplus or deficit. After the recognition of an impainrient loss. the depreciation {amorisation) charge for the cash gencrating
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the sash generating assel’s revised camying amount, kess its residuat value {if
any}, an a systematic basis over its remaining usefut fife,

Cash ganerating units

if there is any indication that an aaset may be impaired, the recoverable amouni is estimzted for the individuzl asset. If it is nat
possible to estimate the recaverable amount of the individual asset, the municipalily deterrninas the recoversbie amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset beiongs {the assat's cash generating unit). If an active market exists for the output
produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assels is identified as 3 cash generating unit, even # some or
all of the output is used internaily, if the cash inflows generated by any asset or cash generating unit are affected by internai
transfer pricing, the municipality uses menagement's best estimaie of future price(s} that could be achieved in amr's fength
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1.12 impalrment iozses {vontinued)

transactions in estimating: the fuiure cash inflows wsed to deternine the asssi's or cash generaiing unit's value in use: and the

future cash autflows used fo dstermine the valug in use of any other assels or cash genarating units that are affected by the

intamal transfer pricing. Cash genarating units are

ientified consistently from period 1o perod for the same assat or types of

assets, unless a change is justified. The carrying amount of a cash generating unit is determined on a basis consistant with tha
way the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is determined. An impairment loss is recogitised for a cash generating

carrying amount of the cash generating assets of {

the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are freated as impairment losses an ingividus! aasels. in aliocating an

impaiment foss, the municipality does not reducs

the carying amount of an asset below the highest of: its fair vaiue lass costs

to sell (if determinable); its vajue in use (i detemninable}; and zero, The amount of the impaimment foss that would otheraise
have been ailocated te the assel is a%iocated pro rata lo the other cash generating assais of the unit, Where & non cash

generating assat contributes o a cash genergiing

unil, a nroportion of the carrying amouni of that noncash generafing asset is

allacated to the carrying amount of the cash generating uni prior to estimation of the recaverable ameunt of ihe cash

generating unit.

Reversal of impairment Jogs

The municipality assasses at each feporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for a cash generating assst may no fongar exist or may have decreasad. if any such indication exists, the municipaiity
estimates the recoverable amount of that aseet. An impairment loss recognisad in orior penods for a cash generaiing asset is
reversed if there has been a change in (he estimaies used to determine the 2ssel's recoverzble amount since the last
impaiemant loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased lo its recoverable amount. The increase s a
reversal of an impaiment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset atinbutable to a reversat of an impaimment loss does
not exceed the camying amount that woukd hava heen determined {net of depreciation or armortisation} had no impairmant loss
been recognised for the asset in priar petisds. A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash genarating esset is recognised
immediately in surplus or deficit. Afier a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation {amortisation) chame for
the cash genzrating assef is adjusted in future pediods fo allocate the cash generating asset's revised carying amount, less s

resitual value (if any), on a systemaiic basis over
generating unit is aljocated to the cash generating

its remaining useful #ife. A reversat of an impairment loss for a cash
assets of the unit pro rala with the carrying amounis ¢f those assets. Thesa

incieases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impsiment losses for individual essets. No part of the amouni of
such a reversaf is alloeated o a non cash generating asset cantributing saervice potantial to g cash genarating unit. In alfocating
& reversat of an impairment loss for 5 cash generating unit, the camying amount of 2 asset is not increased above the lower
of. its racovarable smount {if determinable); and the Ccarmying amount thal wauld have baen determined {nei of emoriisation or
dapraciation) had no impairment foss beer fecognised for ihe assel in prior periods. The amount of the reversaj of the
impairmant toss that wotld otherwise hava been aftocated to the asset is aligcated pro rata to lhe other asseis of the unit.

Impainnent of non cash generating 2ssets
Mon cash generating assats are assels ofher than

idantification

cash generating assats,

municipality assesses at each reposting date whether there is any indication that 2 non cash generating assat may be impaired.
if any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable tervice amount of the asset. Irespeciive of whether
there is any indication of impainnent, the rmunicipalkity also tests a non cash generating infangible asset with an indefinite useful
life or a nan cash genermting intangible asset nat yet avaifable for use for impaiment annualy by comparing its carrying
amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment lest is performed at the same tima every vear, if an intangible
assef was initially recognised during the current reporting peried, that intangible asset is testad for impairment before the end of

the current reporting period.
Vaiue in use

Value in use of non cash generating assels is the

praseni vaiue of the non cash generating assels ramaining service patential.

The present value of the remaining service patentiai of a non cash generating assel is determined using the following

approach:

Dspreciated regiacement cos?t approatch
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{12 impaiment lesses {continued)
The present value of tha remaining service potentiat of a nen cash generaiing asset is determined as the depreciated
replacement cost of the assat. The replacament cost of an assat is the cost to replace the asset's gruss service potential This

cost is depreciated to refied] the assel in ils used condition. An assat mav be repiaced either thraugh reproduction {repiication)
of the existing asset or through repiacement of ifs gross service potential, The depreciated repiacement cos! is measured as
the reproduciion or replacement cost of the assef, whichever is lower, fess accumulated depreciation caiculated on the basis of
such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset. The replacement cost and repreduction
cost of an asset is determined on an "optimised” basis. The rationate is that the municinaiity will not replace or reproduce the
assst with 2 like asset if the asset fo be replaced or reproduced is an overtesigned or overcapacity asset, Overdesigned
assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or services the asset provides. Overcapacily assets afe assats
that have a greater capadity than is necessary jo meet fhe demand for geods gf services e asset provides. The determination
of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised basis fus refiects the service potential required of the
assef.

Recognition and measuremen?

if the recoverable service amouni of a non cash ganerating asset is less than its carrying amount, fhe camying amount of the
asset is reduced tu its recoverable service amaunt. This reduclion is an impaimment foss. An impaimment ioss is recognised
immediately in surplus or deficit, After the recagnition of an impairment ioss, the depreciation {gmonisation] charge for the non
cash geherating asset is adjusted in future periods o allocate the non cash generating assal's revised carrying amouni, [ess its
residual value {if any), on a systernatic basis over its remaining usefut lifa.

Revarsal! of an impairment foss

The municipaiity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
perinds for a non cash generating asset may na longer exist ar may have decreased. i any such indication exists, the
municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset. An impainmeni loss recognised in priar pernds for a non
cash genzsrating asset is raversed if thera has been a changa in the estimaetes used o determine the assal's recoverabie
service amount since the tast impairment loss was recognised. The cammying amount of the asset is increased 1o ds fecoverahie
service amount, The increase is a reversal of an impairmment ioss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable ta a
feversal of an impaimment loss does not exceed the carying amount that would have Seen detenmined {net of depreciation ar
amorlisation) had no impairment foss been recognised for the asset in prior pertods. A reversal of an impaimment loss for 2 non
cash generading asset is recognised immediately in surphis or deficit. ARer a reversal of an impairment loss s recognised, the
depreciation {amorlisation) chamge for the non ¢ash genemting asset is adjusted in future periods o alfocate the non cash
ganerating assel's revised carrying amount, iess its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over #s remaining usefu ife.

4.13 Share capital / contributed capital

An equity inslirument is any confract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of 2n municipality afler deducting all of its
liabilifies.
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1.14 Employee hanafits
Defined contribution plana

Cefired contribuiion plans

The municipzlity provides retirement benefits for its empioyess and councillors. Cengributions 1o defiied conlribution retirement
benefit plans afa recognised as an expense when empioyees and councifors have rendered the employment service or served
office entailing them to tha coniributions,

COiher post retirement obligations

Defined centribution plans ara post employment benefi plans under which the Municipality prays fixed contributions into 2
separate entity {2 fund) and will have no l2gal or constructive obtigation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hoid
sufficient assets to pay afl employee benefits relating fo employee service in the current and pnor pericds. Defined banefit
plans are past empioyment benafit plans ather than defined contribution plans,

Posi Ratirement Medical Dbligatllons

The Municipaiily provides post ratirement medical benefits by subsidizing the medicat aid contibutions af cartain retired staff
according to the rules of the medicat aid funds. Council pays 70% as contibution and the remaining 30% is pzid by the
mambers. The entittement to these benefits is usually conditional on the ermployee remaining in senvice up fo retirernent age
and the completion of @ minimunt service periad. The prasent vaiue of the defined bencfit tiability is acluarially detemmined n
accordance with GRAP 25 - "Employee Benefiis” {using 2 discount rate applicable to high quality government bonds). The plan
is unfunded,

These contributions are recognised in the Statemeant of Financial Pedomante when employees have rendered the service
entitling them ta the contribution. The hability was celculsied by means of the projectad unit credit actyariai vatuation method.
The kabiity in respect of current pensioners is regarded as fully accrued, and is therefore not spiit betwean 2 pasl (or accrued)
and future in service efement. The liabilily is recognised at the prasent value of the defined benefi obligation at the reparting
date, minus the fair value at the reparting date of plan assets (it any) out of which the obiigaticns are {0 be settled directly, plus
any liabiity that may arize as z resuit of a minimum funding

requirements. Payments made by the Municipality are set off against ihie liabtlity, including notionat interest, resulfing from the
valuation by the actuanes and ase recognieed in the Statement of Financial Perfomance as employea henefits upon valuation,

Actuariaf gains and losses arising from the experience adjusirments and changes in actuanat assumptions, is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performanca in the period ihat ii occurs. These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified
acluanes.

Long Service Awards

Long service awrrds are provided to employees who achieve certain pre determined milestones of service within the
Municipality, The Municipality's obligation under these plans is valued by indapendent guafified actuanes annueally and the
corresponding fiability is reised. Paymants sre set off agsinst the liability, including notional interest, resuiting from the valuation
by the actuanies and ase recognisad in the Statement of Financial Performance as employee benefits upan valuation,

Acluanial gains and Issses ansing from the experience adjustments and changas in actuarial assumptions, is recognised in the
Statement of Finaneial Perormance in the pariod that it ocours. These obfigations are vaiued annually by indspendent quadified

actuanes.
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112 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the municipality has 2 prasent or constructive ohiigation as 2 resull of past events, it is
probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will ke reguired fo setlle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of ths provision can ba made. Provisions are reviewed af reparling date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Where the effect is material, nen cureat provisions are discounted o their present value using a pre fax discount rate
that reflects the markef's cument assessmant of the time value of money, zdiusted for risks specific to the liakility {for example
in the case cof obligations for the rehabiftation of fand}.

The municipality does not racegnise a contingant liabfiity or contingent asset. A contingent Kabifity is disclosed unless the
possibilty of an outflow of resources embodying econamic benefits is remote. & conlingant asset is disclosed where an inflow
of acanomic benefits is proballe.

Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflectad in the amourit of a provision where thers
is sufficient objeclive avidenca that they will ocour, Gains from the expected disposat of asseis are not laken into account in
measufing a provision. Provisions ara nat recognised for future operating losses. The present obligaion under an onerous
confract is recognised and measured as a provision.

A provision for restructuring cosis is recognised enly when the following criteria over and shove the recognition criteria of a
provision have been met:

(a) The municipality has z deteiled formal plan for the resiructuring identifying st teast:
{he business or parl of a business concerned:
the principal locations affected;
the location, function, and approzimate numbear of employees wha will be compensaiad far tarminating their servicas:
the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
when the ptan will be implemented
{b} The municipakty has raised a valid expectation in those affarted that it wilt carmy sut the restruciunng by staring to
implement that plan or announding its mair features to thosa afiected by it

1.16 Commiunenis
Capital Commitments disclosed are the estimated amounts of capital contracts remsining to be executed after year end.
1.17 Revenue from exchange transacHons

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that acorued to the municipality direciy in retumn for services rendesad /
goads sofd, the vaiue of which apgroximates the consideration raceived or recaivable.

Interest revenue is recugnised on a time proporiion basis,
Revenue from the rental of facilities and equipmant is secognised on a siraight ling basis over the term of the lease agreement,

Revenue from the sale of gocds is recognised when subsiantially all the risks and rawards in those goods is passed fo the
consumer.

Revenue arising out of situations where the municipality acts as an agant on bahalf of anather entity {the principat} is limited fo
the amount ¢f any lee or coremission payable o the municipality as compensation for executing the agreed services,
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1.18 Revenue from Ro-2rchEngs ransactons

Revenue from nan exchange fransactions refers to irensactions whare the municipality received revenue from another entity
withaut directly giving approximaiely equal value in &xchange. Revenue from non exchange fransactions is generaily
recogrised to the extent thet! the retated raceipt or receivable quaiifies for recognitian as an asset and there is no liabiiity to
repay the amouni.

Revenue from public contributions and donations is recognised when all conditions assadiated with ihg contribution have bean
met or where the contribution is {0 hnance property, plant and equipment, when such items of property, plant and equipmen
qualifies for recognition and first becomes avaitable for use by the municipality. YWhere public coniributions have been received
but the municipality has not met the related conditfions, a deferred income {frability) is recognised,

Contributed properly, plant and equipment is recognised when such iterns of proparty, plant and equipment qualifies for
recagnition and become avaifable for use by the municipaiity.

Revenue from the recovery of unautharised, iragular, fruitless ad wasielit expendituie is based on legislated procedures,
including thase set out in the Municipat Finance Managemsnt Acs {Act No.56 of 2003) and is recagnised when the recovery
thereof from the respongible cauncitiors or officials is vituatly cenain.

Grants. ransfers and donations
Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are recognized when the resources that have been transferred meet the
cnieria for recognition as an asset A corresponding liability is raisad to the extent that the grant, transfer or donation is

conditional. The kiabitity is lransferred fo revenue as and wien the conditions attached to the grant are met. Grants without any
conditions atached are recognised as revenue when receivied.

Fines

Revenue fram fines are recognized at the initial fransadion date taking into account tha fulf amount of fines. impairmart is
based on the probability of collections.

1.79 Expengiture

Expendilure is recognised onee there is a decrease in economic benefits or service potentiat during the financial pariod in the
form of gutflows or consumption of assets or incurrences of tiabiities tha! result in decreases in net agsets

1.20 Bomowing cests

Borfowing costs are interest and other expenses incumed by an entity in comnection with the borrowing of funds.
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.21 mpalrments of assels

The municipality sssesses at sach reporting date whether thare s any indication that an asset may be impaired. ¥ any such
indication exists, tha municpality estimates the recovarzble sarvice amaunt of the ssset,

irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the municipaiity aksa;

tesis intangiole agsets with an indefinite usefut e or intangible assets not yet available for use for impairment annuaily by
comparing its camying amount with Hs racoverable amount. This impairmant test is performed during the annuat period and at
the same time evary perind.

lf there is any ingication that an asset may be impaired, the recoveraiie service amount is estimated for the individual asset. i
it is not possible 10 estimate the recoverable service amaunt of the individual assat, ihe recoverabla service amount of tha cash
generating unit to which the assel belongs is determined.

The mecoverabie servica amouni of an asset or 2 cash generating unit is the Higher of its fair value loss cazts 1o self and its
value in use.

if ihe recoverable service amount of an assat is less than ils carrying amount, the c3mying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverabie servica amaunt, That reduction is an impaiment lcss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulzted depreciation or amertisation is recognised immediately in
surplus or deficit. Any impairment loss of 8 revalued asaet is treated &s 2 revaluation decrease.

An impairment loss is recegnised for cash generating units if the recoverable servica amount of the unit is less than the
cammying amount of the unit, The impaimment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit es follows:
to the asseis of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

A municipality assessas at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment {nss recagnised in prior
periods for assets may no jonger axist ar may have decreased. If eny such indication exists, the recoverable service amounts
of those assels are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an 2sset attributakie to a reversai of an impairment loss dues not 2xczad the carrying
amount that would have been determiged had no impaimient loss been recognised fof the asset in prior periods.,

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried 2t cost less acoum ulated depreciation or amartisation is recognised
immaediately in surpius or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment foss of a revalued asset is treated as a revalyation increase

1.22 Unauthosised ecxpenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted, expenditure that is nat in terms of the conditions of an
aliocation received from another sphere of government. municipality or organ of stale and expendilure in the form of a grant
that is not permitted in lerms of the Municipal Finance Wanagement Act (Act Mo.58 of 2003). Unautharised expendiiure is
acoounted for as an expanse in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounied for
as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.23 Frultlass znd wasiefil expandizrg

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonalie care
been exercised, Fruitless and wastefu) expendilure is accountad for &s expanditurs in the Staterment of Finangial Performance
and where recovered, it is subseguently accounted for as revenue in the Statesnent of Financial Perdformance.

1.24 Irreguiar expenditure

irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipai Finance Management Act {Act No.58 of 2003}, the
Municipal Syslems Act {(Act No.32 of 2000}, the Public Offics Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998} or is in contravention of tha
Municipality's supply chain managemeni policy. irmeguiar expendilure exdiudes upauthorsed expenditure. [rregular expenditure
is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it je subsequently accounted
for as revenue in the Sietement of Financial Performancs.
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1.28 Revnluaton rmeserve

The accounting for the Revajuation Researve must be dene in accordance with e raquirements of GRAP 17, Al increasas in
the carrying value of assets a5 3 resuf of 8 rewaluation are credied against the reserve, except to the extent that {he ncrease
revarses 3 revatuation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. Al
decreases in the camying value of assets zs 2 result of 2 revaluation are debiteg against the reserve {o the extant of any credit
batance existing in the revaiuation surplus in respect of that asset

1.28 Segment information

The suipius arising from the revaiuation of property, plant and equipment is cradited to a non distributable reserve. The
revaluation surplus is reafised as revaiued buildings ere depreciated, through 2 transfer from the revaiuation reserve o the
accumulated surpius/defict. On disposal, the net revaluation surpius is transferred {6 the accumutaied surplusideficit whike
gains or kisses on disposal, based on revaluec amounts, are credited or charged to tha statement of financiai performance.
A segment is an aclivity of an entity:

that generates economic benefits or servics potential {induding economic bensfits or service potential relating to
transactions between activities of te sama entity}; :

whose resuits are reguiarly seviewed by management o male decisions about esources to be allocated to that
aclivity and in assessing its performance; and

for which separate financial infcrmation is available.
Reportable segmenits are the actual segmenis which are reported on in the segment report, They are the segments identified
above or alternatively an aggregation of lwo ar more of those segments where the agaregation criteria are met.

1.27 Related pariies

The municipality operates in an economic sectar currently dominated by entities diractly or ihdirectly owned by the Scuth
African Govemment. As & consequence of the consstutionat independence of the three spheres of govemnment in South Africa,
only entities within {he nationat sphers of government sr= considered ta be related parties,

Management are hose persons respansible for planning, directing znd contralling the activities of the municipzhity, including
those charged with the governance of the municipaiity In accordance with legisiation, in instances where they are required tg
perform such functions,

Close members of the farniy of 2 parson are considersd tc be those family members who may be expecled to influence, or ba
infugnced by, that management in their dealings with the municipality.

Only lransaclions with rel2ed parties not at am's length or not in the ordinary course of husiness are disclosed.

1.28 Non-curent asseis held for sale

initial recognition

Mon current assets and disposal groups dre classified as hiald for sale if their carrying amount will be racovered through & sake
transaction rather than through continuing use. This cordition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable ang the
asset (or disposal group) is available for immadiate safe in its present condition. Ka nagemeant must be committad {o ihe sale,
which should be expected to gualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Subsequent measurement

Mon current assets held for sale (or disposal group) are measured at the lower of carrying amount 2nd fair value bess costs (o
seli.

A non cumrent asset is not depreciated (or amartised) while it is classified as held for sake, or whike it is part of a disposal group
ctassified as held for sale.

interest and otter expenses atifibuiable to the liabilites of a disposal group dassified as held for sale are recognised in surplus
or deficit.
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Naledi Local Municipality

{Registration number NWW392 - (Grade in

Trading as Naledi Lacal Municipality

Annual Financiat Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018
Notes to the Annual Financial $fatements

Figures in Rand 2018 2017

4.  HMew standards and interpretations
21 Standards 2nd interpretations effecve and adopied {7 the current yeay

In the current year. the municipafity has adopied the foilowing standards and interpretations that are efective for the curent
finzncial y2ar and that are refavant to jls operations:

Standardi Interpretation: Effective date; Expached impact:
Years beginning on oF
wfer
GRAP 20: Related parlles 0 Apeit 2018 Full disclosure of thr
nature and effect al
related pariy

ranssctions of
managdiment, {hedr ciosg
family members

GRAP 3I: Service Conaeasion Arsngement: Grantor 1 &pril 2018 Disclosure and
prasemtation of sach
Transatdion relating &
s@rdice concession
Arrangements

GRAP: 148 S1atutory Hesgivabies &4 Aprif 2018 Fulf dizclosuie ang
prasenistian of each
ciass of statutory
receivabies as
prescridaed by

tagi=siatian
Standard! Interpretation: Effactive date: Full dizclosure apd
Vaars beginning on o pregentafion of sach
afer _ iransacton that ralaies

ke a principat end ageni
agresments, provided for
on behalf of the principal
and acting as the agent
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Maledi Local Municipality
{Registration number NW392 - (Grade 3))
Trading as Naledi Locai Municipaiity

Annuat Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Nofes to the Annual Financial Sistements

0259

Figures in Rand 2018 2017
4. FProperty, plant and equipment
2018 2017
Cast/ Accumutated  Carrying value Cost / Accumulated Carrying valus
Valuation depreciation Valuation dapreciation
ang and
accumutated accumuiatad
irmpairment impairment
Land 146849845 (12.781.843) 134,068,306 146,850,170 (12,781 984) 134,068,206
Buildings 119,802,703 (39.988,451) 78,913,252 110,062 047 (26,152,038} 83,910,008
Infrastructure 1,195788,538 {348,753118) 846,025,420 1,040,641 800 {169,668,224) 880,982 575
Communily 141258636 (45,261,430) ©5997,205 131,028,970  (30.508,101) 100,530,86¢
Other propeny, ptant and 96,315620 (45,135.602) 47,180,078 44,895,268 (26,179.486) 18 705,783
aquipment .
Game / animals 6.249,433 {1,753,690) 4,495,743 5,565 050 (1,089,307} 4,495 743
Toki 1,768,384,240 (468,684,915} 1,207,672,906 1.475,033,3068 {268,360,121; 4,222,583, 185

P
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Naledi L.ocal Municipality
{Registration number NW332 - (Grade 34
Trading as Naledi Local Municipaiity

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Notes to the Annual Financia] Statements

0260

Figures in Rand 2018 2017
4,  Froperiy, plant and equipment {continued)
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2048
Opening Additions Depreciation Tatal
balance
Land 134,063,206 - - 134,088 208
Buidings 283,940,008 - (3,996,758, 79,913,252
Infrastructure 880,902 575 - {34,057 158} 8465,025.420
Community 100,520,869 - (4,523,663) 95.997.206
Other property, plant and equipment 18,705,783 28,474,295 - 47,180,078
Game / animals 4495743 - - 4.495 743
1.222,883,186 23,474,298 (43,477,575} 1,267 579,005
Recenclliation of properiy, plant and equipment - 2017
Gpening Additions Disposals Transfers Revajuations Resiatement Deprecratinr
balance received Adjustment
Land 135,853.826 - (321) - - {1,052,335)
Buiidings 30,467,005 5,968 936 - 11,546,400 - 38 872,086 {2,950,42
fnfrastruciuere 528,072,597 8,754 125 {2.262,810; 19,269,464 - 349800479 (2274717
Community 45 309 431 - - 811,214 - 88,580,757 {3.981,23
Other property, plant and 19,576,333 3,533,501 {2,809} - - - (4,401.23
eauipment
Game / animals 5,009 550 - - - 1,239,483 (684,383} {1,065,30
754,385 144 18,256,652 {2,266,148} 31427778 1,233,483 445812574 {45,148,38
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Naiedi Local Municipality

{Registration number NW392 - (Grade 33

Trading as Naledi Lacal Municipality

Annual Financial Staiements for the year ended June 34, 2018

Notes to the Apnual Financial Statements
Figures m Rand 2018 20%7

4. Properiy, plant and equipmant {conlinued)

Depreciafion rates

Assessed residuz! value

Interms of GRAP 17 management assessed the residuat valus and useful iife of ali propesty, plant and equipment, Feor the

perod under review the residual valves of aii property, plant and equipment (except for official vehicles and machinery and
equipment} were asseased at 2200, as the econcmic 52 of thess assets are greater 1han the usefu! jife.

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Murnicipaf Finance Management Act is availabie for
inspection at the registered office of the municipafity.

Mathods and zasumptions gsed in detarmining the fai vajue

Game / znimai

The fair vakse assessmant was determined by SA Audlionaers, an independent axperl { valuer on the market values of game.
taking into account the refevant market values of the respeciive breeding / family groups. Tha effective date of the valuation
was 30 lune 2018. SA Auctioneers are independent and are not connected to the municipalify or any of it's counciilors or
officials.

Game / animals are revalued indepsadently every year.

Land and buildinps

Land and buildings were revaluad to fair value by using matkat velues, Market vaiyes ware determined ulilising recent market
trensactions on arm's length erms.

Cther information

5. Heritage 2ksals

2018 207
Cost / Accumutaied Carying value Cost / Accumuiated Carrying value
Yaluafion impaitment Vaiuation impairment
losses iosses
Conservation areas 709,206 _ - 708,286 709 266G - 709, 286
Reconciflation of hertage assets 2018
Opening Total
bhatance
Canservation arees 709,285 709,258
Reconciliation of haritage azsats 1557
Cpening Disposals Tatal
batance
Conservation areas 718,286 {10,000} 709,286
38
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Maledi Local Municipatity

{Registration number NW293 - (Grade 3))

Trading as Maiedi | ocal Municipaiity

Annual Financiat Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2018 2017

8. Employes benefit obligations

7, inventories

Mafntenaﬁce maternials 1,806,770 2,460,830
Water 83,795 76,047
Consumabies stores 253 112 353,104

2,253 877 2.899,25%

tnventory valualion

Thie First in First out (FIFO} costing method s applied on inventories. The same method is used as the inventores have a
similar nature and use &0 the entity. Inventory is measured af ihe lower of cos! and net realisable vaiue

8. Receivables from nan-sxchangs tansactions

Finas 2772585 -
Otner debtors 13.973,400 12,497,027
Prepaymants - 134,093
Less: Frovision for doubitfuf dabts (2,237,915} (2,237,815}

14,508,678 0,333,208

Reconcitiation of provislon for impalrmant of recatvabies from non-esxchange vansastons

Opening balance 2,237,915 1,382,160
Other - 855,785

2,237,915 2,237,918

2.  YAT receivabls

VAT 17.6813,925 32,670,327

VAT is payable on the receipis basis VAT is paid over 1o SARS only onca payment is recaived from debtors.
10 Consumer debiors

Gross halances

Rates {Mon - Exchange Transactions} 1,116 049 58,545,001
Etectriciy 71,655.207 52,845 327
VWater 115,704,737 94 523 REQ
Sewerage and sanilatian 46,551,745 38,667 957
Refuse 43,936,467 42,215 859
Other charges 12,769,954 11,191,014

361,724,148 286,993,025

Lesa: Alowance for impairment

Rates (Mon - Exchange Transactions) {53.070,735) {50,674,300)
Efectricity {(45,861,795) (45,861,795
Water (82,172,854} (92,497 ,637)
Sewerage 2nd sanitation {42,748,975)  (36,738,136)
Refuse (45.152,842) (40,558 833)
Other charges (12.769.584) (11,065,487}

(282,787,893} (277,400,043}
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Naledi Local Municipality

{Registration number NW392 - {Grada 3})

Trading as Maled; Lagal Municipakty

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Motes o the Annual Financial Statemeants

0263

Figures in Rand 2018 2017
10, Coraumer debtors (continued}
Het batance
Rates {Non - Exchange Transaclions) 18,045 314 5 873,701
Etectricity 25,763,412 ©,987 532
Water 23,531,783 2.026.223
Sewarage and santifastan 3,861,770 1.923.771
Refuse 3,377,834 1,657,226
COther charges - 121,529
74,580,113 98,5087 982
included in above iz receivables from exchange tracoactions
Electritily 71,855,207 52,849327
Vater 115,704,737 54 523 860
Sewerage and san#ation 45 551,745 38667 957
Refuse 43,936,487 42,215,659
Othar charges 12,788,954 11,191,011
Less: Allowance for impairment (238,717,513} (226725743
50,300,551 12,722,284
Included in 2bove is mceivables from non-exchange irangactions {faxes and
transfers)
Rates 71,116,049 5G,545 001
Less: Alfowance for impairmeni {53,070,726} (50 &74,300)
406,045,343 5,870,784
Net bslance G3,845,804 18,592,282
Rates (HoR-Exchange Trenzactions)
Curreqt (0 -30 days) 3,433,470 3,066,282
31 - 60 days 1938112 2,096,714
6% -90 days 1,760,747 1,897,145
+89 13,308,420 49,384 853
20,491,749 58,544,081
Elactriclty
Current {0 -30 days} 3,801,425 3,084,663
31 - 60 days 1,587,350 1,748,056
61 - 90 days 1,353,888 1291 677
+51 64,912 846 435,824,931
71,855,207 52,848,327
Water
Current (G -30 days) 4,971,140 3,042 175
21 - 60 days 11,261,931 1.072 512
6190 days 1,018,859 742 B12
+91 - 89,685,061
17,261,330 94,523,860
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Maledi Local Municipality

{Registration numbar NW392 - {Grade 3)}

Trading as Naledi Local Municipaiity

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended Juns 30, 2018
Motes {0 the Annual Financial Statements

Figuras in Rand 2018 2017

10. Consumer debiors {continuad)

Sewerage
Current (0 -30 days) 1.553,081 1.421.850
21 - 60 days 1,098,746 SB0,702
&1 -920days 882,442 844 637
+81 8,175,280 35,420,738
9,843,548 25,887,567
Refuss
Curreni {0 30 days} 1,390,976 1,264,046
31 -60days 570,406 H28 826
€1 - 50 days 869,788 746,905
31- 120 days 4g 500,889 39,375,080
£8, 744,039 42,215,859
QOther Charges
Current (0 -30 days} 111,404 110,092
31-60days 100,179 73,950
51 - 90 days 77124 52,338
+31 2,481,250 10,544 631

2,766,954 14,191,091
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Rajedi Local Municipality
{Registration number MY¥392 - (Grade 3})
Trading as Naledi Local Municipality

Annual Financiat Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Mates to the Annual Financial Statements

0265

Figures in Rand

20148 2017

i, Comsumer debtars (contaued)

Summary of debtors by cugiomer classification

Cansumers
Current {0 -30 days)
31 - B0 days

§t - 90 days

91 - 120 days

Less, Allowance for impairment

Mational and provinclial govemment
Current {0 -30 days)

31 - 60 days

61 - 90 days

91 - 120 days

121 - 365 days

Less: Altcwance for impaiment

Tata]

Current (0 -30 days}
31 - 60 days

§1 - 90 days

+a1

Less: Allowarca for impairment

Less: Allowance for impairment
Cumrent {0 -30 days)

31 - 60 days

&1 - 90 days

+41

Reconciliation of aliowance for impairment
Balance at beginning of the year
Coniributions to allowance

Debt impaimment wriltzan off against allowance

11, Cash and caoh eguivalente

Cash and cash aquivalenis consist of

15,270,186 106,777,953
16,987,724 4877618
6,062,825 3,214,622
238,861,220 260,807,021

277,152,073 279.878.014
(247,066,764} (265.8651.270)

30.085,309 12,838,744

2.430,530 2.111.204
1.813,312 1.924 544
1.631,900 2,470,892
3,699,457 9,808,274
20,138,701 -

20,714,930 16,315,011
(23,838,157) (10.548,773)

5878773 6,765,238

15.270,%56 12,289.155
16,957,724 §.802,162
5,062,823 5,685 514
AN5716,208 270,616,194

344,006,848 295993025
(325,574,501) {277 400,043)

15,432,447 18,592,952

- (5745962)
(56072505  (4.273,147}
(7.789.115)  (3.698.71€)

(314,162,679) (262,742,215)

(327,553,044} {277,408,043)

(277,400,043} (244 733,883)
(30,158,001) {37,013,422)
- 4.347 262

{327,598,044} (277.400.043)
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Maledi Local Municipality

{Registration number NW392 - (Grads 3)}

Trading as Naledi Locai kunicipality

Annuai Financal Statements far the year ended June 30, 2018
Moles to the Annual Financial Statemeants

Figures in Rand 2018 2017

1. Cash and cash eguivalents {contiaued)

Cash on hand 4,868 7,165
Bank balances 1,805,069 3,964,037
Cail deposits 781357 S .657 057

2,681,295 18,828,258

On 1 March 2018, the municipality changed it's Primary bank account from ABSA account no 4070282707 to FMB accaunt no
54150030382..
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0267

Figures in Rand

2018

2017

11, Cash and cash equivatents (continuad)
Tha municipgelity had the following bank accounts

Account number / description Bank staternent balances

Cash book balances

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 20, 2016

FHB- {Primary bank accaunt} 202 773 8,838 9886 4,847,782
current accaunt-54 160030382

ABSA- cumrent acocount 82,538 125,050 214,51
407282707

FNB-{General} Fixed deposit- - 8.000 8,000
70415038010

FMB- {General} Fixed deposit- 7.500 7.200 7.900
70416052060

FNB {FMG)} calt account- - 5.538 5,285
52401118856

FiN8-(MG) call account - - 96154852 16,381,593
52401121364

FMB- (EPWP]} cali account - - 1,808 1,704
52401123344

FNE-(Library funds} cali - 1,844 1,832
accouni-62401123625

Call Agcount - FNB- - 1,061 6,558
B2401122255-M5H

Ca# Account -FMB- - 1.139 1,893
f2401122908-INEP

FNB{Equitable share) Calt - 3,281 1,174
account-52041123364

FNB-{LGSETA) Call Accouni- - 2,167 1,088
62401124235

FNE-{New landfilf site) Call - 2158 1,068
account-62401124805

FNR-(PPE} Calf Account - 2177 1077
652401125142

FHB-{Districi Grant} Call - 1,024 1,078
accaunt-5242 14435951

EMB-{Sman Meter project) call - 18711 B1,713
accouni-62420025549

FNB-{Pradiba) Call account - 1,088 4,207
7435385342

ABSA-Call account (LGSETA 1,876 - -
Grant 4084020761

ABSA-Call Account- {Equilabie 200 - -
Sharaj-4G34021000

ABSA-Cail account {Library 1,764 - -
grant) 4094021220

ABSA- Call account (MSIG) 1,845 - -
40940216848

ABSA- Call account ¢District 1,740 - -
conditional grant} 4024021872

ABSA-Call account {MIG) 4 758 - -
4084022315

ABSA-Call {Smanl meter project) 1519 - -
4094022446

ABSA-Call account ((ndusirial 485 B4R - -
deteopment carporation grant)

4094022488

202,773

320,938

7,900

1.97%

200
1754
1,845
1,740
4,758
1519

485,848

E,838.986
125,050
8.000
7,560
5,536
9,615,952
1,808
1,944
1,061
1,138
3,281
2.167
2,168
2177
1,024
1811

1,088

1,847,782
714,911
8,000
7.300
5,280
15,361,593
1,704
1,832
&,558
1,898
1.174
1,068
4,083
1,077
1,076
81,7113

4,287
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Naledi Local RMunicipality

(Registration number NW392 - {Grade 3})

Trading as Matedi Local Municipality

Annual Finandal Statements for the yaar ended June 30, 2018
Motes o the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2018 2047

11, Cash and cash equivalents {coniinuad} :
ABSA- Call {(Ensrgy efficiency 273617 - - 273,617 - -

ang demand side management)

4054022535

ABSA-Call {{MEP grant} 200 - - 200 - -
4084021589

Totat ,808,68¢ 12,621,593 18,860,851 1,205,088 18,824,093 18,685,531

12. Revzluatlon reserve

Opening balance 2.470,08% 2470085

13 Accumuizted surpius

Ring-fenced internal funds and rezerves within sccumuatated surplus - 3048
Ring-fenced intenal funds end reserves within accumalated swrpius - 2007
%4. Finance lzase obiigaticn

MInimum fease payments due

- within one year - 467,628
- in second o fifih year inclusive - -

- 467.656
less: future finance charges - {19,822
Present value of minimum {fease pawnents - a47 a4

Present vaiue of mirimum leasz peyments fue
- within one year - 447 875
- in second to fifth year inclusive - -

- 447 375

18, Unspent conditional grants and receiphs
Unspent conditional grants and recsipts comprises of:

Unspant conditional grants and receipts
Municipa! Infrastructure Grant {MIG) T30 580 25,000,027
Finance Managament Grant (FMG) - -
Municipal Systems improvement Grant {MSIG) . -
INEP Grant -
Expanded Public Works Programms Grani (EPWE) 14 107.678 -
Oepartment of Sports, Arts and Culture Grank {DSAC) 214 653 214,853
Fire Grant - .
Dr Ruth § Mompali District Municipsiity Grant - -
LG Seta Grant 1.850.834 1,356,607
Department of Enargy Grant (SANEDI) -

EEDSM 120.452 -

17,033,287 26,571,287

The nature and extent of govemment grants recognised in the annua! financial siatements and an indication of other farms of
government assistance from which {ha municipality has directly benefiled: and

Unfulfiled conditiens and other contingencies sttaching to govenvment agsistance that has been racognised.
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Maledi Local Runicipality

{Registration number MYW392 - (Grade 3)}

Trading as Naledi Local Municinatity

Annuat Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2048

hotes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand o 2018 2017

6. Unspent conditionst grante and receipts (continued)
See noie for reconciliation of grants from Pravinciat Governmeant.

Basad on the aflocations set gut in the Devision of Revenue Act, significant increases in the level of Government Grant funding
are expected over the forth coming three financis! years .

16, Other fnancial Habijities

At amaortized cost
DBSA loans 20,114,442 24,872 277

Non-current Habifitien
DBSA loans at amortised cost 8,055,695 12,913,730

Current liabilias
DBSA loang at amorizsed cost 12.058 547 12,058 547

Financia fiabiliten 2t amontised cont
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0270

Figures in Rand 2078 2017
17. Provisions
Recortiaticn of provisions - 20018
Opaning  Reduction due Total
EBatance tore-
measurement
ar setthemeni
without cost o
entity
Enviranmental rehabilitation 10,921,189 {4.971.025) 5,550 164
Legal proceedings 807.242 {807 242) -
Lang-ser+ice awams 10,851.832 - 10.851.832
Coniinued medical aid 53,035,069 - a3.(35.083
Th,GYE 31 {6, 778,287 #9,837,085
Reconciliation of provigione - 3097
QOpening Additions  Utllised during  Reversed Change in Totat
Balance the year  during the year discount faclor
Rehabifitation of landfilt sifes 11,860,845 (1,052,334} - - 12,674 10,921,189
Legal procescings 24 B07 242 - - (24,000,300) - 807,242
Long-service awards 10,658,607 2,030,165 {1.511.579) - {325.3685) 10,851,832
Conbnued metticat aid 55,069,228 8,748,108 {1,016,945) - §9,765320) 53,035,068
102,458,924 9,725,938 {2,523.830) (24,000,000} {{0.078,Qi1} 73,846,332
Mon-cufrent iabiiities 59,665,158 57,235,892
Current liabilities 5,950,164 8,379,440
75,615,332 75,615,232
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Matedi Local Municipality

{Regisiretion numiber KW392 - (Grade 3}}

Trading as Waledi Local Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Motes to the Annusal Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2018 2017

7. Provisions {confinued)
Additional disclosure required:

Long service awards: In 2014 the opening balance of Long seivice awards were R7 281 917, contsicutions to provisions
amounted to R1 376 105, the increase due to the actuarial valuation was R65 418 and expanditure amounted to R750 907,
resulting in a dosing balance of R7 242 534,

Long service awards: in 2015 the opaning balance of Long service awards were R7 942 534, confributians to provisions
amounled to R 571 127, the increase due to the scluarial valuation was R3%5 863 and aupendilure amounted to RS21 229
resufting in 2 closing balance of RB 988 300,

Continued medical aid. in 2014 the opening balance of Continued medical aid were 333 850 805, contributions {o provisions
amaunted to R4 938 737, the decreasa due to the actugrial valuztion was R438 290 and expenditure amounted to RI62 981,
resulting in a closing balance of R37 388 271.

Continued medical aid- in 2015 the apaning baiance of Corinuad medical aid were R37 388 271, comtributions to provisions
amounied to B5 768 578, the increase due o the actuanal valuation was K7 350 713 and expendiure amounted to R972 108,
resuifing in a closing batance of R49 533 772

Environmental rehabifitation provision

The following kay assumplions were made to arrive at the amount disclosad as a possibie fulure obligation:

1} Environmental imgact process for establishmant of solid waste disposal site
2} Supply and operation of machinery to transfer raluse
3} Sloping and spreading of siopes and ground work, ingtuding manual hand labowr

The provision has been estimaied at the cuirent estimated costs to rehabilitate lhe landfill sites. An average inflation rate of
6.05% a3 per MFMA Circvlar 81 and a discount rate of 9.45%/2.90% =8 par the RTBG 7 R 213 Govemnment Bond rate was used
to catcuiate the obligation 2§ year end.

The provision made for the rehabilitaiion is not backed hy eny asssis.

The landfi# sites in the area are known as the Vryburg okd, Vryburg New and Stella landfill sites. The two Viyburg fandfill sites
have approvats or licenses in terms of the MWA, ECA, NEMWA but the Steffa site is uniicensed. Due fo uncontrofied waste
management practices the District Municipality and the Enviranmental Affairs has requesied that the site be closed and
rehabifitated once a new waste management plan has been devised for waste managemant practices in the area. Disposa! at
the sites has never been formally controlied thus weste has been heaped in a haphazard fashion, bumi and spread across the
entire sites. Thera is no infrasiructure on lhe Old Yryburg and Stefta landil sites except the dispasal amas {(dump) an ground.
The nevs Vryburg landfill site has baen developad with a¥ the necessary new infrastruciure.

The two Viyburg landfill sites an2 licensed as a General Smali non ieachaie producing landfi sites denated as 2 GSB  class.
fn terms of the new Gazetted regutations depict the lining of the sife as a Class H. However, the capping has not been updated
thus the capping wilt be 2 @SB in terma of the Minimum Requicements (MR} 1898, The Stella landfif site is licensed as 5
General Communat nen leachate producing landilf sifes denoled as a GCB  class. in terms of the new Gazetted regulations
depict the lining of the sile as a Class B. However, the capping has been updated in the license thus the capping wilt include a
450mm clay layer which is simitar to the GAiB+ (excfuding the LFG collection eyer) in terms of the Minimum Regquirements
{MR) 199,

A GSB and a GCB {andiill site, in terms of tha Minimum Reguirements (MR 1998, Page AB 15) for weste disposai by landfifl,
wilf required the followdng for rehabilitation:

1. The wasle must be shaped fo aliow for water to runo with no ponding aflowed on the sile;

2. The waste layer must ba capped with & fayer of fopsoil 2 minimum of 200mm thick;

3. The top soiled area must be grassed to minimize the effects of erosion exher by wind or water,

4. All storm water on and off the site must be canlrollad to avaid erazion of the capging layers:

5. Access {o the site must be controiled by means of a fence and monifored gate.

However, the approval of a sile for closure may require a further layer {o be inslalied ahove lhe waste and belfow the 200mm
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17. Provisions {(conbtineed)

tupsoil, as per the Stefla landfilt license. This layer wifl comprise of & natural clay which may not be available in the area,
however, g synthatic clay fayer may be used, The synthetic clay is known as a Geasyntheiic Clay Liner (GCL} and will reGuire a
furher canfining layer of 450mm of inert soif materiats pisced on top of the GCL.

The rates used o determine the construction amount {cost) are basad on current of recent confracts underiaken in simitar
circumstances in the jocal area.

The lotal gost to repair the landfiff sites is estimated at R41 503 812,
Voyhurg Mew Landfill the remaining life of the sile is estimated as approx. 54 years

Stelio Landfitl the remaining fife of the site is estimated as apprrox. A1 years

Enviranmentz rehatifitetion provision

A brief description of the nature of the obligafian and lhe expacted timing of any resuiing outfiows of economic bensfits or
service potential.

An indication of lha unceriainties about the amount or timing of those outfllows. YWhere necessary to provide adequate
informalion. an entity shalt discfose the major assumptions made conceming fulurs events, 2s addressed in paragraph .61,

The amount of any expected reimbursement, slating the amount of any asset that has been recagnised for that expected
reimbursement.

iegal proceedings provisions

A brief description of the nature of the obligation and the expected timing of any resulting outflows of economic benefits or
saenice poiential,

An indication of the unceriainties abowl the amount or timing of those outflows,. Where necessary ta provide adequate
information, an entity shall disclose the major 2ssumptions made concerning future events, as addressed in paragraph .61,

The amount of any expedled reimbursement, stating the amount of any ssset that has been recognised for that expected
reimbursement.

Long-service awards

A brief descriplion of the nature of the obligation end the expecies timing of any resulting outflows of econonmic banefits ar
service potential.

An indication of the uncenainties abaut the amount or timing of those outflows. Where necessary to provida adequate
infarmation, an entity shal! disclose the major assumptions made conceming ulure evenls, as addressed in paragraph .61,

The amount of any exgecied reimbursement, siafing the amount of any asset that has been recognised for that expected
reimbursement.

The long servite award Is a gefinded beneftt pfan of which the folfawing emoployees are eligible.

in-Serica {(Employee) Members {Tolal} R 451

The liability in respect of past servica hag bean estimated to be as follows:
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17. Provisions {coniinued)

Figures in Rand 2018 2017

In-Service {Employes) Mdembers {Total) - 10,851,835

Actuarial adjustements were caltuialad as oliows:

Change In bases . (692,359}

Expetience - 266,974

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss - {323,363)

Futura servce and interest cost estimation

Continued medical aid

13. Payables from exchangs {rangaciions

Tragde payablas 399,297,286 381,738,692

Retentions and guarantess 9,784,785 5,372 668

Staff ieave actrus! 17,662,254 8,359, 284

Bonus acerual 2 V81,555 2,717,307

Other payables §3.908,118 35,704 BR8
513,534,618 437,892, 80%

The movernant in staf loave and bonus accrial aliove are recongiled 25 follows:

Balance at the biggining of yaar 11,076,591 11,547,387

Cantribution o provision 17,015 837 7,384 182

Expenditurs incurred - {7.854,578)

2R,692,228 11,076,554

19, Consumer depogitn

Water and efeciricity 6406,172 8,490,924

20, Revenug

Service charges 148,416,969 148,583,149

Rental of facilities and equipment 2776594 1.003.611

Licences angd pemnits 5,221,107 5,390,006

Other income 4,456,415 30.881,795

Interest received 23 B8R1.165 21,123.736

Property rates 45,057,550 76,825,604

Government grants & subsidies 103,005,574 105,750,077

Fines, Penalfies and Forfeits 4311914 1,811,750
330,107,288 382,183 758
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20. Revenue {(condinued)

The amount included in rovaonue arising from axchanpes of gocds or services
are as follows:

Service charges

Rental of facifities and equipment

Licences and pennits

Other income - {rullup)

interest received - investment

The amount included in revenue arsing from aon-exchange trangzelions it as
follows:
Taxation revenue
rapery rates
Transfer mvenus
Govemment grants & subsidies
Fines, Penzities and Forfeils

21. Seivics charges
Sale of electricity
Sak of water

Sewerage and sanitation charges
Refuse removal

22. Rental of facilitics and equipment
Facilities ond equipment

Renta? of facilities
Rental of equipment

23.  Other revanue

Other income

2018 2017
148416969 145,533,189
2.776,584 1,003,811
5221107 &,390.005
4,456 415 30,081,795
23,061,185 21,123,735
184,732,360 207,587,337
45,057 550 78,825,604
103,005,574 105 750,077
4311914 1,811,750
53,375,038 184,387,834
110404414 100,360,927
6,148,363 15,119,072
16.841,305 17,154,461
15,022 887 15,908,728
148,416,969 148,583,783
2.776.584 286,767
- 16,844
2,776,594 1,083,511
4,458 415 30,881,785
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24. Diher incorme

Adverlisement fees - 39,807
Commission on salas - 1,305,031
Yaluation cerlificates - 17,328
Sundry income - 20.433,153
Sub-division faes 2781918 1,568,575
Safe of plans . - 25,381
PPE transfer received - 7.089,000
Photocopy chames - 1,822
Salary deductions commission - 244 473
Bid document feas - 44 GET
Roadworthy cerificates - 33,741
Reversal of impairment of other reczivables - {853,755}
Avatiabifity fees 1,674,497 228 433
He-cannection feas - 21510
Business registration fees - 13,835
Building plan fees - 195,007
Cemeiry fees . - 333,758
Entrance fees - 140,342

45,456,415 30,884,795

25, Investmaent reavenue

interest revenue
External investments 329,382 528,037
Quistanding receivables 23,531,783 20,584,899

23,067,165 21,123,736
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2E. Propetty rates

Rates received

Reasidential 10,507,372 10,434 0%a
Commercial 21,818,881 17,953,035

State 12,721,197 48,388 475
: 48,057,550 78,828,504

Valuations

Residential 2.342,789 479 2,146 290,353
Businesses 1,071,657035 977,128,035
Industrial 131,828,069 128,243,000
Agricultural B.528,833,400 4,224 113,150
Govemment 245,514,000 432,068,000

12,320,421 882 7,907 853,544

Valuations on land and buildings are performed every four years. The fast generaf valuetion came inte ¢ffect on 1 July 2017,
Interim vaiuations are processed on an annual basis to take into account changes in individual propeny values due to
alterations and subdivisions.

Rates are levied on 2n annual basis with the final date for paymeani being Thursdsy, Septernber 30, 2010 {Wednesday,
September 30, 2009). Interest at pime plus 1% per annum on long outstanding debtors.

The new gensral valuation was implemented on 01 July 2007
27. Granfs and subsidies paid

Other subsidies

Community bursanes 20.214 3,450
Disaster relief aid - 24,117
District Municipaity Asset Grant - 106,720
Refuse bags - - 12,808

20,244 444,623
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28, Gavermment grants and subsidies

Operating granis

Equitable share 37,135,000 41,201,000
Municipat Infrastructure Grant (MIG) 34,584,688 34,777,947
Finance Management Grant {(FMG) 1,700,000 1,706,000
INEP Grant 18,000,000 13,725.000
Expanded Public Works Programma Grang (EPYVP) 2,224,000 1,884,000
Dapartment of Sports, Arts and Culiure Grant {DSAC) - 1,235,347
Dr Ruth 5 Mompati Disirict Municipality Grant - 4,369,354
LG Seta Grant 1,908,793 B57.419
0T 4,780,851 -
EEDSM grant 2,875,548 -
Litrary grant 1,480,000 -
Fire grant 334047 -

103,924,942 105,750,077

Conditionat and Uncenditional

Included in abovae are the following granis and subsidies received:

Coanditiona} granis received 32,499 473 54 549077
Unceonditionat grents received - 41,201,000

32,499,473 105,750,877

Equsitable Share
This grant is utilised 1o fund the operations of the municipality with the approved MTREF budget.

fMunicipat nfrastructume Grang (RHG)

Balance unspent al beginning of year 25,000,027 18,573,374
Current-year receipts 17,205,000 41,204,006
Ganditions met - fransfered to revenue {35,065,320) {34.777.947)
Set-off as per solf-over (6,400,027} -

735,880 258,000,027

Conditions still to be mel - remain fizbilites {see note 14)

This grant is ulilised to prevent spacifi capitat funding for basic municpal infrasturcture backloas for poor households, micro
enterprises and social institutions servicing poor commurities,

Finance Management Grant (FRIG)

Balance unspent at beginning of year - -
Cument-year receipts 1.700.000 1.700.000
Conditions met - fransferred to revenus {1.700,000}  {1,¥00,000)

The purpose of this grant is fo promote and support reforms in financial management by buikding capacity in the muticipaiity to
implement the municipal finance management act (MFAMA).

Eunicipat Syctems Improvemest Srant {MISIHGE)

Balance unspent a2t beginning of year - -
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28. Governmeni grents and subsidies {eontinued}
Conditions stiff to be met - rermain liabilities (see note 15).

Provide explanations of condilions 1t {0 be met and olher selevant informaiion.

INEP Grant

Bafance unspent at beginning of year - .
Current-year receipts 18,000,000 49,725,000
Conditions met - ransferred to revenue (18,000,000} {19,725 000}

The purpose of this grant is to grant is to address the alectification bacilog of parmanentty cccupied residentiat dwellings.
Expanded Public Works Frogramme Grant {EPWER)
Batance unspent at beginning of year

Gurrent-year iecaipls 2,224,000 1,884,000
Congitions met - ransferred fo revenue (2,224.000) {1.864.000)

The purpose of the graniis to fund |2bour based capiat programs..

Depariment of Sports, Arts and Cuiturs Grani {OSAC)

Balance unspent at beginning of yeas 214,653 -

Cument-year receipts - 1,450,000

Cenditians met - transferred to revenue - {1.235,347}
214,653 214,653

Conditions stiif to be met - remain Yiabifitios {see MNote 14

The purpose of this grant is to faciiitate mass padicipation within communities ang 5chogls.

Or Ruth S Sempat! Dietrict Municipaiity Grant

Current-year receipts - 4,369 364

Caonditions met - ransfered to revenue - (4,369,384}

Condttions still {o be met - remain liabifties {see note 13).

This grarit is from the district rmunicinakify to aseist the local municipality when in need.

LG Sotz Grant

Balance unspent at beginning of year 1,358 607 -

Current-yeir receipts 494 227 2.374,028

Condilions met - transferred to ravanug - {1,017 419}

4,849,834 1,356,607

Conditions still to be met - ramain lighilities {see note 15).

The purpose of this grantis to fund the training of cummurity membess.
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28. Govzrmmeni pranls and subsidies (contirusd)

{24

Cument-year receipis 3,020.000 -

Conditions met - transferred 1o revenue (1,906,788} -
4,448,202 -

Conditions stilf ta be met - remain liabilities (sce note 15).

The prurpese of this grant .

ZEOSH

Cumeni-yesr receipts . 3,000,000 -

Conditions met - transferred o revenue {2,875,548) -

120,452 .

Conditians still to be met - remain fiabilities (see noie 15).

Library Grant

Current-year receipts 1,480,000 .

Fire Grant

Current-yaar receipts 034,047 -

Cuonditions met - ransferred to revenue {834,047) -

Provide expianations of conditions stil to be met and other relevant information.
Changes in lave! of government grants

Based on the allocations set aut in the Division of Revenue Acl, no significant changes in the level of govemment grant
funding are expected aver the forthcoming 3 financial years.
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28, Empioyee relatzd cosiz
Empiayee related costs - Salaries and wages 104,055,052 48 505,975
Performance and other honugas 7.003572 5, 7E3 741
Emplayee redated costs - Contributions o LIF, pensions and medicst 23,705,234 24,576,288
Leave pay provision charge 9,367,225 -
Othar employee related costs 4,319,875 {738,770)
Confinued medicat séd contributions 1,449,768 3,276,864
Trave! and motor car allowances 3,589,692 12,117,482
QOvertime payments 4,245 239 6,401,733
Long-service awards 1,129,084 1,800,500
Housing benefits and sllowances 2 500217 1,485,921
161,556,368 103,500,734
Remuneration of municipal manager
Annual Remuneration 683,661 685 634
Car Afowence 296,810 93,182
Performanca Bonuses - 74,554
Contributions to UIF, dMedical end Pension Funds 1,785 a5 737
952,255 848,117
Remuneration of chlef finance officer
Annual Beruneratian 98,755 1,242 058
Car Aflowance - 527,001
Performance Bonuses . R
Conlribulions to UiF, Medical and Pension Funds - 24774
93,796 1,753,823
Chief Financial Officer (Ms Morofo Moloto} was seconded from Treasury and ihe confracted ended in August 2017
The current Chief Financial Officer {Mr M Kgokolii} was seconded irom Treasury
Remunerstion of t2chnical gervices directior
Annual Remuneration - 910,170
Car Allowance - 135,305
Perfarmance Bonuses - 84,565
Contributions to UIF, 3Meadical and Pension Funds - 09,8571
- 1,23%,611
The posifion 8 vacant.
Remuneration of corporate services direchor
Annuzi Remuneration B80,943 981 662
Car Aitowance 182,833 182,833
Performance Bonuses 71,745 67,652
Contribulions to UIF, Medicai and Pansion Funds 187,827 155,312
Other 55721 -
4,363,088

Romuneration of commbnity servites direcins

1,430,458
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29. Employee related costs {continued)

Annual Remuneration B 937.313
Car Alfowance - 171.190
Parformance Bonuses - 80,230
Contributions to DIF, Medical and Pension Funds - 170,231

- 1,338,564

The pesition is vacant.

0. Remuneration of councijlors

Mayer 882,333 751,926
Speaker : 685,028 506.853
Executive committes members 1,866,982 1,397,935
Councillors 4,189,224 3,719,683
Councillors’ pension, medical aid and SDL contributions 144 802 453 621

7,748,189 8,930,079

31, Depmciztion and amortization

Property. plant and eguipmeni 43,477,451 35,892,345

32, Impairmant of assats

Impairmanis

Trade and other receivables 12,256,234 24,411,453
Desanbe the events and circumstances that led to the recognition or reversal of the

impainment foss. The recoverable amount or [recoverable service amount} of the asset

was based on itg fair value less costs to sell of fits value in use.]

Oiher receivables from non-exchange revenue 3,229,980 B,184,368
Deseribe the everts and circumstances that led to tha recognition or reversal of the

impainment loss. The recoverabie amount or {recoverable service amount] of ihe asset

was based on its fair value less costs to seii or {its value in use.|

8,480,214 33,585,812

[Disclose the following information for the aggiegate impeairment losses and the aggregate reversals of impainment losses
recegnised during the period for which no information has otherwize heen disclosad. The main cdasses of assets affecled by
impairment losses are:

Customers debtors

3}, Finance costs

Bomowings - 31,613
Trade creditors 32,225,202 33,144 780
Finance lease Hability - 19 B22
Actuanal valuations - 5,400,911

32,225 302 39,557,326

Total interest expense. calculeted using the effective interast rate of prime rale plus 1%.
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34. Bulk purchases

Electricty 7€,311,879 76,280,207
Wiater - 24,373

78,311,873 78,304,530

35, Coniracted services

Professionat Services 11,184,185 25875025
Fiqures in Rand 2018 2017

Security 2522418 4,880,698
Accounting and audiling services 3.028 5.485,031
Administration and support staff 164,084 -
Valuation services - 21,000
Meier reading services - 761,453
Catering services 1,800 -
Legal advise and ltigation services 213,165 -
Human resources servicas . 71,359 -
Smart meter management services 5373081 -
Business and financial management saTvices £52,198 -
Refuse ramovat servicas 1,070,758 1,780,465
Maintenance of equipment 385,070 -
Maintanance of buildings and facikties 4,595 -
Professional Services - 1.983.230
Sewerage and removal services - 3,355,541
Conlracted services - 78,622
Contracled workiers - 7.218.393
OHS Services - 313,552
fgaintenance of unspecified assats 714,628 -
Subtotal 11,184,185 25,876,025

19,184,485 25,878,028
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38. Cenerafexpenses
Adverlising 24753 288,935
Audit fes 4618279 2770142
Bank charges 401,082 362456
Cieaning materiais and cansumables 395 63,712
Employee spons program 3,373,525 375,850
Compuler expenses 1,046,911 354 B4
Legal expensas - 1,557,322
SARS penalties 336,738 263
insurance 1611797 1,524,247
Community devslopment and training - 32,250
Congressaes and canferances - 28,500
T expenses - 300
Promation and maiketing - 216,600
#otor vehicle expensas - 45,186
Packaging - 50,450
Fual and git 1,891,473 1.912.584
Placemen! fees - 90,791
Fostaga stamps and telegraphs - 538,408
Printing and stationery - 1,120,903
Promotions - 359,223
Uniforms and protectve clothing 4,460 1,763,828
Software expenses - 350,958
Staff welare - 84,612
Telzphone and fax - 2452701
Training and couises - 1,299,720
Travet - local B 238,407
Title deed search fees 332,636 5,093
Agsets expensed 1,723,132 75,612
Electricity - 1,656,528
Tourism devaiopment - 38,227
Travelling and subsistance 103,165 1,249 B68
Vehicle lisences 138,068 238,943
Membership fees : Society - 2,861,605
Ward commitiee siipends B 873,650
Rental equipment 2,007,214 988,794
Travel and subsisience : Interviews - 3,484
Chemicais - 59,747
Speciat projecls - 20,200
Sundry expanses 352,850 126,660
37,968,479 26,276,661
37.  Auditors' remunerzion
Fees 2478936

2,770,142
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35. Cash genereted {rom operations
Defigit (31,282.413)  {10,009,340;
Adjustments for
Deprecialion and amorlisation 43,477 451 35,892,345
{Loss) gain on szle of assels and liabiities {508,210} 2,960,522
Finance costs - Finance leases - 19,822
impaiment deficil 15,488,214 33,595,813
tovements in provisions - {16,802,582)
Aciurial gain f losses - (10,020,585}
Unwinding of discounting - 12673
Changses in weorking capital:
inventories 646,274 095,359
Receivaules from exchange trensactions - {24.411453)
Consumer debtors {55,957 491) 1.337.783
Other receivables Fom non-exchange transactions (19,603,088}  {8,565,249)
Payabias ftom exchange fransactkons 75,641 205 50,476,573
VAT 15,056,402 {7,996,343}
Unspent condilional grants and receipts {23,645,668) 7.997,313
Consumer deposis (B4,752) {181,225)
19,927,525 53,331,332
312, Financial instruments disclozure
Categones of finghcial instrumenta
2013
Financial aesets
At amortised Al cost Total
cost
Teade and other recaivables from exchange ransadions 74 550,113 - 74 550,113
Other receivables from non-exchange transaclions 2828236 - 2.828.236
Cash and cash equivalenis - 2,591,295 2,591 295
77,378,443 2,59%,236 75,289,644
Financiaf labilities
Af cost Todad
Other financial liabilities 22.542.277 22,5432 277
Trade and other payables fram exchange transactions 509,422,895 509422 0855
531,965,172 531,265,172
2017
Financisi assels
At amortised Al cost Total
cast
Other recaivables fram non-exchange fransactions 10,383,205 - 10,393 205
Ceonsumer debtors 18,592,982 - 18,592,082
Cash and cash equivaienis - 18,628,259 48,628,259
20,588,487 10,638,268 47514448

Fieancia] Habitlities
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9. Finznciz! insfromernts disclozure {eontinued}
Al amortised Al cost Total
cost
Other financiat kabiltias 27,102,913 - 27,102.0913
Trade and other payables from exchzngs transactions - 435782172 435762,172
27,562,813 436,752,172 462,885 085
40, Commitments
Authorisad capiizl expenditere
Alrsady contracted for but not provided far
e Property, plant and eguipment 40354724 65,780,354
Mot yet contractad for and authorlsed by accounting officer
: Property. plani and equipment - 19,537,088
Total capitzi commitmenls
Already contracted for but not provided for 40,354 724 65.780,354
Not yet contracted for and autherised by accounting afficer - 18,537,988
48,354,724 84,318,342
Authevised operational expenditure
Atready contracted for but not provided far
a Operating expendiure 27782670 46544743
ot vet contracted for and avthorised by accounting officar
© Operating expenditure - -
Toizl operationat commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for 27,782,610 46 544,743
Total commitmeants
Total commitments
Authorised capital expenditure 40,358,724 84,318,342
Authorised pperational expenditura 27,782,610 46,544 743
£8,137,334 130,063,088

Tnis committed expenditure refates to property and wili be financed by available bank facilities, relained surpiuses, righis ssue
of shares. issue of debentures, morigage facifilizs, existing cash resources, funds intemalty generated, eic.
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41. Conlingencies

Litigation is in the process against the municipality retating to a dispute with a competitor who aliegas that the municipaliity has
infringed patents and is seeking damegas of -. The municipaliy's fawyers 2ng manggament consider the tkelihood of the
aclion egainst the municipality being successful as uniikely, and tha casa should be rasolved within the naxt two years,

Should the acion be suecassful the municipality does have insurance cover io cover lifigation costs and claims, The totai cover
extended by the current policy amounts to -.

The municipality has offered lenmination berefits io all of its employees to encourage 2arly retirement. The municipality has
finalised and agreed, with the trade unions, tha tarms and conditions of the plan. The plan has been implermnents and wil
gontinue for the next ning months. Menagemeni are uncariain anout the number of employess who will accept tha offar, If af
smpioyees lake the offer the potential financisf effect would appraximately be -

There is ne reimbursement from any thirt parties for potential obligations of the municipaiity.

An associate is been sued for viotalion of copynghts. The municioality'’s sham of the potentiat ciaim amounts to -~ The
associzies lawyers and mansgement are of the opinion that the {aw suit will be successtul but are unable to reliably determine
the amount of penalties and damages payabie.

The niunicipality is severally fizble for the liabilitles of its associefe. The gssociale 15 orofitable 2nd in currentiy abla to meet afl
of it present obligations.

Litigation is in the process against the a competifor reiating o 2 dispute whereoy the competitor has infringec patants and the
municipality is seeking damages of - The municipality’s lawyers and managemeni consider the tkethood of the action against
the municipaiity being successful as unlikely, and the case should be resolved within the next two yeers.

Unfiled canditions and other contingencies attaéhing o government grants related to agricuttural aclivity.

2418
Claim by Cape Joint Pension Fund.Glaim against the municipality for failure to pay funds over the Pension G15.,623
fund. GN5143
Contingent assets

Subsequent ta the disciplinary hearing in respact of the fruitiess and wasteiul expenditure referred to in Note 47, civit
proceedings have cormmenced against the employees concermned to recaver an amaunt of - Accarding to Council's legat
advisors, it is probable that the proceedings will result in the recovery of the fuff amount Bui this recovery is virtuatly certain,
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2017

42. Relried paries

Retationships
Accounting Officer
Members of key management

flalated perty batances and transactions

Loan accounts - Owing {o} by related pardes

Refer to accouniing ofiicer's repor note
Mame
Nams

Smounts incivded in Trada meelvabie (Trade Payable} rogarding relalad pariies

Dr Ruth S KMpmpati District Municipaiity

6.648,025
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Maledi L.ocal Municipality

(Registration number N¥W392 - (Grade 3)}

Trading &s Naledi Locat Municipatity

Annual Financial Statemants for the year ended June 30, 2018

Motes to the Annual Financizl Statements
Figures in Rand 2018 2017

44, Risk mznzgement {continued;
Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainfy of cash deposils, cash equivalants, dervative financial instruments and frade debiars, The
municipality only deposils cash with major banks with high quality credd standing and ¥mils exgosore o any one countar-party.

Trade receivables comprise o widespread cusiomer base. Management avaluated ciedit Ask relgting 1o customers on an
angoing basis. If customers are independenily rated, {hese ratings are used, Otherwise, if there is na independent rating, risk
confrol assessas tha credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors,
individuat risk fimts are sat based on internal ar extarnal ralings in accordznce with limils set by the board, The utilisation of
credit limits is reguiary monitored. Sales fo retail customers are satiled in cash or using major credit cards. Credi guarantae
insurance is purchased vshen deemed approprate.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as faliows:

Financiaf instrument 2018 2017

Current Account (Primary Bank Account}- FiB Acc Mo 54180030382 - B.B3B. G536
Current Account (Other Account)- ABSA Acc Mo: 4070282707 - 125,050
Dither short-term investments - 9.657 057
Trade and other receivables - 28,986,187

The municipality is exposed to @ number of guarantees for the overdraf facilities of economic entities and for guarantees
issued in favour of the creditors of A (Pty) Ltd. Refer to note for additional details.

Rlarket risk
interest rate rak

As the municipafity has no significant interest-beanng assets, the municipality's income and operating cash flows are
substantiakly independent of changes in marked interest rates.

Price risk

The municipality is exposed o equity secuiities prica risk because of investments hieid by the munic¢ipaiiy and classified on the
consolidated siaterant of financial position either 23 available-for-sale or at fair value through surplus or defcil. The
municipality is not exposed to commedity price risk. To manage its price risk arising from invesiments 0 equity secunties, the
municipality diversifies s portfolio. Diversification of the porifolio is done in accardance wiih the timits set by the municipalify.

Post-tax surpius for the year woutd increase/decrease as a resuit of gdins or losses on equity securiies classified as st fair
value through sumplus or defieit. Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains or losses on equity
securities classified a availeple-far-sale.

45, (oing Concem

We draw altention o the fzct \nat at June 30, 2018, the municipality had accumuiated deficits of 700,920,887 and that the
municigality's total iabifities exceed its assets by 703,350,952,

The annuat financial statements have been prepared on Iha basis of accounting palicies applicable to a going concem. This
basis presumes that funds wilt be available to finance future operations and that the realisztion of assels and settlermertt of
tabilities, contingent obligations and commitments witt occur in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the municipality to confinue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors, The mast significant of
these is that the accounting officer continue to proguse funding for the angoing operations for the municipelity

558




Naledi Local Municipality
{Registrafion numbar NW392 - (Grade 3})
Trading as Matedi Local Munidpality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended Juna 30. 2018

Motes io the Annual Finencial Statemenis

0291

Figures in Rand 2018 2007

48. Unauvthorised erpendifure

Ealance brought forward 808 385,085 60,158,320

Unauthorised expenditure current year 61,658 6814 28 227.785%
480,344,659 83,386,085

47. Frujilees and wastefui expenditura

Balance Brought Forward 95,959,818 §1,832.324

Fruitiess and wastelul expenditure current year 25718 591 35 127,494
125,576,809 95,969,848

48, jrregulzs expenditure

Opening balance 177,698,837 156,898,310

Adg: Irregular Expenditure - cufreni year 43,124 202 20,800,527

analysis of expenditure awsiting condonation per age clzssification

Current yaar
Prior years

49, Additional disclesure in tarms of Municips! Finance Mansgement Aot

Contributons to arganised lecal government: SALGA WYY

Opening balance
Current year subscription / fee
Amount paid - previous years

Audit fees

QGpening baiance
Current year subscription / fee
Amount paid - cutrent year

PAYE and WF

Opening balanca

Current vear subscription / fee
Amount paid - cument year
Ampunt paid - previous years

228,823,038

177,686,837

49124202  20,800.527
177.698,837 156,898.310
226,323,038 177,608,837

4,857,767 2,196,162
1724189 2961605
- (300,000}
6,684,966 4,857,767
5448164 3,001,835
- 2769402
{2,818,341) (323,073}
7,625,223 5,448,184
1,705,774 1,562,080

22,189,605 21,376,978
{(12.023,425) (19.,701,164)

(1.667.298} (1,552,120}

3.208,656 1,705,774

&
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2018 2017

A9, Additianaf disclosure i lenms of Meaicipal Finance Management Aot {continued)
Pension zad Medical Aid Deduclions

Opening balance

Current year subscription / {ee

Armount paid - cument yeay
Amount paid - previous years

VAT
VAT recsivable

VAT output payables and VAT input receivables are shown in note .

Ail VAT retums have been submitted by the due date throughout the year,

5829587 4433475
22406405 34,248 111
- {28418,524)
(5.829,587) {4,433 475)

32408408 5,822,587

17,613,825 32670327

5%
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42. Additional disclosvre in terme of Municipal Finance Management Act jeontinugd}
Cguneiffam' 2rreay CONSUMET SCCOUINS
The following Counciliors hag amrear accounis outstanding for more than 90 days at June 30, Z01E:
June 30, 2018 Cuisianding  Canstanding Total
less than 50 more than 50
days days
Clir M.W. Skalk - 10 1
Chr H.L Pretorius - 454 454
Clir 1.A. Adonis 198 - 196
Cilr A.N. Bareng 703 2.885 3,593
Clir E P. Renoster 475 2,943 3.418
Clir O.R. Modise - - -
Cllr ¥.L. Bosartsi - - -
Clir L. Elckelton - - .
CHr H.L. Phitander 503 76,365 76,869
Chr K.L Bome - - -
Cilr O.K. Nyamane - - -
Clir K.B. Tauwe - - -
Clir B.J. Mohoto - - -
Cir M E_ MNcobo - - -
Clr 3.M. Mustafa 512 3,507 4.118
Cilr).G. Brand - (131} {131}
Clir G.C. Pulane - - “
Ciir M.E. Lobona - - -
Clir G.J,.Groep 571 - 871
3,160 BS, 144 29,204
June 30 2017 Cutstanding  Outstanding Totaf
less than 30 more than S0
davs days

Clir JA. Adonis 371 - 371
Cilr B.P. Bareng 647 - B47
Cir J.G5. Brand 2,329 - 2,329
Ciir L Coetree 4,044 94 4,138
Clir A, Diedericks 5,708 - 5,708
Clir CJ. Groep 342 - 642
Clr O.A. Ketelz 1,703 59,120 60,838
Clr M_4. Mathiba 1,133 1,960 3,113
Clir J. Mathiba 2,729 2,585 5.314
Clir M.A, Mccarthy 1.981 2,138 4115
Clir 5.T. Modise 1,852 2882 4,734
Clir D.T. Mogale 1,708 7.463 Q17
Clr P.IK. WMiolai 1,708 2.220 3,928
Ciir E.K. Moraka 1,708 4 465 8,173
ClHr D. Matobo 1,708 39,557 41,665
Clir M. Mustaia 2,092 a0a 2,892
ClIr M.A. Nchochobz 1,708 42,272 43,9680
Cilr H/H_L. Philander 1,708 75,300 77.608
Clir M.C. Pretorius 1,292 1,683 2,975
Clir £.G. Ramorogadi 1,708 - 1,708
Clir M.L. Thekisho 1,599 3651 5.550

20,483 247,320 287,703

B2
_‘f'/7 e
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49 Addional disclosure in terms of Ruricipa) Finznce Management Act (continued)

During the yeer the following Counciliors’ had arrear accaunts oulstanding for more than 80 days.

Supply chain managemoant regulations

Iri tarms of section 35 af tha Municipal Supply Chain Manzgemsnt Reguiations aimy deviation from the Supply Chain
Management Policy needs to he approved/condoned by the City Manager aad noted by Councif, The expenses incurred as
iisted hereunder have been congoned.

57, Distribution fosses

Assets that have been recognised, but which are subject to restrictions, the amount of restriction are as follows:

Electricity sold {MYVh) (82,524} {81.237)
Eiectricity Purchased (MWh) 653.209 75,270
Totai Losses incurred (MyWH) {18,104) {5,966)
Average cost per NMAH [R) 1,000 1.000
Tots! Joss (R) (19,104,000)  (5966,34i6)
Waler purchases and pumped (KL} 3,240,020 3,175,770
¥ifater purchased loss 2,014,563 1,968,382
\Water purchased loss 2,014,563 3,240 020
Tatal loss incurrad {KL} 3,240,020 3.926.778
Average Cost per KL purchased (R} 3 3
~ Average cost per KL pumped {R} i i
Total loss {R) 7.985,623 7.934 B47

51. Budyget differamces
Matorial diferencas between bydge! =nd actual amounts

The excess of zctual expendiiure over the final budget of 15% (25% over approved budget) for the Heatih funclion was due to
expenditures above the level approved by legisiative aciion in respanse o the earihquake. There were ne other materia
differences betwesn the final budget and the actual amounis.
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Avdiing to build public confidence SO UTH 3 FES &

Report of the auditor-general to the North West provincial legislature
and the councii on the Maledi Lecal Municipality

]

[ D e rin M35 o S £
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Discialmer of opinion

t. Pwas engaged {0 audit the financial statements of the Naledi Local Municipality set cut on
pages xx ta xx, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, the
statement of financial perfermance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement
and the statament of comparison of budgst and actual amounis for the year then ended, as
well as the notes fo the financial statements, inciuding a summary of significant accounting
policies.

2. | do not express an opinion on the financial statements of the municipality. Because of the
significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinian section of my repor,
! have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these financial statements,

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

[P L S
PIEDDarTY, Dalny and guginnment

3. lwas unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for property, piant and equipment
as the municipality did not have an adequate system of internal controi to account for these
property, plant and ecuipment and did not keep proper records. | was unabie to confirm these
property, plant and equipment by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine
whether any furiher acjustments relating to preperty, plant and equipment of R1 207 679 905
(2017: R1 222 883 185) as disclosed in note 4 or repairs and maintenance of R2 055 560 as
disclosed in the statement of financial performance and to depreciation and amortisation
expense of R43 447 451 {2017: R35 B92 345) as disclosed in note 31 {o the financial
statemenis were necessary.

Tamn Wy by el o
DT OTIEE

4. Dusing 2017, | was unable ta obtain sufficlent appropriate audit evidence for inventory and o
confirm the inventory by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether
ion on the

any adiustment was nacessary to inventaries stated at R2 899 251, My audit opinior
financiai statements for the period ended 30 June 2017 was modified accordingly. My opinion

this matter on the comparability of the inventories for the current period.

b srqa bl F L T ST IR PR Sy S s bk ooy ey D
Reoosivables from nuresuchangs wanssotinns

5. Pwas unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for receivables from non-exchange

transactions as the municipaiity did nct have an adequate system of internal confrof to account
for these receivables and did not keep proper records. | was unable to confirm these

w "»Q-'
T
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receivables by alternative means. |n addition, the municipality did not record revenue from
traffic fines in accordance with iGRAP 1, Applying the probability test on Initial recognition of
ravenus by not recording all outstanding fines. | was unable to determine the full extent of the
misstatement on receivables from non-exchange transactions or fines revenus as it was
impracticable to do so. Consaquantly, | was unable o determine whether any further
adjustments ralating to receivables from non-exchange transactions of R4 508 072

{2017:R10 393 208) as disclosad in nate 8 fo the financial statements or revenue from traffic
fines of R4 311 914 {2017: R1 811 750) as presented in the statement of financial performance
were necessary.

WY rmooogtia
EE TRV AT

8. |was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for VAT receivable as the
municipality did not have an adequate system of internal control to account for the VAT
receivable and did not keep proper records. | was unable tc confirm the VAT receivable by
afternative means. Consequently, i was unable fo determine whether any further adjustrment
relating to the VAT receivable of R17 813 925 (20%7: R32 670 327) as disclosed in note 9 to
the financial statements was necessary.

— 2

SIS DS

7. lwas unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for consumer debtars as the
municipality did not have an adequate system of internat control io account for these consumer
debtors and did not keep proper recards. | was unable to confirm these consumer debtors by
alternative means. In addition, the municipality incorrectly included receivables reiating to
property rates in consumer debtars, resulting in consumer debtors being overstated and
receivables from non-exchange transactions being undersiated by R18 045 314
{2017: RS 870 701). Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any further adjustments
relating to consumer debtors of R74 550 113 (2017: R18 592 982) as disclosed in note 10 or
the related impairment expense of R15 488 214 (2017: R33 595 818) as disclosed in note 32
and the financial instrument disclosures in note 39 to the financial statements were necessary.

Cither financial

8. The municipality did not have adequate systems to maintain records of other financial iabilities
due to ciassification misstatements. This resulted in other financial liabilities being overstated
by R6 546 101 and payabies from exchange fransactions understated by the same amount. in
addition, the municipality incorrectly calcuiated the short term portion of other financial liabilities
due in the next financial year as current assets in accordance with GRAP 1, Presentation of
financial statements. Consequently, current other financial kabilities were overstated by
R8 103 9386, and the non-current current portion of other financial liabilities was understated by
Rt 557 835.

P S By R
i :;;‘3‘&'15.)29-‘;? FREE S G)\”..-?fi!_ﬂgj'{) vransestions

9. was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for payables from exchange
transactions as the municipality did not have an adequate system of internal contro! to account
for these payables and did nct keep proper records. | was unable to cenfirm these payables by
alternative means. Consequently, | was unabie to determine whether any adjustments refating
to payahies from exchange transactions of R513 534 015 (2017: R437 892 809) as disclosed
in note 18 and the financial instrument disciosures in note 39 to the financia! statements was

necessary

Frovisions

10. The municipality has environmental rehabilitation, continued medical aid and long-service
provisions that are subject to assumptions, judgements and estimates. The municipality did not
have adequate systems and processes fo accurately account for these provisions in
accordance with the actuarial valuations performed. This resulted in provisions being

o
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overstated by R6 396 901. Furthermore, contrary to the requirements of GRAP 25, Employee
benefits, and GRAP 19, Pravisions, Contingent Liabilities and Coniingent Asseis, management
did nat include the reguired disclosures and current year movements in these provisions in
note 17 to the financial statements. | have not included the emitied information in this auditor's
report as it was impracticable to do so.

Aroinnuial

11. 1 was unable {o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the accumulated surplus due to
differences between the financial statements and the accounting records. | was unable to
confirm this balance by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to detsrmine whether
any adjustment refating to the accumulated surplus of R700 920 867 (2017: R732 564 481) as
presented in the statement of financia! position and the statement of changes in net assets.

Tl H P T———
neivice aharges

i

12. 1 was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for revenue from service charges
refating to electricity and water as the municipality did not have an adequate system of infernal
controf to account for these services charges and did not keep proper records. | was unable to
confirm this revenue by alternative means. In addition, the municipality did not correctly fevy
consumers as incorrect tariffs were used for sewerage and sanitation charges and the
municipality did not bill all properties for service charges. | was unable fo determine the full
extent of the misstatement on service charges as It was impracticable to do so. Consequently, |
was unable to determine whather any further adjustment relating to service charges of
R148 416 968 {2017: R148 583 189} as disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements was
necessary.
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13, | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for property rates as the
municipality did not have an adequate system of internat contral to account for these property
rates and did not keep proper records. | was unable to confirm these transactions by alternative
means, Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any adjustments relating to property
rates of R46 057 550 disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements were nacessary.

14. During 2017, the municipality did not correctly recognise revenue relating to property rates in
accordance with GRAP 23, Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions dus 1o various
transactions being duplicated in the accounting records. Conseguently, the corresponding
figure for revenue from property rates was overstated by R33 432 231. My audit opinion on the
financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2017 was modified accordingly. As this
misstatment was not correct, my opinion on the current period’s financial statements is also
modified because of the effect of this matter an the comparability of the current period's figures.

Licenaes and penniia

15. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for licences and permiis as the
municipality did not have an adequate system of internat control to account for this revenue
and did not keep proper records. | was unable o confirm this revenue by alternative means.
Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any adjustment refating to licences and
permits of RS 221 107 as presented in the statement of finzncial performance was necessary.

SF INSONTTE

16. 1 was unable fo obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for other income as the municipality
did not have an adequate system of internal control to account for this cther income and did not
keep proper records. | was unabie to confirm this other income by aiternative means.
Cenaeguently, t was unable to determine whether any further adjusiments relating to other

income of R4 456 415 (2017: R30 881 795) disclosed in the statement of financial performance
was necessary.
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17. 1was unable te obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for inferest received as the
municipality did not have an adequate system of internal control to account for ths interest and
did not keep proper records. | was unable to confirm the interest by aiternative means.
Consequently, | was unabie to determine whether any further adjustments relating to interest
received of R23 861 165 as disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements was necessary.

18. The municipality did not calculate cvertime, bonusses, housing, pension and trave! allowances
paid to employees correctly. In addition the leave pay provision was incorrectly calculated.
This resulfed in employee cost being overstated by R4 232 625 and receivables from exchange
transactions understated by the same amount.
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19. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for government granis and
subsidies as the municipality did not have an adequate system of internal conirol to account for
these government grants and subsidies and did not keep nroper records. | was unable to
confirm this revenua by alternative means. In addition, the municipality did not correctly
account for the equitable share resulting in government grants and subsidies being understated
by R6 372 000. Consequently, | was unable tc determine whether any further adjustments
relating to government grants and subsidies of R103 005 574 as disclosed in note 28 to the
financial statements were necessary.

20. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for contracted services as the
municipality did not have an adequate system of internal control to account for contracted
services and did not keep proper records. ! was unable to confirm the contracted services by
alternative means. Consequently, | was unakle to determine whether any adjusiment relating to
contracied services of R11 184 185 as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements was
necessary.

Finanos oost

21.1 was unable io obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for finance cost as the municipality
did not have an adequate system of internal control o account for the finance cost and did not
keep proper recards. | was unable to confirm the finance cost by alternative means.
Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any further adjustments relating to finance
cost of R32 225 902 as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements was necessary

ik purehases

22.'was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for bulk purchase as the
municipality did not have an adequate system of internal control to account for bulk purchases
and did not keep proper records. | was unable to confirm these bulk purchases by alternative
means. Consequently, | was unabie to determine whether any adjustment relating to bulk
purchases of R78 311 879 as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements was necessary.

CGeneral eduensos

23. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for general expenses as the
municipality did not have an adequate system of internal control to account for genaral
expenses and did not keep proper records. | was unable to confirm these expenses by
alternative means, Consequently, } was unable to detsrmine whether any adjustment tc
general expenses of R17 866 478 disciosad in note 36 to the financial statemenis was

necessary.
o P
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24. The municipality did not take all legal engagements into account far the disciosure of
contingent assets and lizbilities, as required by GRAP 18, Provisions, contingent liabilitie s and
contingent asseis. Consequently, contingencies liabilities as disciosed in note 41 to the
financial statements was understated by R6 741 010. Furthermore contingent assets ide ntified
of R8 004 939 were not disclosed in nate 41 to the financial statements.

25. The municipality did not disclose all relevant related party relationships and balances as
required by GRAP 20, Refated parties. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
svidence for movements in loans {o retafed parties as the municipality did not have an
adequale system of internal control {o account for related party balances and retationships and
gid not keep propor racords. As the municipatify did not quantify the fall sxtent of the related
party disclosures, it was impraciicable to determine the total related parly balances and
refaticnships that should have been disclosed. No related parties or baiances were disclosed in

note 42 to the financial statements.
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26. The municipality did not correctly disclose prior period errars in note 43 to the financial
statements, as required by GRAP 3, Accounting poficies, estimates and errors as the nature
and the amount of the carrection for each financiat statement item affected, and the amount of
the correction at the beginning of the earliest prior period were not disclozed. In addition, | was
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the prior period errors disclosed, as
the supporting information was not proviced. | was unable to confirm these disclosures by
alternative means. Censequently, | was unable te determins whether any adjustments were
necessary to the disclosure of prior period errors in note 43 to the financial statements.

Uruthorised sunenditure

27. Section 125 of the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of
2003} {MFMA) requires the disclosure of unauthorised expenditure incurred. | was unable to
obtain sufiicient appropriate audit evidence for unauthorised expenditure as the municipaiity did

_not have an adequate system of internat control to account for unautharised expenditure and
did not keep proper records. | was unable to confirm these unavthorised expenditure by
alternative means. Consequently, | was unable lo determine whether any adjusiment refating to
unauthorised expenditure of R150 344 639 as disclosed in note 46 to the financia! statements
was necessary.
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28. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that all fruitless and wasteful
expenditure was disciosed as the municipality did not have an adeguate system of internal
control to account for fruitiess and wastefut expenditure and did not keep proper records, | was
urable to confirm these fruitiess and wasteful expenditure by alternative means. Consequentiy,
| was unable to determine whether any adjustment {o fruitiess and wasteful expenditure of
R126 675 808 disclosed in note 47 to the financial statements was necessary.

regular expandiinre

29. Section 125 of the MFMA requires the disclosure of irregular expenditure incurred.  was
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for irregular expenditure due to non-
submission of information in support of this disclosure. | was unable {o confirm the irregular
expenditure by alternative means. in addition, the municipality made payments of R15 170 768
{2017 R26 516 838} in contravention with the supply chain management requirements which
were not included in the irregular expenditure disclosed. As the municipality did not quantify the
full extent of the irregular expenditure, it was impracticabie to determine the total irregular

o.“‘_':“-: “5
Lo
™ ‘% #
&
é‘\‘hmmr)? £




0300

expenditure that should have been disclosed. Consequently, | was unable to determine
whether any further adjustment relating to the irregular expenditure of R226 823 039 (201 7:
R177 698 837} as disclosed in note 48 to the financial statemenis was necessary.

30. t was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for commitments as the
municipality did not provide supporting documentatior for the expenditure incurred relating to
thess commitments. twas unable to confirm these commitments by alternative means.
Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any further adjustment relating to
commiiments of R68 137 334 (2017: R130 363 085) as disclosed in note 40 io the financial
statements was necessary.

Hatribuhion d

31. | was unabie to obtain sufficient appropriate avdit evidence for distribution losses due the non-
submission of information in support of this disclosure. [ was unable to confirm these losses by
alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any adjustments io water
distribution losses of RT 985 623 or electricity distribution losses of R18 104 000 as disclosed
in note 50 to the financial statements were necessary.

Ty gD BE R
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32. iwas unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the calcutation of the net cash
flows from operating activities, investing activities and financing activities in the cash flow
statement, as the municipality did not appropriately account for cash and non-cash items as
required by GRAP 2, Cash flow sfalements. | was unable 1o confirm these items by alternative
means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any adjustments were necessary to
the net cash flows from operating activities, investing activities and financing activities in the
cash flow statement and the rote thereto.

fX T, R Fam S A . AR RTINS R R ey
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33. Contrary to the requirements of GRAP 24, Presentation of Budget Information in Financial
Staternents, the municipality did not disclose reasons for variances beiween budget and actual
expenditure. In addition, not ail expendiiure and revenue amounts disclosed in the staternent of
financial performance and budget amounts included in the approved budget are included in the
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounis. | have not included the impact of the
omitted information in this auditor's report as it was impracticable to do so.

Other matier

34, { draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not madified in respect of this matter.

38, In terms of section 125(2)e) of the MFMA, the municipality is required to disclose particulars of
non-compliance with the MFMA. This disclosure requirerment did not form part of the audit of
the financial statements and accordingly | do not express an opinion thergon.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

36. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the the South African Standards of Generaily Recognised
Accounting Practice (SA standards of GRAP} and the requirements of the MFMA and the
Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2017 (Act No. 3 of 2017) {(DoRA) and for such intarnal
control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statemeants that are free from material misstatement, whether due tc fraud or error.
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37. in preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the
municipality’s ability to continue as a gaing concern, disclosing, as appiiceble, matters redating
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate
governance structure either intends to liquidate the municipality or to cease operations, or there

i= no realistic alternaiive but to do so.

Auditor-general's responsibiiities for the audit of the financial siatements

38. My responsibility is to conduct an audit of the financial stalements in accordance with
interngtionat Standards on Auditing {iSAs; and to issue an auditor's report. However, because
aof the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of ocpinion section of my report, | was not
able {o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on

these financial statements.

39. } am independent of the municipality in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accouniants (IESBA code) together with
the ethical requiremenis that are relevant to my audi of the financial stataments. | have fulfilled
my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.
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Introduction and scope

40. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and
the general notice issued in terms thereof | have a responsibility to report material findings on
the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected key
performance area presented in the annual performance report. | performed procedures to

identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

41. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the
approved performance planning documents of the municipality. | have not evaluated the
completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators included in the planning
documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to
planned performance sirategies and information in respect of future periods that may be
included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not

extend to these matiters.

42.  evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance
with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as
defined in the general notice, for the following key performance area presented in the annual
performance repert of the municipality for the year ended 30 June 2018:

Key performancs areas

Pages in the an_ﬁqa!
performance report

KPA 4: Basic services dalivery and Infrastructure investment

X=X

43. | performed pracedures to determine whether the reported performance information was
property presented and whather performance was consistent with the approved performance
pfanning documents. I performed further procedures to defermine whether the indicators and
related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported
performance information fo determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

44, The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected key

performance area are as follows:




KPA 4 — Basie services delivery and infrastructure investment

Vasious nglioaioes
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45. The reported achievements in the annual performance repart did not agree to the supporting
evidence provided for the indicators listed below. The supporting evidence provided indicated

that the achievements of these indicators were as follows:

Indicator Reported Audited
achievemeant value

The number of households with access to basic level of 8 768 90g0

water by 30 June 2018

The number of households with access to basic level of 8766 10 065

sanitafion by 30 June 2018

Warinus indionines

46. The municipality did not have an adequate record keeping system to enable reliable reparting
on the achievement of the indicators listed below. As a result, | was unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence in some instances, while in other cases the supporting evidence
provided did not agree to the reported achievements. Based on the supporting evidence that
was provided, ithe achievement of these indicators was different to the reported achievement in
the annual performance report. { was also unable {o further canfirm the reported achievemenis
by aiternative means. Consequently, i was unable to determine whethar any further
adjustments were required to the reparted achievements of the indicators listed belaow:

indicator Reported Audifed
achievemeni value

The number of houssholds with access to basic level of 4320 5600

etectricity by 30 June 2018

The number of households with access to basic level of 12 284 13 648

solid waste removal by 30 June 2018 f

ntin with gooess ko free

47. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for households earning less than
R2 300 per month. This was due fo limitations placed on the scope of my work. | was unable to
confirm the reported achievement by alternative means. Conseguently, | was unable fo
determine whether any adjustments were required to the achievement of 4 972 as reported in

the annuai performance repart,

Other mafter

48. | draw attention to ithe matier below.

O T oy o g relownay: HE S
Achizverment of planned teopets

49. Refer to the annual performance report on pages == to xx for information on the achievement of
planned targets for the year. This information should be considered in the context of the
matenal findings on the useiulnass and reliabitity of the reported perfarmance information in
paragraphs xx to xx of this report.

7
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intreduction and scope

£0. in accordance with the PAA and the gereral notice issued in terms thereof | have a
responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the municipality with specific
matters in key legisfation. | performed procedures io identity findings but not to gather evidence
{0 express assurance,

51. The materiat findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:
Finanoial statsmaents

52. The financial statemenis submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in
acccrdance with the requirements of section 1221} of the MFMA. Material misstatements
identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were not adequately correcied,
which resulted in the financial statements receiving a disclaimer audit opinion.

Bivatesie planning 2ndd performanse mansgement
b 3 e H :

53. A performance management system was only adopted by Councit on 28 March 2018 and was
therefore not adopted timecusly with the 2017/22 integrated deveiopment plan (IDP) as
required by section 38(a) of the Municipal Systems Act of South Africa, 2000 {Act No. 32 of
2000} (MSA} and regulation 8 of the Municipal Planning and Performance Management
Regulations. :

Seirevia: S EpEaY
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54. An adequate management, accounting and information system which accounts for revenue,
debtors and receipts of revenue was not in place, as required by section 64(2)e) of the MFMA.

55. An effective system of internal control for debtors and revenue was not in place, as required by
section 64(2)(f) of the MFMA,

Sxpemiitirs managsment

66. Money owed by the municipality was not always paid within 30 days, as required by section
B5(2)(e) of the MFMA,

57. Reasonable steps were nof taken to ensure that the municipality implements and maintains an
effective system of expenditure confrel, including procedures for the payment of funds, as
required by section 65{2)(a) of the MFMA.

58. An adequate management, accounting and information system was not in place which
recognised expenditure when it was incurred, accounted for creditors and accounted for
payments made, as required by section 65(2)(b} of the MFMA,

59. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent irregutlar expenditure, as required by section
62{1}{d) of the MFMA. The full extent of the irreguiar expenditure could not be quantified as
indicated in the basis for qualification paragraph. The majority of the disclosed irregular
expenditure was caused by non-compliance due to staff not adhering to SCM regulations.
Simitar non-compkance was also reported in the prior year.

B0. Reascnable steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R29 716 991,
as disclosed in note 47 to the financial statements, in contravention of section 62(1){d) of the
MFMA. The majority of the disclosed fruitless and wasteful expenditure was caused by interest
and penalties paid on overdue accounts. Similar non-compliznce was also reported in the prior
year,

61. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent unauthorised expenditure, as required by section
62(1}d) of the MFMA. The full extent of the unauthorised expenditure could not be quantified
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as indicated in the basis for qualification paragraph. The majority of the disclosed unauthorised
expenditure was caused by spending thaf was not budgeted for and funds not used for
intended purpose. Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

Y
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82. An adequate management, accounting and information system which accounts for assets was
nat in place, as required by section 63(2)(a) ¢f the MFMA,

63. An effective system of internal control for assets was not in place, as required by section
63(2)(c) of the MFMA,

64. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained to determine whether capital assets
permanently disposed of were needed to provide the minimum levei of basic municipat service
and whether these capital assets were disposed of without the municipal council having had a
meeling open fo the public, and whether the council considered the fair market value of the
assets and the economic and communify value to be received in exchange for the assets, as
required by section 14(1), 14(2)(a) and 142)b} of the MFMA,

S L BT .
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65. An adequate management, accounting and informaticn system which accounts for liabilities
was not in place, as required by section 83(2){a) of the MFMA,

66. An effective system of internat controf for liabilities was not in place, as required by section
63{2)(c) of the MFMA,

p p R | -y e
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67. Performance in respect of programmes funded by the Municipa! Infrastructure Grant as welt as
the EEDSM grant was not evaluated, as required by section 12(5) of the DoRA.

B AR L AP, R 2 gag st - R
pEnr 290 contract managemant
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88. Some of the gocds and services with a transaction value of below R200 000 were procured
without obtaining the required price quotations, in contravention of by SCM regulation 17(a)
and {c}. Similar non-compifance was also reparted in the prior year.

69. Some of the quolations were accepted from bidders who did not submit 2 declaration on
whether they are employad by the state or connected to any person emplcyed by the state, as
required by SCM regulalion 13(c). Similar non-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

70. Some of the quotations and contracts were awarded to providers whose tax matters had not
been declared by the South African Revenue Service to be in order, in contravention of SCM
regulation 43.

71. Some of the invitations for competitive bidding were not advertised for a required minimum
pericd of days, in contravention of SCM regulation 22{1) and 22(2). This non-compliance was
identified in the preccurement processes for the NLM2017-013B-Construction of Roads in
Broedersput and NLM20 17-014B-Construction of Community Hall in Broedersput contruction
projects.

72. Some of the competitive bids were not always evaluaied by bid evaluation committees which
were composed of at feast one SCM practitioner of the municipality, as required by SCM
regulation 28(2). Similar ncn-compliance was also reported in the prior year.

73. Competitive bids were adjudicated by a bid adjudication committee that was not composed in
accordance with SCM regutation 29(2}. Similar non-compliance was alsa reported in the prior
year. This non-compliance was identified in the procurement processes for the NLM2017-
(13B-Censiruction of Roads in Broedersput, NLM2017-014B-Construction of Community Hall
in Broedersput and NLM2317-012B -Consfruction of Cemetery in Broedersput construction

projects.
L A
e £



0305

74. Some of the contracis were made to bidders other than those recommended by the bid
evaluation ccmmitiee without ratification by the accounting officar, as required by SCM
regulation 29(5){b}. This non-compliance was identified in the procurement processes for the
NLM2C17-014B-Construction of Community Hall in Broedersput construction project.

75. The performance of centractors or providers was not monitcred on a monthly basis, a5 required
by section 116{2}(b) of the MFMA. Similar non-compliance was also reported in the pricr year.
This non-compliance was identified in the procurement processes for the NLM2017-0138-
Consiruction of Roads in Broedersput, NLM2017-014B-Construction of Comrmunity Hall in
Broedersput. NLM2017-012B -Consiructicn of Cemetery in Broedersput, NLM2017-0038 -
Paving Of Extensin 25 Taxi Route Phase | and NLMZ2016-003B-Construction Of Rekgarathite
Community Hal! - Stella construction projecis.

76, The confract performance and monitoring measures and methods were insufficient to ensure
efiective contract management, in contravention of section 116(2)(c) of the MFMA. Similar non-
compliance was also reported in the pricr year,

AR T T P e gy SR ey o g
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77. Unauthorised, irregular and fruitiess and wasteful expenditure incurred by the municipality was
not investigated to determine if any person is liable for the expenditure, as required by section
32(2)(a) and {b}) of the MFMA. Similar non-compiiance was also reported in the prior year.
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78. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The cther information comprises
the information inciuded in the annual report. The other inforfnation does not include the
financial statements, the auditor's repart thereon and those selected development priorities
presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported on in the
auditor's report. '

79. My opinion on the financiai statements and findings on the reported pertormance information
and compliance with legisiaticn do not cover the other information and | do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

80. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the cther information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
and the setected development priorities presented in the annua! performance report, or my
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

81. As a resuit of the disclaimer of opinion expressed on the financiat statements, | do not conclude
on material misstatements of the other information relating {o the financial statements. If, based
on the work | have pertormed retating to the audit of performance information and comptiance
with legisiation, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, | am
required to report that fact. | did not receive the other information prior to the date of this
auditor's report. After | receive and read this information, and if | conclude that ithere is a
material nisstatement, | am required fo communicate the matter io those charged with
governance and request that the other information be corrected. if the other information is not
corrected, | may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as
appropriate. However, if it is correcied this will not be necessary.

b ' [ B S R SR A P "
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82. | considered internal conirol relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective
was not to express any form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below are lmited to
the significant internal conirol deficiencies that resuited in disclaimer of opinion, the findings on

11
Vi
g.,//%



0306

the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legistation included in this
report.

+  The municipality’s leadership did not exercise adequate oversight over financiat and
pedormance reporting, compliance monitoring and reflated internal controls. Policies and
procedures did not adequately guide financial, performance and compiiance activities and
consequence management measures were not fully implemenied

= Management’s internal contrels and processes over the preparation and presentation of
financial statements, performance reports and compliance monitoring were not able to
ensure that the reports were free from material misstatements and materia! deviations
from legisfation. Numerous financial registers and schedules submitied by management
did not agree to amounts as per the annual financial statement, was not compiete for all
items recorded and management did not adequately ensure the collection, coltation,

bt i A 1 [ S PRI A iR S 3
veriication, storing and reporting of actua! performance information,

=  The audit commitlee and internal audit fulfilled their functions, however, management did
not adequately respond to the concerns raised hy the audit committee, and did not
impfement ali the recommendations made by internal audit resuiting in the internal contral
environment over financial and performance information and compliance with laws and
regulations being ineffective. These matters together with the ineffactive implementation
and monitoring of the audit action plans resulted in the audit committee and internal audit
nct having a pesitive impact on the audit outcome.
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Rustenburg

30 November 2018

Auditing o build public confidence
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REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

FORM A
REQUEST FOR ACCESS TO RECORD OF PUBLIC BODY
{Section 18{1) of the Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 (Act No. 2 of 2000))
[Regulation 6]

FOR DEPARTMENTAL USE

Referance number: ........ocoo v iee e e

Request FeCeiVed BY ... e e ee e e {Slate ranK,
name and surname of information officer/deputy infermation officery on ... {date)
L OO OO P PP RPPOUPURUPRIOVOR | o3 1»3:J B

Requestfee (ifany) R ... .
Deposit (if any): R
Access fee: R

SIGNATURE OF INFORMATION OFFICER/DEPUTY INFORMATION OFFICER

A. Particulars of public body
The Information Officer/Deputy Information Officer

Ditsobotla Local Municipality

Civil Centre

Cnr Nelson Mandela and Tranvaal Street
Lichtenburg, 2740

Information Officer & Municipal Manger
Mr Mogapane Abel Metswamere (Abbey)
Tel; 018 633 3880

Fax: 018 632 5247

Email. metswamere@ymail.com

PA's email; moiicag2d@gmail.com

P2y
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FORM A: REQUEST FOR ACCESS TO RECORD OF PUBLIC BODY

B. Particulars of person requesting access to the record

(a} The particulars of the person who requests access to the record must be given befow.

{b) The address and/cr fax number in the Republic to which the information is tc be sent, must be given.

(c) Proof of the capacity in which the request is made, if applicable, must be attached.

Péter Johannes Wassenaar

Full names and surname:  F S oS Y AT

Identity number: e [ 7o | v ]2 | 505 1 1] 2o [ofs]a]

79 Rauch Avenue, Georgeville, Prctoria, G184

Postal address: L A e s

Telephane number: (012 ) 8034719 Fax number: (086 y 5968801

E-mai! address: peter@kriekprok.co.za

Capacity in which request is made, when made on behalf of anoiher person:

Attorney of record for Sakeliga NPC.

C. Particulars of person on whose behalf request is made

This section must be completed ONLY if a request for information is made on behalf of ancther person.

Skakeliga NPC - 2012/043725/08

Full names and surname; R I b = e e e,

identity number: [2 | 0 Il | 2 |U i 4 !3 | 7 | 2 15 f 0 |8 i |

D. Particulars of record

o you, to enable the record to be located.

must sign ail the additional folios.

{a) Provide full particutars of the record to which access is requested, including the reference number if that is known

(b) If the provided space is inadequate, please continue on a separate follo anc attach # to this farm. The requester

1. Descripticn of recerd or relevant part of the record:
Kindly refer to Annexture A attached hereto




0309

FORM A: REQUEST FOR ACCESS TO RECORD OF PUBLIC BODY

2. Reference number, if available: ........................ O

3. Any further particulars of record:
Kindly refer to Annexture A attached hereto

E. Fees

{a) A request for access to a record, other than a record containing personal information about yourself, will be
processed onty after a request fee has been paid.

(b) You will be notified of the amount required to be pald as the request fee.

(¢) The fee payable for access to a record depends on the form in which access is required and the reasaonable time
required to search for and prepare a record,

{d) If you gualify for exemption of the payment of any fee, please state the reason for exernption,

Reason for exemption from payment of fees:

F. Form of access to record

If you are prevented by a disability to read, view or listen to the record in the form of access provided for in 1 to 4 below,
state your disability and indicate in which form the record is reguired.

Disability: Form in which record
is required:

Mark the appropriate box with an X.

NOTES:
{a} Compliance with your request for access in the specified form may depend on the form in which the record is

available.

(b) Access in the form requested may be refused in certain circumstances. In such a case you wil be informed i
access will be granted in another form.

(c) The fee payable for access to the record, if any, will be determined partly by the form in which access is requested.

1. If the record is in written or printed form:
x | copy of record* | | Inspection of record | I

2. if record consists of visual images -
(this includes photographs, slides, video recordings, computer-generated images, sketches, etc.

view the images x | copy of the images* transcription of the
images”®

T s
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FORM A: REQUEST FOR ACCESS TO RECORD OF PUBLIC BODY

3. H record consists of recorded words or information which can be reproduced in sound:

x listen to the soundtrack x | transcription of soundtrack*
(audio cassette) {written or printed document)
4. if record is held on computer or in an electronic or machine-readable form:
printad copy of record* printed copy of informaticn x | copy in computer
derived from the record* readable form*
{stiffy or compact disc)
*If you requested a copy or transeription of a record {above), do you wish the copy or | YES NO X

transcription o be posted to you?
Postage is payable.

Note that if the record Is not available in the language you prefer, access may be granted in the fanguage in which the
record is avaifable.

In which language would you prefer the record? English/Afrikaans

G. Notice of decision regarding request for access

You witl be notified in writing whether your request has been approved / denied. I you wish to be informed in another
manner, please specify the manner and provide the necessary particulars to enable compliance with your reguest.

How would you prefer to be informed of the decision regarding your request for access to the record?
By email adressed to peter(@kriekprok.co.za and rohann(@krekprok.co.za

Signed atPRETORIA ........................................... this day 29 ......... of JU[L"{year 2020

-t

AN
&\
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ANNEXLIRE A

All audited financial statements for tha Ditsobotla Local Municipality for the financial years
ending 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020;

All entity specific audit reports relating to the Ditsobotla Local Municipality received from the
Auditor-General South Africa in terms of the Public Finance Management Act {PFIMA),
Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) for the financial years ending 2015, 2016, 2017,
2018, 2019 and 2020;

All entity specific management reports that include findings, root causes and
recommendations to senior management and the municipal manager relating to the
Ditsobotla Local Municipality received from the Auditor-General South Africa for the financial
vears ending 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020,

All entity specific annual performance reports {APRs) refating to the Ditsobotla Local
Municipality received from the Auditor-General South Africa for the financial years ending
2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020;

All entity specific annual compliznce reports / assessments relating to the Ditsobotia Local
Municipality received from the Auditor-General South Africa for the financial years ending
2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020,

All entity specific non-compliance recommendations, directions, advisories, communications,
memoranda, findings and/or reports relating to the Ditsobotla Local Municipality received
frem the Auditor-General South Africa for the financial years ending 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018,
2019 and 2020;

All opinions on the financial statements, material findings on the APRs and compliance with
key legislations issued by the Auditor-General South Africa relating to the Ditsobotla Local
Municipality for the financial years ending 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020;

Al reports, findings and/or recommendations regarding internal contrcl measures received
from the Auditor-General South Africa relating to the Ditsobotla Local Municipality for the
financial years ending 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020;

Al entity specific reports, recommendations, audit outcome summaries, performance reparts,
performance recommendations, outcome reports, update reports, audit qualifications,
discretionary audit reports, status reports, special audit reports, general reports and/or
management recommendations / directions relating to the Ditsobotla Local Municipality
received from the Auditor-General South Africa for the financial years ending 2015, 2016,
2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020;

SIGNED AT PRETORIA ON 28 July 2020
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PETER WASSENAAR
KRIEK WASSENAAR & VENTER INC

PRETORIA




0313

POWER OF ATTORNEY

; I, the underﬂ'gned
{ o af&i ¢ /e éﬂ(;{;&.

0: #0205 250K

in my capacity as duly authorised reprasentative of
SAKELIGA NPT
REG: 2012/043735/08
do hareby appoiat and nominate,
KRIEK WASSERNIAR B VENTER INC
and for thelr apnointed agents f correspondents fnomineas
with full power of substitution, to be my lawful attorney with full power and autharity for me and in mmy
name, and for my aceount and benefl in order o fepresent me in my <laim against
DETSBESTL& LOCAL MIUBICIPALITY In terms of PAIA

My attorneys being able to:

1. Recelve and handle monevs: To demsnd, sue for and recover, and give discharzas for afl moneys,
securities for all sums of money, debis, stacks, shares and property now or hareafier belonging
tome, whether solely o1 jointly with any other persen cr persons. Remembering that my attomney
wil accrue costs/disbursements on my hehalf and that certain fees wili bacome pavable out of
the work done on my behalf, | hereby give in rem sum authority to recover all capiral, costs,
disbursemanis, fzes and ali other sums of money due 2o me on my behalf, and that all amounts
received must first be deducted or set off against ali fees and dishursements made on my hehalf
before any payments are made o me. § give spacific authority Lo sign any release or discharge for
the amount for the setilement in order to receive and recover the said amount. by attornays
and/or thelr nominees are also authorised to maka use of any capital payments received to make
payment of all debts and/or expenses. Thay are also herby authorised 10 withhold as secusity for
costs any portion of ainy capital received onmy behalf as they in their sole discretion ses fit, heing
allowed to debit any preliminary attoraey and cliznt fees at any stage;

2 T instituse legal proceadings or to defend: To defend any civil action brought against me or to
institute action in any High Court or Magisirates Court or Arbitration Institution;
3. To negetiate, dissuss consider and sattle: To nagotiate a settfement with any party concermed,

ta discuss the facis, meriis and quantum and to give me advice. To consider all facts and
documentaticn and to make decisions on my hehalf. To agree, propose and seitle any point in
dispute and (o agize, propose and settle any figures of setilernent and to advise me thereot.

4. Te seftfe accounts: To settle, compromise or submit to arbitration ail accounts, chaims azd
dispuias between me and any other person or persons;

B TV
CARECTORS Iigied 804

fauchiaan 79 fauch Avenue, Georgeville, Fretoria
{1) {012} 503 4749 1f) {086 586 8515 (2) peter @kriekprok.o.2a
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5. To wct with other parsons: To investigata, negotiate, receive and give out any infarrmation,
dorurnentation o data of any form or sort on ray behalf and to act and commu nicate wyith any
person, attorney, advocate or third party on my behalf;

G. To drall, receive and sign doawneniation: To be able to draft, receive, peruse, consider, sign and
give out any documentatian that hefshe considers relevan ar nECessary;

7. T appeint experts: To approach, consult and appoint any expert withesses, to acquire expert

reports and testimony and o acerue costs and make paviments in that regard;

To Instivute slternstive dispute zesolition piocsedings: To institute, make uze of or request any

alernative dispute rasoiution proceading including but not limited to ardiiration and/or

mediation proceedings;

8. To appoint assessors and agenis: To aphcint any assessors, agents and/or tracing agenis to assist,
do work and give advice on my behalf. | aiso give auihesity to pay and settie all accounts in this
regard;

1a. To appeint sdvocates and tegal advisavs: To appoint any advocate and/or tegal advisor to assist,
give opinicn and handle matters on my behalf, |alsa give authority to pay and seiile ail accounts
in this ragard;

ii. Seneral power to act: To do all that is necessary 1o finalize any matter and to act on my hahalf in
any mainer that he/she considars necessary end in doing so, | confirm this Power is irrevocable.
To generally for effecting the purposes aforesaie, ta do or cause to be done whaisoaver shall be
requisite, and fully and effectively, for all intents and purnoses, as | might or coild do i personally
present and aciing herein /hereby ratifying, allowing and confirming and promising and zgreeing
tai ratify, altow and confirm al and whatsaevar my said Attormeys and Agents shall lawTuliy do,
or causa tn be done, by virfue of these gresents.

&

BND

Ratification: | hereby ratify and agree 1o ratify everything which my Attorney or hisfhar substitute or
suhstitutes or agent or agents appointed by the Attorney under this power of attornay shall do or purport
to do by virtue of tiis nower of attornay.

This done and signed at %”’fr‘"a?/“r, i

,/'- 7 {signed)

- e 2} [ X N

As witnasses: 1) 53*

S,

KRIEK WASSEMARR & VENTER ING
P Ll Dt e £ B

L

<

. Geargeville, Pretariz
(1) {012} 803 4719 (1} {086 596 8516 (e} peter@kriskprok.co.2a

i
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF SOUTH AFRICA

(NORTH WEST DIVISION, MAHIKENG)
CASE NO: M 27 /2021

Held at MMABATHO on this the 25% day of FEBRUARY 2021
BEFORE the Honourable Mr Justice HENDRICKS DJP

In the matter between: | Y T
SAKELIGA NPC Applicant
and

THE MUNICIPAL MANAGER
DITSOBOTLA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY Respondent

HAVING HEARD MRS N NEETHLING on behalf of the Applicant and having read the
Notice of Motion and other documents fited of record;

IT 1S ORDERED

1. THAT: The Respondent is directed to provide the Applicant with all of the
documents requested by the Applicant in its request for access to
information dated the 06% of AUGUST 2020 {and attached to the founding
affidavit, marked as annexure “B”) within 60 days of service of the or<ler.

2. THAT:  Thg costs of the application be paid by the Respondent.

MK O
kg | R

53 S Inc
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HOOGGEREGSHOF VAN SUID AFRIKA “H"“'f
NOORD WES AFDELING MAHIKENG X i g

NQORD WES AFDELING MAHIKENG

BELASTINGFAKTUUR Ons Vierw: H2103/408
Sagknr: M27/2021

fn die saak tussen:

SAKELIGA NFC APPLIKANT
£n
MUNISIFALE BESTUURDER PITSOBOTLA PLAASLIKE MUNISIPALITEIT RESPONDENT

Adres soos gespesifiseer:
H NELSON MANDELA & TRANSVAAL STRAAT LICHTENBURG

HOFBEVEL

op die 29ste dag van MaaRT 2021 om 15:15 en te die H/v Nelson mMandela & Transvaal straat, distrik
Lichtenburg, Noordwes Provinsie, het ek die aan?ehegte Hofbevel op die RESPONDENT beteken deur “n
afskrif daarvan te oorhandig aan Me G Mtshali/klerk en "n persoon océnskynlik bo die ouderdom van
16 jaar en in beheer van die persee?, nadat ek die ocrspronklike daarvan aan haar getoon het en

die inhoud, aard en erns daarvan aan haar verduidelik het.

AFSTAND: SKM

Page tof 3 Post




(Geteken) ADJUNK 8ALJUMNR P PRINS

Van:

Aar:

Balju

J.H. SCHREUDBER
FOSBUS/POSBUS 2825
LICHTEMBURG, 2740

Tel: 018 532 1371
Faks: 086 682 1994
Epos: sheriflichienburg@gmail.com

Inkigling vir bank inbetalingsfoomragle:
STAMDARD BANK (KLERKSDORF {052638))
Naam: J.H. SCHREUDER (BALJU)

Nr. 630837791

NCQORD WES AFDELING MAHIKENG
NOORD WES AFDELING MAHIKENG
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Biadsy 2 van relaas 2103408 vervoly...

KRIEK WASSENAAR & VENTER ING
POSTHET SUITE A7 PRIVAATSAK X582
SILYERTON

;27

UBTWNI:

U verwysing: PJWASSENAARIES/OBDTES

BESKRYWING VAN FOQIE TARIEF
Regisfrasie 14.00
Relaas & Afskrif 38 .50
Beteksning 147.00
Reiskoste 30.00
Posgald/Klsinuilgawe 33.00
Sublolaal Fooie 262.50
Flus BTwW 39,38
TOTAAL VEASHULDIG R 301.88
Fakluurmr: 217181 My BTW Nr: 4150181923
Fakiuur uitgereik op 30-Mar-2021,
Rekening Nr; 2560 U mayg verais dat hierdie rekening getakseer en gestzaf
word binne 80 dae vanaf datum van uitreiking.

Page 2af 3
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Photo 1 - Lichtenburg - 2021/03/10
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Photo 2 - Lichtenburg - 2021/03/10
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2021/03/10,16:08

Photo 3 - Lichtenburg - 2021/03/10
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. 02021/03/70, 16:23

Photo 4 - Lichtenburg - 2021/03/10
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2021/03/10, 1

Photo 5 - Lichtenburg - 2021/03/10
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Photo 6 - Lichtenburg - 2021/03/10
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Photo 7 - Lichtenburg - 2021/03/10
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Photo 8 - Lichtenburg - 2021/03/10
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Photo 9 - Lichtenburg - 2021/03/10
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Photo 10 - Lichtenburg - 2021/03/10
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Photo 11 - Lichtenburg — December 2020
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Photo 12 - Lichtenburg - December 2020
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Photo 13 - Lichtenburg - December 2020
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Photo 14 - Lichtenburg - December 2020
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Photo 15 - Lichtenburg - December 2020
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Photo 16 - Lichtenburg - December 2020
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Photo 17 - Lichtenburg - December 2020
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SCHOLTZSTRAAT 81 SCHOLTZ STREET
POSBUS / PO BOX 107 LICHTENBURG 2740
TEL +27 {0)78 633 1000

FAKS [ EAX +27 (0115 633 1900

wanve pwk.go.2a

NWE BEEPERK « LIMITED 133BMO757 2:08

16 March 2021

To whom # may concern

Dear Sir/Madam,

ADVERSE EFFECT OF LACK OF SERVICE DELIVERY CN THE BUSINESS OF NWK LIMITED
GROUP
The operations of the NWK Group are severely impacted. A short summary of the major issues are

set out below.

Electricity supply

We experience interruption and/or disconnection of electricity supply in the Lichtenburg area as weli
as other towns in which we conduct business in the rural areas of the North West Province. This is
due to a combination of load shedding implemented by Eskom and failing infrastruciure of

municipalities. Municipalities do no maintenance of the electricity distribution network.

As a result the Group has bought generators of more than R26 million. The diesel account to run
these generators are astronomical. We have spent more than R2, 8 million on diesel for generators

in the current financial year (10 months).

NWK obtained a court interdict in the Mahikeng High Court to prevent Eskom to implement electricity
interruptions during office hours due to non-payment by the local municipality. As part of the interdict,
the NWK Group as well as a few other organisations pay their electricity bill directly to Eskom. It is
on record that the Ditsobotla Local Municipaiity is not complying with their own payment plan agreed
with Eskom and that during some of the menths the only payment received by Eskom is the direct

depasits in terms of the interdict.

Epko (Sunflower crushing plant) lost 19 production days in the previous financial year amounting to

more than R5 million as a result of both municipat infrastructure failure and load shedding.

T
£
DIREKTELIRE/DIRECTORS: H KRUGER (VOORSITTERIGHAIRMAN) & VERMOOTEN FH BADENHORST J MAHNE CF vAN NIEKERK [H SUURD P DU PREEZ Jchu//{nﬁy A TISTER
»

UMYOERENO/EXECUTIVE: TE RARL (HUB/CEQ) DPG KLOIMGELD HFB/CFG) TE MODISE (DIREKTEUR: TRAMSFORMASIEDIRECTOR: TRANSFORWMATION)

SENRETARS/SECRETARY: L PIZTERSE .
MK Baperk is “n goregivtreerds kredictyersk, iserasienr, 2799}

WK Litefted i3 it rpyfitered credit provilfer frogistracion na. 2759)
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Water supply

Lichtenburg experience interrupted water supply since 2012. The district municipality is not able to
extract enough butk water from boreholes. Consequently the town and industrial area where our
factories are situated only receives running water early in the morning and evenings. All of our
premises needed to fit water tanks with pressure pumps o have access to water during the day.
Boreholes had to be drilled to have enough water for our manufacturing plants.

We have spent more than R160 000 on water pumps and tanks.

Roads

The roads infrastructure in and around our towns are not maintained and with the recent heavy rains
deteriorated to an extent that some of them is not usabte. Farmers struggle to get their harvest to
aur silos. The trucks transporting these grains to the market also experience excessive maintenance
due to damage to tyres and suspensions. The rest of our company fleet consisting of motor vehicles

and bakkies suffers the same damage.

We have spent more than R100 000 in the current financial year on donations to the local
municipality and on fixing a few potholes in town ourselves. We can however nct maintain the road

infrastructure on behalf of the municipality or province.

General

The decay of all municipal infrastructure is evident. Traffic lights are not maintained and if it becomnes
faulty, the crossing is turned into a permanent 4 way stop. Municipal buildings like the town hall are
not maintained and the public can not hire it for functions anymore. The landfall site and water
treatment plant (sewerage) is not properly maintained, contravening environmentai legislation.
Productivity gets negatively affected alt over the organisation due to lack of service delivery. The

Group also struggies to attract and retain quality employees due to the lack of basic service delivery.

Yours Truly

-

T E Rabe

Chief Executive Officer
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The Formula For Success
Dia Formude Vir Sukses

06 Maart 2021

Nutri Feeds Lichtenburg

Naude Pienaar

Versoek om ondersteuning rakende CBH belegging in Lichtenburg

Mnr Pienaar

Nutri Feeds Lichtenburg is n afdeling van Country Bird Holdings SA.Itd.

Daar is tans 137 permanente persone in diens by die aanleg. Verder is daar ook 80 kontrakteurs in
diens. Die aanleg verskaf voer aan gemiddeld 2.5 miljoen hoenders daagliks. Dit vereis die aanleg
om 24 uur per dag vir 7 dae per week operasioneel te wees.

Indien die aanleg produksie verloor a.g.v welke rede ocokal word al die hoenders nie betyds gevoer
nie. Eerstens is dit wreed en mishandeling van die diere. Tweedens ly gewigsvertiese en
mortafiteite weens gebrek aan voer tot reuse eise wat dit cnekonomies maak om te produseer.,

Huidiglik is elektrisiteit en water voorsiening n reuse krisis wat dit ondraaglik maak.
Die aanleg word dus ock verhoed om verder uit te brei wat nie net tot nadeel van Lichtenburg is
nie maar ook tot n groot deet van die hele Noordwes provinsie.

Bogenoemde swak dienslewering dwing bestuur om na opsies te kyk so0os die verskuiwing van die
aanleg in totaal of n groot perentasie daarvan na n ander area.

Hiermee rig ons dringend n versoek om te help om die dieste scos krag, water en riool tot n
aanvaarbare vlak te verbeter

Byvoorbaat dank
Operasicnele bestuurder
C.S Landsberg

41 Buskus Sireat, Potchefstroon, 2531. PO Box 8556, Bailie Park, Folchefsiroom, 2526, South Africa. ///
Tel+27 (0}16 285 1020, Fax +27 ()57 803 5312, wabsie: wawnutsiteeds. co.2a, ‘_/
Diractors: A Barnard, MP Stander, F Grobbelasr. Nuri Feads (Ply) Lid Rag no: $994/00320207. MJC Artunes (Company Secretary) v

Dot Mo, Mutll-Farm-al-f 101 — Rev 11 —Tct 2015 A



